
SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT                                                                          DATE:                                    
REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION                                                   TIME: 
FOR THE ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS                                                 LOCATION: 
WEDNESDAY, JUNE 28, 2017                                                                                             EMPLOYEE: 
OPEN SESSION BEGINS AT 6:30 P.M. 
SANTA CRUZ COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION BOARD ROOM 
400 ENCINAL AVENUE, SANTA CRUZ, CA. 

 

 
 

AGENDA 
 

 
 

Santa Cruz City Schools District Regular Meeting 28th Jun 2017 - Page 1 of 6 

 Item Purpose / Support 

  Agenda   

   

1. Convene Closed Session Inter District 
Transfer Appeals 

5:00 p.m. 

1.1. Roll Call  

   

2. Inter District Transfer Appeals Hearings  

2.1. Inter District Transfer Appeal Hearing: 
Student #1 

Format: Parent/Guardian/Advocate will have 5 minutes to 
present the case for the appeal.  District will have 5 minutes 
to present the case for denial of appeal.  The Trustees will 
have 10 minutes to ask clarifying questions.  Trustees will 
vote in Open Session immediately following the Pledge of 
Allegiance and Report of Actions in Closed Session. 

2.2. Inter District Transfer Appeal Hearing: 
Student #2 

Follow format 

2.3. Convene Regular Closed Session 5:30 p.m. 

2.3.1. Roll Call  

2.3.2. Public Comments Prior to Closed Session Members of the public may comment on items that ARE 
listed on the Closed Session Agenda. 

2.4. Real Property Negotiations (Govt. Code 
54956.8) 

 

2.5. Public Employee 
Discipline/Dismissal/Release/Complaint 
(Govt. Code Section 54957) 

 

2.6. Expulsions 26-16-17 and 28-16-17 Information 

 Certificated/Classified/Management Leaves, 
Retirements, Resignations & Appointments 

Approval 

   

3. Convene Open Session 6:30 p.m. 

3.1. Welcome and Pledge of Allegiance  

1 of 569



SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT                                                                          DATE:                                    
REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION                                                   TIME: 
FOR THE ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS                                                 LOCATION: 
WEDNESDAY, JUNE 28, 2017                                                                                             EMPLOYEE: 
OPEN SESSION BEGINS AT 6:30 P.M. 
SANTA CRUZ COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION BOARD ROOM 
400 ENCINAL AVENUE, SANTA CRUZ, CA. 

 

 
 

AGENDA 
 

 
 

Santa Cruz City Schools District Regular Meeting 28th Jun 2017 - Page 2 of 6 

 Item Purpose / Support 

3.2. Vote on Inter District Transfer Appeal: 
Student #1 

 

3.3. Vote on Inter District Transfer Appeal: 
Student #2 

 

3.4. Agenda changes, additions or deletions  

   

4. Public Comments 
For presentations of matters not on the Agenda. 
3 minutes for individuals; 15 minutes per subject. 

Note to Members of the Public:  Thank you for taking the 
time to attend this meeting.  Santa Cruz City School 
Board Members appreciate your presence and your 
comments regarding items not on the agenda are valued.  
Per Santa Cruz City Schools Board Bylaw protocols, 
Trustees will not comment on Public Comments during 
this time. 

   

5. Superintendent's Report  

5.1. Superintendent's Report  

   

6. Board Members' Reports  

6.1. Board Members' Reports  

6.2. Board President's Report  

   

7. Approval of Minutes  

7.1. Minutes of the Regular Meeting on June 14, 
2017 

 

   

8. General Public Business  

   

8.1. Consent Agenda: These matters may be 
passed by one roll call motion.  

 

8.1.1. Personnel Actions - Certificated  

2 of 569



SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT                                                                          DATE:                                    
REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION                                                   TIME: 
FOR THE ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS                                                 LOCATION: 
WEDNESDAY, JUNE 28, 2017                                                                                             EMPLOYEE: 
OPEN SESSION BEGINS AT 6:30 P.M. 
SANTA CRUZ COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION BOARD ROOM 
400 ENCINAL AVENUE, SANTA CRUZ, CA. 

 

 
 

AGENDA 
 

 
 

Santa Cruz City Schools District Regular Meeting 28th Jun 2017 - Page 3 of 6 

 Item Purpose / Support 

8.1.2. Personnel Actions - Classified  

8.1.3. Purchase Orders, Quotes and Bids  

8.1.4. Warrant Register  

8.1.5. Budget Transfers  

8.1.6. Disposition of Surplus Property  

8.1.7. Contracts and Agreements  

8.1.7.1. Agreement Renewal: Superintendent: 
Soquel High School School Resource 
Officer Contract for 2017-18 

 

8.1.7.2. Contracts and Agreement: Educational 
Services/Special Education 

 

8.1.7.2.1. Contract: Balance for Kids  

8.1.7.2.2. Contract: Easter Seals  

8.1.7.2.3. Agreement for Professional Services: 
Rachel M. Haven, Independent Education 
Evaluation 

 

8.1.7.3. Contracts and Agreements: Business 
Services 

 

8.1.7.3.1. Agreement Amendment: Belli Architects 
Group - Branciforte MS Special Education 
Portable 

 

8.1.7.3.2. Agreement Amendment: Bridges to Kinder  

8.1.7.3.3. Contract: Applied Materials & Engineering - 
Water intrusion analysis @ 536 Palm St., 
Santa Cruz, CA 

 

8.1.7.3.4. Consultant Service Agreement: Jerene 
Lacey - Finance 

 

3 of 569



SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT                                                                          DATE:                                    
REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION                                                   TIME: 
FOR THE ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS                                                 LOCATION: 
WEDNESDAY, JUNE 28, 2017                                                                                             EMPLOYEE: 
OPEN SESSION BEGINS AT 6:30 P.M. 
SANTA CRUZ COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION BOARD ROOM 
400 ENCINAL AVENUE, SANTA CRUZ, CA. 

 

 
 

AGENDA 
 

 
 

Santa Cruz City Schools District Regular Meeting 28th Jun 2017 - Page 4 of 6 

 Item Purpose / Support 

8.1.7.3.5. Contract: Palace Business Solutions - 
piggyback contract for office/classroom 
supplies 

 

8.1.7.3.6. Contract: CPR – Harbor HS Poolhouse 
abatement work 

 

8.1.7.3.7. Contract: Gateway School - 255 Swift 
Street, Santa Cruz, CA 

 

8.1.8. Change Order – DeLaveaga Shade 
Structure 

 

8.1.9. BP 1312.3 Uniform Complaint Policy Final Reading: This change is required to resolve a finding in 
our Federal Program Monitoring Audit – the addition of three 
programs to the list of complaints to be investigated and 
resolved.  They are highlighted. 

   

8.2. Report of Closed Session Actions  

8.2.1. Report of Actions Taken in Closed Session  

8.2.2. Vote on Expulsions  

8.2.2.1. Vote on Expulsion 29-16-17  

8.2.2.2. Vote on Expulsion 30-16-17  

   

8.3. Items to Be Transacted and/or Discussed  

8.3.1. Staff Report: Facilities Services – 
Groundskeeping Update 

Staff will present an update on our groundskeeping 
department and practices. 

8.3.2. Staff Report: Bond Update – Soquel and 
Harbor HS Pool Projects; Harbor HS Field 

Consultant Stu Isaac will report to the Board on the Soquel 
and Harbor HS pool projects, and Facilities Director Miller will 
provide an update on the Harbor HS field project. 

*As of the printing of the Board book, we have not received a 
report from the Isaac Group.  If the document is received prior to 
the Board report, we will distribute it. 

 

4 of 569



SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT                                                                          DATE:                                    
REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION                                                   TIME: 
FOR THE ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS                                                 LOCATION: 
WEDNESDAY, JUNE 28, 2017                                                                                             EMPLOYEE: 
OPEN SESSION BEGINS AT 6:30 P.M. 
SANTA CRUZ COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION BOARD ROOM 
400 ENCINAL AVENUE, SANTA CRUZ, CA. 

 

 
 

AGENDA 
 

 
 

Santa Cruz City Schools District Regular Meeting 28th Jun 2017 - Page 5 of 6 

 Item Purpose / Support 

8.3.3. New Business: Belli Architectural Group – 
Amendment Agreement for Soquel & 
Harbor HS Pool Projects 

Staff will report on the amended agreement for the Soquel 
and Harbor HS pool projects. 

*As of the printing of the Board book, we have not received a 

report from the Isaac Group.  If the document is received prior to 
the Board meeting the Superintendent will make a 
recommendation regarding the dimensions of the pools for 
Harbor and Soquel.   

8.3.4. New Business: Approve Local Control 
Accountability Plan (LCAP) 2017-18 

Recommendation: Approve the LCAP 2017-18 

8.3.5. New Business: Adopt Budget 2017-18 Recommendation: Approve the 2017-18 Budget 

   

9. Adjournment  

   

10. Return to Closed Session (if necessary)  

   

11. Closed Session Action Report (if 
necessary) 

 

   

12. Adjournment  

 
 
 
The board book for this meeting, including this agenda and back-up materials, may be viewed or downloaded online: 
http://www.sccs.santacruz.k12.ca.us/board-of-education/agendas-&-minutes.html or may be viewed at the District 
Office, Superintendent’s Office, Room 303, 405 Old San Jose Road, Soquel, CA.    
 
Public Participation: 
All persons are encouraged to attend and, when appropriate, to participate in meetings of the Santa Cruz City Schools 
Board of Education. If you wish to speak to an item on the agenda, please be present at the beginning of the meeting 
as any item, upon motion, may be moved to the beginning of the agenda.  Consideration of all matters is conducted in 
open session except those relating to litigation, personnel and employee negotiations, which, by law, may be 
considered in closed session. 
 
Translation Requests: 
Spanish language translation is available on an as-needed basis.  Please make advance arrangements with Nancy 
Lentz by telephone at (831) 429-3410 extension 220. 
 
 
 

5 of 569

http://www.sccs.santacruz.k12.ca.us/board-of-education/agendas-&-minutes.html


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT                                                                          DATE:                                    
REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION                                                   TIME: 
FOR THE ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS                                                 LOCATION: 
WEDNESDAY, JUNE 28, 2017                                                                                             EMPLOYEE: 
OPEN SESSION BEGINS AT 6:30 P.M. 
SANTA CRUZ COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION BOARD ROOM 
400 ENCINAL AVENUE, SANTA CRUZ, CA. 

 

 
 

AGENDA 
 

 
 

Santa Cruz City Schools District Regular Meeting 28th Jun 2017 - Page 6 of 6 

 
Las Solicitudes de Traducción: 
Traducciones del inglés al español y del español al inglés están disponibles en las sesiones de la mesa directiva.  Por 
favor haga arreglos por anticipado con Nancy Lentz por teléfono al numero (831) 429-3410 x220. 
 

Board Meeting Information 

1. The Regular Meeting on August 23, 2017, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 

 
 

6 of 569



 

 

    MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING 
OF THE SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS BOARD OF EDUCATION 

FOR THE ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS 
June 14, 2017 

 
 
Convene Closed Session 
Board Vice President Thompson called this Regular Meeting Closed Session to order at 5:32 p.m. in the County 
Office of Education Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 
 
Public Comments for Closed Session Agenda Items 
None 
 
Convene Open Session 
Board President Tracy-Proulx called this Regular Meeting Open Session to order at 6:34 p.m. in the County 
Office of Education Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 
 
Attendance at Meeting 
Sheila Coonerty Deedee Perez-Granados Jeremy Shonick  Alisun Thompson   
Patty Threet  Deb Tracy-Proulx  Claudia Vestal 
 
Student Representative Steve Munoz: Soquel High School 
 
Kris Munro, Superintendent 
Patrick Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
Molly Parks, Assistant Superintendent, Human Resources 
Frank Wells, Assistant Superintendent, Educational Services 
Members of the Audience 
 
Welcome and Format 
Board President Tracy-Proulx welcomed those in attendance and explained the format used for this Regular 
Meeting of the Board of Education.  
 
Agenda Changes 
None 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 
Soquel High School Ceramics Teacher Emery asked the Trustees to carefully consider any reduction of Art 
classes at Harbor High School as he would like to continue to attract students to Santa Cruz City Schools with 
as many class offerings as possible.   Westlake Teacher Nolte also asked the Board Members to carefully 
consider the reduction of art classes at secondary sites, as she feels that Credentialed K-12 Art Teachers have 
vastly different skill sets in elementary vs. secondary grades.  Former Board Member Deborah Taylor 
advocated for as many art classes in secondary schools as possible, as she believes these classes keep students 
in school. 
 

 
 
 

7 of 569



 

 

 
SUPERINTENDENT’S REPORT 

Superintendent’s Report 
Superintendent Munro presented Student Representative Munoz with a certificate of appreciation for his 

service to the Board of Education during the 2016-17 school year.  The Superintendent congratulated Student 

Munoz on his graduation from Soquel High School, and wished him well as he continues his educational career 

at Cabrillo College and beyond.  This past week’s commencement ceremonies were inspiring celebrations of 

learning and achievement.  Superintendent Munro thanked the site staffs for their work to ensure memorable 

transitions for students and families and the Trustees for attending to celebrate and certify our graduates. 

On May 25th, SCCS celebrated 29 retirees and a total 627 years of service to students, families and the 

community.  The Superintendent thanked the SCCCE and GSCFT for co-sponsoring the event and the Human 

Resources team for the wonderful attention to detail in planning an evening to honor employees.  On June 12, 

the Superintendent participated in the Adult Education Consortium Director interviews and is optimistic about 

bringing forward a Director with strong vision and collaborative leadership skills to serve the adult learners in 

Santa Cruz County.  Leadership staff are busy planning summer professional development, as well as planning 

for the 2017-18 school year.  SCCS is in the final stages of preparing for the start of summer school programs 

in July.  It’s been a great school year.  Our staff and students have accomplished a lot and there is much to 

celebrate.  Thank you everyone for supporting our collective effort.  

 
BOARD MEMBERS’ REPORTS 

Board Members’ Reports 
Board Member Thompson attended the Retirement Celebration and it was great.  The LO/SC YVP Initiative is 
restructuring, and Dr. Thompson will provide details at a later date.  Dr. Thompson attended graduations at 
three SCCS alternative schools: Alternative Family Education, Costanoa and ARK Independent Studies.  It is 
great to recognize that Santa Cruz City Schools provides excellent educational services to diverse types of 
students with specific needs/wants during their educational careers, and that all students are warmly 
celebrated for their educational accomplishments. 
 
Board Member Perez-Granados attended graduation celebrations at Delta Charter High School, Mission Hill 
Middle School and Harbor High School.  Each was very enjoyable. 
 
Board Member Threet thanked Student Munoz and Student Wilson for their time and perspectives this year.  
Trustee Threet felt that the student opinions and thoughts helped shape decisions that the Board of Education 
made during the year.  Ms. Threet attended graduation at Soquel High School and was very impressed with 
the ceremony and the speeches.  Board Member Threet acknowledged Santa Cruz High School Assistant 
Principal Kopald for his service and wished him well in his next endeavor.  Trustee Threet attended a student 
pottery sale at “First Friday” and enjoyed it. 
 
Board Member Vestal attended the graduation celebrations for Adult School, Delta Charter High School, 
Monarch Alternative Elementary School, DeLaveaga Elementary School and Mission Hill Middle School.  All 
student speakers displayed great maturity.   Ms. Vestal is proud of all those who marched in the Pride Parade 
this week.  Trustee Vestal attended the Delta School Board Meeting and the Schools Plus Meeting. 
 

8 of 569



 

 

Board Member Coonerty attended the Santa Cruz City Schools Employee Retirement celebration and it was 
wonderful.  Dr. Coonerty attended the graduations at Bay View Elementary and Santa Cruz High School – both 
celebrations were delightful.   
 
Board President’s Report 
Board President Tracy-Proulx thanked Student Representative Munoz for his time and service this school year.  
It was a great pleasure to get to know Student Munoz.   
 
*Note: Student Representative Munoz left the meeting at 7:08 p.m. 
 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
1. MSP (Vestal/Coonerty) 6-0-1, the Board of Education approved the Minutes of the Regular 

Meeting/Governance/Study Session on May 31, 2017 as submitted.  Dr. Thompson abstained from this 
vote as she was not present at the meeting on May 31. 
 

Consent Agenda 
Board Member Coonerty pulled Item 8.1.9. Board Policy 5141.52 Suicide Prevention, for a separate discussion 
and vote.  Board Member Threet pulled Item 8.1.14. Information Item –Green Schools Annual Report, for a 
separate discussion and vote.   Dr. Coonerty asked questions about Item 8.1.15.2.3. MOU: Santa Cruz/Silicon 
Valley New Teacher Project and Santa Cruz City Schools 2017-18.  Dr. Coonerty asked questions about Item 
8.1.15.3.2., Agreement for Professional Services: Special Education-Morrison Compton Educational Center-
Individual Education Evaluation.  Board Member Threet asked clarifying questions about the Amendment 
Agreements for MADI Architects and the Belli Architectural Group.  Dr. Thompson moved approval of the 
Consent Agenda, consisting of: Item 8.1.1. Personnel Actions – Certificated; Item 8.1.2. Personnel Actions – 
Classified; Item 8.1.3. Purchase Orders, Quotes and Bids; Item 8.1.4. Warrant Register; Item 8.1.5. Gifts; Item 
8.1.6.2017-18 District and School California Interscholastic Federation (CIF) Designations; Item 8.1.7. Delta 
Charter High School Application for Proposition 51 Facilities Funds; Item 8.18. Board Policies – Final Reading 
and Adoption (December 2016 packet from CSBA); Item 8.1.10. Disposition of Surplus Property; Item 8.1.11. 
Resolution 32-16-17 District Signature Authorizations 2017-18; Item 8.1.12. Resolution 33-16-17 Authorizing 
Approval of Personnel Actions during the summer months; Item 8.1.13. Resolution 34-16-17 Education 
Protection Act for the 2017-18 Budget; Item 8.1.15.1.1. Legal Services Lozano Smith 2017-18; Item 8.1.15.1.2. 
Legal Services Dannis Woliver Kelley 2018-19; Item 8.1.15.1.3. Legal Services Fagen, Friedman & Fulfrost 2017-
18; Item 8.1.15.2.1. CSA Athletic Trainer SCHS-Jennifer Putt; Item 8.1.15.2.2. CSA Athletic Trainer SHS –Scott 
Hamill; Item 8.1.15.2.3. MOU: SC/SV New Teacher Project and SCCS 2017-18; Item 8.1.15.3.1. CSA Curriculum 
id Technology; Item 8.1.15.3.2. Agreement for Professional Services-Morrissey Compton Educational Center-
Individual Education Evaluation; Item 8.1.15.4.1. Agreement: PG&E Easement @ SCHS; Item 8.1.15.4.2. 
Agreement Amendment: Belli Group-Branciforte MS Modernization; Item 8.1.15.4.3. Agreement: School 
Innovations & Advocacy 2017-18; Item 8.1.15.4.4. Contract: Biotic Resources Group: HHS Field CEQA; Item 
8.1.15.4.5. Agreement: School Services of California 2017-18; Item 8.1.15.4.6. Agreement Amendment: Belli 
Group-HHS Field; Item 8.1.15.4.7. Agreement: Balance Hydrologics-Floodplain Analysis HHS Field; Item 
8.1.15.4.8. Agreement: Miyamoto Structural Engineering-Seismic Evaluation HHS & Soquel HS; Item 8.1.15.4.9. 
Agreement: Ifland Survey-SCHS, SHS, SS, Branciforte MS; Item 8.1.15.4.10. Agreement Amendment: MADI –
SHS Modernization and New Construction; Item 8.1.15.4.11. Agreement Amendment: MADI-SS Modernization 
and New Construction; Item 8.1.15.4.12. Agreement Amendment: MADI-NB Gymnasium; Item 8.1.15.4.13. 
Agreement Amendment: Belli Group –HHS Electrical.  Ms. Vestal seconded the motion.  The motion was 
passed by roll call vote, as follows: 
Roll Call Vote: Coonerty – Yes Perez-Granados – Yes  Shonick – Yes  Thompson – Yes 

9 of 569



 

 

  Threet – Yes  Tracy-Proulx – Yes  Vestal – Yes 
 
Item 8.1.9. Board Policy 5141.52 Suicide Prevention 
Following discussion, Dr. Coonerty moved approval of this policy with the words “self and” added to #2, 
following the word “intent”.  Dr. Perez seconded this motion.  The motion was passed by roll call vote, as 
follows: 
 
Roll Call Vote: Coonerty – Yes Perez-Granados – Yes  Shonick – Yes  Thompson – Yes 
  Threet – Yes  Tracy-Proulx – Yes  Vestal – Yes 
 
Item 8.1.14. Information Item: Green Schools Annual Report 
Board Member Threet pulled this item for a separate discussion and vote to acknowledge the diligent and 
important work of this committee and the impact these practices have on students and community.  Trustee 
Threet would also like to investigate making container purchases for classrooms that increase recycling 
options.  Ms. Threet moved approval of the item and Dr. Perez-Granados seconded the motion.  The motion 
was passed by roll call vote, as follows: 
Roll Call Vote: Coonerty – Yes Perez-Granados – Yes  Shonick – Yes  Thompson – Yes 
  Threet – Yes  Tracy-Proulx – Yes  Vestal – Yes 
 
8.2 Closed Session Actions 

1. The Board of Education conferred regarding the properties at 255 Swift Street and 133 Mission 
Street in Santa Cruz, CA. 

2. The Board of Trustees heard an update regarding Public Employee 
Discipline/Dismissal/Release/Complaint. 

3. The Board of Trustees heard information on Expulsions 26-16-17 and 28-16-17 to prepare for a 
vote on these matters later this evening in Open Session. 

4. The Board of Trustees took action on Certificated, Classified, and Management leaves, 
retirements, resignations, and appointments. 

5. The Board of Trustees heard an update regarding a Special Education settlement agreement. 
 
 Vote on Expulsions 

1. MSP (Coonerty/Thompson) 6-0-1, the Board of Education approved Expulsion 26-16-17 as 
submitted.  Dr. Perez-Granados abstained from this vote. 

2. MSP (Coonerty/Thompson) 6-0-1, the Board of Education approved Expulsion 28-16-17 as 
submitted.  Dr. Perez-Granados abstained from this vote. 

 
ITEMS of BUSINESS to be TRANSACTED and/or DISCUSSED 

8.3.1. Committee Report: Parcel Tax Oversight Committee Annual Report 
 Committee Member Helayne Ballaban reported to the Board of Education.  The format of the report 

has changed from previous years.  The new format includes: the committee charge; list of current 
parcel taxes; a summary of each of the four meetings held during the 2016-17 school year; committee 
statements.  There were two committee statements submitted in this report: 1) the committee might 
benefit from a reduced number of members in order to achieve a quorum more easily to conduct 
business.  With reduced membership, it would still be important to retain feedback from employees 
who serve in positions funded by parcel taxes and also the voice of the community; 2) based on the 
information provided to the PTOC by the District, the PTOC is satisfied that funds received for the fiscal 
year 2016-2017 from Measures I, J, O, and P Parcel Taxes, as approved by voters, were in fact 

10 of 569



 

 

budgeted in accordance with the ballot language in said Measures and, if ultimately expended as 
budgeted by the District, those funds will have been spent by the District in accordance with said 
Measures. The PTOC reports that the District is using the Parcel Tax money appropriately. The PTOC 
thanks the Santa Cruz community for its unwavering support of these excellent programs.  Following 
discussion and questions, the Board President thanked the committee for the report.  As this item was 
informational in nature, no actions were taken by the Board of Education regarding this matter. 

 
8.3.2. New Business: SCCS/GSCFT Tentative Agreement: Article I –Duration and Guest Teacher Duration 
 Ms. Parks reported that a Tentative Agreement regarding Article I-Duration for the Greater Santa Cruz 

Federation of Teachers and the Guest Teachers Duration was reached on May 12, 2017. The duration 
for the contracts has been extended for 3 years. The new duration dates are from July 1, 2017 through 
June 30, 2020.  Ms. Parks recommended approval.  MSP (Threet/Thompson) 7-0, the Board of 
Education approved the agreements. 

 
8.3.3. Staff Report: Local Control Accountability Plan (LCAP) 2017-18 
 Mr. Wells reported to the Trustees regarding this matter.  The annual update provides details 

regarding the LEA’s actions and expenditures to support pupil outcomes and overall performance 
pursuant to Education Code.  Information included: LCAP cycle of improvement; stakeholder 
engagement; state priority areas; purpose for and amounts of SCCS Elementary and Secondary Local 
Control Funding Formula (LCFF) supplemental funds; elementary programs and services; secondary 
programs and services; this year’s major revision in the LCAP = LCAP Goals are the District Goals; key 
plan highlights; next steps.  The LCAP will come back to the Board of Education for final approval on 
June 28, 2017.  Following board comments, questions and discussion, Board President Tracy-Proulx 
thanked Mr. Wells for the report.  This report was informational in nature, and no actions were taken 
by the Board of Education regarding this matter.      

 
8.3.4. PUBLIC HEARING: LCAP 2017-18 

The 2017-18 LCAP was presented for a Public Hearing in order to provide the community an 
opportunity to comment and give input prior to submitting it to the Board of Education for approval on 
June 28, 2017. After Board adoption, the LCAP will be submitted to the County Office of Education for 
final approval. The full 2017-18 Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) is available for review on 
our district website: 
www.sccs.net/departments/educational_services/academic_equity_and_categorical_programs 
 
Open: Board President Tracy-Proulx opened the Public Hearing at 8:27 p.m. 
Public Comment: GSCFT Board President Casey Carlson commended Mr. Wells for the excellent 
Stakeholder Meeting break-out groups.  Also, the community members present at the meetings did 
not understand the data regarding specific programs – better background information would be 
helpful. 
Close: Board President Tracy-Proulx closed the Public Hearing at 8:28 p.m. 

 
8.3.5. Staff Report: Budget 2017-18 

Mr. Gaffney reported that Santa Cruz City Schools is on a single budget adoption cycle – adopting a 
budget each year by June 20.  It is anticipated that the Governor will reach a compromise with the 
legislature by the June deadline, which may require adjustments to the revenue projections contained 
in the preliminary budget presented tonight.  If the Governor’s budget is adjusted in time, a revised 
SCCS budget will be presented on June 28 for adoption.  If not, the final revised impact will be provided 

11 of 569

www.sccs.net/departments/educational_services/academic_equity_and_categorical_programs


 

 

at the Regular Meeting on August 23, 2017.  Board comments, questions and discussion followed the 
report by Mr. Gaffney.  Specifically, the Board of Trustees provided Superintendent Munro with the 
following directive: Business Services will investigate if other districts in the state contribute to their 
Food Services budget in a similar manner to the SCCS $450k annual contribution.  The Superintendent 
will provide information in her “Weekly Update”, or on a future agenda item.  This inquiry will be 
separate from the budget adoption.  This report was informational in nature, and no actions were 
taken by the Board of Education regarding this matter. 

 
8.3.6. PUBLIC HEARING: Budget 2017-18 

Mr. Gaffney reported that the purpose of the Public Hearing is to provide a public forum for 
community input regarding the adoption of the 2017-18 Preliminary Budget.  The 2017-18 Preliminary 
Budget Summary, Presentation and SACS Report are available for review on the SCCS district website 
at: 
http://sccs.net/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=25966591 
http://sccs.net/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=25966593 
http://sccs.net/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=25967479 
 
Open: Board President Tracy-Proulx opened this Public Hearing at 9:15 p.m. 
Public Comment:  GSCFT Secondary Vice President Carlson noted that the format used for the Multi-
Year Projections was a bit different from previous years, and she requested that the asked to include 
the previous format.  GSCFT President Kirschen noted that he is having difficulty understanding the 
PERS/STRS Reserve.  Mr. Gaffney invited him to meet with him in his office at a later time to go over 
this information in detail.  GSCFT Elementary Vice President Ballaban inquired about the Parcel Tax 
Reserve.  Mr. Gaffney explained that not all coaching stipends in the budget were distributed this year, 
as not all activities had coaches.  These reserved funds will be spent in the coming year and converted 
to an actual expense. 
Close: Board President Tracy-Proulx closed this Public Hearing at 9:23 p.m. 

 
8.3.7. New Business: Superintendent’s Contract 
 Ms. Parks presented this item to the Trustees.  The revision brought forward this evening is the 

extension of the contract for one year.  The new contract will expire on June 30, 2020.  On behalf of 
the Cabinet Members, Ms. Parks gave her strongest recommendation for approval of the contract 
extension.  MSP (Thompson/Perez-Granados) 7-0, the Board of Education approved the extension of 
the Superintendent’s contract through June 30, 2020.  

 
9. Adjournment of Meeting 

As there was no further business for the Open Session Meeting, Board President Tracy-Proulx 
adjourned this meeting at 9:28 p.m. 

 
Board Meeting Schedule Information 

1. The Regular Meeting on June 28, 2017, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education Board 
Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 

2. The Regular Meeting on August 23, 2018, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 
 

 
 

12 of 569

http://sccs.net/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=25966591%20
http://sccs.net/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=25966593%20
http://sccs.net/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=25967479


 

 

 
 
 
 

 

* For more details about this meeting, please visit our district website and listen to the meeting 
recording: 

 
 http://www.sccs.santacruz.k12.ca.us/about-us/board-of-education/agendas-a-minutes.html  
 
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
Kris Munro, Superintendent     Deb Tracy-Proulx, President 
Santa Cruz City Schools     Board of Education 

13 of 569

http://www.sccs.santacruz.k12.ca.us/about-us/board-of-education/agendas-a-minutes.html
http://www.sccs.santacruz.k12.ca.us/about-us/board-of-education/agendas-a-minutes.html


AGENDA ITEM:  8.1.1 
 

SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Certificated Personnel Actions 
 
DATE: June 28, 2017 
 
FROM: Molly Parks, Assistant Superintendent, Human Resources 
 
THROUGH: Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
We recommend the Board of Trustees approve the certificated personnel actions as 
submitted. 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The attached certificated personnel actions are submitted in accordance with District policy, 
California Education Code, and the negotiated contract.   

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
                 

14 of 569



AGENDA ITEM:  8.1.1 

2017-2018 APPOINTMENTS: 
 
Certificated: 
 
Sonia Banuelos, 1.0 1st Grade Bilingual Teacher at Bay View Elementary.  Sonia’s educational 
background includes a BA in Ancient History from UC Santa Cruz.  Sonia will hold a Preliminary 
Multiple Subject Teaching Credential and BCLAD Authorization for Spanish.  Her status is 
Temporary and she completed her student teaching at Gault Elementary.   
 
Zack Garban, 1.0 4th/5th Grade Teacher at Monarch Elementary.  Zach’s educational background 
includes a BA in Anthropology from the University of Nevada and an MA in Education from 
SJSU.  Zach will hold a Preliminary Multiple Subject Teaching Credential and an English Learners 
Authorization.  His status is Temporary and he completed his student teaching at Gault 
Elementary.  
 
Devon Magana, .60 English Teacher at Mission Hill Middle.  Devon’ educational background 
includes a BA in Linguistics from UC Santa Cruz and an MA in Education from Santa Clara 
University.   Devon will hold a Preliminary Single Subject Teaching Credential for English and an 
English Learners Authorization.  Her status is Probationary 1 and she completed her student 
teaching at Juan Cabrillo Middle School in Santa Clara.  
 

15 of 569



 

AGENDA ITEM 8.1.2 

SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
           

 

AGENDA ITEM:        Classified Personnel Actions 

  

MEETING DATE:      June 28, 2017  

 

FROM:                   Molly Parks, Asst. Superintendent, Human Resources 

  

THROUGH:            Kris Munro, Superintendent   

  

  

RECOMMENDATION: 

To approve the classified personnel actions as submitted. 

  

  

BACKGROUND: 

The attached lists of classified personnel actions are submitted in accordance with the District, 

SCCCE Agreement and the Merit Rules. 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

   
  

16 of 569



 

AGENDA ITEM 8.1.2 

CLASSIFIED EMPLOYEE ACTIONS 

  

Reviewed by Classified Personnel: Jory Berdan  

 

 •Employment Actions Concerning Regular Assignments• 

Probationary (New Hires or Temporary Employees Made Regular): 

None  

Promotion: 

None 

Voluntary Demotion:   

None 

Increase/Reduction in FTE - Months/Hours of Service: 

Nunez Lara, Gerardo, Custodian - SMSC, from 3.5hrs/12mo to 8hrs/12mo, effective 3/21/17 

Additional FTE/Position:  

None 

39-Mo Reinstatement: 

None 

39-Mo Reinstatement w/Increase in FTE:  

None 

63-Mo Reinstatement: 

None 

Transfer / Reinstate:  

Ortiz Florez, Miguel, Sr. Custodian -MH, 8hrs/12mo, to Custodian - SQ, 8hrs/12mo, effective 

6/21/17   

Transfer W/Increase FTE: 

None 

Provisional Assignments (not to exceed 90 working days):  

None 

Leave of Absence:  

None   

Separation from Service: 

Bautista, Patricia, Career Development Specialist - SE, 5.6hrs/9mo, effective 6/8/17 

Employee 3647, Released, effective 6/14/17 

17 of 569



 

AGENDA ITEM 8.1.2 

 

Retirement: 

None 

 

•Limited Term Project (not to exceed 126 days)/Substitutes: • 

None 

New EWA/Hourly Employees: 

None 

Existing EWA/Hourly Employees:  

Alley, Mary, Food Service Worker - FS, not to exceed 65hrs, 6/1/17 to 6/30/17 

Bennett, Sarah, Career Development Specialist - TR, not to exceed 128hrs, 6/9/17 to 6/30/17 

Chase, Elise, Special Ed Student Files - SP, not to exceed 60hrs, 6/12/17 to 6/30/17 

Cordero, Lisa, Clerical Assistant - WL, not to exceed 100hrs, 6/9/17 to 6/30/17 

Dimarzo, Ruth, Food Service Worker - FS, not to exceed 70hrs, 7/1/17 to 8/11/17 

Durden, Avis, Food Service Worker - FS, not to exceed 70hrs, 7/1/17 to 8/11/17 

Fennell-Tortoledo, Alex, Custodian - MO, not to exceed 10hrs, 4/23/17 

Fennell-Tortoledo, Alex, Senior Custodian - BM, not to exceed 8hrs, 5/21/17 

Gould, Lyndsey, Theater Tech - Graduation Sound - HH, not to exceed 6hrs, 6/9/17 

Jorgensen, Kimberly, Food Service Worker - FS, not to exceed 60hrs, 6/1/17 to 6/30/17 

Kianpour, Jacqueline, Clerical Assistant - DL, not to exceed 25hrs, 5/1/17 to 6/8/17 

Kianpour, Jacqueline, Clerical Assistant - PC, not to exceed 40hrs, 5/1/17 to 6/30/17 

Kianpour, Jacqueline, Clerical Assistant - HR, not to exceed 25hrs, 6/1/17 to 6/30/17 

Ledesma, Shane, HR Clerical Assistant - HR, not to exceed 40hrs, 6/8/17 to 6/30/17 

Linneman, Devon, Career Development Specialist - TR, not to exceed 15hrs, 6/19/17 to 6/30/17 

Mayo, Darrell, Custodian - MO, not to exceed 250hrs, 5/16/17 to 6/30/17  

Mena, Moises, Senior Custodian - BM, not to exceed 8hrs, 5/21/17 

Nganga-Edelson, Davin, Custodian - MO, not to exceed 100hrs, 6/13/17 to 6/30/17 

Nunez Lara, Gerardo, Custodian - BM, not to exceed 8hrs, 5/21/17 

Rix, Matthew, Custodian - HR, not to exceed 80hrs, 6/15/17 to 6/30/17  

Rodriguez, Michael, Delivery Person, FS, not to exceed 70hrs, 7/1/17 to 7/28/17 

Rodriguez, Michael, Driver - FS, not to exceed 65hrs, 6/1/17 to 6/30/17  

Roenning, Elizabeth, Instructional Technician/EI - BV, not to exceed 30hrs, 4/17/17 to 6/8/17 

18 of 569



 

AGENDA ITEM 8.1.2 

Salgado De Santos, Maria, Food Service Worker - FS, not to exceed 35hrs, 7/1/17 to 8/11/17 

Salgado De Santos, Maria, Food Service Worker - FS, not to exceed 60hrs, 6/1/17 6/30/17  

Taylor, Kiefer, Choir Accompanist - SC, not to exceed 31hrs, 8/24/16 to 6/8/17 

 

Limited Term Retiree (not to exceed 960 hours per Government Code 21153): 

None 

Out of Class: 

None 

 

•Employment Actions Concerning Exempt Assignments from the Classified Service• 

Stipend: 

None  

Playground Recess Coach, Yard Duty, Child Care: 

Jarquin-Robles, Kimberly, Yard Duty - MH, not to exceed 20hrs, 9/1/16 to 6/9/17  

•Eligibility Lists Established• 

Attendance Technician 

Lead Technology Specialist  

School Health Clerk  

 

 

 

 

19 of 569



Purchase Orders Over $2500 cover7 

AGENDA ITEM: 8.1.3 

    
 SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Purchase Orders, Quotes and Bids  
 
MEETING DATE: June 28, 2017 
 
FROM:   Patrick Gaffney, Asst. Supt., Business Services 
 
THROUGH:    Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
It is recommended that the Board of Education approve the purchase orders, quotes and bids 
as submitted. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
A detailed report is attached, listing purchase orders, quotes and bids that require Board 
approval prior to release to vendors.  The following definitions are provided to clarify the 
differences between purchase orders, quotes and bids: 
 

Purchase Orders: For purchases routine in nature and over $2,500 but under the amount 
required for a quote. 

 
Quotes:  When purchases will be $6,500 to $15,000 for contracted work or 

$12,000 to $88,300 for materials/supplies, several vendors are 
contacted for written quotations.  This process, though not as rigorous 
as a bid, insures that the District has involved more than one vendor 
and will secure a competitive price. 

 
Bids:  A formal process including advertising to notify prospective bidders, 

distribution of written specification regarding the work or materials, 
and compliance with legal guidelines for bidding, must be followed for 
contracted work projected to cost $15,000 and over, or for materials 
and supplies in the sum of $88,300 or over.  Bids are solicited from a 
wide pool of prospective vendors, thus assuring that when the award is 
made to the lowest responsible bidder, the District receives the best 
price available. 

20 of 569



BOARD OF EDUCATION  
 

June 28, 2017 
 

PURCHASE ORDERS OVER $2500 

 
C:\USERS\BSSEC\DESKTOP\BOARDPAD 062817\PURCHASE ORDERS OVER $2500 LIST.DOC  

Approved by:         Approval Date:  
 

    
PO/REQ 

NO. SITE 
DOLLAR 

AMOUNT VENDOR MATERIALS, SERVICES, ETC. 

17-02647 C.I.A. $3,000.00 Ernest Tavella CSA – Additional services 
required – Admin. Coaching.  
Title II. 

17-04822 Soquel High $11,487.00 AP Exams Change Order to AP Testing 
services.  Student Payments, 
College Readiness.   

17-05481 Mission Hill $4,861.00 Follett School Solutions Confirming for Payment – 
Textbooks.  Lottery. 

17-05461 Soquel High $3,200.00 One Way Lease Inc. New container purchase to 
replace storm damaged item.  
Ongoing & Major Maint. 

17-05514 District Office $4,858.00 Mobile Modular 8 x 20 Storage container.  
Building Fund – Elementary and 
Secondary.   

17-05537 Harbor High $8,451.57 AV Now Prepay 50% of Materials invoice 
for MPR Sound System.  Total 
Invoice is $16,903.14.  Facility 
Use Fees. 

17-05613 Transportation $8,680.00 A-Z Bus Sales 4 mos. Lease payment – Bus #21. 
Capital Acquisitions. 

17-05614 Transportation $8,680.00 A-Z Bus Sales 4 mos. Lease payment – Bus #22. 
Capital Acquisitions. 

18-00004 Harbor High $4,604.09 BFW Publisher Science of Biology textbooks.  
Lottery. 

18-00041 Curriculum $3,700.00 Amazon 28 Logitech headsets.  LCFF. 
18-00047 Various $20,000.00 Complete Mailing Open Order for Mailing services. 

Core Budget. 
18-00048 Various $9,250.00 Media Flex OPALS Library Automation 

renewal.  Parcel Tax, P&I. 
18-00049 Harbor High $4,668.75 Phase III Electric Installation of Sound system in 

MPR.  Facility Use Fees. 
18-00054 Human Resources $3,000.00 Palace Open Order for Office supplies 

for 17/18.  Unrestricted. 

21 of 569



BOARD OF EDUCATION  
 

June 28, 2017 
 

PURCHASE ORDERS OVER $2500 

 
C:\USERS\BSSEC\DESKTOP\BOARDPAD 062817\PURCHASE ORDERS OVER $2500 LIST.DOC  

Approved by:         Approval Date:  
 

PO/REQ 
NO. SITE 

DOLLAR 
AMOUNT VENDOR MATERIALS, SERVICES, ETC. 

TBA Special Ed. $665,500.00 Balance4Kids NPA for specialized support 
services for 24 students who 
require these services during the 
2017-18 school year.  Special Ed. 

TBA Special Ed. $3,000.00 Cartridge World  Open Order: For Special Ed Dept. 
computer ink replacements 
district-wide during the 2017-18 
school year.  Special Education. 

TBA Special Ed. $770,500.00 Easter Seals Central CA NPA for specialized support 
services for 27 students who 
require these services during the 
2017-18 school year. Special Ed. 

TBA Special Ed. $3,500.00 Rachael M. Haven, ATP Agreement For Professional 
Services: to continue the AT/IEE 
(Assistive Technology Evaluation 
by an Independent Educational 
Evaluator) of a secondary 
student in Special Education 
through the period 7/1/17 to 
10/31/17.  Special Education. 

39615 Food Services $100,000.00 Danielson Open Order for Food items for 
17/18.  Cafeteria Fund. 

39617 Food Services $20,000.00 Danielson Open Order for Paper supplies 
for 17/18.  Cafeteria Fund. 

39622 Food Services $5,000.00 Heartland License renewal fees for 17/18.  
Cafeteria Fund. 

39625 Food Services $5,000.00 Hobart Repair services for 17/18.  
Cafeteria Fund. 

39628 Food Services $15,000.00 Oliver Packaging Open Order for Paper supplies 
for 17/18.  Cafeteria Fund. 

39629 Food Services $4,000.00 Palace Open Order for Office supplies 
for 17/18.  Cafeteria Fund. 

39630 Food Services $50,000.00 Producer’s Dairy Open Order for Food supplies for 
17/18.  Cafeteria Fund. 

39637 Food Services $200,000.00 Sysco Open Order for Food items  for 
17/18.  Cafeteria Fund. 

22 of 569



BOARD OF EDUCATION  
 

June 28, 2017 
 

PURCHASE ORDERS OVER $2500 

 
C:\USERS\BSSEC\DESKTOP\BOARDPAD 062817\PURCHASE ORDERS OVER $2500 LIST.DOC  

Approved by:         Approval Date:  
 

PO/REQ 
NO. SITE 

DOLLAR 
AMOUNT VENDOR MATERIALS, SERVICES, ETC. 

39637 Food Services $35,000.00 Sysco Open Order for Paper supplies.  
Cafeteria Fund. 

39640 Food Services $60,000.00 Watsonville Coast 
Produce 

Open Order for Food items.  
Cafeteria Fund. 

39643 Food Services $7,500.00 Roger’s Refrigeration Open Order for Repair services.  
Cafeteria Fund. 

39620 Food Services $200,000.00 Goldstar Foods Open Order for Food items.  
Cafeteria Fund. 

     
     
     
     
     
     
     

 

23 of 569



24
 o

f 5
69



25
 o

f 5
69



CENTRAL COAST PURCHASERS COOPERATIVE 
405 Old San Jose Rd.  
Soquel, CA  95073 
 
June 12, 2017 
 
 
The Central Coast Purchasers Cooperative was created in 2005 to help small 
districts receive better pricing and to increase vendor interest in serving our districts. Over the past 
twelve years we have grown and currently cover both small and medium school districts across the 
central coast. We are proud to say that our cooperative covers 18 districts, 132 school sites and over 
100,000 students in the Central Coast. We are happy that our cooperative continues to grow and thrive 
by providing quality options for our members. 
 
Our current members are Santa Cruz City, Live Oak Elementary, Soquel Union Elementary, San Lorenzo 
Valley Unified, Scotts Valley Unified, North Monterey Unified, Pacific Grove Unified, Gonzales Unified, 
San Juan Unified, Southside Hollister, Salinas Union High School, Alisal Union School Districts, San Benito 
Unified, Santa Rita Union, South Monterey County Joint Union, Greenfield Union, Salinas City 
Elementary, and Monterey Peninsula Unified School District.  By joining together we continue to achieve 
savings throughout the cooperative.  

Our Cooperative membership voted to split the bid, between Grocery (frozen, dry, paper goods) Dairy 
and Produce.  Using the criteria listed below that we have used in the past to determine the best 
vendors.  
 

1. Quality – Freshness, local, sustainable, brand of item, and pack size  
2. Actual Price – The price quoted on items we use daily 
3. Price Guarantee – The vendor can stipulate the percentage of items we must purchase and 

the length of time the price can be guaranteed 
4. Vendor Policies – Delivery times, locations and billing process 

 
As a Cooperative we continue to strive to promote healthy food options and to increase student 
participation in the school meal program. We want to promote healthy consumption of fruits and 
vegetables for our students. To help meet these goals and to enhance the health of school meals the 
Cooperative requested the Produce vendors to identify locally sourced within a 250 mile radius. This will 
decrease the distance between farms and schools. Using a points system outlined below the 
Cooperative determined the best vendor to meet the needs for all members.  
 

1. Cost – Lowest cost quoted 
2. Geographic Preference – Identify the grower was within the 250 mile radius 
3. Traceability – Identify county and or state of origin 
4. Past Performance/ Service Reliability  

 

 

 

26 of 569



Due to the outstanding rating score above the Cooperative voted to roll over our Dairy and Produce bid 
for the 2017-18 school year and continue service with Watsonville Produce and Producers Dairy. 

Our annual competitive grocery bid began on April 14th with a public notice in which we asked 
interested parties to bid on products for the 2017-2018 school year. There was an itemized list given 
with over 700 items. All parties were to submit their bids to our lead district (Santa Cruz City Schools) no 
later than May 25th. We received proposals from Sysco of San Francisco, Danielsen Co., and GoldStar 
Foods. 

After thorough review with all Cooperative members involved, we recommend that the districts accept 
bids from Sysco of San Francisco, Danielsen Company and GoldStar Foods based on individual line items.  
This will give us freedom to purchase the best quality, price and identify local sourcing for farm to 
school.  All three of these companies have been in school business for 40 plus years and provide the 
quality of services that we desire.  In addition, these companies carry a wide variety of different items 
that we can choose from.  We feel that this will benefit all of our districts as we meet the State and 
Federal regulations and increased budget constraints.   

 

 

This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics. 
 
Goals #5 SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goals #6 SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnerships with its diverse community. 
 
 
 
 
 
Approval Date:____________ Appoved by: _____________________________________ 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by: Amy Hedrick-Farr, Director, Lead District for Central Coast Cooperative 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

27 of 569



Santa Cruz City Schools
Model Classrooms

School Grade Room # Current Budget
Westlake ES 1st/2nd $17,529.15
Gault ES 2nd/3rd $19,921.68
DeLaveaga ES 3rd $24,024.88
Bay View ES 4th $18,661.22
Branciforte 4th/5th $24,638.91
Branciforte MS MS $24,086.86
Mission Hill MS MS $18,872.11
Harbor HS HS $18,531.46
Santa Cruz HS HS $19,782.94
Soquel HS HS $18,531.46

 Total without furniture shipping cost. 
Total $204,580.68

28 of 569



Santa Cruz Price List
Westlake Elementary School - 1st/2nd Grade

This is not an estimate. Use for planning purposes only.

Paragon-CMAS

Quantity Model # Description  OnPoint Price  OnPoint Total 

Student Seating

32 AND-READY-4L14
A&D® READY CHAIR
14" 4 Leg A&D Ready Chair, glides ($ 74.29)          ($ 2,377.14)     

12 EDUMSKL-G3
MOTIV™ STOOL
Soft Seating Stool with Glides, Seat Diameter 14.5", 15" high
Grade 3 Fabric: TBD

($ 182.29)        ($ 2,187.43)     

1 AND-READY-ADJCHRA

A&D® READY Task Chair
Base: Star, casters
Size: Adj. 17"H - 23"H
Shell Color: TBD

($ 200.00)        ($ 200.00)        

Student Tables

8 AND-AH3048REC-24-34H
A&D Husky Rectangle Adjustable Height Student Desk
30"X48" Rectangle Fixed-top, Adjustable Leg Student Desk ($ 217.14)        ($ 1,737.14)     

32 BACK PACK HOOK Back Pack Hook ($ 14.29)          ($ 457.14)        

3 AND-ACT-A4565PUZZLE
A&D Activity Table, Adjustable Height Leg Puzzle Table
A&D Puzzle Adjustable Height Activity Table ($ 471.43)        ($ 1,414.29)     

1 AND-ACT-A6060SHAMROCK
A&D Activity Table, Adjustable Height Leg Shamrock Table
A&D Puzzle Adjustable Height Activity Table ($ 542.86)        ($ 542.86)        

Teacher Workspace

1 AND-CF-PD302440
A&D® CROSSFIT TEACHER PODIUM
A&D Crossfit Stand Alone Podium ($ 600.00)        ($ 600.00)        

1 AND-CF-PDTD4824
A&D® CROSSFIT TEACHER SIDE TABLE
A&D Crossfit Stand Alone Teacher Desk with Ganging Magnets ($ 542.86)        ($ 542.86)        

SERVICES
Unpackaging, assembly, configuration, and trash removal of:
  - A&D Ready Chairs
  - Motiv Stools
  - A&D Crossfit Adjustable Height Student tables
  - A&D Crossfit teacher podium & side table

($ 5,145.00)     

 Subtotal ($ 15,203.86)   

 Est. Tax ($ 905.30)        

 Shipping to be determined based on quote from vendor after furniture agreement. 

 Total ($ 16,109.15)  

Travel Cost ($ 1,420.00)    

 Grand Total ($ 17,529.15)  

29 of 569



Santa Cruz Price List
Gault Elementary School - 2nd/3rd Grade

This is not an estimate. Use for planning purposes only.

Paragon CMAS

Quantity Model # Description  OnPoint Price  OnPoint Total 

Seating 

32 AND-READY-4L16
A&D® READY CHAIR
16" 4 Leg A&D Ready Chair, glides ($ 74.29)         ($ 2,377.14)    

4 EDUMSKL-G3
MOTIV™ STOOL
Soft Seating Stool. Seat Diameter 14.5", 15" high
Grade 3 Fabric: TBD

($ 182.29)       ($ 729.14)       

2 AND-READY-ADJCHRA
A&D® READY Task Chair
Base: Star, casters
Size: Adj. 17"H - 23"H
Shell Color: TBD

($ 200.00)       ($ 400.00)       

Student Tables

32 AND-AH2027REC-24-34H
A&D Husky Rectangle Adjustable Height Student Desk
27"W x 20"D ($ 194.29)       ($ 6,217.14)    

2 AND-AHSAPPHIRE
A&D Husky Sapphire Student Desk
Adjustable Height Student Desk ($ 280.00)       ($ 560.00)       

Mobile Storage

2 AND-CF-D42-OF
A&D® Crossfit Storage Doubles
33"W x 22"D x 46"H ($ 685.71)       ($ 1,371.43)    

1 AND-CF-TOTES-D42 Totes for A&D® Crossfit Storage Doubles (22 pack) ($ 377.14)       ($ 377.14)       

1 AND-CF-COMBO-D42 Combo for A&D® Crossfit Storage Doubles (14 Totes / 4 Shelves) ($ 377.14)       ($ 377.14)       

Teacher Workspace

1 AND-CF-PD302440
A&D® CROSSFIT TEACHER PODIUM
A&D Crossfit Stand Alone Podium ($ 600.00)       ($ 600.00)       

1 AND-CF-PDTD4824
A&D® CROSSFIT TEACHER SIDE TABLE
A&D Crossfit Stand Alone Teacher Desk with Ganging Magnets ($ 542.86)       ($ 542.86)       

1

Unpackaging, assembly, configuration, and trash removal of:
  - A&D Ready Chairs
  - Motiv Stools
  - A&D Crossfit Adjustable Height Student desks
  - A&D Husky Sapphire Student tables
  - A&D Crossfit Teacher Podium & side table

($ 3,730.00)    

 Subtotal ($ 17,282.00)  

 Est. Tax ($ 1,219.68)    

 Shipping to be determined based on quote from vendor after furniture agreement. 

 Total ($ 18,501.68) 

Travel Cost ($ 1,420.00)   

Grand Total ($ 19,921.68) 

30 of 569



Santa Cruz Price List
DeLaveaga Elementary School - 2nd/3rd Grade

This is not an estimate. Use for planning purposes only.

Paragon-CMAS

Quantity Model # Description  OnPoint Price  OnPoint Total 

Seating 

32 AND-READY-4L16
A&D® READY CHAIR
16" 4 Leg A&D Ready Chair, glides ($ 97.14)         ($ 3,108.48)    

4 EDUMSKL-G3
MOTIV™ STOOL
Soft Seating Stool with glides. Seat Diameter 14.5", 15" high
Grade 3 Fabric: TBD

($ 188.57)       ($ 754.28)       

2 AND-READY-ADJCHRA
A&D® READY Task Chair
Base: Star, casters
Size: Adj. 17"H - 23"H
Shell Color: TBD

($ 400.00)       ($ 800.00)       

Student Tables

32 AND-AH2436KOI
A&D Husky Koi Top Student Desk
Adjustable Height Student Desk ($ 322.00)       ($ 10,304.00)  

2 AND-AHSAPPHIRE
A&D Husky Sapphire Student Desk
Adjustable Height Student Desk ($ 280.00)       ($ 560.00)       

Teacher Workspace

1 AND-CF-PD302440
A&D® CROSSFIT TEACHER PODIUM
A&D Crossfit Stand Alone Podium ($ 600.00)       ($ 600.00)       

1 AND-CF-PDTD4824
A&D® CROSSFIT TEACHER SIDE TABLE
A&D Crossfit Stand Alone Teacher Desk with Ganging Magnets ($ 542.86)       ($ 542.86)       

Services

1

Unpackaging, assembly, configuration, and trash removal of:
  - A&D Ready Chairs
  - Motiv Stools
  - A&D Crossfit Koi Adjustable Height Student Desks
  - A&D Husky Sapphire Student Tables
  - A&D Crossfit Teacher Podium & side table

($ 4,435.00)    

 Subtotal ($ 21,104.62)  

 Est. Tax ($ 1,500.27)    

 Shipping to be determined based on quote from vendor after furniture agreement. 

 Total ($ 22,604.88) 

Travel Cost ($ 1,420.00)   

Grand Total ($ 24,024.88) 

31 of 569



Santa Cruz Price List
Bay View Elementary School - 4th Grade

This is not an estimate. Use for planning purposes only.

Paragon-CMAS

Quantity Model # Description  OnPoint Price  OnPoint Total 

Seating

32 AND-READY-4L16
A&D® READY CHAIR
16" 4 Leg A&D Ready Chair, glides ($ 74.29)         ($ 2,377.14)    

4 EDUMSKL-G3
MOTIV™ STOOL
Soft Seating Stool with Glides. Seat Diameter 14.5", 15" high
Grade 3 Fabric: TBD

($ 182.29)       ($ 729.14)       

2 AND-READY-ADJCHRA

A&D® READY Task Chair
Base: Star, casters
Size: Adj. 17"H - 23"H
Shell Color: TBD

($ 200.00)       ($ 400.00)       

Student Tables

32 AND-AH2436KOI
A&D Husky Koi Top Student Desk
Adjustable Height Student Desk ($ 208.57)       ($ 6,674.29)    

32 BACK PACK HOOK Back Pack Hook ($ 14.29)         ($ 457.14)       

2 AND-AHSAPPHIRE A&D Husky Sapphire Student Desk
Adjustable Height Student Desk

($ 280.00)       ($ 560.00)       

Teacher Workspace

1 AND-CF-PD302440 A&D® CROSSFIT TEACHER PODIUM
A&D Crossfit Stand Alone Podium

($ 600.00)       ($ 600.00)       

1 AND-CF-PDTD4824 A&D® CROSSFIT TEACHER SIDE TABLE
A&D Crossfit Stand Alone Teacher Desk with Ganging Magnets

($ 542.86)       ($ 542.86)       

Services
Unpackaging, assembly, configuration, and trash removal of:
  - A&D Ready Chair 
  - Motiv Stool 
  - A&D Crossfit Koi Adjustable Height Student desks w/ backpack hooks
  - A&D Husky Sapphire Student tables
  - A&D Crossfit teacher podium & side table

($ 3,790.00)    

 Subtotal ($ 16,130.57)  

 Est. Tax ($ 1,110.65)    

 Shipping to be determined based on quote from vendor after furniture agreement. 

 Total ($ 17,241.22) 

Travel Cost ($ 1,420.00)   

Grand Total ($ 18,661.22) 

32 of 569



Santa Cruz Price List
Branciforte Small Schools - 4th/5th Grade

This is not an estimate. Use for planning purposes only.

Paragon-CMAS

Quantity Model # Description  OnPoint Price  OnPoint Total 

Seating

32 AND-READY-4L16
A&D® READY CHAIR
16" 4 Leg A&D Ready Chair, Glides ($ 74.29)         ($ 2,377.14)    

4 EDUMSKL-G3
MOTIV™ STOOL
Soft Seating Stool with Glides. Seat Diameter 14.5", 15" high
Grade 3 Fabric: TBD

($ 182.29)       ($ 729.14)       

2 AND-READY-ADJCHRA
A&D® READY Task Chair
Base: Star, casters
Size: Adj. 17"H - 23"H
Shell Color: TBD

($ 200.00)       ($ 400.00)       

Student Tables

32 AND-AH2436KOI
A&D Husky Koi Top Student Desk
Adjustable Height Student Desk ($ 208.57)       ($ 6,674.29)    

32 BACK PACK HOOK Back Pack Hook ($ 14.29)         ($ 457.14)       

2 AND-AHSAPPHIRE A&D Husky Sapphire Student Desk
Adjustable Height Student Desk

($ 280.00)       ($ 560.00)       

Teacher Workspace

1 AND-CF-PD302440 A&D® CROSSFIT TEACHER PODIUM
A&D Crossfit Stand Alone Podium

($ 600.00)       ($ 600.00)       

1 AND-CF-PDTD4824 A&D® CROSSFIT TEACHER SIDE TABLE
A&D Crossfit Stand Alone Teacher Desk with Ganging Magnets

($ 542.86)       ($ 542.86)       

Mobile Shelving & Storage

2 AND-CF-D42-OF
A&D® Crossfit Storage Doubles
33"W x 22"D x 46"H ($ 685.71)       ($ 1,371.43)    

1 AND-CF-TOTES-D42 Totes for A&D® Crossfit Storage Doubles (22 pack) ($ 377.14)       ($ 377.14)       

1 AND-CF-COMBO-D42 Combo for A&D® Crossfit Storage Doubles (14 Totes / 4 Shelves) ($ 377.14)       ($ 377.14)       

1 IC-D60M
60" IC Mobile Cart
39"w x 21"d x 60"h ($ 1,514.29)    ($ 1,514.29)    

1 IC-D60MBP 60" IC Mobile Cart Back Panel/HPL ($ 85.71)         ($ 85.71)         

2 IC-D60MSP 60" IC Mobile Cart Side Panel/HPL ($ 160.00)       ($ 320.00)       

1 IC-M60DOORS 60"IC Mobile Cart HPL Doors ($ 600.00)       ($ 600.00)       

Mobile Marker Board

1 MAKE-IDEA3319
MAKER IDEA BOARD 
Mobile Whiteboard ($ 471.43)       ($ 471.43)       

Services
Unpackaging, assembly, configuration, and trash removal of:
  - A&D Ready Chair
  - A&D Ready Task Chair
  - Motiv Stools
  - A&D Crossfit Koi Adjustable Height Student desks
  - A&D Husky Sapphire Student tables
  - A&D Crossfit teacher podium & side table
  - A&D Crossfit Storage doubles with shelves and totes
  - 60" IC mobile Cart
  - Maker Idea Board

($ 4,190.00)    

 Subtotal ($ 21,647.71)  

 Est. Tax ($ 1,571.19)    

 Shipping to be determined based on quote from vendor after furniture agreement. 

 Total ($ 23,218.91) 

Travel Cost ($ 1,420.00)   

Grand Total ($ 24,638.91) 

33 of 569



Santa Cruz Price List
Branciforte Middle School

This is not an estimate. Use for planning purposes only.

Paragon-CMAS

Quantity Model # Description  OnPoint Price  OnPoint Total 

Seating 

36 AND-READY-4L18
A&D® READY CHAIR ON GLIDES
18" 4 Leg A&D Ready Chair ($ 80.00)         ($ 2,880.00)    

1 AND-READY-ADJCHRA
A&D® READY Task Chair
Base: Star, casters
Size: Adj. 17"H - 23"H
Shell Color: TBD

($ 200.00)       ($ 200.00)       

Student Tables

36 AND-AH2427REC-24-34H
A&D Husky Rectangle Top Adjustable Heigt Student Desk
27"W x 24"D ($ 194.29)       ($ 6,994.29)    

36 BACK PACK HOOK Back Pack Hook ($ 14.29)         ($ 514.29)       

Teacher Workspace

1 AND-CF-PD302440
A&D® CROSSFIT TEACHER LECTERN
A&D Crossfit Stand Alone Podium ($ 600.00)       ($ 600.00)       

1 AND-CF-PDTD4824 A&D® CROSSFIT TEACHER SIDE TABLE
A&D Crossfit Stand Alone Teacher Desk with Ganging Magnets

($ 542.86)       ($ 542.86)       

Mobile Shelving & Storage

1 AND-CF-DASH45
A&D CROSSFIT DASHs
A&D Crossfit Dash Mobile Shelving 45"H ($ 1,085.71)    ($ 1,085.71)    

2 AND-CF-D42-OF
A&D® Crossfit Storage Doubles
33"W x 22"D x 46"H ($ 685.71)       ($ 1,371.43)    

1 AND-CF-TOTES-D42 Totes for A&D® Crossfit Storage Doubles (22 pack) ($ 377.14)       ($ 377.14)       

1 AND-CF-COMBO-D42 Combo for A&D® Crossfit Storage Doubles (14 Totes / 4 Shelves) ($ 377.14)       ($ 377.14)       

2 IC-D46M
46" IC Mobile Cart
39"w x 21"d x 60"h ($ 1,371.43)    ($ 2,742.86)    

2 IC-D46MBP 46" IC Mobile Cart Back Panel/HPL ($ 85.71)         ($ 171.43)       

4 IC-D46MSP 46" IC Mobile Cart Side Panel/HPL ($ 85.71)         ($ 342.86)       

2 IC-M46DOORS 46"IC Mobile Cart HPL Doors ($ 485.71)       ($ 971.43)       

Services

1

Unpackaging, assembly, configuration, and trash removal of:
  - A&D Ready Chair
  -  A&D Ready Task Chair 
  - A&D Crossfit Adjustable Height Student desks
  -  A&D Crossfit teacher podium & side table
  -  A&D Crossfit Dash Bookshelf
  -  A&D Crossfit Storage Doubles with shelves and totes
  - 46" IC Mobile Cart

($ 4,850.00)    

 Subtotal ($ 20,941.43)  

 Est. Tax ($ 1,725.43)    

 Shipping to be determined based on quote from vendor after furniture agreement. 

 Total ($ 22,666.86) 

Travel Cost ($ 1,420.00)   

Grand Total ($ 24,086.86) 

34 of 569



Santa Cruz Price List
Mission Hill Middle School

This is not an estimate. Use for planning purposes only.

Paragon-CMAS

Quantity Model # Description  OnPoint Price  OnPoint Total 

Seating 

36 AND-READY-4L18
A&D® READY CHAIR
18" 4 Leg A&D Ready Chair, on glides ($ 80.00)         ($ 2,880.00)    

1 AND-READY-ADJCHRA
A&D® READY Task Chair
Base: Star, casters
Size: Adj. 17"H - 23"H
Shell Color: TBD

($ 200.00)       ($ 200.00)       

Student Tables

36 AND-AH2027REC-24-34H
A&D Husky Rectangular Top
Adjustable Height Student Desk
27"W x 20"D

($ 194.29)       ($ 6,994.29)    

Teacher Workspace

1 AND-CF-PD302440
A&D® CROSSFIT TEACHER LECTERN
A&D Crossfit Stand Alone Podium ($ 600.00)       ($ 600.00)       

1 AND-CF-PDTD4824 A&D® CROSSFIT TEACHER SIDE TABLE
A&D Crossfit Stand Alone Teacher Desk with Ganging Magnets

($ 542.86)       ($ 542.86)       

Mobile Marker Board

4 MAKE-IDEA3319
MAKER IDEA BOARD 
Mobile Whiteboard ($ 471.43)       ($ 1,885.71)    

Services

1

Unpackaging, assembly, configuration, and trash removal of:
  - A&D Ready Chairs
  -  A&D Ready Task Chairs
  - A&D Crossfit Adjustable Height Student desks
  -  A&D Crossfit teacher podium & side table
  -  A&D Crossfit Dash Bookshelf
  -  A&D Crossfit Storage Doubles with shelves and totes
  - Maker Idea Mobile Whiteboards

($ 3,170.00)    

 Subtotal ($ 16,272.86)  

 Est. Tax ($ 1,179.26)    

 Shipping to be determined based on quote from vendor after furniture agreement. 

 Total ($ 17,452.11) 

Travel Cost ($ 1,420.00)   

Grand Total ($ 18,872.11) 

35 of 569



Santa Cruz Price List
Harbor High School

This is not an estimate. Use for planning purposes only.

Paragon-CMAS

Quantity Model # Description  OnPoint Price  OnPoint Total 

Seating 

36 AND-READY-4L18
A&D® READY CHAIR
18" 4 Leg A&D Ready Chair, on glides ($ 80.00)         ($ 2,880.00)    

1 AND-READY-ADJCHRA
A&D® READY Task Chair
Base: Star, casters
Size: Adj. 17"H - 23"H
Shell Color: TBD

($ 200.00)       ($ 200.00)       

Student Tables

18 AND-AH2060REC-24-34H
A&D Husky Rectangle Top, Adjustable Height Student Desk
60"W x 20"D ($ 280.00)       ($ 5,040.00)    

36 BACK PACK HOOK Back Pack Hook ($ 14.29)         ($ 514.29)       

Teacher Workspace

1 AND-CF-PD302440
A&D® CROSSFIT TEACHER LECTERN
A&D Crossfit Stand Alone Podium ($ 600.00)       ($ 600.00)       

1 AND-CF-PDTD4824 A&D® CROSSFIT TEACHER SIDE TABLE
A&D Crossfit Stand Alone Teacher Desk with Ganging Magnets

($ 542.86)       ($ 542.86)       

Teacher Desk

1 TEACH-IT-3060T
Tombstone Teacher Desk with Front Modesty Panel no casters 
60"W x 30"D ($ 514.29)       ($ 514.29)       

1 FILE-IT-HANG
Mobile File Pedestal 
Hanging Box Box ($ 300.00)       ($ 300.00)       

Mobile Shelving & Storage

1 IC-D60M
60" IC Mobile Cart
39"w x 21"d x 60"h ($ 1,514.29)    ($ 1,514.29)    

1 IC-D60MBP 60" IC Mobile Cart Back Panel/HPL ($ 85.71)         ($ 85.71)         

2 IC-D60MSP 60" IC Mobile Cart Side Panel/HPL ($ 160.00)       ($ 320.00)       

1 IC-M60DOORS 60"IC Mobile Cart HPL Doors ($ 600.00)       ($ 600.00)       

Sevices

1

Unpackaging, assembly, configuration, and trash removal of:
  - A&D Ready Chair
  -  A&D Ready Task Chair 
  -  A&D Crossfit Adjustable Height Student desks
  -  A&D Crossfit teacher podium & side table
  -  Teacher Desk and Mobile File Pedestal
  -  60" IC Mobile Cart

($ 2,820.00)    

 Subtotal ($ 15,931.43)  

 Est. Tax ($ 1,180.03)    

 Shipping to be determined based on quote from vendor after furniture agreement. 

 Total ($ 17,111.46) 

Travel Cost $1,420.00

Grand Total $18,531.46

36 of 569



Santa Cruz Price List
Soquel High School

This is not an estimate. Use for planning purposes only.

Paragon-CMAS

Quantity Model # Description  OnPoint Price  OnPoint Total 

Seating 

36 AND-READY-4L18
A&D® READY CHAIR
18" 4 Leg A&D Ready Chair, on glides ($ 80.00)         ($ 2,880.00)    

1 AND-READY-ADJCHRA
A&D® READY Task Chair
Base: Star, casters
Size: Adj. 17"H - 23"H
Shell Color: TBD

($ 200.00)       ($ 200.00)       

Student Tables

18 AND-AH2060REC-24-34H
A&D Husky Rectangle Top, Adjustable Height Student Desk
60"W x 20"D ($ 280.00)       ($ 5,040.00)    

36 BACK PACK HOOK Back Pack Hook ($ 14.29)         ($ 514.29)       

Teacher Workstation

1 AND-CF-PD302440
A&D® CROSSFIT TEACHER LECTERN
A&D Crossfit Stand Alone Podium ($ 600.00)       ($ 600.00)       

1 AND-CF-PD302440
A&D® CROSSFIT TEACHER LECTERN
A&D Crossfit Ambidextrous Teacher Desk with Ganging Magnets ($ 542.86)       ($ 542.86)       

1 TEACH-IT-3060T
Tombstone Teacher Desk with Front Modesty Panel, no casters 
60"W x 30"D ($ 514.29)       ($ 514.29)       

1 FILE-IT-HANG
Mobile File Pedestal 
Hanging Box Box ($ 300.00)       ($ 300.00)       

Mobile Shelving & Storage

1 IC-D60M
60" IC Mobile Cart
39"w x 21"d x 60"h ($ 1,514.29)    ($ 1,514.29)    

1 IC-D60MBP 60" IC Mobile Cart Back Panel/HPL ($ 85.71)         ($ 85.71)         

2 IC-D60MSP 60" IC Mobile Cart Side Panel/HPL ($ 160.00)       ($ 320.00)       

1 IC-M60DOORS 60"IC Mobile Cart HPL Doors ($ 600.00)       ($ 600.00)       

Sevices

1

Unpackaging, assembly, configuration, and trash removal of:
  - A&D Ready Chair
  -  A&D Ready Task Chair 
  -  A&D Crossfit Adjustable Height Student desks
  -  A&D Crossfit teacher podium & side table
  -  Teacher Desk and Mobile File Pedestal
  -  60" IC Mobile Cart

($ 2,820.00)    

 Subtotal ($ 15,931.43)  

 Est. Tax ($ 1,180.03)    

 Shipping to be determined based on quote from vendor after furniture agreement. 

 Total ($ 17,111.46) 

Travel Cost $1,420.00

Grand Total ($ 18,531.46) 

37 of 569



Santa Cruz Price List
Santa Cruz High School

This is not an estimate. Use for planning purposes only.

Paragon-CMAS

Quantity Model # Description  OnPoint Price  OnPoint Total 

Seating 

40 AND-READY-4L18
A&D® READY CHAIR
18" 4 Leg A&D Ready Chair, on glides ($ 80.00)         ($ 3,200.00)    

1 AND-READY-ADJCHRA
A&D® READY Task Chair
Base: Star, casters
Size: Adj. 17"H - 23"H
Shell Color: TBD

($ 200.00)       ($ 200.00)       

Student Tables

20 AND-AH2060REC-24-34H
A&D Husky Rectangle Top, Adjustable Height Student Desk
60"W x 20"D ($ 280.00)       ($ 5,600.00)    

40 BACK PACK HOOK Back Pack Hook ($ 14.29)         ($ 571.43)       

Teacher Workspace

1 AND-CF-PD302440
A&D® CROSSFIT TEACHER LECTERN
A&D Crossfit Stand Alone Podium ($ 600.00)       ($ 600.00)       

1 AND-CF-PDTD4824 A&D® CROSSFIT TEACHER SIDE TABLE
A&D Crossfit Stand Alone Teacher Desk with Ganging Magnets

($ 542.86)       ($ 542.86)       

Teacher Desk

1 TEACH-IT-3060T
Tombstone Teacher Desk with Front Modesty Panel, no casters
60"W x 30"D ($ 514.29)       ($ 514.29)       

1 FILE-IT-HANG
Mobile File Pedestal 
Hanging Box Box ($ 300.00)       ($ 300.00)       

Mobile Shelving & Storage

1 IC-D60M
60" IC Mobile Cart
39"w x 21"d x 60"h ($ 1,514.29)    ($ 1,514.29)    

1 IC-D60MBP 60" IC Mobile Cart Back Panel/HPL ($ 85.71)         ($ 85.71)         

2 IC-D60MSP 60" IC Mobile Cart Side Panel/HPL ($ 160.00)       ($ 320.00)       

1 IC-M60DOORS 60"IC Mobile Cart HPL Doors ($ 600.00)       ($ 600.00)       

Services

1

Unpackaging, assembly, configuration, and trash removal of:
  - A&D Ready Chair
  -  A&D Ready Task Chair 
  - A&D Crossfit Adjustable Height Student desks
  -  A&D Crossfit teacher podium & side table
  -  Teacher Desk and Mobile File Pedestal
 - 60" IC Mobile Cart

($ 3,050.00)    

 Subtotal ($ 17,098.57)  

 Est. Tax ($ 1,264.37)    

 Shipping to be determined based on quote from vendor after furniture agreement. 

 Total ($ 18,362.94) 

Travel Cost $1,420.00

Grand Total ($ 19,782.94) 

38 of 569



AGENDA ITEM: 8.1.4 
 
warrants cover 

 
 SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM:  Warrant Register 
 
MEETING DATE:  June 28, 2017  
 
FROM:    Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the warrants on the Board Payment Report.  The report covers vendor warrants 
issued from 6/2/17–6/15/17.  Hard copies of the report are available for public review at the 
Board Meeting.  
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

39 of 569



40 of 569



41 of 569



42 of 569



43 of 569



44 of 569



45 of 569



46 of 569



                          
                      
  AGENDA ITEM: 8.1.5  
C:\Users\bssec\Desktop\Boardpad 062817\Budget Transfers cover.docx 

 

SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Approval of Budget Transfers  
 
MEETING DATE:   June 28, 2017 
  
FROM:               Patrick Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent of Business 
 
THROUGH:  Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
It is recommended that the Board of Education approve 2016-2017 budget transfers dated 
from 5/1/17 through 5/31/17, BE#111022– 115057.  The report follows.  Hard copy of the 
report is available for public review at the Board Meeting. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Ed Code 42600 requires that the Board approve budget transfers that are made between major 
expense object codes, or from reserves. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
None. 
  

47 of 569



48 of 569



49 of 569



50 of 569



51 of 569



52 of 569



53 of 569



54 of 569



55 of 569



56 of 569



57 of 569



58 of 569



59 of 569



60 of 569



61 of 569



62 of 569



63 of 569



64 of 569



65 of 569



66 of 569



67 of 569



68 of 569



69 of 569



70 of 569



71 of 569



72 of 569



73 of 569



74 of 569



75 of 569



76 of 569



77 of 569



78 of 569



79 of 569



80 of 569



81 of 569



82 of 569



83 of 569



84 of 569



      AGENDA ITEM:  8.1.6 
C:\USERS\BSSEC\DOCUMENTS\AGENDA\SURPLUS\SURPLUS COVER.DOC 

 
 SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM:  Disposition of Surplus Property  
 
MEETING DATE:  June 28, 2017  
 
FROM:    Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:     Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
It is recommended that the Board of Education authorize the Assistant Superintendent, Business 
Services, or his designee, to sell or dispose of the surplus property on the attached list(s) in 
accordance with Board Policy 3270 and Administrative Regulation 3270A. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Education Code Section 17545(a) provides that the Board of Education may sell for cash any 
personal property belonging to the District if the property is not required for school purposes, or if 
it should be disposed of for the purpose of replacement, or if it is unsatisfactory or not suitable for 
school use. (b) The governing board may choose to conduct any sale of personal property 
authorized under this section by means of a public auction conducted by employees of the district 
or other public agencies, or by contract with a private auction firm. The board may delegate to the 
district employee responsible for conducting the auction the authority to transfer the personal 
property to the highest responsible bidder upon completion of the auction and after payment has 
been received by the district.  
 
Section 17546(a) If the governing board, by a unanimous vote of those members present, finds 
that the property, whether one or more items, does not exceed in value the sum of two thousand 
five hundred dollars ($2,500), it may be sold at private sale without advertising, by any employee 
of the district empowered for that purpose by the board. (b) Any item or items of property having 
previously been offered for sale pursuant to Section 17545, but for which no qualified bid was 
received, may be sold at private sale without advertising by any employee of the district 
empowered for that purpose by the board.  (c) If the board, by a unanimous vote of those 
members present, finds that the property is of insufficient value to defray the costs of arranging a 
sale, the property may be donated to a charitable organization deemed appropriate by the board, 
or it may be disposed of in the local public dump on order of any employee of the district 
empowered for that purpose by the board. 
 
Per Ed Code 60530(b), instructional materials may be destroyed by any economical means, 
provided that no instructional material shall be destroyed until 30 days after the governing board 
has given notice to all persons who have filed a request for such notice. 
 

85 of 569



SCCS BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 

MEETING OF JUNE 28, 2017 
 

SURPLUS PROPERTY LIST 
 

Approval Date: _________________  Approved By:______________________________________________  

                 
SITE: ADULT SCHOOL 

        
 Property Description Asset #  Year/Age Condition Value 

 
1. IBM Wheelwriter 6 typewriter 27027  1988 Works  
2. IBM Wheelwriter 6 typewriter None  1988 Works  
3. IBM Selectric typewriter None  1985 Broken  
4. COW Cart None  2003 Key missing, Obsolete With key replaced, 

$100 
5. Time Reader Amano None  Unknown Not needed  
6. Four keyboards None  Unknown Fair  
7. Two plug-in mice None  Unknown Fair  
8. D link Ethernet switch 10/100  

8 port 
None  Unknown Fair  

9. Back ups 650 None  Unknown Fair  
10. Table with mounted mailboxes None  Unknown Good $50.00 
     Total $150.00 

  
It is recommended that the Board of Education authorize the Assistant Superintendent, Business 
Services, or his designee, to sell or dispose of the surplus property in accordance with Board Policy 3270 
and Administrative Regulation 3270A. 
       

86 of 569



SCCS BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 

MEETING OF JUNE 28, 2017 
 

SURPLUS PROPERTY LIST 
 

Approval Date: _________________  Approved By:______________________________________________  

                 
SITE: BRANCIFORTE MIDDLE SCHOOL 

        
 Property Description Asset #  Year/Age Condition Value 

 
1. Five (5) Dell LCD Monitors None  2005 Good $0 
2. Dell gx520 None  2005 Good $0 
3. Dell laptop pp04x 14252  2005 Obsolete $0 
4. Dell laptop pp07L 13054  2004 Obsolete $0 
       
       
       
     Total $0 

  
It is recommended that the Board of Education authorize the Assistant Superintendent, Business 
Services, or his designee, to sell or dispose of the surplus property in accordance with Board Policy 3270 
and Administrative Regulation 3270A. 
       

87 of 569



SCCS BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 

MEETING OF JUNE 28, 2017 
 

SURPLUS PROPERTY LIST 
 

Approval Date: _________________  Approved By:______________________________________________  

                 
SITE: BRANCIFORTE SMALL SCHOOLS 

        
 Property Description Asset #  Year/Age Condition Value 

 
1. HP Compaq DC7800 PC None  2005 Obsolete $0 
2. HP Compaq DC7700 PC 14815  2005 Obsolete $0 
3. HP Compaq DC7700 PC 14811  2005 Obsolete $0 
4. HP Compaq DC7800 PC None  2005 Obsolete $0 
5. HP Compaq DC7700C PC 14802  2005 Obsolete $0 
6. Ken-a-vision Document Camera 

7880 
None  2012 Not functional $0 

7. HP 1740 LCD Monitor None  2007 Not functional $0 
8. HP 1740 LCD Monitor None  2007 Not functional $0 
 9. HP 4050TN Laser Printer None  11+ years Not functional $0 
10. Apple iMac 13704  2006 Obsolete $0 
11. iPad A1219 None  2010 Obsolete $0 
12. iPad A1219 None  2010 Obsolete $0 
13. HP 1320N laser jet printer None  2004 Obsolete $0 
14. Box of e-waste None  various parts $0 
       
       
       
     Total $0 

  
It is recommended that the Board of Education authorize the Assistant Superintendent, Business 
Services, or his designee, to sell or dispose of the surplus property in accordance with Board Policy 3270 
and Administrative Regulation 3270A. 
       

88 of 569



SCCS BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 

MEETING OF JUNE 28, 2017 
 

 SURPLUS PROPERTY LIST  

Approval Date: _________________  Approved By:______________________________________________  

                 
SITE: BAY VIEW ELEMENTARY 

        
 Property Description Asset #  Year/Age Condition Value 

 
1. Macmini A1103, 1.25ghz 13548  2005 Obsolete $10-15 
2. Macmini A1103, 1.25ghz 13551  2005 Obsolete $10-15 
3. Macmini A1103, 1.25ghz 13542  2005 Obsolete $10-15 
4. Macmini A1103, 1.25ghz 13541  2005 Obsolete $10-15 
5. Macmini A1103, 1.25ghz 13533  2005 Obsolete $10-15 
6. Macmini A1103, 1.25ghz 13538  2005 Obsolete $10-15 
7. Macmini A1103, 1.25ghz 13543  2005 Obsolete $10-15 
8. Macmini A1103, 1.25ghz 13547  2005 Obsolete $10-15 
9. Macmini A1103, 1.25ghz 13559  2005 Obsolete $10-15 
10. Macmini A1103, 1.25ghz 13545  2005 Obsolete $10-15 
11. Macmini A1103, 1.25ghz 13531  2005 Obsolete $10-15 
12. Macmini A1103, 1.25ghz 13550  2005 Obsolete $10-15 
13. Macmini A1103, 1.25ghz 13537  2005 Obsolete $10-15 
14. Macmini A1103, 1.25ghz 13555  2005 Obsolete $10-15 
15. Macmini A1103, 1.25ghz 13544  2005 Obsolete $10-15 
16. Apple Mac Mini A1176 1.66ghz 13762  2006 Obsolete $10-15 
17. Apple Mac Mini A1176 1.66ghz 14093  2006 Obsolete $10-15 
18. Apple Mac Mini A1176 1.66ghz 14653  2006 Obsolete $10-15 
19. Apple Mac Mini A1176 1.66ghz 14284  2006 Obsolete $10-15 
20. Apple Mac Mini A1176 1.66ghz 14081  2006 Obsolete $10-15 
21. Apple Mac Mini A1176 1.66ghz 14086  2006 Obsolete $10-15 
22. Apple Mac Mini A1176 1.66ghz 13766  2006 Obsolete $10-15 
23. Apple Mac Mini A1176 1.66ghz 15068  2006 Obsolete $10-15 
24. Apple Mac Mini A1176 1.66ghz 14286  2006 Obsolete $10-15 
25. Macmini A1103, 1.25ghz 13560  2005 Obsolete $10-15 
26. Macmini A1103, 1.25ghz 13557  2005 Obsolete $10-15 
27. Macmini A1103, 1.25ghz 13532  2005 Obsolete $10-15 
28. Macmini A1103, 1.25ghz 13539  2005 Obsolete $10-15 
29. Macmini A1103, 1.25ghz 13535  2005 Obsolete $10-15 
30. Macmini A1103, 1.25ghz 13553  2005 Obsolete $10-15 
31. Macmini A1103, 1.25ghz 13546  2005 Obsolete $10-15 
32. Macmini A1103, 1.25ghz 13536  2005 Obsolete $10-15 
33. Macmini A1103, 1.25ghz 13540  2005 Obsolete $10-15 
34. Macmini A1103, 1.25ghz 13548  2005 Obsolete $10-15 
35. Macmini A1103, 1.25ghz 13551  2005 Obsolete $10-15 
36. Macmini A1103, 1.25ghz 13542  2005 Obsolete $10-15 
37. Macmini A1103, 1.25ghz 13541  2005 Obsolete $10-15 
38. Macmini A1103, 1.25ghz 13533  2005 Obsolete $10-15 
39. Macmini A1103, 1.25ghz 13538  2005 Obsolete $10-15 
       
     TOTAL $390+ 

It is recommended that the Board of Education authorize the Assistant Superintendent, Business 
Services, or his designee, to sell or dispose of the surplus property in accordance with Board Policy 3270 
and Administrative Regulation 3270A  

89 of 569



SCCS BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 

MEETING OF JUNE 28, 2017 
 

 SURPLUS PROPERTY LIST  

Approval Date: _________________  Approved By:______________________________________________  

                 
SITE: BAY VIEW ELEMENTARY (PAGE 2) 

        
 Property Description Asset #  Year/Age Condition Value 

 
1. Apple iMac A1195, 1.83 ghz 15237  2006 Obsolete $10-15 
2. Apple iMac A1195, 1.83 ghz 15232  2006 Obsolete $10-15 
3. Apple iMac A1195, 1.83 ghz 15242  2006 Obsolete $10-15 
4. Apple iMac A1195, 1.83 ghz 15235  2006 Obsolete $10-15 
5. HP Compaq dc5700 14583  2006 Obsolete $0 
       
       
     TOTAL $40+ 

It is recommended that the Board of Education authorize the Assistant Superintendent, Business 
Services, or his designee, to sell or dispose of the surplus property in accordance with Board Policy 3270 
and Administrative Regulation 3270A  

90 of 569



SCCS BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 

MEETING OF JUNE 28, 2017 
 

SURPLUS PROPERTY LIST 
 

Approval Date: _________________  Approved By:______________________________________________  

                 
SITE: FOOD SERVICES DEPT. 

        
 Property Description Asset #  Year/Age Condition Value 

 
1. District Van # 39, 2000 Chevy 

Express 3500 Cargo Van 
11265  2000 Fair $1,861 

2. Montague Gas Convection oven 12116  60+ yrs Obsolete $0 
3. Montague Gas Convection oven 12117  60+ yrs Obsolete $0 
       
       
       
       
     Total $1,861.00 

  
It is recommended that the Board of Education authorize the Assistant Superintendent, Business 
Services, or his designee, to sell or dispose of the surplus property in accordance with Board Policy 3270 
and Administrative Regulation 3270A. 
       

91 of 569



SCCS BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 

MEETING OF JUNE 28, 2017 
 

SURPLUS PROPERTY LIST 
 

Approval Date: _________________  Approved By:______________________________________________  

                 
SITE: GAULT ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 

        
 Property Description Asset #  Year/Age Condition Value 

 
1. Macbook A1181 13911  2005 Obsolete $0 
2. Macbook A1181 13917  2005 Obsolete $0 
3. Macbook A1181 13912  2005 Obsolete $0 
       
       
       
       
     Total $0 

  
It is recommended that the Board of Education authorize the Assistant Superintendent, Business 
Services, or his designee, to sell or dispose of the surplus property in accordance with Board Policy 3270 
and Administrative Regulation 3270A. 
       

92 of 569



SCCS BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 

MEETING OF JUNE 28, 2017 
 

 SURPLUS PROPERTY LIST  

Approval Date: _________________  Approved By:______________________________________________  

                 
SITE: HARBOR HIGH SCHOOL  

        
 Property Description Asset #  Year/Age Condition Value 

 
1. Eleven (11) Dell 15” monitors None  2005 Obsolete $0 
2. Two (s) Dell 17” monitors None  2005 Obsolete $0 
3. Arm laptop None  1999 Obsolete $0 
4. Blue HP injet printer None  ? Broken/Obsolete $0 
5. Dell Dimension 1100  13673  2005 Obsolete $0 
6. Dell Dimension 1100  13674  2005 Broken $0 
7. Dell Dimension 1100  13676  2005 Damaged/Obsolete $0 
8. Dell Dimension 1100  13687  2005 Obsolete $0 
9. Dell Dimension 1100  None  2005 Obsolete $0 
10. Dell GX520 None  2004 Obsolete $0 
11. Dell GX520 13265  2006 Obsolete $0 
12. Dell GX520 13613  2006 Obsolete $0 
13. Dell GX520 13624  2006 Obsolete $0 
14. Dell GX520 13837  2006 Obsolete $0 
15. Dell Latitude pp01x None  2002 Obsolete $0 
16. Dell Latitude pp01x None  2002 Obsolete $0 
17. eMac g4 None  ? Obsolete $0 
18. G3 Powerbook None  1999 Obsolete $0 
19. HP Brio 11709  2000 Obsolete $0 
20. HP Brio None  2000 Obsolete $0 
21. HP Brio None  2000 Obsolete $0 
22. HP Brio None  2000 Obsolete $0 
23. HP Compaq p4 None  ? Obsolete $0 
24. HP d330 None  2004 Obsolete $0 
25. HP dc5700 14688  ? Obsolete $0 
26. HP dc7700 E6300 14192  ? Obsolete $0 
27. HP dc 7800 15076  2007 Damaged/Obsolete $0 
28. HP Flatbed Scanner None  ? Obsolete $0 
29. HP gx520 None   Obsolete $0 
30. HP Pentium 4 None  2004 Obsolete $0 
31. HP Photojet 8500 None  ? Damaged/Obsolete $0 
32. iMac 17 None  2006 Damaged/Obsolete $0 
33. iMac G5 13434  2004 Obsolete $0 
34. OEM PC COE 13609  ? Obsolete $0 
35. OEM PC COE 14712  ? Damaged/Obsolete $0 
36. OEM PC None  1998 Obsolete $0 
37. OEM PC None  ? Obsolete $0 
38. OEM PentD COE 14861  2006 Obsolete $0 
39. OEM PentD COE 14877  2006 Obsolete $0 
40. OEM PentD COE 14866  2006 Obsolete $0 
     TOTAL $0 

It is recommended that the Board of Education authorize the Assistant Superintendent, Business 
Services, or his designee, to sell or dispose of the surplus property in accordance with Board Policy 3270 
and Administrative Regulation 3270A  

93 of 569



SCCS BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 

MEETING OF JUNE 28, 2017 
 

 SURPLUS PROPERTY LIST  

Approval Date: _________________  Approved By:______________________________________________  

                 
SITE: HARBOR HIGH SCHOOL (PAGE 2) 

        
 Property Description Asset #  Year/Age Condition Value 

 
1. OEM PentD COE 14873  2006 Obsolete $0 
2. OEM PentD COE 14874  2006 Obsolete $0 
3. OEM PentD COE 14892  2006 Obsolete $0 
4. Dell GX755 COE 15681  2007 Broken/Obsolete $0 
       
       
     TOTAL $0 

 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Education authorize the Assistant Superintendent, Business 
Services, or his designee, to sell or dispose of the surplus property in accordance with Board Policy 3270 
and Administrative Regulation 3270A  

94 of 569



SCCS BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 

MEETING OF JUNE 28, 2017 
 

 SURPLUS PROPERTY LIST  

Approval Date: _________________  Approved By:______________________________________________  

                 
SITE: DISTRICT OFFICE – SPECIAL EDUCATION 

        
 Property Description Asset #  Year/Age Condition Value 

 
1. Compaq Presario None  2000 Broken $0 
2. HP Compaq dc5700, Win XP None  2005 Broken $0 
3. HP Compaq dc5100, Win XP 14022  2005 Broken $0 
4. HP Server tc2120 None  2004 Broken $0 
5. Dell Laptop, Win XP Pro 13527  2004 Broken $0 
6. Dell Laptop, Win XP Pro 13819  2004 Broken $0 
7. Dell Laptop, Win XP Pro 13821  2004 Broken $0 
8. Dell Laptop, Win XP Pro 13818  2004 Broken $0 
9. Dell Laptop, Win XP Pro 13823  2004 Broken $0 
10. Dell Latitudec600, Win2000 030249  2001 Broken $0 
11. Dell Latitudec600, Win2000 030213  2001 Broken $0 
12. Dell Latitudec600, Win2000 030212  2001 Broken $0 
13. Dell Latitudec600, Win2000 030206  2001 Broken $0 
14. Dell Latitudec600, Win2000 030251  2001 Broken $0 
15. Dell Latitudec600, Win2000 030211  2001 Broken $0 
16. HP Compaq 6710b, Win XP 15017  2005 Broken $0 
17. HP Compaq 6710b, Win XP 15016  2005 Broken $0 
18. HP Compaq 6710b, Win XP 15005  2005 Broken $0 
19. Dell Laptop, Win 2000 13081  2003 Broken $0 
20. Dell Laptop, Win 2000 13080  2003 Broken $0 
21. HP Compaq nc6320, Win XP 14762  2005 Broken $0 
22. HP Compaq nc6320, Win XP 14560  2005 Broken $0 
23. HP Compaq nc6320, Win XP None  2005 Broken $0 
24. HP Compaq nc6320, Win XP 14761  2005 Broken $0 
25. HP Compaq nc6000, Win XP None  2004 Broken $0 
26. Dell Latitude c600, Win 2000 030255  2001 Broken $0 
27. Dell Latitude c600, Win 2000 030205  2001 Broken $0 
28. HP Compaq dc5700, Win XP 14958  2006 Broken $0 
29. HP Compaq dc5700, Win XP 14967  2006 Broken $0 
30. Dell Desktop, Win XP 13839  2005 Broken $0 
31. HP Compaq dc5700, Win XP None  2005 Broken $0 
32. Dell Optiplex GX280, Win XP 13565  2005 Broken $0 
33. Dell Optiplex, GX150, Win XP 030262  2000 Broken $0 
34. HP Compaq dc5700, Win XP 14979  2004 Broken $0 
35. HP Compaq dc5700, Win XP 14985  2006 Broken $0 
36. HP Compaq 6710b, Win XP 15002  2005 Broken $0 
37. HP Compaq 6710b, Win XP 15012  2005 Broken $0 
38. HP Compaq 6710b, Win XP 15009  2005 Broken $0 
39. HP Compaq 6710b, Win XP 15001  2005 Broken $0 
40. HP Compaq 6710b, Win XP 15015  2005 Broken $0 
     TOTAL $0 

It is recommended that the Board of Education authorize the Assistant Superintendent, Business 
Services, or his designee, to sell or dispose of the surplus property in accordance with Board Policy 3270 
and Administrative Regulation 3270A  

95 of 569



SCCS BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 

MEETING OF JUNE 28, 2017 
 

 SURPLUS PROPERTY LIST  

Approval Date: _________________  Approved By:______________________________________________  

                 
SITE: SANTA CRUZ HIGH SCHOOL  

        
 Property Description Asset #  Year/Age Condition Value 

 
1. Apple X-serve 2006 14662  2006 Obsolete $0 
2. Datamotion Systems laptop cart None  Unknown Obsolete $0 
3. Dell power edge 1900 server None  2005 Obsolete $0 
4. HP DC7700 tower PC None  2005 Obsolete $0 
5. Generic tower PC None  Unknown Obsolete $0 
6. HP elitebook 8560p laptop 12437  2010 Broken $0 
7. Acer 5250 laptop None  2009 Obsolete $0 
8. HP DC 7700 tower PC 14767  2005 Obsolete $0 
9. Canon flat bed scanner None  2007 Obsolete $0 
10. HP DC7700s Desktop PC 14331  2005 Obsolete $0 
11. Generic black tower PC None  2009 Obsolete $0 
12. Viewsonic VA-520 LCD monitor None  2007 Obsolete $0 
13. HP Deskjet 895CXi printer None  2002 Obsolete $0 
14. Brother HL-2170 DW printer None  2012 Broken  
15. Zenith VCR 00832   1997 Obsolete $0 
16. HP PSC 1610 Printer None  2007 Obsolete $0 
17. Dell Dimension L800CXE PC 10761  1997 Obsolete $0 
18. Dell Dimension 2400 PC None  2005 Obsolete $0 
19. Dell Dimension 2400 PC None  2005 Obsolete $0 
20. Samsung CLP 300n printer None  2007 Obsolete $0 
21. Dell CRT monitor None  1997 Obsolete $0 
22. Dell CRT monitor None  1997 Obsolete $0 
23. Dell CRT monitor None  1997 Obsolete $0 
24. Dell CRT monitor None  1997 Obsolete $0 
25. HP Deskjet 810 C printer None  2002 Obsolete $0 
26. Dell Optiplex GX60 PC None  2005 Obsolete $0 
27. Dell Optiplex GX60 PC None  2005 Obsolete $0 
28. Dell latitude laptop 030425  2005 Obsolete $0 
29. Dell latitude laptop 030417  2005 Obsolete $0 
30. Dell latitude laptop 030433  2005 Obsolete $0 
31. Dell latitude laptop 030436  2005 Obsolete $0 
32. Dell latitude laptop 030462  2005 Obsolete $0 
33. Dell latitude laptop 030421  2005 Obsolete $0 
34. Dell latitude laptop 030427  2005 Obsolete $0 
35. Asus eee PC netbook None  2007 Obsolete $0 
36. Asus eee PC netbook None  2007 Obsolete $0 
37. Canon PC425 Scanner None  2002 Obsolete $0 
38. HP 1740 LCD monitor None  2007 Obsolete $0 
39. HP DC7700 tower PC None  2007 Obsolete $0 
40. Dell CRT monitor None  1997 Obsolete $0 
     TOTAL $0 

It is recommended that the Board of Education authorize the Assistant Superintendent, Business 
Services, or his designee, to sell or dispose of the surplus property in accordance with Board Policy 3270 
and Administrative Regulation 3270A  

96 of 569



SCCS BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 

MEETING OF JUNE 28, 2017 
 

 SURPLUS PROPERTY LIST  

Approval Date: _________________  Approved By:______________________________________________  

SITE: SANTA CRUZ HIGH SCHOOL (PAGE 2) 
        

 Property Description Asset #  Year/Age Condition Value 
 

1. APC UPS power supply 10862  1997 Obsolete $0 
2. Apple iMac  None  2006 Obsolete $0 
3. HP Laserjet 1300n 13237  2003 Obsolete $0 
4. HP DC7700 tower PC 14426  2005 Obsolete $0 
5. Dell Powervault 745n server None  2002 Obsolete $0 
6. Gem CRT monitor None  1997 Obsolete $0 
7. Dell CRT monitor None  1997 Obsolete $0 
8. Dell CRT monitor None  1997 Obsolete $0 
9. Dell CRT monitor None  1997 Obsolete $0 
10. Alphascan 511 CRT monitor None  1997 Obsolete $0 
11. Dell CRT Monitor None  1997 Obsolete $0 
12. Dell Optiplex PC 13373  2005 Obsolete $0 
13. Dell Optiplex GX620 PC 14074  2005 Obsolete $0 
14. Dell tower PC  None  2005 Obsolete $0 
15. Apple eMac 13114  2004 Obsolete $0 
16. HP Laserjet 1300n printer 13231  2002 Obsolete $0 
17. Dell Inspiron 5150 laptop None  2005 Obsolete $0 
18. Brother HL-1240 laser printer None  2002 Obsolete $0 
19. Acer Aspire 7100 laptop None  2005 Obsolete $0 
20. Samsung syncmaster 710m LCD 

monitor 
None  2005 Obsolete $0 

21. Dell 1702FP LCD monitor None  2007 Obsolete $0 
22. HP 1740 LCD monitor None  2007 Obsolete $0 
23. Dell CRT monitor None  2002 Obsolete $0 
24. Epson Powerlite 83+ projector 15846  2009 Broken $0 
25. IBM Thinkcenter tower PC 13761  2002 Obsolete $0 
26. HP DC5750 tower PC 14853  2007 Obsolete $0 
27. HP DC7700 PC None  2005 Obsolete $0 
28. HP DC7800 PC 15051  2005 Obsolete $0 
29. Apple Macbook  15208  2007 Obsolete $0 
30. Dell Inspiron 1501 laptop None  2005 Obsolete $0 
31. Dell Latitude D600 laptop None  2005 Obsolete $0 
32. Dell Poweredge SC440 tower PC None  2002 Obsolete $0 
33. HP DC5700 sff PC None  2007 Obsolete $0 
34. HP DC7700 tower PC None  2005 Obsolete $0 
35. HP DC7700 sff 14677  2005 Obsolete $0 
36. HP DC 7700 tower PC None  2005 Obsolete $0 
37. HP DC 7700 tower PC None  2005 Obsolete $0 
38. HP ProLiant 110 tower server 13492  2005 Obsolete $0 
39. Apple iMac 2007 None  2007 Obsolete $0 
40. Dell Optiplex GX150 None  2002 Obsolete $0 
     TOTAL $0 

It is recommended that the Board of Education authorize the Assistant Superintendent, Business 
Services, or his designee, to sell or dispose of the surplus property in accordance with Board Policy 3270 
and Administrative Regulation 3270A  

97 of 569



SCCS BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 

MEETING OF JUNE 28, 2017 
 

 SURPLUS PROPERTY LIST  

Approval Date: _________________  Approved By:______________________________________________  

 
SITE: SANTA CRUZ HIGH SCHOOL (PAGE 3) 

        
 Property Description Asset #  Year/Age Condition Value 

 
1. Bretford laptop cart None  2007 Obsolete $0 
2. HP DC 7700 tower PC None  2005 Obsolete $0 
3. RCA VCR None  1997 Obsolete $0 
4. Apple iMac G4 None  2004 Obsolete $0 
5. Apple Macbook Pro 14658  2006 Obsolete $0 
6. Apple Mac Pro 13022  2002 Obsolete $0 
7. HP DC 7700 tower PC 14127  2005 Obsolete $0 
8. HP DC 7800 tower PC 15060  2007 Obsolete $0 
9. Generic black tower PC None  2009 Obsolete $0 
10. HP DC 7700 tower PC None  2005 Obsolete $0 
11. Boxes of ewaste None  Various Obsolete $0 
     TOTAL $0 

 
It is recommended that the Board of Education authorize the Assistant Superintendent, Business 
Services, or his designee, to sell or dispose of the surplus property in accordance with Board Policy 3270 
and Administrative Regulation 3270A  

98 of 569



SCCS BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 

MEETING OF JUNE 28, 2017 
 

 SURPLUS PROPERTY LIST  

Approval Date: _________________  Approved By:______________________________________________  

                 
SITE: SOQUEL HIGH SCHOOL 

        
 Property Description Asset #  Year/Age Condition Value 

 
1. HP Compaq dc 5700 desktop None  2006 Obsolete $0 
2. HP Compaq dc 5700 desktop None  2006 Obsolete $0 
3. HP Compaq dc 5700 desktop None  2006 Obsolete $0 
4. HP Compaq dc 5700 desktop None  2006 Obsolete $0 
5. HP Compaq dc 5700 desktop 14994  2006 Obsolete $0 
6. HP dc 5700 None  2005 Nonfunctional $0 
7. HP dc 5700 None  2005 Nonfunctional $0 
8. IBM Thinkpad t42 None  2004 Nonfunctional $0 
9. IBM t60p None  2003 Nonfunctional $0 
10. Dell Optiplex GX270 13139  2004 Nonfunctional $0 
11. HP Compaq dc5850 None  2005 Nonfunctional $0 
12. HP Compaq dc 5700 None  2005 Nonfunctional $0 
13. HP Compaq dc 5700 14607  2005 Nonfunctional $0 
14. HP Compaq dc 5700 14605  2005 Nonfunctional $0 
15. iMac a1208 14116  2006 Nonfunctional $0 
16. Apple Powerbook g4 11194  2001 Nonfunctional $0 
17. HP Compaq dc 7800 15412  2006 Nonfunctional $0 
18. HP Compaq dc5700 14581  2005 Nonfunctional/Obsolete $0 
19. HP Compaq dc5700 14251  2005 Nonfunctional/Obsolete $0 
20. iMac a 1208 14025  2006 Nonfunctional $0 
21. HP dc5800 15530  2008 Nonfunctional $0 
22. Dell Dimension E310 None  2006 Obsolete $0 
23. AverVision Document Camera F30 13004  2012 Nonfunctional $0 
24. Macintosh SE 9240  1987 Obsolete $0 
25. Macintosh SE None  1987 Obsolete $0 
26. Macintosh SE None  1987 Obsolete $0 
27. Macintosh SE None  1987 Obsolete $0 
28. Macintosh SE None  1987 Obsolete $0 
29. Dell Optiplex gx520  13832  2004 Obsolete $0 
30. Epson LCD Projector emp-s3 14137  2005 Nonfunctional $0 
31. Eight (8) 12” Dell monitors None  2000 Obsolete/Nonfunctional $0 
       
     TOTAL $0 

 
It is recommended that the Board of Education authorize the Assistant Superintendent, Business 
Services, or his designee, to sell or dispose of the surplus property in accordance with Board Policy 3270 
and Administrative Regulation 3270A  

99 of 569



  AGENDA ITEM:  8.1.7 
SC co sheriff, Balance4Kids, Easter seals, Haven, Belli B40M portable, B2K, Applied Materials, Lacey, Palace, CPR 062817 

 SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Contracts and Consultant Services Agreements 
 
MEETING DATE: June 28, 2017 
 
FROM:   Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:  Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Ratify contracts and consultant services agreements executed pursuant to Board Policy 3300. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
On February 23, 2011, the Board of Education delegated authority to enter into contracts on 
behalf of Santa Cruz City Schools and to purchase supplies, materials, apparatus, equipment 
and services up to the amounts specified in Public Contract Code 20111 and Education Code 
Section 17605 to the Superintendent of Schools or designees, and required that the Board of 
Trustees ratify contracts within sixty (60) days of incurring the expense. 
 
The following contracts are presented for ratification: 

1. Agreements – Superintendent’s Office 
1. County of Santa Cruz – Amendment to Agreement for School Resource 

Officer at Soquel High School for 2017-18 
2. Non Public Agency Contracts & Agreement – Educational Services/Special 

Education 
1. Balance for Kids – 1:1 Special Circumstance Instructional Aide, Behavior 

Intervention/Implementation Aide, Behavior Intervention/Design, Health 
Care Aide I & II, Nurse- LVN/RN and Sign Language Interpreter Support 
Services for 24 Special Ed students, as mandated in their IEPs or through 
mediation. 

2. Easter Seals Central California – 1:1 Special Circumstance Instructional 
Aide, Behavior Intervention/Implementation Aide, Behavior 
Inclusion/Design, Health Technician/Aide, Home & Hospital Teacher, 
Nurse – LVN/RN, Occupational Therapy, Special Education Consultant, 
Speed Therapy and Sign Language Interpreter Support Services for 27 
Special Ed students, as mandated in their IEPs or through mediation. 

3. Rachel M. Haven – Assistive Technology Evaluation by an Independent 
Educational Evaluator of a secondary Special Ed student, as mandated in 
the student’s IEP. 

3. Agreements & Contracts/Business Services  
1. Belli Architects – Agreement Amendment for placement of relocatable 

classroom at Branciforte Middle School. 
2. Bridges to Kinder – revised license agreement for shared use of a 

classroom and other facilities at Westlake Elementary 
3. Applied Materials & Engineering – Water intrusion analysis at 536 Palm 

St. 

100 of 569



  AGENDA ITEM:  8.1.7 
SC co sheriff, Balance4Kids, Easter seals, Haven, Belli B40M portable, B2K, Applied Materials, Lacey, Palace, CPR 062817 

4. Jerene Lacey – CSA for assistance with Finance Office projects 
5. Palace Business Solutions – piggyback contract through PVUSD for office 

and classroom supplies 
6. California Premier Restoration – Harbor High poolhouse mold 

 

101 of 569



10
2 

of
 5

69



10
3 

of
 5

69



10
4 

of
 5

69



10
5 

of
 5

69



10
6 

of
 5

69



10
7 

of
 5

69



10
8 

of
 5

69



10
9 

of
 5

69



11
0 

of
 5

69



11
1 

of
 5

69



11
2 

of
 5

69



11
3 

of
 5

69



11
4 

of
 5

69



11
5 

of
 5

69



11
6 

of
 5

69



11
7 

of
 5

69



11
8 

of
 5

69



11
9 

of
 5

69



12
0 

of
 5

69



12
1 

of
 5

69



12
2 

of
 5

69



12
3 

of
 5

69



12
4 

of
 5

69



12
5 

of
 5

69



12
6 

of
 5

69



12
7 

of
 5

69



12
8 

of
 5

69



Bridges to Kinder License Agrmt cover 

SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT 
 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Bridges to Kinder – License Agreement for Shared Use at Westlake 
 
MEETING DATE: June 28, 2017 
 
FROM: Patrick Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH: Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve Bridges to Kinder’s License Agreement for Shared Use at Westlake. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
On August 31, 2016, the Board approved a three year License Agreement for Shared Use, Pre-K and 
Preschool services and programs at Westlake Elementary School, for school years 2016-17, 2017-18 and 
2018-19.  The terms of the Agreement have been updated to specify the ages of the children served, to 
include additional rent for the costs of utilities, custodial and librarian services, and to modify the hours 
of operation.  The attached License Agreement is for two years, 2017-18 and 2018-19, and supersedes 
the previous Agreement. 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics. 
 
Goal #4: SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
In addition to annual rent of $1.00, Bridges to Kinder will reimburse the District for their share of 
utilities, custodial and librarian time. 

129 of 569



130 of 569



131 of 569



132 of 569



133 of 569



134 of 569



135 of 569



136 of 569



137 of 569



138 of 569



139 of 569



140 of 569



141 of 569



142 of 569



143 of 569



144 of 569



145 of 569



Santa Cruz City Schools REQUISITION #:    

405 Old San Jose Road 

Soquel, CA 95073 
 

REQUEST FOR CONSULTANT SERVICES AGREEMENT 

Submit to the responsible Assistant Superintendent at least two weeks before the Board meeting and prior to the 

Consultant beginning work. 

 
Site:  Principal/Director:    

Describe Work to be Performed and District and Site Goals Supported: 

 
 

 
 

Qualifications of Consultant:   

Name of Consultant:  Tax I.D.# or SSN:       
(Vendor Data form to Purchasing) 

Address:  Telephone #:          

City/State/Zip:  Email:        

Date(s) of Service:  Time:    

Number of Hours:  hours per day X  days =   total hours.  

Hourly/Daily Rate (specify):     Meals:           

Lodging:    Transportation:       

TOTAL FEE TO BE PAID: Account #:     

Write out meaning of account number:    
 

Authorized Signature of Consultant:   Date:    

(NOTE:  Consultant must submit invoice for payment upon completion of work) 
 

AB 1610, 1612, and 2102 COMPLIANCE (consultants having more than limited contact with students require fingerprinting.) 

☐ Consultants will be on campus on a regular basis (more than once) while students are present  

☐ Consultant will not be on campus on a regular basis while students are present (fingerprints not required). 

☐ Fingerprints not required for consultant ____________ Approval of Assistant Superintendent 
         Initials 
 

Fingerprint Clearance date:_________________  Approval of Human Resources:__________________________ 
 

 
  

Signature of Administrator Requesting Service Approval of Assistant Superintendent 

Date:  Date:    

* * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * 
PAYMENT AUTHORIZATION 

(Submit for payment after Consultant completes work) 

I hereby certify that the consultant has satisfactorily completed the services in accordance with the above Agreement and 

that payment is in order. 
 
 

  

Signature of Administrator Requesting Payment Date 
 
 

  

Approval of Assistant Superintendent Date 

Board of Education Approval:  CSA#:   
(Required if over $2500) (Assigned by Accounting)        1/11/2016 

146 of 569

bssec
Typewritten Text

bssec
Typewritten Text
Business Services

bssec
Typewritten Text

bssec
Typewritten Text
Patrick Gaffney

bssec
Typewritten Text
Assistance with year-end close, auditors and other finance office matters.

bssec
Typewritten Text

bssec
Typewritten Text

bssec
Typewritten Text

bssec
Typewritten Text
Previous Finance Director for SCCS

bssec
Typewritten Text
Jerene Lacey

bssec
Typewritten Text
569-39-6166

bssec
Typewritten Text
100 Campos Drive

bssec
Typewritten Text
Hutto, TX 78634

bssec
Typewritten Text
831-710-3908

bssec
Typewritten Text
jlacey@sccs.net

bssec
Typewritten Text
TBD

bssec
Typewritten Text
$67.50

bssec
Typewritten Text

bssec
Typewritten Text
01-0000-0-0000-7300-5800-899-0000

bssec
Typewritten Text
Finance, Consultant Services

bssec
Typewritten Text
X

bssec
Typewritten Text

bssec
Typewritten Text
X

bssec
Typewritten Text
7/1/17 - 9/30/17

bssec
Typewritten Text

bssec
Typewritten Text
_____

bssec
Typewritten Text

bssec
Typewritten Text
NTE $10,000.00



Must be Attached Page Two 

 

REQUEST FOR CONSULTANT SERVICES AGREEMENT 

 

Review guidelines of Board Policy - Consultant Services Agreements. 

 

1. Statement of specific need and the goal of the Consultant’s work (Refer to district/site goals and plans, 

unique needs of school, program or office which necessitates the services of a consultant). 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

2. State efforts made to identify qualified staff available within the district to carry out the requested services. 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

3. If this agreement is for staff development or for one-time services, state the site's plan to reduce or eliminate 

the need for this consultant's services in the future. 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

4. Statement of expected outcomes (Include specific student outcomes desired, benefits to district students 

and/or staff). 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 

5. Evaluation Process - How will you know the goal/outcomes have been met? 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
147 of 569

bssec
Typewritten Text
budgets will be valuable to the new Director of Finance.

bssec
Typewritten Text
Ms. Lacey's expertise with the Digital Schools software and familiarity with District budget and procedures are needed 

bssec
Typewritten Text
to assist Finance Dept. staff with year-end close, working with District auditors and other projects.

bssec
Typewritten Text
The District's new Finance Director has experience with school finance.  Once he becomes familiar with the unique 

bssec
Typewritten Text
Year-end close of the District's books will be accomplished on time.  Auditors will be supplied with the necessarydocuments and information needed. 

bssec
Typewritten Text
Year-End report will be completed and presented to the Board of Trustees.  New year budget will be in place.  

bssec
Typewritten Text

bssec
Typewritten Text

bssec
Typewritten Text

bssec
Typewritten Text

bssec
Typewritten Text

bssec
Typewritten Text
The District's Finance Office needs assistance with the year-end close of the books and other projects.  Ms. Lacey

bssec
Typewritten Text

bssec
Typewritten Text
is the previous Director of Finance, and is now living in a different area.  Her familiarity with Digital Schools and District

bssec
Typewritten Text

bssec
Typewritten Text

bssec
Typewritten Text

bssec
Typewritten Text
aspects of SCCS, he will need less assistance.



148 of 569



149 of 569



150 of 569



151 of 569



152 of 569



153 of 569



AGENDA ITEM:  8.1.8 
Change Order 1 DLV Shade Project cover 

SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT 
 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Change Order for Construction Contract 
 
MEETING DATE: June 28, 2017 
 
FROM: Patrick Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH: Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve Change Order 1 for Delaveaga Elementary School’s Shade Structure Project with CRW 
Construction. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
This project was started this summer and involves installation of a shade structure for the kindergarten 
play area.  It was decided to convert the natural grass area below the shade structure to artificial turf to 
reduce maintenance and to provide a safe surface on which to play.  This change order covers 
excavation of the existing grass area, installation of base rock, grading of the slope and installation of 
new synthetic turf with a concrete curb. 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics. 
 
Goal #4: SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Change order 1:  $ 32,054.00 

Total:    $32,054.00 

 
This project is funded by Fund 21, Building Fund, Elementary Bond 
 
 
 
 

154 of 569



15
5 

of
 5

69



15
6 

of
 5

69



15
7 

of
 5

69



                      AGENDA ITEM: 8.1.9. 

 

SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM:   Board Policy 1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures 
 
MEETING DATE: June 28, 2017 
 
FROM: Frank Wells, Assistant Superintendent of Educational Services 
 
THROUGH: Kris Munro, Superintendent  
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
Approve the new board policy as required by the district Federal Program Monitoring Audit. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The minor changes to this board policy – the addition of three programs added to the list of 
items that will be investigated and resolved by the district – have been required through our 
Federal Program Monitoring Audit. 
 
The three listed program additions are found on page one of the policy and have been 
highlighted in yellow for your ease of viewing.  These are the only changes to the policy. 

158 of 569



 

 

Community Relations BP 1312.3(a) 

 

UNIFORM COMPLAINT PROCEDURES 

 

The Governing Board recognizes that the district has the primary responsibility to ensure compliance 

with applicable state and federal laws and regulations governing educational programs. The Board 

encourages early resolution of complaints whenever possible. To resolve complaints which may 

require a more formal process, the Board adopts the uniform system of complaint processes specified 

in 5 CCR 4600-4670 and the accompanying administrative regulation. 

 

The district's uniform complaint procedures (UCP) shall be used to investigate and resolve the 

following complaints: 

 

1. Any complaint alleging district violation of applicable state or federal law or regulations 

governing adult education programs, after school education and safety programs, migrant 

education, career technical and technical education and training programs, child care and 

development programs, child nutrition programs, special education programs, consolidated 

categorical aid programs, compensatory education, Every Student Succeeds Act/No Child Left 

Behind, tobacco – use prevention education, and any other district-implemented program 

which is listed in Education Code 64000(a) (5 CCR 4610) 

 
(cf. 6200 - Adult Education) 

(cf. 5148.2 - After School Education and Safety) 

(cf. 6143 - Agriculture Vocational Education) 

(cf. 6174 - Bilingual Education) 

(cf. 6178 - Career Technical Education) 

(cf. 5148 - Child Care and Development) 

(cf. 3550 – Child Nutrition) 

(cf. 5141.4 - Child Abuse Prevention and Reporting) 

(cf. 6171 - Compensatory Education) 

(cf. 0420 – Consolidated Categorical Aid) 

(ec. §§ 51228.1 -  Course Periods Without Educational Content) 

(cf. 6174 - Education for English Language Learners) 

(cf. 4112.24 - Every Student Succeeds Act/No Child Left Behind) 

(cf. 3553 - Free and Reduced Price Meals) 

(cf. 6159 - Individualized Education Program) 

(cf. 0460 – Local Control and Accountability Plan) 

(cf. 6175 - Migrant Education Program) 

(cf. 3555 - Nutrition Program Compliance) 

(cf. 6142.7 – Physical Education Instructional Minutes) 

(cf. 3260 – Pupil Fees) 

(cf. 5146 – Reasonable Accommodations to a Lactating Pupil) 

(cf. 6178.2 - Regional Occupational Center/Program) 

(cf. 0450 – School Safety Plans) 

(cf. 6164.6 – Special Education) 

(cf. 6171 - Title I Programs) 

(cf, 3513.3 - Tobacco-Use Prevention Education) 

(cf. 6178.1 - Work-Based Learning) 

   

2. Any complaint alleging the occurrence of unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory 

harassment, intimidation, or bullying) against any student, employee, or other person 

participating in district programs and activities, including, but not limited to, those programs 

or activities funded directly by or that receive or benefit from any state financial assistance, 

based on the person's actual or perceived characteristics of race or ethnicity, color, ancestry,  

159 of 569



 

 

  
 

 BP 1312.3(b) 

 

UNIFORM COMPLAINT PROCEDURES  (continued) 

 

 nationality, national origin, ethnic group identification, age, religion, marital, pregnancy, or 

parental status, physical or mental disability, sex, sexual orientation, gender, gender identity, 

gender expression, or genetic information, or any other characteristic identified in Education 

Code 200 or 220, Government Code 11135, or Penal Code 422.55, or based on his/her 

association with a person or group with one or more of these actual or perceived characteristics  

(5 CCR 4610) 

 
(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities) 

(cf. 5145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment) 

(cf. 5145.7 - Sexual Harassment) 
 

 

3. Any complaint alleging district noncompliance with the requirement to provide reasonable 

accommodation to a lactating student on school campus to express breast milk, breastfeed an 

infant child, or address other breastfeeding-related needs of the student  (Education Code 222) 

 
(cf. 5146 - Married/Pregnant/Parenting Students) 

 

4. Any complaint alleging district noncompliance with the prohibition against requiring students 

to pay fees, deposits, or other charges for participation in educational activities  (5 CCR 4610) 

 
(cf. 3260 - Fees and Charges) 

(cf. 3320 - Claims and Actions Against the District) 

 

5. Any complaint alleging district noncompliance with legal requirements related to the 

implementation of the local control and accountability plan  (Education Code 52075) 

 
(cf. 0460 - Local Control and Accountability Plan) 

 

6. Any complaint, by or on behalf of any student who is a foster youth, alleging district 

noncompliance with any legal requirement applicable to the student regarding placement 

decisions, the responsibilities of the district's educational liaison to the student, the award of 

credit for coursework satisfactorily completed in another school or district, school transfer, or 

the grant of an exemption from Board-imposed graduation requirements (Education Code 

48853, 48853.5, 49069.5, 51225.1, 51225.2) 

 
(cf. 6173.1 - Education for Foster Youth) 

 

7. Any complaint, by or on behalf of a homeless student as defined in 42 USC 11434a, alleging 

district noncompliance with any requirement applicable to the student regarding the award of 

credit for coursework satisfactorily completed in another school or district or the grant of an 

exemption from Board-imposed graduation requirements  (Education Code 51225.1, 51225.2) 

 
(cf. 6173 - Education for Homeless Children) 

 

160 of 569



 

 

 BP 1312.3(c) 

 

UNIFORM COMPLAINT PROCEDURES  (continued) 

 

8. Any complaint alleging district noncompliance with the requirements of Education Code 

51228.1 and 51228.2 that prohibit the assignment of a student to a course without educational 

content for more than one week in any semester or to a course the student has previously 

satisfactorily completed, without meeting specified conditions  (Education Code 51228.3) 

 
(cf. 6152 - Class Assignment) 

  

9. Any complaint alleging district noncompliance with the physical education instructional 

minutes requirement for students in elementary school  (Education Code 51210, 51223) 

 
(cf. 6142.7 - Physical Education and Activity) 

 

10. Any complaint alleging retaliation against a complainant or other participant in the complaint 

process or anyone who has acted to uncover or report a violation subject to this policy 

 

11. Any other complaint as specified in a district policy 

 

The Board recognizes that alternative dispute resolution (ADR) can, depending on the nature of the 

allegations, offer a process to reach a resolution to the complaint that is acceptable to all parties. ADR 

such as mediation may be offered to resolve complaints that involve more than one student and no 

adult.  However, mediation shall not be offered or used to resolve any complaint involving sexual 

assault or where there is a reasonable risk that a party to the mediation would feel compelled to 

participate.  The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that the use of ADR is consistent with state 

and federal laws and regulations. 

 

The district shall protect all complainants from retaliation. In investigating complaints, the 

confidentiality of the parties involved shall be protected as required by law. As appropriate for any 

complaint alleging retaliation or unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory harassment, 

intimidation, or bullying), the Superintendent or designee shall keep confidential the identity of the 

complainant and/or the subject of the complaint if he/she is different from the complainant, as long as 

the integrity of the complaint process is maintained. 

 
(cf. 4119.23/4219.23/4319.23 - Unauthorized Release of Confidential/Privileged Information) 

(cf. 5125 - Student Records) 

(cf. 9011 - Disclosure of Confidential/Privileged Information) 

 

When an allegation that is not subject to the UCP is included in a UCP complaint, the district shall 

refer the non-UCP allegation to the appropriate staff or agency and shall investigate and, if appropriate, 

resolve the UCP-related allegation(s) through the district's UCP. 

 

The Superintendent or designee shall provide training to district staff to ensure awareness and 

knowledge of current law and related requirements, including the steps and timelines specified in this 

policy and the accompanying administrative regulation. 

 
(cf. 4131 - Staff Development) 

(cf. 4231 - Staff Development) 

(cf. 4331 - Staff Development) 

161 of 569



 

 

 

 

 

 BP 1312.3(d) 

 

 

UNIFORM COMPLAINT PROCEDURES  (continued) 

 

 

The Superintendent or designee shall maintain records of all UCP complaints and the investigations 

of those complaints in accordance with applicable law and district policy. 

 
(cf. 3580 - District Records) 

 

Non-UCP Complaints 
 

The following complaints shall not be subject to the district's UCP but shall be referred to the specified 

agency:  (5 CCR 4611) 

 

1. Any complaint alleging child abuse or neglect shall be referred to the County Department of 

Social Services, the County Protective Services Division, and the appropriate law enforcement 

agency. 

 

2. Any complaint alleging health and safety violations by a child development program shall, for 

licensed facilities, be referred to Department of Social Services and shall, for licensing-exempt 

facilities, be referred to the appropriate Child Development regional administrator. 

 

3. Any complaint alleging employment discrimination shall be sent to the California Department 

of Fair Employment and Housing and the compliance officer shall notify the complainant by 

first class mail of the transfer. 

 

4. Any complaint alleging fraud shall be referred to the California Department of Education. 

 

In addition, the district's Williams Uniform Complaint Procedures, AR 1312.4, shall be used to 

investigate and resolve any complaint related to sufficiency of textbooks or instructional materials, 

emergency or urgent facilities conditions that pose a threat to the health or safety of students or staff, 

or teacher vacancies and misassignments.  (Education Code 35186) 

 
(cf. 1312.4 - Williams Uniform Complaint Procedures) 

 

 

 
Legal Reference: (see next page) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

162 of 569



 

 

 BP 1312.3(e) 

 

UNIFORM COMPLAINT PROCEDURES  (continued) 

 
Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 

200-262.4  Prohibition of discrimination 

222  Reasonable accommodations; lactating students 

8200-8498  Child care and development programs 

8500-8538  Adult basic education 

18100-18203  School libraries 

32289  School safety plan, uniform complaint procedures 

35186  Williams uniform complaint procedures 

48853-48853.5  Foster youth 

48985  Notices in language other than English 

49010-49013  Student fees 

49060-49079  Student records 

49069.5  Rights of parents 

49490-49590  Child nutrition programs 

51210  Courses of study grades 1-6 

51223  Physical education, elementary schools 

51225.1-51225.2  Foster youth and homeless children; course credits; graduation requirements 

51228.1-51228.3  Course periods without educational content 

52060-52077  Local control and accountability plan, especially: 

52075  Complaint for lack of compliance with local control and accountability plan requirements 

52160-52178  Bilingual education programs 

52300-52490  Career technical education 

52500-52616.24  Adult schools 

52800-52870  School-based program coordination 

54400-54425  Compensatory education programs 

54440-54445  Migrant education 

54460-54529  Compensatory education programs 

56000-56867  Special education programs 

59000-59300  Special schools and centers 

64000-64001  Consolidated application process 

GOVERNMENT CODE 

11135  Nondiscrimination in programs or activities funded by state 

12900-12996  Fair Employment and Housing Act 

PENAL CODE 

422.55  Hate crime; definition 

422.6  Interference with constitutional right or privilege 

CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 

3080  Application of section 

4600-4687  Uniform complaint procedures 

4900-4965  Nondiscrimination in elementary and secondary education programs 

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 

1221  Application of laws 

1232g  Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act 

1681-1688  Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972 

6301-6577  Title I basic programs 

6801-6871  Title III language instruction for limited English proficient and immigrant students 

7101-7184  Safe and Drug-Free Schools and Communities Act 

7201-7283g  Title V promoting informed parental choice and innovative programs 

 

Legal Reference continued: (see next page) 

  

 

  

163 of 569



 

 

 BP 1312.3(f) 

 

 

UNIFORM COMPLAINT PROCEDURES  (continued) 

 

 
Legal Reference: (continued) 

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 (continued) 

7301-7372  Title V rural and low-income school programs 

12101-12213  Title II equal opportunity for individuals with disabilities 

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 29 

794  Section 504 of Rehabilitation Act of 1973 

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42 

2000d-2000e-17  Title VI and Title VII Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended 

2000h-2-2000h-6  Title IX of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 

6101-6107  Age Discrimination Act of 1975 

CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 28 

35.107  Nondiscrimination on basis of disability; complaints 

CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 34 

99.1-99.67 Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act 

100.3  Prohibition of discrimination on basis of race, color or national origin 

104.7  Designation of responsible employee for Section 504 

106.8  Designation of responsible employee for Title IX 

106.9  Notification of nondiscrimination on basis of sex 

110.25  Notification of nondiscrimination on the basis of age 

 
Management Resources: 

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION, OFFICE FOR CIVIL RIGHTS PUBLICATIONS 

Dear Colleague Letter:  Title IX Coordinators, April 2015 

Questions and Answers on Title IX and Sexual Violence, April 2014 

Dear Colleague Letter: Bullying of Students with Disabilities, August 2013 

Dear Colleague Letter: Sexual Violence, April 2011 

Dear Colleague Letter: Harassment and Bullying, October 2010 

Revised Sexual Harassment Guidance: Harassment of Students by School Employees, Other Students, or Third 

Parties, January 2001 

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE PUBLICATIONS 

Guidance to Federal Financial Assistance Recipients Regarding Title VI Prohibition Against National Origin 

Discrimination Affecting Limited English Proficient Persons, 2002 

WEB SITES 

CSBA:  http://www.csba.org 

California Department of Education:  http://www.cde.ca.gov 

Family Policy Compliance Office: http://familypolicy.ed.gov 

U.S. Department of Education, Office for Civil Rights:  http://www.ed.gov/ocr 

U.S. Department of Justice: http://www.justice.gov 

 

 

 

Policy SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 

adopted:  April 17, 2013 Soquel, California 

revised:  November 12, 2014 

revised:  January 21, 2015 

revised:  June 15, 2016 

revised:  June 28, 2017 

164 of 569



Facility Services Update Grounds 062817 

AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.1 

SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT 
 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Staff Report:  Facility Services Update - Groundskeeping Department 
 
MEETING DATE: June 28, 2017 
 
FROM: Patrick Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH: Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Trevor Miller, Director of Facility Services will present a brief report on the operations of the 
groundskeeping department. 
 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics. 
 
Goal #5: SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnerships with its diverse community. 
 
 

165 of 569



16
6 

of
 5

69



16
7 

of
 5

69



16
8 

of
 5

69



16
9 

of
 5

69



Bond Update Pools HH Field 062817 
AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.2 

SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT 
 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Staff Report:  Bond Update – Soquel and Harbor High School Pool 

Projects, Harbor High School Field 
 
MEETING DATE: June 28, 2017 
 
FROM: Patrick Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH: Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Stu Isaac from the Isaac Group will provide a report on both the Harbor and Soquel 
pools.  Trevor Miller, Director of Facility Services will present information regarding the Harbor 
Field project.  
 
*** As of the printing of the Board book, we have not received a report from the Isaac 
Group.  If the document is received prior to the Board report, we will distribute it. 
 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics. 
 
Goal #5: SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnerships with its diverse community. 
 

170 of 569



8
.3

3
%

8.75%

May 9, 2017
Project No: 1702500

Athletic Facilities - Overall Schematic Design
Harbor High School

Santa Cruz, CA

NORTH
0 20' 40' 80' 120'

J.V. SOFTBALL FIELD
(REFER TO SOFTBALL

FIELD PLAN)

PATHWAY ACCESS TO
SOFTBALL FIELDS

VARSITY SOFTBALL
FIELD (REFER TO

SOFTBALL FIELD PLAN)

MULTI-USE FIELD

±45 YD. X 113 YD.
(REFER TO MULTI-USE

FIELD PLAN)

PRACTICE

SOFTBALL/BASEBALL FIELD
(REFER TO SOFTBALL FIELD

PLAN)

ACCESS ROAD TO
TRACK & FIELD

CONCESSION / RESTROOM
BUILDING (20' X 40')

EXISTING (E) BASEBALL
FIELD

ACCESS ROAD FROM
LA FONDA AVE TO

TRACK STADIUM

MAINTENANCE &
PEDESTRIAN ACCESS

GATES, TYP.

MAINTENANCE &
PEDESTRIAN ACCESS

GATES, TYP.

PROPOSED ADA RAMP
ACCESS TO FIELDS

PROPOSED STAIR
ACCESS TO FIELDS

(E) PATHWAY NOT IN
COMPLIANCE WITH ADA
CODE (REFER TO SLOPES
SHOWN)

PROPOSED SPORTS
FIELD LIGHTING, TYP.

ELEVATED ASPHALT
TRACK EVENT AREA (REFER
TO VOLLEYBALL &
ELEVATED TRACK EVENT
PLAN)

SYNTHETIC TURF
STADIUM FIELD (REFER TO
ATHLETIC STADIUM PLAN)

PROPOSED VOLLEYBALL
AREA (REFER TO
VOLLEYBALL &
ELEVATED TRACK EVENT
PLAN)

(E) BLEACHERS TO
REMAIN

PERIMETER ASPHALT
ACCESS WALKWAY

PROPOSED 10 ROW
ADA BLEACHERS

PROPOSED 5 ROW
ADA BLEACHERS

SITE ACCESS DRIVEWAY
CONNECTION TO LA

FONDA AVE

PROPOSED BLEACHER

EXTENSION (±500
ADDITIONAL SEATS)

PROPOSED BLEACHER
EXTENSION (±500
ADDITIONAL SEATS)

8-LANE ALL-WEATHER
TRACK (REFER TO
ATHLETIC STADIUM PLAN)

17
1 

of
 5

69



8.33%

May 9, 2017
Project No: 1702500

Softball / Multi-Use Fields -  Schematic Design
Harbor High School

Santa Cruz, CA

NORTH
0 10' 20' 40' 60'

CONCRETE
RETAINING WALL

ASPHALT PAVING
STORAGE AREA

FOUL POLE, TYP.

(E) OUTFIELD FENCE
TO BE PROTECTED

REPLACED OUTFIELD
NATURAL GRASS

SINGLE BULLPEN

PATHWAY ACCESS
TO SOFTBALL FIELDS,

TYP.

REPLACED INFIELD
FINES

REPLACED J.V.
DUGOUTS, TYP.

REPLACED J.V.
SOFTBALL BACKSTOP

5 ROW ADA
BLEACHERS, TYP.

SOFTBALL TRAINING

/ WARM UP AREA

5 ROW ADA
BLEACHERS, TYP.

CONCRETE PAVING
SPECTATOR AREA,

TYP.

PERMANENT
OUTFIELD FENCING

(200'), TYP.

CONCESSION /
RESTROOM BUILDING

DOUBLE SWING
GATE ACCESS TO
SOFTBALL FIELDS

PERIMETER FENCE,
TYP.

PRACTICE

SOFTBALL/BASEBALL
INFIELD (SYNTHETIC
TURF)

MULTI-USE FIELD
(SYNTHETIC TURF)

(E) BASEBALL
OUTFIELD FENCING

TEMPORARY
OUTFIELD FENCE
SECTION

DUGOUT, TYP.

SOFTBALL
BACKSTOP, TYP.

SOFTBALL INFIELD
FINES

DUGOUT WITH
STORAGE AREA,
TYP.

DOUBLE BULLPEN

FOUL POLE, TYP.

PEDESTRIAN SWING
GATE FIELD ACCESS,
TYP.

SOFTBALL
SCOREBOARD

SOFTBALL BATTING
CAGE

BASEBALL
SCOREBOARD

LA FONDA AVE.

IMPROVED ACCESS
PATH (±20%)

17
2 

of
 5

69



May 9, 2017
Project No: 1702500

Athletic Stadium - Schematic Design
Harbor High School

Santa Cruz, CA

NORTH
0 10' 20' 40' 60'

PROPOSED ADA RAMP
ACCESS TO FIELDS, TYP.

CONCRETE CURB WITH
GUARDRAIL, TYP.

STAIR HANDRAIL, TYP.

STAIR ACCESS TO
TRACK & FIELD, TYP.

SLOPED PLANTING AREA,
TYP.

TRACK PERIMETER 42"
TALL FENCE, TYP.

FOOTBALL GOAL POST,
TYP.

ENDZONE LETTERING IN
SYNTHETIC TURF, TYP.

JUMP EVENT SAND
PITS, TYP.

MAINTENANCE &
PEDESTRIAN ACCESS

GATES, TYP.

8' TALL WROUGHT
IRON PERIMETER
FENCE, TYP.

PERIMETER ASPHALT
ACCESS WALKWAY

DISCUS THROW
CIRCLE

TEAM AND COACH
AREA

CENTER FIELD LOGO
IN SYNTHETIC TURF

PROPOSED DRAINAGE
ZONE

ALL-WEATHER
TRACK SURFACING
D-ZONE

ADA ACCESS PATH FROM
EXISTING BLEACHERS

ACCESS ROAD TO
TRACK & FIELD

MAINTENANCE &
PEDESTRIAN ACCESS

GATES, TYP.

TRACK TRENCH DRAIN,
TYP.

ALL-WEATHER TRACK
SURFACING D-ZONE
WITH JUMP EVENTS

FOOTBALL STRIPING,
TYP.

SOCCER FIELD STRIPING,
TYP.

PROPOSED SPORTS
FIELD LIGHTING, TYP.

(E) STADIUM BLEACHERS

PROPOSED BLEACHER

EXTENSION (±500
ADDITIONAL SEATS)

HIGH JUMP EVENT

DISCUS CAGE

RAMP AND STAIR
LANDING AREA, TYP.

8-LANE ALL-WEATHER
TRACK, TYP.

17
3 

of
 5

69



May 9, 2017
Project No: 1702500

Volleyball & Elevated Track Events - Schematic Design
Harbor High School

Santa Cruz, CA

NORTH
0 5' 10' 20' 30'

CONCRETE 18" TALL
SEAT WALL

ENTRY PLAZA &
TICKETING LOCATION

8' TALL WROUGHT IRON
ORNAMENTAL FENCE,

TYP.

12' WIDE ASPHALT
ACCESS WALK

PLANTER AREA, TYP.

STAIR TRACK ACCESS

SHOT PUT THROW
AREA

TRENCH DRAIN AT
ELEVATED TRACK EVENT

PLAZA, TYP.

SHOT PUT THROW
CIRCLE

POLE VAULT RUNWAY
(ALL-WEATHER TRACK

SURFACING)

4' WIDE SINGLE SWING
GATE, TYP.

PATHWAY CONNECTION
TO EXISTING CAMPUS
ACCESS

STORAGE AREA

SPECTATOR SHADE -
SHADE STRUCTURE
OPTION

SPECTATOR SHADE -
TREE OPTION

DRINKING FOUNTAIN

VOLLEYBALL SAND
WARM UP AREA

VOLLEYBALL SAND
AREA, TYP.

PROTECTIVE RAILING,
TYP.

42" TALL PROTECTIVE
FENCE AT SHOT PUT AREA

STAIR TRACK ACCESS

ACCESSIBLE TRACK
ACCESS ROUTE

POLE VAULT BOX

12' WIDE DOUBLE
SWING GATE

4' WIDE SINGLE SWING
GATE, TYP.

OFFICIAL STAND

5 ROW ADA BLEACHERS,
TYP.

STAIR ACCESS TO
TRACK EVENTS

PARK BENCHES, TYP.

4' WIDE SINGLE SWING
GATE, TYP.

SPECTATOR SHADE -
SHADE STRUCTURE
OPTION

PERIMETER FENCE
OPENING FOR COURT
ACCESS, TYP.

STAIR HANDRAIL, TYP.

17
4 

of
 5

69



Belli Architects agrmt amndmt pools HH SHS 

AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.3 

SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT 
 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Belli Architectural Group - Amendment Agreement for Soquel & Harbor 

HS Pools 
 
MEETING DATE: June 28, 2017 
 
FROM: Patrick Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH: Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
As of the printing of the Board book, we have not received a report from the Isaac Group.  If the 
document is received prior to the Board meeting the Superintendent will make a 
recommendation regarding the dimensions of the pools for Harbor and Soquel.   
 
BACKGROUND: 
At the May 24th  Board meeting, the Board of Trustees approved an amendment to Belli 
Architecture’s Agreement to construct a pool at both Harbor and Soquel High Schools.  At the 
time of approval, the dimensions of the pools were left blank in the contract.  The Board 
subsequently signed a contract with the Isaac Group, a third party independent pool consultant.  
Stu Isaac of the Isaac Group has conducted both a needs and opportunity assessment for the 
District regarding what dimension pool might best benefit our schools, as well as our community 
at large.  Stu Isaac will present his findings to the Board for their consideration at the June 
28 meeting. 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics. 
 
Goal #5: SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnerships with its diverse 

community. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 
The cost of the projects will be determined once the report is received from the Isaac Group and 
a decision is made on the size of the pools. 

175 of 569



SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 

AGENDA ITEM: Approval of Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) 
 

MEETING DATE: June 28, 2017 
 

FROM: Frank Wells, Assistant Superintendent of Educational Services 
 

THROUGH: Kris Munro, Superintendent 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) as submitted. 

 
BACKGROUND: 
The Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) provides details regarding Local 
Educational Agencies’ (LEAs’) actions and expenditures to support pupil outcomes and 
overall performance pursuant to Education Code sections 52060, 52066, 47605, 
47605.5, and 47606.5. 

Pursuant to Education Code section 52060, the LCAP must describe, for the school 
district and each school within the district, goals and specific actions to achieve those 
goals for all pupils and each subgroup of pupils identified in Education Code section 
52052 (English Learners, Foster Youth, Low-Income), including pupils with disabilities, 
for each of the state priorities and any locally identified priorities. 

A Public Hearing on the 2017-18 LCAP was held on June 14, 2017 to allow public input 
prior to being submitted for adoption.  After the Public Hearing, minor revisions were 
made to the LCAP narrative based on feedback from the County Office of Education.  No 
changes were made to the budget.  After Board adoption, the LCAP will be submitted to 
the County Office of Education for final approval. 

This work is in support of the following Goals and their corresponding metrics: 

1. All SCCS students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and 
career opportunities. 

2. SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all 
students. 

3. We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic 
groups within the SCCS student community. 

4. We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting 
effective teaching. 

5. SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
6. SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnerships with its diverse 

community. 
 

FISCAL IMPACT: Supplemental Funds $4,052,654 
Elementary - $1,581,937 
Secondary - $2,470,717 

 
 

 
AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.4 176 of 569



Page 1 of 142

LCAP Year 2017–18 2018–19 2019–20

Local Control 
Accountability Plan 
and Annual Update 
(LCAP) Template

Addendum: General instructions & regulatory requirements. 

Appendix A: Priorities 5 and 6 Rate Calculations

Appendix B: Guiding Questions: Use as prompts (not limits)

LCFF Evaluation Rubrics: Essential data to support completion of this 
LCAP. Please analyze the LEA’s full data set; specific links to the 
rubrics are also provided within the template.

LEA Name Santa Cruz City Schools

----------Contact Name and
Title

Frank Wells
Assistant Superintendent of 
Educational Services

Email and 
Phone

fwells@sccs.net
(831) 429-3410 ext 248

2017-20 Plan Summary
THE STORY
Briefly describe the students and community and how the LEA serves them.

Santa Cruz City Schools is committed to ensuring demographics do not determine student outcomes in our school 
district.  We work to create schools where the adults know the students well, where we can identify each student's needs 
for growth and support each student academically and personally.  We want to engage the hearts and minds of every 
student, every day.

We are fortunate to have tremendous support from our community.  Voters in our District have provided four parcel taxes 
and two school bonds to ensure our students have rich educational programs and updated, repaired facilities to support 
a twenty-first century education.  These parcel taxes provide all students with counseling services, library services, 
reduced class sizes, music, art, life lab, after school programs including athletics, career technical education and more.

During the 2016-17 school year, 6,788 students in kindergarten through 12th grades attended 13 schools in Santa Cruz 
City Schools District. Of those students, 39 (.6%) were Foster Youth (FY), 974 (14%) were English Learners (EL), and 
2,620 (38.5%) were Low Income (LI),  857 (13%) were Special Education (SpEd) students, and 828 (12%) were 
Reclassification Fluent English Proficient (RFEP) students, while not specified as targeted subgroups for funding 
purposes, are nevertheless important subgroups that are taken into account. As such, they are included in the "all 
students" category in the LCAP language.

This year the district decided to align the LCAP Goals with the Board goals, reducing LCAP goals from 14 to 6. This 
adjustment better established district wide coherence with goals, actions, and services for each of the state's 8 priority 
areas. The LCAP supplemental funds are targeted to support the unique needs of English Language Learners, Socially 
Economically Disadvantaged students, and Foster Youth.

The six strategic District goals are:
Goal #1:  All Santa Cruz City Schools students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and 
career opportunities.

Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the development of cognitive skills and 
the social emotional well-being of all students.

Goal #3:  We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic groups within the SCCS 
student community.

177 of 569

https://www.caschooldashboard.org/#/Details/44698150000000/1/EquityReport


Page 2 of 142

Goal #4:  We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting effective teaching.

Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management.

Goal #6:  SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnerships with its diverse community.

        

LCAP HIGHLIGHTS 
Identify and briefly summarize the key features of this year’s LCAP.

Through analysis of our state and local data,  input from staff and stakeholders, and research on effective practices, our 
LCAP was developed to include the following programs and services:

Our primary focus is creating multi-tiered systems of support using the Response to Intervention framework to ensure 
the success of all students. RtI has been in place in our elementary and middle schools since the 2011 school year for 
both academics and social emotional supports, providing resources, professional development and coaching at the core, 
strategic and intensive levels. RtI expanded to our high schools in 2015.  Academically, students are assessed using 
multiple measures and are monitored for progress during the year to provide strategic support (e.g., before/after school 
extended learning or tutoring) or more intensive interventions (e.g., replacement for core programs, credit recovery) as 
required. Social emotional and behavioral supports are also provided at every school site.

Every grade span is implementing tiered academic and social emotional supports to remove obstacles to achievement.  
In our elementary schools, these supports include the Walk to Read Program and math interventions, supported by RtI 
Coordinators, Instructional Technicians and Learning Assistants.  All comprehensive elementary schools are also 
implementing Positive Behavior Interventions and Supports (PBIS) supported by counselors and a part time PBIS coach. 
In middle school, RtI Coordinators have had a concentrated focus on mathematics interventions and supports during the 
school day.  They have also supported English Language Arts interventions.  LCAP resources also support middle 
school counseling and after school programs staffed with coordinators and instructional technicians.  In 2017-18, the 
middle schools will be working to implement PBIS to support positive classroom climates and to overtly teach behavioral 
expectations to support student success.  Our high school RtI Coordinators are building tiers of support with a 
concentrated focus on mathematics in response to parent and student feedback. The high schools are also 
implementing reading intervention courses for students in need of literacy supports.  At the secondary level, social 
workers and school counselors are supporting removing obstacles to attendance and school success.  The social 
workers' targeted Tier 3 supports for students and families are helping students to attend school and access their 
education. Summer and after school programs target filling academic gaps for students K-12.  These programs focus on 
building math and English skills and provide opportunities for high school credit recovery.  This year, we will be 
implementing a new local assessment system to help monitor the impact of interventions programs.

Instructional coaching is another core component of our LCAP.  Coaches support teachers with the implementation the 
Common Core State Standards, NGSS and the new ELD framework.  Our math and science content area coaches are 
working in close collaboration with our English Learner Resource Teachers, special education coach, and technology 
coach to ensure that all students can successfully access the core curriculum.

Further, we are refining our services for our English Learners.  As we have seen a 139% increase in newcomer students 
this year, we have needed to look at additional support services at each grade span.  Using both Supplemental dollars 
and Title I, we are increasing programs to meet the unique needs of our newcomer and refugee populations.  Also 
supporting our newcomers and monolingual Spanish speaking families are school community coordinators at schools 
with our highest concentrations of English Learners.

We will continue to support Advancement Via Individual Determination (AVID) programs for our traditionally under 
served students in middle and high school.  The AVID program supports students with the "hidden curriculum" of schools 
and with meeting the requirements to prepare for college and university admittance.

178 of 569



Page 3 of 142

        

REVIEW OF PERFORMANCE 

Based on a review of performance on the state indicators and local performance indicators included in the LCFF 
Evaluation Rubrics, progress toward LCAP goals, local self-assessment tools, stakeholder input, or other information, 
what progress is the LEA most proud of and how does the LEA plan to maintain or build upon that success?  This may 
include identifying any specific examples of how past increases or improvements in services for low-income students, 
English learners, and foster youth have led to improved performance for these students.

GREATEST 
PROGRESS

Some of our progress is at our elementary schools. The Walk-to-Read model has made a positive impact 
on student achievement in reading. Some sample data from 2015-16 that show improvement in reading:  
Over 80% of our TK/K students were proficient in letter sounds; 90% of our kindergarten students were 
proficient in CVC words; 67% of our 2nd-5th graders were proficient in reading (SRI). This year, our 
incremental data on the Houghton-Mifflin-Harcourt Reading inventory (formerly SRI) showed considerable 
student growth for the current year. Our elementary math data from 2015-16 showed overall increases. 
64% of our 3rd-5th graders were proficient in math (SMI). We are beginning to explore options for math 
interventions for our elementary students who need Tier 2 support.

Our middle schools have worked very hard to improve their students’ language arts achievement. They 
have implemented Tier 2 and Tier 3 interventions in reading to ensure that students have access and are 
successful in the core with instructional support. Nearly 60% of our 7th-8th graders are proficient in School 
wide writing and 68% of our 6th-8th graders proficient in reading (SRI). Our high school students do well 
overall, and many are pursuing a rigorous academic program. One measure from 2015-16 shows the 
percentage of high school students who are taking and passing AP courses:  592 AP students took 1,042 
AP exams with 72% overall earning a 3+.  Our graduation rates are also increasing:  90% of our students 
graduated from high school in 2015-16, which is above the county/state averages. Our high schools are 
also developing a new Response to Intervention model called Math Plus, which helps address the needs of 
students in Integrated Math 1 this year.  Both through improvements in the core program and a Tier 2 
intervention system, 76% of 9th graders passed Algebra the first time up from only 60% in 2011-12.

Referring to the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, identify any state indicator or local performance indicator for which overall 
performance was in the “Red” or “Orange” performance category or where the LEA received a “Not Met” or “Not Met for 
Two or More Years” rating. Additionally, identify any areas that the LEA has determined need significant improvement 
based on review of local performance indicators or other local indicators. What steps is the LEA planning to take to 
address these areas with the greatest need for improvement?

GREATEST 
NEEDS

Based on CAASPP, our English Language Learners (ELs) are the students in our system who need the 
most support, followed by Students With Disabilities (SWD), Hispanic/Latinos students and Students who 
are Economically Disadvantaged (LI). English Language Learners and Students with Disabilities are the 
student groups for which performance levels were below the “all student” performance in both English 
Language Arts and mathematics. For instance, while 64% of our 5th graders, 65% of our 8th graders and 
54% of our 11th graders are “met” or “advanced” overall in English Language Arts, only 7% of our 5th grade 
EL's, 3% of our 8th grade ELs and 0% of our 11th grade ELs are “met” or “advanced” on the SBAC in ELA. 
Math is similar.  While 48% of our 5th graders, 51% of our 8th graders and 36% of our 11th graders are 
“met” or “advanced” overall in mathematics, only 7% of our 5th grade ELs, 7% of our 8th grade ELs and 6% 
of our 11th grade ELs are “met” or “advanced” on the SBAC in Math. Similarly, our SWD are performing far 
under the overall average.  In 5th grade, 30% of Students with Disabilities are proficient in ELA and 25% 
are proficient in math.  In 8th grade, 24% of SWD are proficient in ELA and 20% are proficient in math. In 
11th grade, 22% of SWD are proficient in ELA and only 8% are proficient in math.

Some of our responses to the current data include the following:
179 of 569



Page 4 of 142

*   Providing RtI Coordinators to support tiers of intervention and frequent progress monitoring of students 
and intervention programs
*   Professional development with ongoing coaching to support scaffolding for ELs and SWDs
*   On-going professional development in common core math implementation with emphasis on problem-
based learning and mathematical practices
*   Extended learning offerings (before, during and after school)
*   Increased progress monitoring with a focus on ELs and SWDs toward graduation credits
*   Providing social workers in our secondary district to support removing barriers to accessing the 
classroom
*   Providing a PBIS coach in our elementary schools to support removing barriers to accessing the 
classroom
*   Providing elementary and secondary counselors and interns to support removing barriers to accessing 
the classroom
*   Bolstering both academic and social emotional support services to newcomer ELs in our elementary and 
secondary schools
*   Providing instructional coaches to support teachers in meeting the needs of all learners, particularly their 
EL, SWD and LI youth
*   Providing credit recovery options through Cyber High and our Ark Independent Studies Program
*   Pilot implementation of new ELA/ELD curriculum in grades K-5
*   Improving our Language Review Team and Reclassification Processes

180 of 569



Page 5 of 142

Referring to the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, identify any state indicator for which performance for any student group was 
two or more performance levels below the “all student” performance. What steps is the LEA planning to take to address 
these performance gaps?

PERFORMANCE 
GAPS

SBAC/CAASPP Met standards:

5th grade ELs  ELA       40%                   5th grade SWD ELA     26%                   5th grade LI ELA        
38%            5th grade district ELA      64%

5th grade ELs math       28%                   5th grade SWD math     26%                  5th grade LI math        
18%          5th grade math district      48%

8th grade ELs  ELA       41%                   8th grade SWD ELA      46%                  8th grade LI ELA          
46%           8th grade district ELA     65%

8th grade EL math         35%                   8th grade SWD math     20%                  8th grade LI math         
32%           8th grade average           51%

11th grade ELs ELA      41%                   11th grade SWD ELA     22%                 11th grade LI ELA        
41%           11th grade avg    ELA      60%

11th grade ELs math     6%                     11th grade SWD math    8%                   11th grade LI math       
22%           11th grade district math   36%

The results are clear. Our Low Income (LI), English Language Learners (ELL), Foster Youth (FY), 
and Students With Disabilities (SWD) are the students in our system who continue to need the most 
support. English Language Learners and Students with Disabilities are the student groups for which 
performance levels were below the “all student” performance in both English Language Arts and 
mathematics. For instance, ELs' 5th grade average English Language Arts score is 40% Met or 
Exceeded standard as compared to 64% All Students. The 8th grade average English Language 
Arts score is 41% Met or Exceeded standard as compared to 65% All, and the average score for 
11th grade ELs is 41% as compared to 60% All.  Math is similar. For instance, 5th grade average 
math score for ELs is 28% Met or Exceeded standards as compared to the district average of 48%, 
the 8th grade average math score for ELs is 35% as compared to 51% district average.  The 11th 
grade ELs math students average score is 6% as compared to the district average 36%. Our 
Students With Disabilities is another area of concern. Our 5th grade average English Language Arts 
score is 26% as compared to the district average of 64%. The 8th grade Special Education average 
English Language Arts score is 46% as compared to the district average of 65%, and the average 
score for 11th grade SWD is 22% compared to the district average of 60%. Math for SWD is similar. 
The 5th grade average math score for students with disabilities is 26% as compared to 48% district 
average. The 8th grade SWD average math score is 20% as compared to the district average of 
51%. The 11th grade SWD average score is 8% as compared to the district average of 36%.  The 
pattern for low income students is similar.

INCREASED OR IMPROVED SERVICES
If not previously addressed, identify the two to three most significant ways that the LEA will increase or improve services 
for low-income students, English learners, and foster youth.
This year our increased and/or improved services include:
1) Expanded training with ongoing coaching on scaffolding for English Learners and struggling students.
2)     We have added funding to provide additional Foster Youth Services and collaboration with the County Office of Education.
3)     We are providing additional resources to support Newcomer students through supplemental dollars, Title I and grant funding 
from the City of Santa Cruz.
4)     We are continuing to refine our RtI framework, improving and expanding screening tools, adding a new progress monitoring 
assessment (MAP) and tiers of intervention and support targeting supports for our struggling learners.
5)     We have developed and will begin implementing a comprehensive Curriculum Master Plan and English Learner Road Map that 
outlines plans for professional learning, assessment and intervention for the next five years.

        

181 of 569



Page 6 of 142

BUDGET SUMMARY
Complete the table below. LEAs may include additional information or more detail, including graphics.

DESCRIPTION AMOUNT

Total General Fund Budget Expenditures for LCAP Year $77,620,389.00

----------Total Funds Budgeted for Planned Actions/Services to 
Meet the Goals in the LCAP for LCAP Year

$6,332,036.00

The LCAP is intended to be a comprehensive planning tool but may not describe all General Fund Budget Expenditures.  
Briefly describe any of the General Fund Budget Expenditures specified above for the LCAP year not included in the 
LCAP.

The following revenues and expenditures are not accounted for in our LCAP:

Salary and Benefits
Routine Restricted Maintenance
Building Fund
Food Services
Lease Revenue
Parcel Taxes
Bond
        

$59,968,233.00 Total Projected LCFF Revenues for LCAP Year

182 of 569



Page 7 of 142

Annual Update LCAP Year Reviewed:   2016-17

Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed.

Goal
1

We will recruit and retain fully credentialed teachers in all content areas.       

----------State and/or Local Priorities Addressed by this goal: STATE       1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
COE       9 10
LOCAL   District Goal #4

ANNUAL MEASURABLE OUTCOMES

EXPECTED ACTUAL

100% of certificated employees will be fully credentialied       99.14% of certificated employees were fully credentialed      

ACTIONS / SERVICES

Duplicate the Actions/Services from the prior year LCAP and complete a copy of the following table for each. Duplicate the table as needed.

startcollapse

Action    1
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Hire only fully credentialed teachers.  Provide support for new 
teachers to clear their credential and for interns to earn their 
preliminary credential.

       

ACTUAL
All but one teacher was fully credentialed (99.14%).  Provided 
support for new teachers to clear their credential and for 
interns to earn their preliminary credential.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
Hire only Highly Qualified Teachers 0001-0999: Unrestricted: Locally 
Defined Base $271,000 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
We hired all, but one, highly qualified teachers. 0001-0999: Unrestricted: 
Locally Defined California Partnership Academies $228,741

New Teacher Project coaching for beginning teachers 5800: 
Professional/Consulting Services And Operating Expenditures Title II 
$80,000  

Hired New Teacher Project coaching for beginning teachers  5800: 
Professional/Consulting Services And Operating Expenditures Title II 
133,742

183 of 569



Page 8 of 142

Action    2
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Implement Credit Recovery program for students who are 
credit deficient to help them graduate and/or meet A-G 
requirement       

ACTUAL
Implemented Credit Recovery program for students who are 
credit deficient to help them graduate and/or meet A-G 
requirement

Expenditures
BUDGETED
.6 FTE Credit  Recovery @ Ark 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Other $49,292 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
.6 FTE Credit Recovery @ Ark 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Supplemental 51,690

.6 FTE Credit Recovery @ Ark 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS Supplemental 
$11,935 

.6 FTE Credit Recovery @ Ark 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS Supplemental 
11,606

Credit Recovery @ Ark 4300 MATERIALS & SUPPLIES Supplemental 
$4,100 

Credit Recovery @ Ark 4300 MATERIALS & SUPPLIES Supplemental 
5,664

Credit Recovery contract with Cyber High 5800 OTHER SVCS & OPER 
EXPENDITURES Supplemental $11,070 

Credit Recovery contract with Cyber High 5800 OTHER SVCS & OPER 
EXPENDITURES Supplemental 11,700

Provide sufficient resources to CTE 4200 BOOKS OTHER THAN 
TEXTBOOKS Carl D. Perkins Career and Technical Education $63,890 

Provide sufficient resources to CTE (Also paid from Rs 6300) 4200 BOOKS 
OTHER THAN TEXTBOOKS Carl D. Perkins Career and Technical 
Education 51,061

Stipends and hourly pay for CTE teachers to lead student groups and 
coordinate with advisory committees. 1100 CERT TEACHERS' SALARIES-
REG. Carl D. Perkins Career and Technical Education $9,645 

Stipends and hourly pay for CTE teachers to lead student groups and 
coordinate with advisory committees. Also paid from Rs 6387 1100 CERT 
TEACHERS' SALARIES-REG. Carl D. Perkins Career and Technical 
Education 1,693

Stipends and hourly pay for CTE teachers to lead student groups and 
coordinate with advisory committees 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS Carl D. 
Perkins Career and Technical Education $2,658 

Stipends and hourly pay for CTE teachers to lead student groups and 
coordinate with advisory committees. 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS Carl D. 
Perkins Career and Technical Education 344

Action    3
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Early College Outreach Parent Program       

ACTUAL
Engaged in Early College Outreach Parent Program  

Expenditures
BUDGETED
Migrant Services and operating expenditures 5800 OTHER SVCS & OPER 
EXPENDITURES Title III $5,000 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
Migrant Education  5800 OTHER SVCS & OPER EXPENDITURES Title III 
900

184 of 569



Page 9 of 142

ANALYSIS
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed.

Use actual annual measurable outcome data, including performance data from the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable.

Describe the overall implementation of the 
actions/services to achieve the articulated goal.

Actions and services were implemented at some level toward the goal of recruiting and retaining fully 
credentialed teachers in all content areas. Our human resource department engaged in many recruitment 
activities, hiring, all but one, highly qualified teachers. We provided support for a new teachers to clear their 
credential through the new teacher project.

We provided credit recovery opportunities for high school students in need of earning additional credits and 
assisted students in meeting A-G requirements. The migrant Early College Outreach Parent Program was 
not available to do a parent education series for us.

--------Describe the overall effectiveness of the actions/services 
to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the LEA.

All, but two, teachers (99.14%) were appropriately assigned and fully credentialed/highly qualified in all 
schools in the subject areas, and for pupils they were teaching, providing pupils on a regular basis with 
highly qualified teachers. As noted earlier, one math teacher was not fully credentialed. As a result, we did 
not meet our goal of having 100% of our teachers fully credentialed. Moving forward, however, the district 
is committed to hiring only fully credentialed teachers.        

--------Explain material differences between Budgeted 
Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures.

We spent significantly more on new teacher support this year than originally budgeted.  We had more new 
teachers in 2016-17 than we had planned.   The migrant Early College Outreach Parent Program was not 
available to do a parent education series for us.  We redirected the resource to provide a Migrant kinder 
readiness program this summer.

--------Describe any changes made to this goal, expected 
outcomes, metrics, or actions and services to achieve this 
goal as a result of this analysis and analysis of the LCFF 
Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable. Identify where those 
changes can be found in the LCAP.

Although we did not achieve 100% of this goal for 2015-16, we are heading into the 2017-18 year staffed 
with fully credentialed teachers as of June 2017.

The Human Resource department will continue to recruit teachers in hard to fill positions. Currently, these 
positions include special education, science, and math at the secondary level. Last year, we were able to 
hire all but two fully credential teachers; the two teachers not fully qualified were in math. With new 
language in our bargaining unit agreement supporting earlier notification of retirements, HR has been able 
to start recruiting earlier for key positions. This effort resulted in early new hires for this coming school year, 
all of which are fully qualified.

The human resource department will continue to participate in recruitment fairs at colleges and universities 
throughout the West Coast and advertise positions on the California Edjoin website where interested 
teachers can apply for available vacancies.  They are also collaborating with both CSUMB and UCSC to 
participate in credential program panels and other programs to recruit teachers to the District. As we have 
made tremendous growth in this area over recent years, our recruiting plans have evolved and are being 
refined.  It is no longer going to be a focus for the LCAP.

185 of 569



Page 10 of 142

186 of 569



Page 11 of 142

Annual Update LCAP Year Reviewed:   2016-17

Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed.

Goal
2

100% of classified staff will meet all requirements for their position.       

----------State and/or Local Priorities Addressed by this goal: STATE       1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
COE       9 10
LOCAL   District Goal #4

ANNUAL MEASURABLE OUTCOMES

EXPECTED ACTUAL

100% of classified instructional employees will meet the requirements 
for their position.      

100% of classified instructional employees met the requirements for their position.      

ACTIONS / SERVICES

Duplicate the Actions/Services from the prior year LCAP and complete a copy of the following table for each. Duplicate the table as needed.

startcollapse

Action    1
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Hire only fully certified classified instructional staff       

ACTUAL
Hired only fully certified classified instructional staff

Expenditures
BUDGETED
Hire only fully certified classified instructional staff.  5800 OTHER SVCS & 
OPER EXPENDITURES Supplemental $24,500 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
Hired only fully certified classified instructional staff.  5800 OTHER SVCS & 
OPER EXPENDITURES Supplemental $24,500

Action    2
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Primary Intervention Program (PIP) aides to serve foster 
and/or homeless primary students and help them adjust to 
school.        

ACTUAL
Primary Intervention Program (PIP) aides served foster 
and/or homeless primary students and helped them adjust to 
school. 

187 of 569



Page 12 of 142

Expenditures
BUDGETED
1.5 FTE PIP 2000 >CLASS PERSONNEL SALARIES Supplemental $58,689 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
1.5 FTE PIP 2000 >CLASS PERSONNEL SALARIES Supplemental 58,523

Action    3
Actions/Services

PLANNED
2.2 FTE Elementary Counselors (.2 at Monarch) to help 
students develop social emotional skills to succeed in schools.       

ACTUAL
2.2 FTE Elementary Counselors  (.2 at Monarch) helped 
students develop social emotional skills to succeed in 
schools.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries. 1100 CERT TEACHERS' 
SALARIES-REG. Supplemental $145,067 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
1000-1999 1100 CERT TEACHERS' SALARIES-REG. Title I 182,830

Action    4
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Hire Social Workers       

ACTUAL
Hired Social Workers

Expenditures
BUDGETED
2.0 FTE Social Workers 2200 CLASS PUPIL SUPPORT SALARIES 
Supplemental $141,000 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
2.0 FTE Social Workers 2200 CLASS PUPIL SUPPORT SALARIES 
Supplemental 146,448

2.0 FTE Social Workers 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS Supplemental 
$50,790 

2.0 FTE Social Workers 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS Supplemental 
47,936

Student Services Supplies 4300 MATERIALS & SUPPLIES Supplemental 
$1,000 

Student Services Supplies 4300 MATERIALS & SUPPLIES Supplemental 
103

Student Services Mileage 5200 MILEAGE, TRAVEL & CONFERENCES 
Supplemental $1,000 

Student Services Mileage 5200 MILEAGE, TRAVEL & CONFERENCES 
Supplemental 0

Action    5
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Hire a .8 FTE PBIS Coach to support the implementation of 
Positive Behavior Intervention and Support progress at all four 
elementary schools.       

ACTUAL
Hired a .4 FTE PBIS Coach to support the implementation of 
Positive Behavior Intervention and Support progress at all 
four elementary schools.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
.4 FTE PBIS Coach 1100 CERT TEACHERS' SALARIES-REG. 
Supplemental $60,082 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
.4 FTE PBIS Coach 1100 CERT TEACHERS' SALARIES-REG. 
Supplemental 22,650

.8 FTE PBIS Coach 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS Supplemental $20,341 .4 FTE PBIS Coach 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS Supplemental 3,602

Action    6
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Hire a .6 FTE Counselor (.2 at each of the three 
comprehensive high schools)       

ACTUAL
Hired a .6 FTE Counselor (.2 at each of the three 
comprehensive high schools)

188 of 569



Page 13 of 142

Expenditures
BUDGETED
.6 FTE Counselor (.2 at each of the three comprehensive high schools) 1100 
CERT TEACHERS' SALARIES-REG. Supplemental $45,183 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
.6 FTE Counselor (.2 at each of the three comprehensive high schools) 
1100 CERT TEACHERS' SALARIES-REG. Supplemental 41,276

Action    7
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Hire a .6 FTE Counselor (.2 at each of the three 
comprehensive high schools)       

ACTUAL
Hire a .6 FTE Counselor (.2 at each of the three 
comprehensive high schools)

Expenditures
BUDGETED
.6 FTE Counselor (.2 at each of the three comprehensive high schools) 3000 
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS Supplemental $13,338 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
.6 FTE Counselor (.2 at each of the three comprehensive high schools) 
3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS Supplemental 9,672

ANALYSIS
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed.

Use actual annual measurable outcome data, including performance data from the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable.

Describe the overall implementation of the 
actions/services to achieve the articulated goal.

Actions and services were implemented to meet the goal of hiring classified staff who meet all required 
criteria for their position. In other words, 100% of classified staff met all requirements for their job.  We 
were not able to hire a full time coach for PBIS due to limited resources for hiring additional staff.  Although 
we did not have enough resources to hire a .8  PBIS coach, the .4 coach was able to assist staff in 
implementing PBIS goals and creating positive classroom cultures and a positive school climate at the 
elementary schools by strategically scheduling work with elementary counselors and PBIS teams.

--------Describe the overall effectiveness of the actions/services 
to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the LEA.

Santa Cruz City Schools met its annual goal of having a 100% of classified instructional staff meeting all 
requirements.

--------Explain material differences between Budgeted 
Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures.

We were not able to hire a .8 position for the PBIS coach, spending significantly less than planned.  We 
were able to hire a .4 coach to support the program.  

--------Describe any changes made to this goal, expected 
outcomes, metrics, or actions and services to achieve this 
goal as a result of this analysis and analysis of the LCFF 
Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable. Identify where those 
changes can be found in the LCAP.

Goal 2 100% of classified staff will meet all requirements for their position was met. The Human Resources 
department participated in classified recruitment fairs and advertised vacant positions on the Edjoin 
website,  on Craig's List, and other classified recruitment tools like CASBO publications where potential 
candidates go to seek and apply for jobs with school districts.  Our human resource department engaged in 
practices that did not consider any candidate that did not meet all qualifications for the position applied. 

189 of 569



Page 14 of 142

Moving forward, we will continue with our current hiring practices; but, we will not continue this focus or 
goal for the LCAP as we are successfully hiring qualified classified staff.

190 of 569



Page 15 of 142

Annual Update LCAP Year Reviewed:   2016-17

Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed.

Goal
3

Facilities will be modernized and conducive to learning, earning a rating of Exemplary at each school site on our FIT report.       

----------State and/or Local Priorities Addressed by this goal: STATE       1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
COE       9 10
LOCAL   District Goal #5

ANNUAL MEASURABLE OUTCOMES

EXPECTED ACTUAL

10/13 sites rate “exemplary” on FIT report      11/13 sites rated "exemplary" on FIT report      

ACTIONS / SERVICES

Duplicate the Actions/Services from the prior year LCAP and complete a copy of the following table for each. Duplicate the table as needed.

startcollapse

Action    1
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Repair all conditions identified as “poor” or "good" until all 
facilities rate “exemplary” on FIT report.       

ACTUAL
Repaired conditions identified completely as "poor" or "good," 
earning a rating for 11 out 13 of "exemplary" on FIT report.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
Ongoing maintenance at all facilities. (Resource 8150) 7000-7439: Other 
Outgo Base $1,933,270 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
Ongoing maintenance at all facilities. (Resource 8150) 7000-7439: Other 
Outgo Base 1,885,690

 2000 >CLASS PERSONNEL SALARIES Other   2000 >CLASS PERSONNEL SALARIES Other 
 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS Other   3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS Other 
 4300 MATERIALS & SUPPLIES Other   4300 MATERIALS & SUPPLIES Other 
 1100 CERT TEACHERS' SALARIES-REG. Other   1100 CERT TEACHERS' SALARIES-REG. Title I 
 2000 >CLASS PERSONNEL SALARIES Title I   2000 >CLASS PERSONNEL SALARIES Other 
 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS Other   3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS Other 

191 of 569



Page 16 of 142

Action    2
Expenditures

BUDGETED
 1100 CERT TEACHERS' SALARIES-REG. Other  

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
 1100 CERT TEACHERS' SALARIES-REG. Other 

 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS Supplemental   3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS Supplemental 

Action    3
Expenditures

BUDGETED
 5800 OTHER SVCS & OPER EXPENDITURES Supplemental  

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
 5800 OTHER SVCS & OPER EXPENDITURES Supplemental 

Action    4
Expenditures

BUDGETED
 1100 CERT TEACHERS' SALARIES-REG. Other  

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
 1100 CERT TEACHERS' SALARIES-REG. Other 

 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS Supplemental    3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS Supplemental 

Action    5
Expenditures

BUDGETED
Ho 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS Other  

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS Other 

Action    6
Expenditures

BUDGETED
 2000 >CLASS PERSONNEL SALARIES Other  

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
 2000 >CLASS PERSONNEL SALARIES Other 

 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS Other   3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS Other 

Action    7
Expenditures

BUDGETED
 2900 OTHER CLASS SALARIES-REGULAR  O Other  

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
 2900 OTHER CLASS SALARIES-REGULAR  O Other 

 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS Other   3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS Other 

Action    8
Expenditures

BUDGETED
 1100 CERT TEACHERS' SALARIES-REG. Other  

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
 1100 CERT TEACHERS' SALARIES-REG. Other 

 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS Other   3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS Other 
 4300 MATERIALS & SUPPLIES Other   4300 MATERIALS & SUPPLIES Other 

Action    9
Expenditures

BUDGETED ESTIMATED ACTUAL

192 of 569



Page 17 of 142

 1300 CERT SUPRVSR & ADMN-ADMIN Supplemental   1300 CERT SUPRVSR & ADMN-ADMIN Supplemental 
 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS Supplemental   3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS Supplemental 
 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS Base   3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS Base 
 1300 CERT SUPRVSR & ADMN-ADMIN Title I   1300 CERT SUPRVSR & ADMN-ADMIN Title I 
 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS Title I   3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS Title I 

Action    10
Expenditures

BUDGETED
 2000 >CLASS PERSONNEL SALARIES Supplemental  

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
 2000 >CLASS PERSONNEL SALARIES Supplemental 

 1100 CERT TEACHERS' SALARIES-REG. Supplemental   1100 CERT TEACHERS' SALARIES-REG. Supplemental 

Action    11
Expenditures

BUDGETED
 1100 CERT TEACHERS' SALARIES-REG. Supplemental  

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
 1100 CERT TEACHERS' SALARIES-REG. Supplemental 

 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS Supplemental   3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS Supplemental 
 1100 CERT TEACHERS' SALARIES-REG. Supplemental   1100 CERT TEACHERS' SALARIES-REG. Supplemental 
 1100 CERT TEACHERS' SALARIES-REG. Supplemental   1100 CERT TEACHERS' SALARIES-REG. Supplemental 
 1100 CERT TEACHERS' SALARIES-REG. Supplemental   1100 CERT TEACHERS' SALARIES-REG. Supplemental 
 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS Supplemental   3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS Supplemental 
 1100 CERT TEACHERS' SALARIES-REG. Supplemental   1100 CERT TEACHERS' SALARIES-REG. Supplemental 
 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS Supplemental   3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS Supplemental 

Action    12
Expenditures

BUDGETED
 2000 >CLASS PERSONNEL SALARIES Supplemental  

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
 2000 >CLASS PERSONNEL SALARIES Supplemental 

 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS Supplemental   3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS Supplemental 

Action    13
Expenditures

BUDGETED
 2000 >CLASS PERSONNEL SALARIES Supplemental  

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
 2000 >CLASS PERSONNEL SALARIES Supplemental 

 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS Supplemental   3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS Supplemental 
 2000 >CLASS PERSONNEL SALARIES Supplemental   2000 >CLASS PERSONNEL SALARIES Supplemental 
 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS Supplemental   3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS Supplemental 
 2000 >CLASS PERSONNEL SALARIES Supplemental   2000 >CLASS PERSONNEL SALARIES Supplemental 
 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS Supplemental   3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS Supplemental 

Action    14
193 of 569



Page 18 of 142

Expenditures
BUDGETED
 1100 CERT TEACHERS' SALARIES-REG. Other  

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
 1100 CERT TEACHERS' SALARIES-REG. Other 

 1100 CERT TEACHERS' SALARIES-REG. Other   1100 CERT TEACHERS' SALARIES-REG. Other 

Action    15
Expenditures

BUDGETED
 4300 MATERIALS & SUPPLIES Supplemental  

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
EWA's translation and meeting supplies 4300 MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 
Supplemental 

Action    16
Expenditures

BUDGETED
 1100 CERT TEACHERS' SALARIES-REG. Supplemental  

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
 1100 CERT TEACHERS' SALARIES-REG. Supplemental 

 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS Supplemental   3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS Supplemental 
 2000 >CLASS PERSONNEL SALARIES Supplemental   2000 >CLASS PERSONNEL SALARIES Supplemental 
 2000 >CLASS PERSONNEL SALARIES Supplemental   2000 >CLASS PERSONNEL SALARIES Supplemental 
 2000 >CLASS PERSONNEL SALARIES Supplemental   2000 >CLASS PERSONNEL SALARIES Supplemental 
 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS Supplemental   3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS Supplemental 
 4300 MATERIALS & SUPPLIES Supplemental   4300 MATERIALS & SUPPLIES Supplemental 
 4300 MATERIALS & SUPPLIES Supplemental   4300 MATERIALS & SUPPLIES Supplemental 

Action    17
Expenditures

BUDGETED
 1900 OTHER CERT SALARIES-REGULAR Base  

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
 1900 OTHER CERT SALARIES-REGULAR Base 

 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS Base   3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS Base 

Action    18
Expenditures

BUDGETED
 1100 CERT TEACHERS' SALARIES-REG. Base  

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
 1100 CERT TEACHERS' SALARIES-REG. Base 

 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS Base   3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS Base 

194 of 569



Page 19 of 142

ANALYSIS
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed.

Use actual annual measurable outcome data, including performance data from the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable.

Describe the overall implementation of the 
actions/services to achieve the articulated goal.

According  to our 2014-15  FIT report, 8 of 13 sites rated as "good" and 5 rated as "fair". However, in 2015-
16, 11 of 13 rated as exemplary. The facilities department has identified needs that we hope to address in 
the next three years. The district will continue to support any identified needs that pose a safety issue and 
will continue to engage in a process to determine extensive facility needs due to aging. In addition, the 
district created a long range facilities master plan through a facilities task force and with the support of a 
consultant. The master facilities plan will continue to guide next steps toward improving facilities.

--------Describe the overall effectiveness of the actions/services 
to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the LEA.

According  to our 2014-15  FIT report, 8 of 13 sites rated as "good" and 5 rated as "fair". We repaired 
conditions identified completely as "poor" or "good," earning a rating for 11 out 13 of "exemplary" on the 
most recent FIT report, exceeding our goal of 10 out of 13.

--------Explain material differences between Budgeted 
Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures.

The variance in the facilities budget is related to some personnel vacancies during the school year. 

--------Describe any changes made to this goal, expected 
outcomes, metrics, or actions and services to achieve this 
goal as a result of this analysis and analysis of the LCFF 
Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable. Identify where those 
changes can be found in the LCAP.

Goal 3 Facilities will be modernized and conducive to learning, earning a rating of exemplary at each 
school site on our FIT report was not met. We earned exemplary at 11 of 13 sites. This is a significant 
increase from 8 to 11 exemplary sites from the previous year. The goal was 13 of 13. With limited facilities 
staff and budget, a goal of 100% exemplary was not realistic this year.  Having passed two facilities bonds 
this past fall, we now how the resources to implement our Facilities Master Plan, which will ultimately 
impact our FIT ratings.  With our revised LCAP goals, the FIT goal and actions can be found in goal 5 of 
the 2017-18 LCAP. 

195 of 569



Page 20 of 142

Annual Update LCAP Year Reviewed:   2016-17

Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed.

Goal
4

All students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and career opportunities.
100% of students will have access to standards-aligned instructional materials in all subjects.
       

----------State and/or Local Priorities Addressed by this goal: STATE       1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
COE       9 10
LOCAL   District Goals 1 & 3

ANNUAL MEASURABLE OUTCOMES

EXPECTED ACTUAL

100% of students will have access to standards-aligned instructional 
materials in mathematics.      

100% of students had access to standards-aligned instructional materials in 
mathematics.      

ACTIONS / SERVICES

Duplicate the Actions/Services from the prior year LCAP and complete a copy of the following table for each. Duplicate the table as needed.

startcollapse

Action    1
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Purchase instructional materials.       

ACTUAL
Purchased instructional materials.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
Purchase instructional materials for math adoption in elementary and high 
school ($125,000 Elementary & $146,000 for secondary). 0000: Unrestricted 
Base $271,000 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
0001-0999: Unrestricted: Locally defined 0000: Unrestricted Base 282,228

5800: Professional/Consulting Services and operating expenditures  5800 
OTHER SVCS & OPER EXPENDITURES Title II $80,000 

5800: Professional/Consulting Services and operating expenditures  5800 
OTHER SVCS & OPER EXPENDITURES Title II 6,225

0001-0999 Unrestricted: Locally Defined. 2000 >CLASS PERSONNEL 
SALARIES Other $ 0 

0001-0999 Unrestricted: Locally Defined. 2000 >CLASS PERSONNEL 
SALARIES Other $0

1.6101 FTE English Learner Instructional Teacher (ELIRT) 1100 CERT 
TEACHERS' SALARIES-REG. Supplemental $111,400 

1.6101 FTE English Learner Instructional Teacher (ELIRT) 1100 CERT 
TEACHERS' SALARIES-REG. Supplemental 140,115

196 of 569



Page 21 of 142

1.6101 FTE English Learner Instructional Teacher (ELIRT) 3000 
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS Title I $33,671 

1.6101 FTE English Learner Instructional Teacher (ELIRT) 3000 
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS Title I 32,334

.3899 FTE English Learner Instructional Resource 1100 CERT TEACHERS' 
SALARIES-REG. Title I $26,977 

.3899 FTE English Learner Instructional Resource 1100 CERT 
TEACHERS' SALARIES-REG. Title I 34,805

.3899 FTE English Learner Instructional Resource 1900 OTHER CERT 
SALARIES-REGULAR Title I $8,154 

.3899 FTE English Learner Instructional Resource 1900 OTHER CERT 
SALARIES-REGULAR Title I 7,966

ANALYSIS
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed.

Use actual annual measurable outcome data, including performance data from the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable.

Describe the overall implementation of the 
actions/services to achieve the articulated goal.

Actions and services were implemented. We purchased standards aligned instructional materials in 
mathematics for elementary and high school.  MIddle schools already had CCSS mathematics materials.  
New NGSS resources were also provided to teachers participating on our vertical science team.  A plan is 
in place to pilot new ELA/ELD materials in elementary school next year.  English Learner Instructional 
Resource Teachers supported professional development for teachers as we held trainings in the new 
adoptions.  We have a Curriculum Master Plan in place to support a roll out of new curriculum in all content 
areas over the next five to seven years.

--------Describe the overall effectiveness of the actions/services 
to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the LEA.

We conducted a pilot of materials in the 2015-16 school year.  This year we were able to fully implement 
the new CCSS math adoption in elementary schools and were able to implement the first year of a three 
year implementation plan for the new high school integrated mathematics pathway at each of our high 
schools.  

--------Explain material differences between Budgeted 
Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures.

Estimated costs for consultant services for training on the textbook adoption had to be reduced to cover the 
difference needed for new teacher support from Title II. 

--------Describe any changes made to this goal, expected 
outcomes, metrics, or actions and services to achieve this 
goal as a result of this analysis and analysis of the LCFF 
Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable. Identify where those 
changes can be found in the LCAP.

Goal 4 All students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and career 
opportunities -- 100% of students will have access to standards-aligned instructional materials in all 
subjects is tied to the LCFF Evaluation Rubric.

Using our Williams standard-aligned instruction materials reports from all school sites to determine whether 
the goal was met, all school sites (teachers and administrators) reported having standard aligned 
instructional materials. In other words, this goal was met.

197 of 569



Page 22 of 142

As a district, at the start of the school year, we send out standard-aligned instructional material forms to 
determine whether or not sites have adequate required materials. If not, the district provide adequate 
necessary materials immediately. The process is administered again in the spring semester. According to 
our Williams report, 100% of students had access to required materials in all subject areas.

Further, this year, we developed a Curriculum Master Plan that will guide our textbook/curriculum 
adoptions over the next five years.

This goal, practices/actions, and metric will no longer be a focus for the district as we have a 
comprehensive plan to ensure that we continue to remain Williams compliant and provide standards 
aligned instructional materials for our school sites.

198 of 569



Page 23 of 142

Annual Update LCAP Year Reviewed:   2016-17

Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed.

Goal
5

We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting effective teaching.
100% of teachers in core subject areas will participate in professional development in implementing CCSS, CA ELD Standards, and NGSS.  
Teachers participate in a minimum of 8 professional development sessions throughout the year. In addition, elementary teachers will be 
released every six weeks to participate in CCSS math training.  Secondary math teachers will have monthly training and support from coaches 
in addition to the professional development.  Secondary science teachers will receive monthly coaching and support from the NGSS coach.
       

----------State and/or Local Priorities Addressed by this goal: STATE       1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
COE       9 10
LOCAL   District Goal #4

ANNUAL MEASURABLE OUTCOMES

EXPECTED ACTUAL

100% of teachers in core subject areas will participate in professional 
development in implementing Common Core State Standards,  
English Language Development Standards, and Next Generation of 
Science Standards.      

100% of teachers in core subject areas participated in professional learning 
community work to implement Common Core State Standards.  100% of elementary 
math teachers and high school/ middle school Integrated Course 1 teachers  
participated in professional development to implement our new math adoption. All PD 
included a focus on integrating the English Language Development Standards.  A 
vertical science leadership team participated in professional development to 
implement the Next Generation of Science Standards. The tech coach supported 
school sites with tech integration trainings.       

ACTIONS / SERVICES

Duplicate the Actions/Services from the prior year LCAP and complete a copy of the following table for each. Duplicate the table as needed.

startcollapse

Action    1
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Hire 1.73 FTE TOSAs to coach teachers on implementing 
CCSS mathematics standards.  These TOSAs will support 
teachers in various ways: share effective strategies, use a 
formal coaching cycle, including feedback, and facilitate 

ACTUAL
Hired 1.0 FTE TOSAs to coach teachers on implementing 
CCSS mathematics standards. These TOSAs supported 
teachers in various ways: shared effective strategies, used a 
formal coaching cycle, including feedback, and facilitated 

199 of 569



Page 24 of 142

professional development sessions regarding CCSS. Although 
the coaching will provide training to all teachers, they will 
provide a focus on English Language learners.       

professional development sessions regarding CCSS. 
Although the coaching provided training to all teachers, they 
provided a focus on English Language learners.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
1.0 FTE Elementary Math Coach  1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries Supplemental  $95,974 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
.40 FTE Elementary Math Coach  1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries Supplemental 27,793

1.0 FTE Elementary Math Coach  3000-3999: Employee Benefits 
Supplemental  $26,083 

.40 FTE Elementary Math Coach  3000-3999: Employee Benefits 
Supplemental 8,654

.73 FTE Secondary Math CPM Coaches through EEFG 1000-1999: 
Certificated Personnel Salaries Other $56,730 

.60 FTE Secondary Math CPM Coaches through EEFG 1000-1999: 
Certificated Personnel Salaries Other 33,594

.73FTE Secondary Math Coaches through EEFG 3000-3999: Employee 
Benefits Other $13,127 

.60 FTE Secondary Math Coaches through EEFG 3000-3999: Employee 
Benefits Other 10,447

Professional Development/Training 5800: Professional/Consulting Services 
And Operating Expenditures Supplemental  $30,000 

Professional Development/Training 5800: Professional/Consulting Services 
And Operating Expenditures Supplemental 30,000

Action    2
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Maintain positions for 2.0 FTE TOSAs to coach teachers on 
implementing CA ELD standards.  These TOSAs will support 
teachers in various ways: share effective strategies, use a 
formal coaching cycle, including feedback, and facilitate 
professional development sessions regarding CCSS.       

ACTUAL
Maintained positions for 2.0 FTE TOSAs to coach teachers 
on implementing CA ELD standards.  These TOSAs 
supported teachers in various ways: shared effective 
strategies, used a formal coaching cycle, including feedback, 
and facilitation of professional development sessions 
regarding CCSS.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
1.6101 FTE English Learner Instructional Resource Teacher (ELIRT) 1000-
1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries Supplemental  $111,400 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
1.6101 FTE English Learner Instructional Resource Teacher (ELIRT) 1000-
1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries Supplemental 140,115

1.6101 FTE English Learner Instructional Resource Teacher (ELIRT) 3000-
3999: Employee Benefits Supplemental  $33,671 

1.6101 FTE English Learner Instructional Resource Teacher (ELIRT) 3000-
3999: Employee Benefits Supplemental 32,334

.3899 FTE English Learner Instructional Resource Teacher (ELIRT) 1000-
1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries Title I $26,977 

.3899 FTE English Learner Instructional Resource Teacher (ELIRT) 1000-
1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries Title I 34,805

.3899 FTE English Learner Instructional Resource Teacher (ELIRT) 3000-
3999: Employee Benefits Title I $8,154 

.3899 FTE English Learner Instructional Resource Teacher (ELIRT) 3000-
3999: Employee Benefits Title I 7,966

Action    3
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Contract with Core Collaborative to support Professional 
Learning Community work at secondary schools and support 
math adoption with elementary teams       

ACTUAL
Contracted with Core Collaborative to support Professional 
Learning Community work at secondary schools and 
supported math adoption with elementary teams

Expenditures
BUDGETED
6 days @ $5,000 per day for secondary 5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating Expenditures Supplemental  $30,000 elementary 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
6 days @ $5,000 per day for secondary 5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating Expenditures Supplemental 30,000

200 of 569



Page 25 of 142

6 days @ $5,000 per day for elementary 5800 OTHER SVCS & OPER 
EXPENDITURES Supplemental $30,000 

6 days @ $5,000 per day for elementary 5800 OTHER SVCS & OPER 
EXPENDITURES Other 15,144

Action    4
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Maintain 1.0 FTE Education Technology Coach       

ACTUAL
Maintained 1.0 FTE Education Technology Coach

Expenditures
BUDGETED
1.0 FTE Education Technology Coach 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries Supplemental  $90,048 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
1.0 FTE Education Technology Coach 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries Supplemental 92,752

1.0 FTE Education Technology Coach 3000-3999: Employee Benefits 
Supplemental  $22,296 

1.0 FTE Education Technology Coach 3000-3999: Employee Benefits 
Supplemental 20,984

Action    5
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Maintain .4 FTE TOSAs to support implementation of CCSS 
ELA in Middle schools.       

ACTUAL
Maintained .4 FTE TOSAs to support implementation of 
CCSS ELA in Middle schools.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
.4 FTE Middle School Core (ELA & Social Studies) 1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Supplemental  $26,755 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
.4 FTE Middle School Core (ELA & Social Studies) 1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Supplemental 30,465

.4 FTE Middle School Core (ELA & Social Studies) 3000-3999: Employee 
Benefits Supplemental  $6,844 

.4 FTE Middle School Core (ELA & Social Studies) 3000-3999: Employee 
Benefits Supplemental 10,449

Maintain 1.0 FTE Science Coach to assist teachers in implementing the Next 
Generation Science Standards (NGSS) 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
Supplemental  $96,825 

Maintained 1.0 FTE Science Coach to assist teachers in implementing the 
Next Generation Science Standards (NGSS) 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
Supplemental 93,533

1.0 Science Coach 3000-3999: Employee Benefits Supplemental  $19,610 1.0 Science Coach 3000-3999: Employee Benefits Supplemental 19,370

Action    6
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Maintain 1.0 FTE Science Coach to assist teachers in 
implementing the Next Generation Science Standards 
(NGSS).       

ACTUAL
Maintained 1.0 FTE Science Coach to assist teachers in 
implementing the Next Generation Science Standards 
(NGSS).

Expenditures
BUDGETED
 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries Other  

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries  

 3000-3999: Employee Benefits Other   3000-3999: Employee Benefits  

Action    7
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Technology will be used to support student learning in the form 
of chrome books, carts and projections.       

ACTUAL
Technology was used to support student learning.  Chrome 
books, carts and projectors were purchased.

201 of 569



Page 26 of 142

Expenditures
BUDGETED
Technology to support student learning elementary 4300 MATERIALS & 
SUPPLIES Supplemental $111,058 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
Technology to support student learning elementary (Also paid from Title1, 
Migrant & Other Local defined) 4300 MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 
Supplemental 84,631

Technology will be used to support student learning - secondary. 4300 
MATERIALS & SUPPLIES Supplemental $162,845 

Technology was used to support student learning - secondary. (Also paid 
from Title I, Title III & EFFG) 4300 MATERIALS & SUPPLIES Supplemental 
161,913

ANALYSIS
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed.

Use actual annual measurable outcome data, including performance data from the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable.

Describe the overall implementation of the 
actions/services to achieve the articulated goal.

The overall implementation of developing a highly collaborative professional culture focused on supporting 
effective teaching through providing coaches for Math, ELD, Science, and Technology was accomplished. 
The coaches provided both training and follow up coaching for teachers with a focus on reflective practices 
and lesson planning.

All secondary math and ELD teachers participated in professional development in implementing CCSS 
mathematics and CA ELD Standards. Secondary math teachers participated in monthly training and 
support from coaches in addition to other professional development. ELD and content area teachers 
benefited from coaching from our English Learner Instructional Resource teachers.  A vertical science 
leadership team participated in professional development to implement the Next Generation of Science 
Standards and were supported with a coach in their classrooms.   In addition, elementary teachers were 
released every six weeks to participate in CCSS math training. All teachers participated in professional 
learning communities during collaboration time throughout the year that focused on implementing CCSS.  
The technology coach provided tech integration trainings for school sites.

--------Describe the overall effectiveness of the actions/services 
to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the LEA.

Our collaborative commitment and focus on effective teaching through training, coaching, and support, at 
the elementary schools resulted in over 80% of our TK/K students proficient in letter sounds; 90% of our 
kindergarten students were proficient in CVC words; 67% of our 2nd -5th graders were proficient in reading 
(SRI). This year, our incremental data on the Houghton-Mifflin-Harcourt Reading inventory (formerly SRI) 
showed considerable student growth for the current year. Our elementary math data from 2015-16 showed 
overall increases. 64% of our 3rd -5th graders were proficient on math (SMI), up from 60%.

Our collaborative practices resulted in, for example, middle schools, nearly 60% of our 7th-8th graders 
proficient in Schoolwide writing and 68% of our 6th-8th graders were proficient in reading (SRI). Our high 
school students did well overall, and many pursued a rigorous academic program. One measure from 
2015-16 showed the percentage of high school students that were taking and passing AP courses. Our 
graduation rates are also increased from 89% to 92.5%. 592 AP students took 1,042 AP exams with 72% 
state average.

Our high schools developed, through a collaborative culture, a new Response to Intervention model called 
Math Plus, which helped address the needs of students in Integrated Math 1 this year, both through 

202 of 569



Page 27 of 142

improvements in the core program and a Tier 2 intervention system. 76% of 9th graders passed Algebra; 
this is a slight increase from 75%.

--------Explain material differences between Budgeted 
Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures.

Because of a lack of availability of qualified math teachers, we were not able to fill the 1.0 Elementary Math 
Coach position.  We were able to share a .4 math coach with another position.  This next year, we will be 
able to have a full time Elementary Math Coach.   

--------Describe any changes made to this goal, expected 
outcomes, metrics, or actions and services to achieve this 
goal as a result of this analysis and analysis of the LCFF 
Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable. Identify where those 
changes can be found in the LCAP.

Goal 5 (We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting effective 
teaching.100% of teachers in core subject areas will participate in professional development in 
implementing CCSS, CA ELD Standards, and NGSS) is addressed our new goal 4 for 2017-18. There are 
some adjustments to the goal and expected outcomes that align with the Curriculum Master Plan that was 
developed in the 2016-17 school  year.  It was not realistic for all of our teachers to be trained in all subject 
areas in a year's time.  We do not have enough fiscal resources to support it.  Further, training in all 
content areas for elementary teachers simultaneously would be ineffective. The Master Plan provides a 
strategic document that allows us to roll out training over time.  We will be refining the Master Plan and 
aligning resources for the work over the next five to seven years. This goal is not part of the LCFF 
Evaluation Rubric; however, it is a critical practice in meeting the LCFF Academic Evaluation Rubrics.

203 of 569



Page 28 of 142

Annual Update LCAP Year Reviewed:   2016-17

Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed.

Goal
6

All students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and career opportunities as demonstrated through meeting the A-G 
requirements and increased graduation rate and lowered dropout rate.

       

----------State and/or Local Priorities Addressed by this goal: STATE       1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
COE       9 10
LOCAL   District Goals 1 & 3

ANNUAL MEASURABLE OUTCOMES

EXPECTED ACTUAL

52% of all 12th graders meet A-G requirements

35% of LI 12th graders meet A-G requirements

15% of EL 12th graders meet A-G requirements

Increase graduation rate from 89.7% to 90.2% in 2015-16

Decrease high school dropout rate by .2 to 3.7% in 2015-16

Maintain middle school dropout rate of 0% in 2015-16
      

54% of all 12th graders met A-G requirements (2015-16)

39% of LI 12th graders met A-G requirements (2015-16)

18% of EL 12th graders met A-G requirements (2015-16)

92.5% High School graduation rate for 2015-16

High school dropout rate is 4.2% for 2015-16.

Maintained middle school dropout rate of 0% in 2015-16
      

ACTIONS / SERVICES

Duplicate the Actions/Services from the prior year LCAP and complete a copy of the following table for each. Duplicate the table as needed.

startcollapse

Action    1
Actions/Services

PLANNED ACTUAL

204 of 569



Page 29 of 142

Credit Recovery program for students who are credit deficient 
to help them graduate and/or meet A-G requirements.       

Credit Recovery program for students who were credit 
deficient to help them graduate and/or meet A-G 
requirements.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
.6 FTE Credit Recovery @ Ark 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Supplemental  $49,292 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
.6 FTE Credit Recovery @ Ark 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Supplemental 51,690

.6 FTE Credit Recovery @ Ark 3000-3999: Employee Benefits Supplemental  
$11,935 

.6 FTE Credit Recovery @ Ark 3000-3999: Employee Benefits 
Supplemental 11.606

Credit Recovery materials @ Ark 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
Supplemental  $4,100 

Credit Recovery materials @ Ark 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
Supplemental 5,664

Credit Recovery contract with Cyber High 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
Supplemental  $11,070 

Credit Recovery contract with Cyber High 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
Supplemental 11,700

Action    2
Actions/Services

PLANNED
AVID classes at middle schools and comprehensive high 
schools.       

ACTUAL
AVID classes were held at the middle schools and 
comprehensive high schools.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
AVID Tutors & Field Trips  2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries 
Supplemental  $40,000  

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
AVID Tutors & Field Trips  5800 OTHER SVCS & OPER EXPENDITURES 
Supplemental 36,700

AVID Tutors & Field Trips  5200 MILEAGE, TRAVEL & CONFERENCES 
Supplemental  $10,000 

AVID Tutors & Field Trips  5200 MILEAGE, TRAVEL & CONFERENCES 
Supplemental 6,012

AVID stipends. 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries Supplemental  
$2,830  

AVID stipends. 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries Supplemental 
2.057

ANALYSIS
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed.

Use actual annual measurable outcome data, including performance data from the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable.

Describe the overall implementation of the 
actions/services to achieve the articulated goal.

The overall implementation of actions were implemented fully. Our focus on preparing students to 
successfully access post-secondary college and career opportunities as demonstrated through meeting the 
A-G requirements, increasing graduation rate, and lowering dropout rate included a number of services.

High school students in need of making up credits in order to graduate within four years participated in the 
credit recovery program. Credit recovery was also used and viewed as a dropout preventive measure. 
Middle and high school students participated in AVID college preparation, where they learned how to meet 
A-G criteria and develop the skills needed for academic success. Students in the program were provided 
tutoring and college field trips.

--------

205 of 569



Page 30 of 142

Describe the overall effectiveness of the actions/services 
to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the LEA.

The data below outline the effectiveness of our actions toward annual goals. One of the significant 
increases was the improved graduation rate. We were expected to have a graduation rate of 90.2. Instead, 
it was 92.5%. A-G completion rates increased slightly, from 52% to 54%. Unfortunately, our high school 
dropout rate increased slightly as well. See below.

2014-15 School Year:
52% of all 12th graders met A-G requirements

35% of LI 12th graders met A-G requirements

15% of EL 12th graders met A-G requirements

89.7% Graduation rate in 2015-16

3.9 % High school dropout rate in 2015-16

0% Middle school dropout rate in 2015-16

2015-16 School Year
54% of all 12th graders met A-G requirements

39% of LI 12th graders met A-G requirements

18% of EL 12th graders met A-G requirements

92.5% high school graduation rate

4.2% high school dropout rate in 2015-16

0% Middle school dropout rate in 2015-16

--------Explain material differences between Budgeted 
Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures.

There were no significant difference between the budgeted expenditures and estimated actual 
expenditures.

--------

206 of 569



Page 31 of 142

Describe any changes made to this goal, expected 
outcomes, metrics, or actions and services to achieve this 
goal as a result of this analysis and analysis of the LCFF 
Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable. Identify where those 
changes can be found in the LCAP.

This goal is similar to our annual update goal 4 (All students will be prepared to successfully access post-
secondary college and career opportunities as demonstrated through meeting the A-G requirements). In 
other words, part of the analysis is similar. Counselors and administrators participated in training(s) on how 
to assist students in meeting A-G requirements. As noted earlier, A-G courses are classes that a student 
take in order to meet California State University or University of California (college) admission criteria.  We 
increased the A-G completion rate from 52% to 54% within a school year. This meant that all graduating 
seniors did not meet A-G requirements. Also, after discussions with some of our district committee 
members, we concluded that we did not select a realistic annual goal. As a result, this goal will be 
changed. Changes were made to expected outcomes; however, actions/services and metric will remain the 
same. The changes to actions/services, can be found in goal 1 of the 2017-18 LCAP.

As for the second part of goal 6 (increased graduation rate and lowered dropout rate), we used our 
graduation rate and dropout rate to determine whether or not goal(s) were met. The dropout rate went from 
3.9% to 4.2% and high school graduation rates went from 89.7% to 92.5%. We exceeded our expected 
graduation rate; but, we increased slightly our dropout rate. Our next steps is to look closer at dropout data 
at each high school and determine what we are doing, not doing, and what we will start doing to reduce 
high school dropout rate

This goal will change; but, the practices/actions, and metric will remain the same and can be found in goal 
3 of the 2017-18 LCAP.

207 of 569



Page 32 of 142

Annual Update LCAP Year Reviewed:   2016-17

Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed.

Goal
7

We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic groups within the Santa Cruz City Schools community.

Teachers will be prepared and have adequate materials to teach Common Core State Standards (CCSS) to students that struggle.  Students 
that struggle will have various opportunities to master CCSS.
       

----------State and/or Local Priorities Addressed by this goal: STATE       1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
COE       9 10
LOCAL   District Goals 1 & 3

ANNUAL MEASURABLE OUTCOMES

EXPECTED ACTUAL

The rate of 9th graders passing Algebra 1 with a C- or better on the 
first try will increase 5%, from 75% to 80%.

The rate of 11th grade students considered on track to be college 
ready by the EAP will increase by 5% from 29% to 34% in ELA.

The rate of 11th grade students considered on track to be college 
ready by the EAP will increase by 5% from 14% to 19% in 
mathematics.

The rate of RFEP 5th grade students meeting or exceeding standards 
will increase by 3% or more, from 58% to 61% on CAASPP Math.

The rate of RFEP 11th grade students meeting or exceeding 
standards will increase by 7% or more, from 36% to 43% on CAASPP 
Math.

The rate of 5th grade Low Income students will increase meeting or 
exceeding standards by 8% from 19% to 27% on CAASPP Math.

The rate of 8th grade Low Income students will increase meeting or 
exceeding standards by 8% from 29% to 37% on CAASPP Math.

The rate of 11th grade Low Income students will increase meeting or 
exceeding standards by 7% from 19% to 26% on CAASPP Math.

The rate of 9th graders passing Algebra 1/ Integrated Course 1 with a C- or better on 
the first try increased from 75% to 76%.

The rate of 11th grade students considered on track to be college ready by the EAP 
decreased from 29% to 22% in ELA.

The rate of 11th grade students considered on track to be
college ready by the EAP decreased from 17% to 14%
in mathematics.

The rate of RFEP 5th grade students increased from 58% to 64% on CAASPP Math.

The rate of RFEP 11th grade students increased from 36% to 41% on CAASPP 
Math.

The rate of 5th grade Low Income students decreased from
19% to 18% on CAASPP Math.

The rate of 8th grade Low Income students increased from
29% to 32% on CAASPP Math.

The rate of 11th grade Low Income students increased by from 19% to 22% on 
CAASPP Math.

208 of 569



Page 33 of 142

            

ACTIONS / SERVICES

Duplicate the Actions/Services from the prior year LCAP and complete a copy of the following table for each. Duplicate the table as needed.

startcollapse

Action    1
Actions/Services

PLANNED
For elementary and secondary schools, we will engage in the 
following:

Teachers receive training and materials in Common Core 
State Standards with an emphasis on how to assist struggling 
students

Professional Learning Communities (PLCs) at school sites 
with a continual focus on current academic data, determining 
next steps, and planning lessons collaboratively based on 
needs

Ongoing professional development for teachers on how to 
develop collaboratively to assist in meeting individualized 
students' needs

Provide training and establish practices and protocols for 
Response to Intervention

Ongoing coaching for teachers to continue to improve their 
craft and art of teaching

Create more time for teachers and staff to review, examine 
data and determine   next steps

Summer School with a focus on mathematics and reading in 
elementary schools

ACTUAL
For elementary and secondary schools, we engaged in the 
following:

Teachers received training and materials in Common Core 
State Standards with an emphasis on how to assist struggling 
students

Professional Learning Communities (PLCs) at school sites 
met with a continual focus on current academic data, 
determining next steps, and planning lessons collaboratively 
based on needs

Ongoing professional development for teachers on how to 
develop collaboratively to assist in meeting individualized 
students' needs

Provided training and established practices and protocols for 
Response to Intervention

Engaged in ongoing coaching for teachers to continue to 
improve their craft and art of teaching

Created more time for teachers and staff to review, examine 
data and determine   next steps

Summer School focused on mathematics and reading in 
elementary schools

209 of 569



Page 34 of 142

       

Expenditures
BUDGETED
Elementary Summer School 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries Title 
I $28,856  

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
Elementary Summer School 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Title I 15,690

Elementary Summer School 2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries Title I 
$5,208  

Elementary Summer School 2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries Title 
I 8,013

Elementary Summer School 3000-3999: Employee Benefits Title I $5,256 Elementary Summer School 3000-3999: Employee Benefits Title I 3,915
Elementary Summer School 4000-4999: Books And Supplies Title I $4,000 Elementary Summer School 4000-4999: Books And Supplies Title I 616
Secondary Summer School 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries Title 
I $71,911 

Secondary Summer School 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Title I 43,896

Secondary Summer School 2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries Title I 
$6,227 

Secondary Summer School 2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries Title 
I 14,292

Secondary Summer School 3000-3999: Employee Benefits Title I $11,596 Secondary Summer School 3000-3999: Employee Benefits Title I 9,246
Secondary Summer School 4000-4999: Books And Supplies Title I $7,500 Secondary Summer School 4000-4999: Books And Supplies Title I 1,274

Action    2
Actions/Services

PLANNED
5.0 FTE TOSAs to coordinate Response to Intervention at 
each of the secondary schools.       

ACTUAL
5.0 FTE TOSAs to coordinate Response to Intervention at 
each of the secondary schools.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
5.0 FTE RTI Coordinators 1100 CERT TEACHERS' SALARIES-REG. 
Supplemental  $345,940 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
5.0 FTE RTI Coordinators 1100 CERT TEACHERS' SALARIES-REG. 
Supplemental 414,450

5.0 FTE RTI Coordinators 3000-3999: Employee Benefits Supplemental  
$110,960 

5.0 FTE RTI Coordinators 3000-3999: Employee Benefits Supplemental 
107,357

Action    3
Actions/Services

PLANNED
 Math tutors to assist students in becoming proficient in CCSS 
mathematics       

ACTUAL
Math tutors to assist students in becoming proficient in CCSS 
mathematics

Expenditures
BUDGETED
Math tutors to assist students in becoming proficient in CCSS mathematics 
5800: Professional/Consulting Services And Operating Expenditures 
Supplemental  $41,074 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
Math tutors to assist students in becoming proficient in CCSS mathematics 
5800: Professional/Consulting Services And Operating Expenditures 
Supplemental 37,500

Action    4
Actions/Services

PLANNED ACTUAL

210 of 569



Page 35 of 142

.2 FTE at each comprehensive high school to provide a 
flexible math intervention period - .33 at SCHS (Math Plus)       

.2 FTE at each comprehensive high school to provide a 
flexible math intervention period - .33 at SCHS (Math Plus)

Expenditures
BUDGETED
.73 Math Plus FTE (.2 for each comprehensive high school and .33 at 
SCHS) 1100 CERT TEACHERS' SALARIES-REG. Supplemental $56,730 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
.73 Math Plus FTE (.2 for each comprehensive high school and .33 at 
SCHS) 1100 CERT TEACHERS' SALARIES-REG. Supplemental 55,097

.73 Math Plus FTE (.2 for each comprehensive high school 3000 
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS Supplemental $13,127 

.73 Math Plus FTE (.2 for each comprehensive high school 3000 
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS Supplemental 19,919

Action    5
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Homework Clubs at each of the three comprehensive high 
schools       

ACTUAL
Homework Clubs at each of the three comprehensive high 
schools

Expenditures
BUDGETED
HW Club extra hourly for certificated staff 1100 CERT TEACHERS' 
SALARIES-REG. Supplemental $25,866 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
HW Club extra hourly for certificated staff 1100 CERT TEACHERS' 
SALARIES-REG. Supplemental 28,175

HW Club benefits for certificated staff 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
Supplemental $4,134 

HW Club extra hourly for certificated staff 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
Supplemental $4,134

Action    6
Actions/Services

PLANNED
1.0 FTE to coordinate after school support programs at both 
middle schools       

ACTUAL
1.0 FTE to coordinate after school support programs at both 
middle schools

Expenditures
BUDGETED
1.0 FTE for After School Coordinator (.5 at each middle school) 2000 
>CLASS PERSONNEL SALARIES Supplemental $32,600 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
1.0 FTE for After School Coordinator (.5 at each middle school) 2000 
>CLASS PERSONNEL SALARIES Supplemental 28,624

1.0 FTE for After School Coordinator (.5 at each middle school) 3000 
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS Supplemental $7,658 

1.0 FTE for After School Coordinator (.5 at each middle school) 3000 
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS Supplemental 7,055

Action    7
Actions/Services

PLANNED
4 Instructional Techs to support middle school After School 
Program       

ACTUAL
4 Instructional Techs to support middle school After School 
Program

Expenditures
BUDGETED
4 Instructional Techs to support middle school After School Program 2900 
OTHER CLASS SALARIES-REGULAR  O Supplemental $50,358 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
4 Instructional Techs to support middle school After School Program 2900 
OTHER CLASS SALARIES-REGULAR  O Supplemental 36,505

4 Instructional Techs to support middle school After School Program 3000 
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS Supplemental $9,578 

4 Instructional Techs to support middle school After School Program 3000 
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS Supplemental 11,748

211 of 569



Page 36 of 142

ANALYSIS
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed.

Use actual annual measurable outcome data, including performance data from the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable.

Describe the overall implementation of the 
actions/services to achieve the articulated goal.

Actions and services to meet the goal of eliminating the academic achievement gaps among various 
demographic groups were implemented.

RTI coordinators provided tiers of intervention and support at each grade level. High schools created a 
math intervention course for struggling students and math tutors were hired. Each high school had after 
school homework support.  After school coordinators were hired at the middle schools. Instructional 
technicians were hired at the middle schools to provide technology support to staff, students, and to after 
school programs. Summer school was provided at each level (elementary, middle, and high school) for 
students in need of additional academic support.

--------Describe the overall effectiveness of the actions/services 
to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the LEA.

Although we did not eliminate the achievement gap this year as evidenced by the CAASPP data below, we 
did make some strides in other measures.

SBAC/CAASPP Met standards:

The percentage of EL, RFEP, FY and LI students that score At or Exceeds Standard in ELA and Math are 
listed below.

2016 CAASPP Results Met or Exceeded Standards

5th Grade ELA
ALL           64%
ELs           40%
RFEP        55%
LI               38%

5th Grade Math
ALL           48%
ELs           28%
RFEP       14%
LI              18%

8th Grade ELA
ALL            65%
ELs            41%
RFEP        47%
LI               46%

8th Grade Math
ALL           51%

212 of 569



Page 37 of 142

ELs           35%
RFEP        30%
LI               32%

11th Grade ELA
ALL          46%
ELs          41%
RFEP      45%
LI             39%

11th Grade Math
ALL         44%
ELs          6%
RFEP     26%
LI            24%

A - G Completion Rates have improved greatly for our Low Income students and Re-designated English 
Learners.  Although we have not closed the gap, we are making steps forward.

Low Income Students 2009-10:  24%
Low Income Students 2015-16:  39%

RFEP Students 2009-10:  38%
RFEP Students 2015-16:  56%

--------Explain material differences between Budgeted 
Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures.

Enrollment in summer school was less than was projected.  Ultimately, we did not need as many teachers 
as we had originally budgeted.   Salaries for our RtI Coordinators were higher than the estimated as a 
more experienced teacher was placed in vacancy.   The salaries of the middle school after school 
instructional technicians was less than projected based on the costs of the actual hires.

--------Describe any changes made to this goal, expected 
outcomes, metrics, or actions and services to achieve this 
goal as a result of this analysis and analysis of the LCFF 
Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable. Identify where those 
changes can be found in the LCAP.

Goal 7 - We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic groups within 
the Santa Cruz City Schools community and Teachers will be prepared and have adequate materials to 
teach Common Core State Standards to students that struggle.  Students who struggle will have various 
opportunities to master CCSS is a three part goal. The first part is about eliminating the achievement gaps. 
This is a worthwhile goal; but, was determined not to be a realistic annual goal. After reflecting with 
committee members and colleagues we decided to focus on annual targets toward eliminating the 
achievement gap. In other words, we will close the achievement gap before eliminating it. Needless to say, 
as highlighted in our LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, we did not eliminate the achievement gap in one year.

As described in annual update goal 4, the second part of goal 7 - Teachers will be prepared and have 
adequate materials to teach Common Core State Standards to students that struggle, we used our 

213 of 569



Page 38 of 142

Williams Standard-aligned instruction materials reports from all school sites to determine whether the goal 
was met. Again, all school sites (teachers and administrators) reported having standard aligned 
instructional materials. The district office sent out standard-aligned instructional material verification forms 
to determine whether or not sites have adequate required materials. If not, the district provides adequate 
materials immediately. The process is administered again in the spring semester. According to our Williams 
report, 100% of students had access to required materials in all subject areas. This goal was met. Further, 
we purchased additional supplemental materials for struggling students.

Struggling students had various opportunities to work toward mastering Common Core State Standards. 
Our RTI academic model was designed to address struggling students' needs. When a student is not 
making adequate progress, we provide tier 2 and 3 interventions.

We did make some adjustments to expected outcomes and metrics to align the LCAP metrics with District 
Strategic Goals and Metrics. The adjustments can be found in goal 3 of the 2017-18 LCAP plan.

214 of 569



Page 39 of 142

Annual Update LCAP Year Reviewed:   2016-17

Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed.

Goal
8

We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic groups in Language Arts within the SCCS school 
community.
90% of 6th-9th grade students will read at or above grade level.
       

----------State and/or Local Priorities Addressed by this goal: STATE       1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
COE       9 10
LOCAL   District Goals 1 & 3

ANNUAL MEASURABLE OUTCOMES

EXPECTED ACTUAL

The rate of 6th-8th grade students reading at or above grade level will 
increase 5% from 84% to 89% as determined by the SRI, 2014-15.

The rate of 6th-8th grade Reclassified Fluent English Proficient 
(RFEP) students reading at or above grade level will increase 5% from 
73% to 78% as determined by the SRI, 2014-15.

The rate of 9th grade students reading at or above grade level will 
increase 5% from 75% in 2014-15 to 80% in 2015-16 as determined 
by the SRI.
      

The rate of 6th-8th grade students reading at or above grade level was 68% on the 
SRI.  The SRI measure was changed to match CCSS, thus the baseline no longer 
had meaning.  This will provide a new baseline assessment.

The rate of 6th-8th grade Reclassified Fluent English Proficient (RFEP) students 
reading at or above grade level was 44% for 2015-16 school year.

The rate of 9th grade students reading at or above grade level was incomplete 
because only 38 9th grade scores posted, 2015-16.

*The percent proficient on the SRI end of year test declined from 14/15 to 15/16 
because the 15/16 proficiency levels were based on new common core proficiency 
bands, 2015-16. In some cases the points needed to be considered proficient went 
up 140 points (example from 4th grade proficiency band). In other words, 2014-15 
SRI assessments are not the same as 2015-16 SRI assessments.

      

ACTIONS / SERVICES

Duplicate the Actions/Services from the prior year LCAP and complete a copy of the following table for each. Duplicate the table as needed.

startcollapse

215 of 569



Page 40 of 142

Action    1
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Establish and adjust Read 180 sections at each of the middle 
schools and two of the three comprehensive high schools to 
boost achievement in reading

Teachers receive training and materials in Common Core 
State Standards with an emphasis on how to assist struggling 
students

Professional Learning Communities (PLCs) at school sites 
with a continual focus on current academic data, determining 
next steps, and planning lessons collaboratively based on 
needs

Ongoing professional development for teachers on how to 
develop collaboratively to assist in meeting individualized 
students' needs

Provide training and establish practices and protocols for 
Response to Intervention

Ongoing coaching for teachers to continue to improve their 
craft and art of teaching

Create more time for teachers and staff to review, examine 
data and determine   next steps

       

ACTUAL
Established and adjusted Read 180 sections at each of the 
middle schools and two of the three comprehensive high 
schools to boost achievement in reading

Middle School teachers received training and materials in 
Common Core State Standards with an emphasis on how to 
assist struggling students

Professional Learning Communities (PLCs) were established 
at school sites with a continual focus on current academic 
data, determining next steps, and planning lessons 
collaboratively based on needs

Professional development for teachers was provided on how 
to develop collaboratively to assist in meeting individualized 
students' needs

Provided training and established practices and protocols for 
Response to Intervention

Provided ongoing coaching for teachers to continue to 
improve their craft and art of teaching

Created more time for teachers and staff to review, examine 
data and determine   next steps

Expenditures
BUDGETED
.8 FTE Read 180 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries Supplemental  
$ 63,480 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
.8 FTE Read 180 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries Supplemental  
65,972

.8 FTE Read 180 3000-3999: Employee Benefits Supplemental  $19,240 .8 FTE Read 180 3000-3999: Employee Benefits Supplemental  20,086
Read 180 training, workbooks, licenses 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
Supplemental  $45,000 

Read 180 training, workbooks, licenses - Also paid from base 4000-4999: 
Books And Supplies Supplemental  32,500

216 of 569



Page 41 of 142

ANALYSIS
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed.

Use actual annual measurable outcome data, including performance data from the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable.

Describe the overall implementation of the 
actions/services to achieve the articulated goal.

Our focus on eliminating achievement gaps among groups that currently exist in English Language Arts 
included providing Read 180 sections at each of the middle schools and two of the three comprehensive 
high schools to boost achievement in reading. Although the goal stated teachers in general.  The focus for 
training was with middle school teachers on Common Core State Standards for ELA with an emphasis on 
how to assist struggling students.

Coaches (budget in other goals) provided training and support for all teachers in scaffolding for ELs and 
SWDs.  RtI Coordinators (budget in other goals) also provided training and support for all teachers in 
implementing the tiers of intervention and assessments that are part of the RtI framework.  RtI 
Coordinators also provided data for teachers to review as a part of their professional learning community 
work.

--------Describe the overall effectiveness of the actions/services 
to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the LEA.

Academic gaps persist among groups in our district. In some ELA grade levels we made some progress. 
But, as you can see the data below confirmed that we have a ways to go. Furthermore, the overall 
effectiveness on the new 2015-16 SRI test, which was very different from the year prior, made it a non-
comparable test, leaving no way to determine the efficacy of our efforts based on the SRI 2015-16 
assessments. As a result, we are only presenting the CAASPP data.

2016 CAASPP ELA Results Met or Exceeded Standards

5th Grade ELA
ALL           64%
ELs           40%
RFEP        55%
LI               38%

8th Grade ELA
ALL            65%
ELs            41%
RFEP        47%
LI               46%

11th Grade ELA
ALL          46%
ELs          41%
RFEP      45%
LI             39%

--------
217 of 569



Page 42 of 142

Explain material differences between Budgeted 
Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures.

The difference is materials cost for the Read 180 classes was a result of not needing to purchase as many 
consumable workbooks as had been projected. 

--------Describe any changes made to this goal, expected 
outcomes, metrics, or actions and services to achieve this 
goal as a result of this analysis and analysis of the LCFF 
Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable. Identify where those 
changes can be found in the LCAP.

Goal 8 (We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic groups in 
Language Arts within the SCCS school community. 90% of 6th-9th grade students will read at or above 
grade level) was difficult to measure on the SRI because the grade level measures changed from year to 
year because of adjustments made by scholastic.

Next year, this goal will be adjusted as we will be implementing a new assessment tool NWEA Map in 
grades 3 through 12.  The new goal #3 in the 2017-18 LCAP addresses the achievement gap and the new 
metrics that we will use to determine progress.

218 of 569



Page 43 of 142

Annual Update LCAP Year Reviewed:   2016-17

Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed.

Goal
9

We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic groups within the SCCS community.
The percent of English Learners meeting Annual Measurable Achievement Objective #1 (AMAO1) will increase until 100% meet the target.
Programs, services and interventions will address language development. Our TOSAs in NGSS and math will work with the COE and ELIRTs 
to provide training in integrated ELD.

       
----------State and/or Local Priorities Addressed by this goal: STATE       1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

COE       9 10
LOCAL   District Goal 3

ANNUAL MEASURABLE OUTCOMES

EXPECTED ACTUAL

The percentage of elementary ELs making one year’s growth in 
English will increase by 5% from 52% in 2014-15 to 57% in 2015-16.

The percentage of secondary ELs making one year’s growth in 
English will increase by 5% from 53% in 2014-15 to 58% in 2015-16.
      

The percentage of elementary ELs making one year’s growth in English increased 
from 52% in 2014-15 to 53% in 2015-16, and increased to 58% in spring 2017.

The percentage of secondary ELs making one year’s growth in English decreased 
from 53% to 52% in 2015-16; but, increased to 60% in spring 2017.
      

ACTIONS / SERVICES

Duplicate the Actions/Services from the prior year LCAP and complete a copy of the following table for each. Duplicate the table as needed.

startcollapse

Action    1
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Establish an EL Task Force to address the achievement gap 
crisis and provide aggressive recommendations

Create a new EL position to focus on coordination of services 
and implementation of EL plan

ACTUAL
Established an EL Task Force to address the achievement 
gap crisis and provide aggressive recommendations

Created a new EL position to focus on coordination of 
services and implementation of EL plan

219 of 569



Page 44 of 142

Teachers receive training and materials in Common Core 
State Standards with an emphasis on how to assist struggling 
students

Professional Learning Communities (PLCs) at school sites 
with a continual focus on current academic data, determining 
next steps, and planning lessons collaboratively based on 
needs for English Language Learners

Provide training and establish practices and protocols for 
Responding to Intervention

Ongoing coaching for teachers to continue to improve their 
craft and art of teaching with a focus on English Learners

Create more time for teachers and staff to review, examine 
data and determine next steps

Create more collaboration time for lesson planning and data 
review

Summer School with a focus on mathematics and reading in 
elementary schools

       

Teachers received training and materials in Common Core 
State Standards with an emphasis on how to assist struggling 
students

Engaged Professional Learning Communities (PLCs) at 
school sites with a continual focus on current academic data, 
determining next steps, and planning lessons collaboratively 
based on needs for English Language Learners, Low Income, 
and Foster Youth

Provided training and established practices and protocols for 
Responding to Interventions

Ongoing coaching was provided for teachers to continue to 
improve their craft and art of teaching with a focus on English 
Learners

Created more time for teachers and staff to review, examine 
data and determine next steps

Created more collaboration time for lesson planning and data 
review

Summer School for elementary students focused on reading, 
middle school focused on math, and high school focused on 
credit recovery

Expenditures
BUDGETED
.12 FTE Co-Directors of Elementary and Secondary Curriculum, Assessment 
and Intervention 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries Supplemental  
$12,338 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
.12 FTE Co-Directors of Elementary and Secondary Curriculum, 
Assessment and Intervention 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Supplemental 13,828

.12 FTE Director of Academic Equity & Categorical Programs for English 
Learners, Low-income students, Migrant students 3000-3999: Employee 
Benefits Supplemental  $3,915 

.12 FTE Director of Academic Equity & Categorical Programs for English 
Learners, Low-income students, Migrant students 3000-3999: Employee 
Benefits Supplemental 3,519

.68 FTE Co-Directors of Elementary and Secondary Curriculum, Assessment 
and Intervention 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries Base $69,911 

.68 FTE Co-Directors of Elementary and Secondary Curriculum, 
Assessment and Intervention 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Base 78,359

.68 FTE Co-Directors of Elementary and Secondary Curriculum, Assessment 
and Intervention 3000-3999: Employee Benefits Base $22,181 

.68 FTE Co-Directors of Elementary and Secondary Curriculum, 
Assessment and Intervention 3000-3999: Employee Benefits Base 19,939

.2 FTE Co-Directors of Elementary and Secondary Curriculum, Assessment 
and Intervention 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries Title I $20,562 

.2 FTE Co-Directors of Elementary and Secondary Curriculum, Assessment 
and Intervention 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries Title I 20,576

220 of 569



Page 45 of 142

.2 FTE Co-Directors of Elementary and Secondary Curriculum, Assessment 
and Intervention 3000-3999: Employee Benefits Title I $6,524 

.2 FTE Co-Directors of Elementary and Secondary Curriculum, Assessment 
and Intervention 3000-3999: Employee Benefits Title I 5,231

Action    2
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Newcomer support sections at the middle schools to increase 
opportunities for success to recently arrived English learners.       

ACTUAL
Newcomer support sections at the middle schools increased 
opportunities for success to recently arrived English learners.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
.4 FTE Newcomer tutorials .2 FTE @ each middle school 1000-1999: 
Certificated Personnel Salaries Supplemental  $30,000  

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
.4 FTE Newcomer tutorials .2 FTE @ each middle school 1000-1999: 
Certificated Personnel Salaries Supplemental 30,465

.4 FTE Newcomer tutorials .2 FTE @ each middle school 3000-3999: 
Employee Benefits Supplemental  $10,000 

.4 FTE Newcomer tutorials .2 FTE @ each middle school 3000-3999: 
Employee Benefits Supplemental 10,449

Action    3
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Newcomer support sections at the high school to increase 
opportunities for success to recently arrived English learners.       

ACTUAL
Newcomer support sections at the high school increased 
opportunities for success to recently arrived English learners.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
.2 FTE Newcomer Tutorial @ HH 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Supplemental  $12,580 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
.2 FTE Newcomer Tutorial @ HH 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries Supplemental 16,061

.2 FTE Newcomer Tutorial @ HH 3000-3999: Employee Benefits 
Supplemental  $4,880 

.2 FTE Newcomer Tutorial @ HH 3000-3999: Employee Benefits 
Supplemental 5,358

. 2 FTE Newcomer ELD Support 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Supplemental  $12,580 

. 2 FTE Newcomer ELD Support 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries Supplemental 16,061

. 2 FTE Newcomer ELD Support 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Supplemental  $4,880 

. 2 FTE Newcomer ELD Support 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries Supplemental 5,358

. 2 FTE Newcomer Academy Math 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries Supplemental  $14,273 

. 2 FTE Newcomer Academy Math 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries Supplemental 10,811

. 2 FTE Newcomer Academy Math 3000-3999: Employee Benefits 
Supplemental  $4,590 

.2 FTE Newcomer Academy Math 3000-3999: Employee Benefits 
Supplemental 2,917

. 2 FTE Newcomer Academy Science 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries Supplemental  $12,580 

. 2 FTE Newcomer Academy Science 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries Supplemental 17,729

. 2 FTE Newcomer Academy Science 3000-3999: Employee Benefits 
Supplemental  $4,880 

. 2 FTE Newcomer Academy Science 3000-3999: Employee Benefits 
Supplemental 4,069

Action    4
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Support for EL's and their parents at middle and high school. 
(.5 at Branciforte MS, Mission Hill MS, Harbor HS, Soquel HS 
and Santa Cruz HS)       

ACTUAL
Support for ELs and their parents at middle and high school. 
(.5 at Branciforte MS, Mission Hill MS, Harbor HS, Soquel HS 
and Santa Cruz HS)

221 of 569



Page 46 of 142

Expenditures
BUDGETED
2.5 FTE School Community Coordinator at middle school and 
comprehensive high schools 2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries 
Supplemental  $77,630 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
2.5 FTE School Community Coordinator at middle school and 
comprehensive high schools 2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries 
Supplemental 97,894

2.5 FTE School Community Coordinator 3000-3999: Employee Benefits 
Supplemental  $88,510 

2.5 FTE School Community Coordinator 3000-3999: Employee Benefits 
Supplemental 69,993

Action    5
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Curriculum, Assessment and Intervention staff to support ELs, 
RFEPs, Immigrants, Migrants, and Low Income students.       

ACTUAL
Curriculum, Assessment and Intervention staff to support 
ELs, RFEPs, Immigrants, Migrants, and Low Income 
students.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
Administrative Secretary 2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries 
Supplemental  $41,033 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
Administrative Secretary 2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries 
Supplemental 43,912

Adminstrative Secretary 3000-3999: Employee Benefits Supplemental  
$20,455 

Administrative Secretary 3000-3999: Employee Benefits Supplemental 
22,248

Site Program Coordinator 2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries 
Supplemental  $20,488 

Site Program Coordinator 2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries 
Supplemental 22,958

Site Program Coordinator 3000-3999: Employee Benefits Supplemental  
$11,475 

Site Program Coordinator 3000-3999: Employee Benefits Supplemental 
12,836

Site Program Coordinator 2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries Title I 
$39,419 

Site Program Coordinator 2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries Title I 
42,925

Site Program Coordinator 3000-3999: Employee Benefits Title I $22,078 Site Program Coordinator 3000-3999: Employee Benefits Title I 23,982

Action    6
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Professional Development for elementary teachers to meet 
needs of ELs.       

ACTUAL
Professional Development for elementary teachers to meet 
needs of ELs.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
Teacher stipends to attend EL PLC 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries Title III $5,000 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
Teacher stipends to attend EL PLC 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries Title III 1,500

Teacher stipends to attend EL Progress Monitoring Group 1000-1999: 
Certificated Personnel Salaries Title III $5,000 

Teacher stipends to attend EL Progress Monitoring Group 1000-1999: 
Certificated Personnel Salaries Title III 3,119

Action    7
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Supplies to support parent engagement in District Advisory 
Committee       

ACTUAL
Supplies to support parent engagement in District Advisory 
Committee

Expenditures
BUDGETED ESTIMATED ACTUAL

222 of 569



Page 47 of 142

EWA's, translation and meeting supplies 4300 MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 
Supplemental $3,500 

EWAs, translation and meeting supplies 4300 MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 
Supplemental 3,945

ANALYSIS
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed.

Use actual annual measurable outcome data, including performance data from the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable.

Describe the overall implementation of the 
actions/services to achieve the articulated goal.

This goal, eliminating the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic groups within the 
SCCS community, and increasing the percent of English Learners meeting Annual Measurable 
Achievement Objective #1 (AMAO1) will increase until 100% meet the target, included a number of actions 
and services.  This year's targets were met with spring 2017 measures.  All of the actions and services 
were implemented.  

--------Describe the overall effectiveness of the actions/services 
to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the LEA.

The overall effectiveness of the actions/services to achieve the articulated goals as measured by both 
State and local indicators demonstrated continual academic growth. The indicators also highlighted the 
need to have a continued focus on our English Language Learner population. The current data showed 
some improvements. Elementary EL students making one year's growth in English increased by 7% to 
58% and secondary EL students making one year's growth in English increased by 8% to 60%.  

--------Explain material differences between Budgeted 
Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures.

We had a shift in staffing in our School Community Coordinator positions.  New employees were placed in 
different spots on the salary schedule and had different health and welfare benefit needs.  We also had 
fewer stipends than projected for the English Learner PLC and Progress Monitoring teams.

--------Describe any changes made to this goal, expected 
outcomes, metrics, or actions and services to achieve this 
goal as a result of this analysis and analysis of the LCFF 
Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable. Identify where those 
changes can be found in the LCAP.

There will no longer be AMAOs (measures of a year's growth) to measure student growth because of the 
elimination of the CELDT exam next year. We have established new metrics to monitor EL student growth 
and achievement.  These changes in the goal, metrics, and outcomes can be found in goal 3.

223 of 569



Page 48 of 142

Annual Update LCAP Year Reviewed:   2016-17

Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed.

Goal
10

All students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and career opportunities.

The percent of students that pass a Career Technical Education (CTE) class with a grade of C or higher will increase by 1% each year.

       
----------State and/or Local Priorities Addressed by this goal: STATE       1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

COE       9 10
LOCAL   District Goal 3

ANNUAL MEASURABLE OUTCOMES

EXPECTED ACTUAL

92% of CTE students will pass their CTE course with a C or higher.      94.3% of CTE students passed their CTE course with a C or higher.      

ACTIONS / SERVICES

Duplicate the Actions/Services from the prior year LCAP and complete a copy of the following table for each. Duplicate the table as needed.

startcollapse

Action    1
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Provide increased advisement time for students on CTE 
options and more time for students to complete CTE projects 
when needed

Increase CTE pathways

Offer variety of CTE courses with adequate equipment and 
supplies to offer appealing course options that lead to CTE 
careers

ACTUAL
Provided increased advisement time for students on CTE 
options and more time for students to complete CTE projects 
when needed

Increased  number of CTE pathways, including adding a new 
computer science pathway at all three comprehensive high 
schools

224 of 569



Page 49 of 142

Early College Outreach Parent Program
       

Offered variety of CTE courses with adequate equipment and 
supplies to offer appealing course options that lead to CTE 
careers

Created Early College Outreach Parent Program

Expenditures
BUDGETED
 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries Supplemental   

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries  

 3000-3999: Employee Benefits Supplemental    3000-3999: Employee Benefits  

Action    2
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Offer variety of CTE courses with adequate equipment and 
supplies to offer appealing course options that lead to CTE 
careers

Provide increased advisement time for students on CTE 
options and more time for students to complete CTE projects 
when needed

Increase CTE pathways

Offer variety of CTE courses with adequate equipment and 
supplies to offer appealing course options that lead to CTE 
careers
       

ACTUAL
Offered variety of CTE courses with adequate equipment and 
supplies to offer appealing course options that lead to CTE 
careers

Provided increased advisement time for students on CTE 
options and more time for students to complete CTE projects 
when needed

Increased CTE pathways

Offered variety of CTE courses with adequate equipment and 
supplies to offer appealing course options that lead to CTE 
careers

Expenditures
BUDGETED
Provide sufficient resources to CTE course. 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
Carl D. Perkins Career and Technical Education $63,890 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
Provide sufficient resources to CTE course. (Also paid from Rs 6300) 4000-
4999: Books And Supplies Carl D. Perkins Career and Technical Education 
51,061

Stipends and hourly pay for CTE teachers to lead student groups and 
coordinate with advisory committees. 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries Carl D. Perkins Career and Technical Education $9,645 

Stipends and hourly pay for CTE teachers to lead student groups and 
coordinate with advisory committees. )Also paid from Rs 6387) 1000-1999: 
Certificated Personnel Salaries Carl D. Perkins Career and Technical 
Education 1,693

Stipends and hourly pay for CTE teachers to lead student groups and 
coordinate with advisory committees. 3000-3999: Employee Benefits Carl D. 
Perkins Career and Technical Education $2,658 

Stipends and hourly pay for CTE teachers to lead student groups and 
coordinate with advisory committees. 3000-3999: Employee Benefits Carl 
D. Perkins Career and Technical Education 344

Action    3
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Early College Outreach Parent Program       

ACTUAL
Early College Outreach Parent Program

225 of 569



Page 50 of 142

Expenditures
BUDGETED
Migrant parent education 5800: Professional/Consulting Services And 
Operating Expenditures Title III $5,000 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
Migrant parent education 5800: Professional/Consulting Services And 
Operating Expenditures Title III 900

ANALYSIS
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed.

Use actual annual measurable outcome data, including performance data from the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable.

Describe the overall implementation of the 
actions/services to achieve the articulated goal.

Actions and services were implemented on some level toward the goal of students becoming prepared to 
successfully access post-secondary college and career opportunities and increasing the percent of 
students that pass a Career Technical Education (CTE) class with a grade of C or higher, included a 
number of services.

Students took advantage of increased CTE offerings and more clearly delineated pathways. We added the 
computer science pathway at one high school this past spring and will add the computer science pathway 
to the other two comprehensive high schools in the fall.

We were unable to provide the Early College Outreach Parent Program this year as trainers were not 
available.

--------Describe the overall effectiveness of the actions/services 
to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the LEA.

There was an increased focus on career opportunities through the increased number of pathways 
established at the high schools. Also, we exceeded our articulated goal. 94.3% of CTE students passed 
their CTE course with a grade C or higher; our goal was 93%. 

--------Explain material differences between Budgeted 
Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures.

There was less participation by teachers in the CTE advisory committee process than projected and fewer 
requests for materials from Perkins eligible courses than projected.  The Early College Outreach Parent 
Program was not available to do conduct a parent education series as planned.  Other migrant services 
have been scheduled for this summer with the balance of funds. 

--------Describe any changes made to this goal, expected 
outcomes, metrics, or actions and services to achieve this 
goal as a result of this analysis and analysis of the LCFF 
Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable. Identify where those 
changes can be found in the LCAP.

As the new California Dashboard includes a College and Career Readiness Indicator (CCI), that will 
become our new metric.  We address CTE pathway actions and services and the new CCI metric in Goal 
#1 in the 2017-18 LCAP.

226 of 569



Page 51 of 142

Annual Update LCAP Year Reviewed:   2016-17

Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed.

Goal
11

We will close achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic groups within the SCCS school community through targeted reading 
interventions during the day and monitoring student achievement every six weeks.

       

----------State and/or Local Priorities Addressed by this goal: STATE       1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
COE       9 10
LOCAL   District Goals 1 & 3

ANNUAL MEASURABLE OUTCOMES

EXPECTED ACTUAL

The percentage of EL, RFEP,  and LI students who score At or 
Exceeds Standard in ELA will increase 5% each year.

2015 CAASPP Results Met or Exceeded Standards

5th Grade ELA
ALL               60%
ELs               58%
RFEP           35%
LI                  30%

8th Grade ELA
ALL              59%
ELs              41%
RFEP          36%
LI                 42%

11th Grade ELA
ALL            64%
ELs            35%
RFEP        50%
LI               46%

      

The percentage of EL, RFEP, and LI students who score At or Exceeds Standard in 
ELA and Math are listed below.

2016 CAASPP Results Met or Exceeded Standards

5th Grade ELA
ALL       64%
ELs       40%
RFEP    50%
LI            38%

8th Grade ELA
ALL        65%
ELs        41%
RFEP    47%
LI           46%

11th Grade ELA
ALL       46%
ELs       41%
RFEP   45%
LI          39%

      
227 of 569



Page 52 of 142

ACTIONS / SERVICES

Duplicate the Actions/Services from the prior year LCAP and complete a copy of the following table for each. Duplicate the table as needed.

startcollapse

Action    1
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Establish an EL Task Force

Create an EL position to focus and coordinate services for 
English Language Learners

Accept recommendations from EL Task Force/Think Tank

Provide EL coaching and support to teachers

Consider creating an EL Summer Academy for teachers on 
how best to assist English Learners in reading, writing, math

Students assessed every six weeks

Teachers and administrators examine data to chart course of 
action(s), adjust as necessary

Time provided for teachers to plan collaboratively

Response to Intervention coordinators assist in leading 
discussions on student progress monitoring through 
Professional Learning Communities with a focus on our 
targeted populations and next strategic steps...

Site-based interventions at each school site for students in 
need of more time for increasing a specific skill set as 
determined by a site based leadership process consistent with 
an engagement and inclusive process.

       

ACTUAL
Established an EL Task Force

Created an EL position to focus and coordinate services for 
English Language Learners

Accepted most recommendations from EL Task Force/Think 
Tank

Provided EL coaching and support to teachers

We did not create an EL Summer Academy for teachers on 
how best to assist English Learners in reading, writing, math 
as there was extensive content area training in mathematics 
and there were not enough resources.

Students at the elementary were assessed every six weeks

Teachers and administrators examined data to chart course 
of action(s), adjust as necessary

Time was provided for teachers to plan collaboratively

Response to Intervention coordinators assisted in leading 
discussions on student progress monitoring through 
Professional Learning Communities with somewhat of a focus 
on our targeted populations and next strategic steps.

Site-based interventions occurred at each school site for 
students in need of more time for increasing a specific skill 
set as determined by a site based leadership.

228 of 569



Page 53 of 142

Expenditures
BUDGETED
Elementary site-based interventions:  Walk to Read Coordinator at four 
elementary schools 1100 CERT TEACHERS' SALARIES-REG. 
Supplemental  $320,565 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
Elementary site-based interventions:  Walk to Read Coordinator at four 
elementary schools 1100 CERT TEACHERS' SALARIES-REG. 
Supplemental 332,040

Elementary site-based interventions: Walk to Read Coordinator at four 
elementary schools 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS Supplemental  $89,717 

Elementary site-based interventions: Walk to Read Coordinator at four 
elementary schools 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS Supplemental 96,691

Elementary site-based interventions: 8 Walk to Read  Instructional Techs 
2000 >CLASS PERSONNEL SALARIES Supplemental  $122,800 

Elementary site-based interventions: 8 Walk to Read  Instructional Techs 
2000 >CLASS PERSONNEL SALARIES Supplemental 111,897

Elementary site-based interventions: 8 Walk to Read Instructional Techs 
3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS Supplemental  $11,788 

Elementary site-based interventions: 8 Walk to Read Instructional Techs 
3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS Supplemental 14,970

Elementary site-based interventions: Learning assistant at Monarch 2000 
>CLASS PERSONNEL SALARIES Supplemental  $11,489 

Elementary site-based interventions: Learning assistant at Monarch 2000 
>CLASS PERSONNEL SALARIES Supplemental 11,926

Elementary site-based interventions: Learning assistant at Monarch 3000-
3999: Employee Benefits Supplemental  $1,103 

Elementary site-based interventions: Learning assistant at Monarch 3000-
3999: Employee Benefits Supplemental 1,165

Elementary site-based interventions  4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
Supplemental  $173,909 

Elementary site-based interventions  4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
Supplemental 102,703

Secondary site-based interventions 4300 MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 
Supplemental $253,693 

Secondary site-based interventions 4300 MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 
Supplemental 235,215

ANALYSIS
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed.

Use actual annual measurable outcome data, including performance data from the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable.

Describe the overall implementation of the 
actions/services to achieve the articulated goal.

The overall implementation of services to achieve the goal of closing the achievement gaps in reading that 
currently exist between demographic groups within the SCCS school community through targeted reading 
interventions during the day and monitoring student achievement, every six weeks included a number 
actions.

We established an EL Task Force, created an EL position to focus and coordinate services for English 
Language Learners, accepted most recommendations from EL Task Force, provided EL coaching and 
support to teachers in reading, and provided targeted interventions. Students at the elementary were 
assessed every six weeks.  Teachers and administrators examined data to chart course of action(s) and 
adjusted as necessary. Time was provided for teachers to plan collaboratively. Elementary Response to 
Intervention Coordinators led trimester data reviews with grade levels on reading progress (Low Income, 
English Learners, and Foster Youth). As a result,  site-based interventions occurred at each school site for 
students in need of more time for increasing a specific skill set as determined by a site based leadership 
team, again, based on data.

--------

229 of 569



Page 54 of 142

Describe the overall effectiveness of the actions/services 
to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the LEA.

The effectiveness of actions and services to achieve our goal resulted in increased achievement in reading 
in our TK program. For instance, at the elementary schools, actions resulted in 86% proficient in sight and 
sound words; this is an increase from the prior year score of 82%. On the CAASPP, our 5th grades 
proficiency achievement increased from 60% to 64%; 8th grade increased from 59% to 65%. However, in 
our 11th grade ELA proficiency, we decreased from 64% to 46%.

--------Explain material differences between Budgeted 
Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures.

There was a difference between budgeted expenditures and estimated actual expenditures for materials 
and supplies.  We did not need as many materials as projected for the RtI program.  Further, our sites with 
new administrators and new administrative secretaries struggled with the DS system and understanding 
their available resources.  We will provide additional training at these sites in the coming year to assist 
them with accessing the site based intervention resources.

--------Describe any changes made to this goal, expected 
outcomes, metrics, or actions and services to achieve this 
goal as a result of this analysis and analysis of the LCFF 
Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable. Identify where those 
changes can be found in the LCAP.

This goal is similar to others in the document.  We are aligning all of the goals in the LCAP to the District's 
Strategic Goals and Metrics.  Closing the gap in reading achievement is addressed in the new goal #3. 

230 of 569



Page 55 of 142

Annual Update LCAP Year Reviewed:   2016-17

Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed.

Goal
12

All SCCS will be motivated learners who leave our system as well-rounded citizens with a broad spectrum of interests and abilities.

       

----------State and/or Local Priorities Addressed by this goal: STATE       1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
COE       9 10
LOCAL   District Goal #2

ANNUAL MEASURABLE OUTCOMES

EXPECTED ACTUAL

Suspensions will decrease by 10 from 210 to 200 in  2015-2016.

Expulsions will decrease by 2 from 19 in 2014-15 to 17 in 2015-16.

Elementary chronic absenteeism rate will decrease by .5% from 9.5% 
in 2014-15 to 9% in 2015-16.

Middle school chronic absenteeism rate will decrease by .5% from 
10.5% in 2014-15 to 10% in 2015-16.

High school chronic absenteeism rate will decrease by .5% from 
16.5% in 2014-15 to 16% in 2015-16.

Elementary attendance rate increase by .5% from 95% in 2014-15 to 
95.5% in 2015-16.

Secondary attendance rate increase by .5% from 94.5% in 2014-15 to 
95% in 2015-16.
      

Suspensions decreased by 32 from 210 to 178 in  2015-2016 and decreased by 10  
to 168 in 2016-17

Expulsions remained the same from 19 in 2014-15 to 19 in 2015-16, but increased to 
30 in 2016-17

Elementary chronic absenteeism increased from 9.5% in 2014-15 to 12.5% in 2015-
16.

Middle School chronic absenteeism rate increased from 10.5% in 2014-15 to 11% in 
2015-16.

High School chronic absenteeism rate decrease from 16.5% in 2014-15 to 12% in 
2015-16.

Elementary attendance rate decreased from 95% in 2014-15 to 94.6% in 2015-16.

Secondary attendance rate decreased from 94.5% in 2014-15 to 94.14% in 2015-16.
      

ACTIONS / SERVICES

Duplicate the Actions/Services from the prior year LCAP and complete a copy of the following table for each. Duplicate the table as needed.

231 of 569



Page 56 of 142

startcollapse

Action    1
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Contract with SCCCS Youth Services for Social Work Interns 
to ensure academic success by meeting basic mental health 
needs of students.       

ACTUAL
Contracted with SCCCS Youth Services for Social Work 
Interns to ensure academic success by meeting basic mental 
health needs of students.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
Social Work Interns 5800: Professional/Consulting Services And Operating 
Expenditures Supplemental  $24,500 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
Social Work Interns 5800: Professional/Consulting Services And Operating 
Expenditures Supplemental  24,500

Action    2
Actions/Services

PLANNED
PIP Aides to serve Foster and/or homeless primary students 
and help them adjust to school       

ACTUAL
PIP Aides served Foster and/or homeless primary students 
and help them adjust to school

Expenditures
BUDGETED
1.5 FTE Primary Intervention Project (PIP) Aides 2000-2999: Classified 
Personnel Salaries Supplemental  $53,445 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
1.5 FTE Primary Intervention Project (PIP) Aides 2000-2999: Classified 
Personnel Salaries Supplemental 53,403

1.5 FTE Primary Intervention Project (PIP) Aides 3000-3999: Employee 
Benefits Supplemental  $5,166 

1.5 FTE Primary Intervention Project (PIP) Aides 3000-3999: Employee 
Benefits Supplemental 5,120

Action    3
Actions/Services

PLANNED
2.2 FTE Elementary Counselors to help students develop 
social-emotional skills to succeed in school. (.5 at 
comprehensive elementary schools and .2 at Monarch)       

ACTUAL
2.2 FTE Elementary Counselors helped students develop 
social-emotional skills to succeed in school. (.5 at 
comprehensive elementary schools and .2 at Monarch)

Expenditures
BUDGETED
2.2 FTE Elementary Counselors (.5 at comprehensive elementary schools 
and .2 at Monarch 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries Supplemental  
$158,081 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
2.2 FTE Elementary Counselors (.5 at comprehensive elementary schools 
and .2 at Monarch 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Supplemental $139,802

2.2 FTE Elementary Counselors 3000-3999: Employee Benefits 
Supplemental  $45,067 

2.2 FTE Elementary Counselors 3000-3999: Employee Benefits 
Supplemental  $43,028

Action    4
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Social workers       

ACTUAL
Social workers

Expenditures
BUDGETED
2.0 FTE Social workers 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Supplemental  $141,000 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
2.0 FTE Social workers 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Supplemental 146,448

232 of 569



Page 57 of 142

2.0 FTE Social workers 3000-3999: Employee Benefits Supplemental  
$50,790 

2.0 FTE Social workers 3000-3999: Employee Benefits Supplemental 
47,936

Student Services supplies 4300 MATERIALS & SUPPLIES Supplemental 
$1,000 

Student Services supplies 4300 MATERIALS & SUPPLIES Supplemental 
103

Student Services mileage 5200 MILEAGE, TRAVEL & CONFERENCES 
Supplemental $1,000 

Student Services mileage 5200 MILEAGE, TRAVEL & CONFERENCES 
Supplemental 0

Action    5
Actions/Services

PLANNED
.8 FTE PBIS Coach to support the implementation of Positive 
Behavior Intervention and Support programs at all four 
elementary schools       

ACTUAL
.4 FTE PBIS Coach to support the implementation of Positive 
Behavior Intervention and Support programs at all four 
elementary schools

Expenditures
BUDGETED
.8 FTE PBIS Coach 1100 CERT TEACHERS' SALARIES-REG. 
Supplemental $60,082 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
.4 FTE PBIS Coach 1100 CERT TEACHERS' SALARIES-REG. 
Supplemental 22,650

.8 FTE PBIS Coach 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS Supplemental $20,341 .4 FTE PBIS Coach 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS Supplemental 3,602

Action    6
Actions/Services

PLANNED
.6 FTE Counselor  (.2 at each comprehensive high school)       

ACTUAL
.6 FTE Counselor  (.2 at each comprehensive high school)

Expenditures
BUDGETED
.6 FTE counselor (.2 at each comprehensive high school) 1100 CERT 
TEACHERS' SALARIES-REG. Supplemental $45,183 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
.6 FTE Counselor  (.2 at each comprehensive high school) 1100 CERT 
TEACHERS' SALARIES-REG. Supplemental 41,276

.6 FTE counselor (.2 at each comprehensive high school) 3000 EMPLOYEE 
BENEFITS Supplemental $13,338 

.6 FTE Counselor  (.2 at each comprehensive high school) 3000 
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS Supplemental 9,672

ANALYSIS
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed.

Use actual annual measurable outcome data, including performance data from the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable.

Describe the overall implementation of the 
actions/services to achieve the articulated goal.

Actions and services were implemented to some degree towards the goal of students becoming motivated 
learners who leave our system as well-rounded citizens with a broad spectrum of interests and abilities. 
We contracted with SCCCS Youth Services for Social Work Interns to meet basic mental health needs of 
students. We maintained primary intervention aids at the elementary to assist students with social and or 
emotional challenges. We hired a .4 PBIS Coach  to support the implementation of Positive Behavior 
Intervention Support programs at all four traditional elementary schools and hired social workers to assist 
families in need of accessing resources. 

--------

233 of 569



Page 58 of 142

Describe the overall effectiveness of the actions/services 
to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the LEA.

For this section, there were successes and challenges. The data points used include a number of focus 
areas. Suspensions decreased by 31 from 210 to 178 in  2015-2016.  Suspensions further decreased to 
168 in 2017-18. Expulsions increased significantly in 2016-17.  We are looking at specific behaviors that 
can be addressed with curriculum in the coming school year.  Elementary chronic absenteeism rate 
increased from 9.5% in 2014-15 to 12.5% in 2015-16. Middle school chronic absenteeism rate increased 
from 10.5% in 2014-15 to 11% in 2015-16, and high school chronic absenteeism rate decreased from 
16.5% in 2014-15 to 12% in 2015-16. We do not have access to 2016-17 data on chronic absenteeism to 
date.  Elementary attendance rate decreased from 95% in 2014-15 to 94.6% in 2015-16; and secondary 
attendance rate decreased very slightly from 94.5% in 2014-15 to 94.14% in 2015-16.  The business office 
is still running reports on attendance for 2016-17.

--------Explain material differences between Budgeted 
Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures.

The actual cost of elementary counselors was lower than budgeted.  A new counselor was hired and came 
in lower on the pay scale than the person she replaced.  We were only able to hire a .4 PBIS coach as the 
.8 put us over our initial budget for staffing.  

--------Describe any changes made to this goal, expected 
outcomes, metrics, or actions and services to achieve this 
goal as a result of this analysis and analysis of the LCFF 
Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable. Identify where those 
changes can be found in the LCAP.

This goal was adjusted to match District Strategic Goal #2 SCCS will create positive, engaging school 
environments that promote the development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all 
students.  Some of the same metrics will be used in the new Goal.  This is reflected in the new Goal #2. 

234 of 569



Page 59 of 142

Annual Update LCAP Year Reviewed:   2016-17

Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed.

Goal
13

SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnerships with its diverse parent community.
Rate of parents reporting involvement in schools will increase by 3% per year.
       

----------State and/or Local Priorities Addressed by this goal: STATE       1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
COE       9 10
LOCAL   District Goal #6

ANNUAL MEASURABLE OUTCOMES

EXPECTED ACTUAL

Participation in district-level committees at least occasionally will 
increase by 5% from 13% to 18%.      

Participation in district-level committees remained flat at 13%.      

ACTIONS / SERVICES

Duplicate the Actions/Services from the prior year LCAP and complete a copy of the following table for each. Duplicate the table as needed.

startcollapse

Action    1
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Parent training       

ACTUAL
Parent training

Expenditures
BUDGETED
Latino Role Model Events 5800 OTHER SVCS & OPER EXPENDITURES 
Supplemental  $5,000 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
Latino Role Model Events 5800 OTHER SVCS & OPER EXPENDITURES 
Supplemental $3,424

235 of 569



Page 60 of 142

ANALYSIS
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed.

Use actual annual measurable outcome data, including performance data from the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable.

Describe the overall implementation of the 
actions/services to achieve the articulated goal.

The actions in this Goal were implemented. Parents and community members participated in school and 
district level committees (School Site Councils; ELAC; DELAC; District Advisory Council; Parent Teacher 
Organization: and Latino Role Model student parent training(s) throughout the year).  Parents, staff, and 
students participated in a number surveys to provide input on the LCAP. Santa Cruz City Schools 
partnered with local organizations and worked together on initiatives that benefited students with a focus 
on Foster Youth, Low Income, and English Language Learners. 

--------Describe the overall effectiveness of the actions/services 
to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the LEA.

The overall effectiveness resulted in a community rallying together to provide the best opportunities for 
kids, resulting in passing a $207,000,000 facility bond this past November. As for determining increased 
parent involvement, just looking at the Latino Role Model parent outreach program, participation increased 
from 350 to over 400 parent and community members participation/attendance. Also, parent participation 
and input resulted in the creation of a curriculum and English Language Learners plans.

--------Explain material differences between Budgeted 
Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures.

The costs for transportation and lunches for the Latino Role Models Conference came in under budget.

--------Describe any changes made to this goal, expected 
outcomes, metrics, or actions and services to achieve this 
goal as a result of this analysis and analysis of the LCFF 
Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable. Identify where those 
changes can be found in the LCAP.

This goal is now goal #6 in the 2017-18 LCAP. The goal, actions, and metrics are expanded in the 
upcoming year to reflect the District's strategic goals and metrics.

236 of 569



Page 61 of 142

Annual Update LCAP Year Reviewed:   2016-17

Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed.

Goal
14

We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic groups within our SCCS school community.
Collaborate and coordinate with SCCOE Foster Youth Services
       

----------State and/or Local Priorities Addressed by this goal: STATE       1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
COE       9 10
LOCAL   District Goals 2 & 6

ANNUAL MEASURABLE OUTCOMES

EXPECTED ACTUAL

Collaborate and coordinate with Foster Youth Services to implement, 
on a countywide basis, services and programs for Foster Youth      

Collaborated and coordinated with Foster Youth Services to implement, on a 
countywide basis, services and programs for Foster Youth      

ACTIONS / SERVICES

Duplicate the Actions/Services from the prior year LCAP and complete a copy of the following table for each. Duplicate the table as needed.

startcollapse

Action    1
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Participate in the development and implementation of an 
educational plan for Foster Youth       

ACTUAL
Participated in the development and implementation of an 
educational plan for Foster Youth

Expenditures
BUDGETED
Existing personnel [approximately 2 days/year for secondary Assistant 
Principals ($7,121) and elementary counselors ($2,855)] at each site serve 
as FY site liaison. 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries Base $8,736 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
Existing personnel [approximately 2 days/year for secondary Assistant 
Principals ($7,121) and elementary counselors ($2,855)] at each site serve 
as FY site liaison. 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries Base 
$10,614

Existing personnel [approximately 2 days/year for secondary Assistant 
Principals ($7,121) and elementary counselors ($2,855)] at each site serve 
as FY site liaison. 3000-3999: Employee Benefits Base $1,240 

Existing personnel [approximately 2 days/year for secondary Assistant 
Principals ($7,121) and elementary counselors ($2,855)] at each site serve 
as FY site liaison. 3000-3999: Employee Benefits Base $1,688

237 of 569



Page 62 of 142

Action    2
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Utilize Foster Youth Goal Book Information system for regular 
communication with Foster Youth Education Team       

ACTUAL
Utilized Foster Youth Goal Book Information system for 
regular communication with Foster Youth Education Team

Expenditures
BUDGETED
.1 FTE Director of Student Services serves as the district liaison for Foster 
Youth 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries Base $10,118  

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
.1 FTE Director of Student Services serves as the district liaison for Foster 
Youth 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries Base $12,013

.1 FTE Director of Student Services serves as the district liaison for Foster 
Youth 3000-3999: Employee Benefits Base $3,349 

.1 FTE Director of Student Services serves as the district liaison for Foster 
Youth 3000-3999: Employee Benefits Base $2,959

ANALYSIS
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed.

Use actual annual measurable outcome data, including performance data from the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable.

Describe the overall implementation of the 
actions/services to achieve the articulated goal.

We implemented the overall actions and services toward the goal of  eliminating the achievement gaps that 
currently exist between demographic groups within our SCCS school community, along with collaborating 
and coordinating with SCCOE Foster Youth Services.

We were active participants in the development and implementation of an educational plan for Foster 
Youth, and  we participated in the utilization of Foster Youth Goal Book Information system for regular 
communication with Foster Youth Education Teams. Furthermore, we have a dedicated person to focus on 
our 39 foster youth.

--------Describe the overall effectiveness of the actions/services 
to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the LEA.

Our site counseling and teaching teams in collaboration with the Foster Youth Education Teams met 
regularly and supported the individualized needs of the Foster Youth in our District.

--------Explain material differences between Budgeted 
Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures.

There were no significant material differences between budgeted expenditures and estimated actual 
expenditures.

--------

238 of 569



Page 63 of 142

Describe any changes made to this goal, expected 
outcomes, metrics, or actions and services to achieve this 
goal as a result of this analysis and analysis of the LCFF 
Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable. Identify where those 
changes can be found in the LCAP.

This goal has been included as an action and service in the new LCAP Goal #2.  

239 of 569



Page 64 of 142

Stakeholder Engagement
--------------------LCAP Year 2017–18 2018–19 2019–20

----------
INVOLVEMENT PROCESS FOR LCAP AND ANNUAL UPDATE

How, when, and with whom did the LEA consult as part of the planning process for this LCAP/Annual Review and Analysis?

This section provides information about the process of involving stakeholders in developing recommendations for the 2017-18 LCAP.  The first section provides an overview of 
the process including meetings and surveys.  The second section provides observations of meeting attendance and efforts to support stronger participation.  The final section lists 
the types of information including qualitative and quantitative that was shared at the stakeholder meetings.

Overview of Process
1.  Stakeholders were involved in reviewing, making recommendations and sharing questions regarding the development and implementation of the LCAP.  This involvement was 
supported through open public meetings, stakeholder input meetings and surveys, both online and through the meeting structures.

a. Open public meetings:
Board of Trustees
Budget Advisory
Board Community Meetings

b. Stakeholder Input meetings with:
Students
Parents
Staff
Unions
District Advisory Committee

c.  Surveys
Electronic and through scheduled meetings

Stakeholders were involved through surveys and meetings.

Parent Leadership Committee                                                                                                        Oct. 4, 2016
Surveys to parents, students and staff                                                                                            Nov-Feb, 2016-17
Board Community Meeting                                                                                                              Sept. 14, 2016
Board Community Meeting                                                                                                              Oct. 19, 2016
Principal Meeting                                                                                                                             Dec. 2, 2016
District Advisory Committee                                                                                                            Jan 23, 2017
Budget Advisory Committee                                                                                                            Jan 31, 2017
Board Community Meeting                                                                                                              Feb. 1, 2017
Board Meeting to share survey results                                                                                            Feb. 15, 2017
District English Learner Advisory  Committee                                                                                 Feb. 21, 2017
Principal Meeting                                                                                                                             Feb 17, 2017
Principal Meeting                                                                                                                             Feb 3, 2017
Board meeting on data                                                                                                                    Feb. 9, 2017
Newcomer students                                                                                                                         Feb. 9, 2017
Principal Meeting                                                                                                                             Feb 17, 2017

240 of 569



Page 65 of 142

District Advisory Committee                                                                                                            Feb. 27, 2017
Parent Leadership Committee                                                                                                         Mar. 22, 2017
Parent Advisory Committee                                                                                                             Apr. 20, 2017
DELAC                                                                                                                                             Apr. 20, 2017
Board Meeting                                                                                                                                  May. 10, 2017
Parent Advisory Committee                                                                                                             May. 18, 2017
DELAC                                                                                                                                             May. 18, 2017
Board Meeting – hearing                                                                                                                  June. 14, 2017
Board Meeting – approval                                                                                                                June. 28, 2017

       

2. Observations of meeting attendance and survey response:

The District Advisory Committee (DAC) meetings had attendance between 16-27 participants.  This year, the DAC also had a representative from the Foster Youth Collaborative.  
The DELAC meetings in had higher attendance – close to 40 participants.

Attendance at Board Community Meetings varied from a handful of people to 30 participants.

Attendance at leadership and budget advisory committee meetings was very consistent.  The leadership team includes both certificated and classified staff and attendance was 
close to 45 participants at each meeting.

The budget advisory committee includes representatives from parent groups, union, leadership, county office and cabinet.  Between 15-25 members attended each meeting.

This was the second year we held a PTA/PTC and ELAC Presidents' meetings with parent leaders.   Between 12-21 parents came to this meeting.  Plans were made to promote 
the meeting earlier in the year for 2016-17.

Meetings with students happened during their school day and often as part of a class meeting.  As a result we had a significant student response this year than last.

Surveys were designed to elicit feedback on three core areas of the LCAP: conditions for learning, pupil outcomes and parent/student engagement.   All surveys were distributed 
in English and Spanish.  In addition, staff at the DELAC meeting transcribed individual responses for parents who were not comfortable writing a response on their own.

There was a change to the process. Site principals were instrumental in promoting student surveys.  As a result, we had the number of student surveys increase to over 300.

We saw a similar increase in participation with parent surveys through providing alternate means to complete the survey.  In 2015-16, 786 parents completed the survey as 
compared to 887 this year.  Of these, 41 surveys were completed at the DELAC meeting and Gault Elementary contributed an additional 32 surveys after a parent meeting.

An analysis of the survey participation showed that at our two largest elementary schools there was gap in parent participation.  7% of DeLaveaga parents responded as 
compared to 19% of Westlake parents.  There were 123 respondents from east side schools (Gault, DeLaveaga and Monarch), as compared to 205 responses from west side 
schools (Westlake and Bay View).

Similarly, the percentage of participation was slightly lower at the east side middle school, Branciforte had 66 parents completed surveys (7%) as compared with Mission Hill with 
82 (9%) parents completed surveys.  At the high schools, the range was 114 (13%) at Harbor, 188 (21%) at Soquel and 154 (17%) at Santa Cruz High.  Survey participation in 
the alternative schools was below 1% with the exception of Monarch 26 (3%).

Our staff LCAP survey elicited responses from 230 staff members.

       

241 of 569



Page 66 of 142

Information shared at meetings:

a. Cost of programs within the eight state priority areas
b. Data regarding the needs in the eight state priority areas
c.  Allocation of resources (staff, materials, and programs) in the eight state priority areas
d. Impact of the programs through analysis of student outcomes.

Information was shared with stakeholders in the three state priority areas.

Foundations for learning:
Percentage of certificated and classified staff who meet the criteria for NCLB.
Number of schools who rate “exemplary” on the FIT reports
Percentage of staff who are trained in Common Core State Standards
Percentage of classes that have access to Common Core State Standards’ curriculum

Pupil Outcomes
Data in this section was reported through assessment results in the following areas;

CAASPP for grades 3-8 English Language Arts and Math
CELDT scores for all English Learners
Reading scores in grades 2-9 through Scholastic Reading Inventory
Writing scores on local benchmarks for middle school
Percentage of students who meet the A-G requirements in high school
Number and percentage of students who pass Algebra with a C or above
Number of students who enroll in and pass AP classes with a grade of C or above

Student and Parent Engagement
Data in this section was reported through attendance rates at each grade span, the number of expulsions and parents reporting involvement on district schools committees, the 
CAASPP data, and the new LCFF data dashboard status for our district.

       

This section provides an update on the progress made toward each goal and the effectiveness of actions and services provided through the LCAP. This update makes a 
connection between observations of the progress and recommendations for revisions to the plan in subsequent years.  The following information was shared with stakeholders as 
part of our Annual Update.

       

Goal 1:
99.14% of certificated employees in SCCS meet the criteria for NCLB compliance.  This data illustrates the effectiveness of our human resource department in both recruiting 
qualified staff and assisting staff who need additional training. This year, we faced the challenge of filling 1 math positions and 2 special education positions.  Given this 
challenge, we had a few interns who will be completing their credential in the next two years.  Our plan for the coming years is to continue to work with teacher credentialing 
programs to recruit the most qualified candidates for certificated positions.  For our current staff, we will use our Title II funds to support their ongoing training and development.  
With a national and local teacher shortage in the areas of math and special education, our Assistant Superintendent of Human Resources has expanded our participation in 
recruitment fairs through out California in to Oregon.
       

Goal 2:
100% of classified staff meet the criteria for NCLB compliance. The human resources department conducts extensive assessments and review of experience and credentials 
when hiring classified staff.  The plan for coming years is to continue to maintain rigorous protocols that support both the hiring and retention of highly qualified staff.

242 of 569



Page 67 of 142

       

Goal 3:
According to our most recent FIT report, 11 of 13 sites rate as "good" and 2 rate as "fair". The facilities department has identified needs that we hope to address in the next three 
years.  The district will continue to support any identified needs that pose a safety threat and is in the process of engaging with an outside firm to conduct an overview of the 
extensive facility needs due to aging.  In addition, the district is creating a long range facilities master plan through a facilities task force and with the support of a consultant.  This 
master plan will guide the next steps toward improving facilities.
       

Goal 4:
100% of students had access to standards-aligned instructional materials in all subjects.  Our challenge will be to maintain this access as we adopt new instructional materials in 
English Language Arts and math for the coming two years as well as materials to support the Next Generation Science Standards.  We purchased new math texts for elementary 
and high school. For 2017-18, new Social Studies framework will be adopted this fall and we anticipate publishers will have materials available for adoption.
       

Goal 5:
100% of teachers in core subject areas, (English Language Arts, math, science, social studies, world language) received professional development in implementation of the 
CCSS within the past three years.  This training focused on the instructional shifts and included some opportunities for unit development.  There is tremendous need to address 
ongoing professional development for teachers in the next two years due to the adoption of NGSS.  To support teacher learning, the LCAP includes expenditures for teacher 
coaches in the following areas; elementary math, middle school core, elementary English Language Development, science, secondary English Language Development, 
secondary math, elementary and secondary Response to Intervention coordinators and a technology coach.  Stakeholders and school staff recommended maintaining these 
positions based on data that showed that our English Learners are not making progress toward proficiency in English, (CELDT and CAASPP). There is a gap between the 
performance of English Learners, RFEP and low-income students in local assessments for math and English as compared to English Only students and those not living in 
poverty.   As the gaps in proficiency reflect inequitable outcomes for student subgroups, we will continue to focus on how best to support quality instruction.
       

Goal 6:
This goal demonstrates our commitment to ensuring all students will meet the A-G requirements by 12th grade.
54% of 12th graders met A-G requirements in 2015-16, up from 53% in 2014-15
39% of low-income students met those requirements, (goal was 40%), up from 35% in 2014-15
18% of EL's met the requirement (goal was 5%), up from 8% in 2014-15
The graduation rate is 92.5% (goal was 90.3%), exceeding our goal.
The drop out rate increased slightly from 3.9%to 4.2%.
Clearly, we have more work to do.
We have directed funds in support for when students fail - through credit recovery - and support for students who are school-dependent.  The current plan maintains those 
expenditures including certificated staff to support the Cyber High credit recovery program.  This program enrolls between 170-220 students a year who have previously failed a 
course.  The goal is to maintain student progress toward graduation through providing an online course while students are concurrently enrolled in their high school program. The 
data on these courses shows a 95% completion rate.  Given the success of this program, we will continue to fund the release time and computer licenses.

To promote a college-going culture and readiness for the A-G, the LCAP provides funds for the Advancement Via Individual Determination, (AVID) program at each secondary 
school.  Funds go to support tutors, field trips and teacher stipends.

       

INVOLVEMENT PROCESS FOR LCAP AND ANNUAL UPDATE
IMPACT ON LCAP AND ANNUAL UPDATE

How did these consultations impact the LCAP for the upcoming year?

243 of 569



Page 68 of 142

This section begins with information about the process of reviewing stakeholder input.  This is followed by a summary of the stakeholder input in the three core areas of the LCAP; 
conditions for learning, pupil outcomes and parent and student engagement.  The last section makes the connection between stakeholder input and the proposed 2016-17 LCAP.

1.  Process of reviewing stakeholder input:
Input from stakeholders was reviewed with the District Advisory Committee, the Budget Advisory Committee, Board of Trustees and leadership team.   Each group had an 
opportunity to read the responses to multiple-choice questions as well as the narrative responses to more open-ended prompts.  In addition, leadership and the Budget Advisory 
committees reviewed the recommendations from the DAC based on survey results.

The surveys and meetings were designed to elicit feedback on the three state priority areas of the LCAP: Conditions for Learning, Pupil Outcomes and Parent/Student 
Engagement.

2. Summary of input from stakeholders

a.  Conditions for Learning: Facilities, credentialing, state standards and course access:
Parents, students and staff communicated the importance of;
Maintaining and improving facilities
Supporting teacher training
Maintaining small class sizes
Increasing access to technology
Supporting curriculum
Increasing the number of students in AP classes (high school)

b.  Pupil Outcomes: standardized tests, English Learner Proficiency and reclassification, pass rate on AP, and performance on EAP (Early Assessment Program), graduation rate, 
and number of students completing A-G classes.

Parent, student and staff survey responses indicated the need to provide academic support outside the day through tutoring and homework clubs as well as during the day through 
specialized classes and support including tutors.  In addition, all stakeholders recommended academic counseling through the school and counseling for college and career.

Students in particular made note of the importance of bilingual support both with instruction and materials.  These students shared their concern about access through class 
meetings and surveys.

Students in the AP and AVID classes reflected on the positive impact of a curriculum that helped them set goals beyond high school.

c.  Student and Parent Engagement: attendance, graduation rate, suspension and expulsion rates, school climate
Parents, students and staff reported that school personnel, activities and supports have a positive impact on student engagement.  In addition, parents emphasized the importance 
of social/emotional counseling supports in school and strong encouraged the ongoing support for social workers and PIP aides along with full time counselors in elementary 
schools.

In addition to these supports, parents, students and staff recommended an increase in activities to connect students with school.  In secondary, there were several 
recommendations to support increased access to activities and athletics outside of school.  For high school, there was a recommendation to expand inter mural offerings during the 
day and increased opportunities to participate on athletic teams for students who are new to a sport.  High school principals also recommended extra hourly for an inter mural 
sports or activity coordinator.

Teachers and tutors figured prominently in the narrative about school strengths.  Students in ELD shared that this class along with tutors and caring teachers supporting their 
learning. Another common theme in student response was a reflection on how much their teachers cared about their success.

Students had several recommendations for revisions to the plan including greater support for facilities, athletics and equipment, more access to computers, and less homework.

The DAC reviewed all input and made note of how the current LCAP is meeting the needs expressed by stakeholders as well as where there are gaps.

The following are resources provided through the LCAP that were addressed in surveys;
244 of 569



Page 69 of 142

Support with outcomes
o AVID
o Cyber High
o ELD and Newcomer sections
o Math support – tutors
o Teacher coaching and support

Support with engagement
o Technology
o Homework Support
o AVID field trips
o Middle School after school program
o Sports programs

There were also gaps between expressed need and the current plan;
Support with outcomes:
o Spanish speaking tutors and translation
o More math support
o HW support during the day
o Professional development for teachers on Common Core State Standards and technology integration
o Support with preparations to go to college - navigating financial aid, enrollment and scheduling as well as writing essays for the application process to college or university

Support with engagement:
o More technology - computers
o More help with math
o More help with homework
o Concern about racism and discrimination
o Clubs
o Enrichment
o Social Emotional support

       

Impact of input on the 2016-17 LCAP

Based on a review of the input the following represents revisions to the plan as well as other funding sources that were established to meet the needs as expressed by 
stakeholders.

Foundations for Learning

1.  Work on facilities through Long Range Master Facility Planning
Superintendent and Assistant Superintendent of Business established two task forces to assess our facility needs and prepare to go out for a bond this fall.

2.  Professional development for teachers
The Educator Effectiveness Funding Grant will provide funds for the next two years to support teacher training in the CCSS and NGSS, technology integration as well as provide 
coaching support to veteran teachers who may be struggling.

In addition, with a math adoption in high school, the new plan includes a .2 CPM math coach at each school including the alternative high school and release time for math 
coaching and training in elementary and high school.

245 of 569



Page 70 of 142

3.  Course Access
All three high schools are working to increase the number of AP and honors courses at their school and reduce barriers to underrepresented students.

Pupil Outcomes
1.  Increase the number of students going on to college

The recommendation to increase the number of students going on to college will be addressed through the Santa Cruz County College Commitment (S4C).  The plan includes field 
trips, counseling, informational events, and university tutors.  S4C currently provides two field trips a year to a college campus in 4th and 7th grade.
The Migrant department is establishing a student club that will also take field trips to local universities.

The 2017-18 LCAP includes a recommendation to support the Latino Role Model conference on the campus of Cabrillo.

S4C will also provide high school counselors with some additional tools to better prepare their students to access post college and career opportunities.

The current LCAP provides for bilingual tutors during the day and through homework club.  Our plan is to continue to work with both UCSC and Cabrillo to ensure that our students 
have access to this support.

2.  Math support
Secondary
Provide a Math Plus section at each high school.  This will be a flexible intervention period for students who are struggling with both classwork and homework.

We will continue to provide a full time RtI coordinator at each school who helps build the systems for monitoring the progress of students and of the program.

Each high school will maintain a homework club with tutors after school and during the day.  Every effort will be made to recruit and retain bilingual tutors.

Middle School
An after school program at both sites will provide math support for an hour four times a week.  Funds from LCFF and Measure O will support a coordinator, learning assistants and 
supplies.  An RtI coordinator will also coordinate progress monitoring and services.

Elementary
A full time math coach will continue to coordinate the math training around for the adoption of Eureka Math.  In addition, teachers will continue to be provided with ongoing training, 
release time and coaching support through multiple funding sources.

Student and Parent Engagement
1.  Technology
The plan is to increase the number of Chrome books and carts at each school site.  In addition, the district has applied for and received a grant from the state – Career Technology 
Education Incentive Grant (CTEIG) that will provide funding for a computer science pathway beginning in middle school and extending through AP Computer Programming in high 
school.

The Educator Effectiveness Funding Grant will also provide training for teachers in technology integration in their curriculum.

2.  Racism
We will continue to focus on closing the achievement gap.  This work will be funded through a number sources. In the middle and high schools, We will build upon the work that we 
started on anti-racist practices through curriculum and instruction.

School site leadership teams and central office staff will monitor the impact of this work through pupil outcomes and surveys.

3.  Clubs and Activities
Clubs and their activities are supported by the ASB at each high school.  In middle school, the plan is to promote youth development through after school programs and in 
elementary, a grant from the state provides these programs in two schools.  DeLaveaga plans to use their Title I and LCFF supplemental to support an after school homework club, 

246 of 569



Page 71 of 142

Listos while Westlake’s parent community provides several after school learning opportunities.  The level of support from the state is dependent upon the number and percentage of 
students living in poverty.  As Westlake and Mission Hill has fewer low-income students they receive no Title I support and parent groups fundraise to provide these opportunities.

4.  Enrichment
The board voted to increase funding for classroom supplies that led to an increase in funds available through the parent clubs to support enrichment.  Prior to this increase, parent 
clubs were raising funds for each classroom.

5.  Social Emotional Support
Teachers at some of our schools were trained by Trauma Informed Schools.  This training has lead to significant shifts in classroom practice and a reduction in referrals to the 
office.

This training has been shared with all schools with the plan of expanding the model over the next three years.

       

This section will provide information about how stakeholders were involved in updating the LCAP.  This is followed by a reflection on the implementation of the 2016-17 LCAP and 
recommendations from the data.

1.  Stakeholders were formally involved in the development of the LCAP update on at least 24 different occasions in order to promote engagement with the measurable outcome 
data, actions and services rendered, and budget expenditures.  Stakeholders made various suggestions for changes.  While parts of those meetings were dedicated to explaining 
LCFF and LCAP and the LCAP process, most of those meetings were specifically designed to involve the stakeholders in the development of the LCAP update.  The stakeholders 
groups (DAC, Leadership, LCAP Monitoring Team, parents, high school and middle school students, leadership, DELAC, PAC, Foster Youth representatives, principals, Budget 
Advisory Committee) reviewed measurable outcome data, actions, services, and expenditures.  Upon reviewing the data, the stakeholders made suggestions for changes in this 
year's LCAP.
       

2.   The 2016-17 LCAP supported new positions, training and resources focused on outcomes and engagement for English Learners, Low Income students and foster youth.  This 
section will include information about the process and impact of these new positions.

a.  Coaching, monitoring and support:
RtI coordinators at secondary
Curriculum coaches
Walk to Read Coordinators (Reading Intervention at the elementary schools)
Learning Assistants

There is a model for RtI at each secondary that focused on math (Integrated Science and math at Harbor).  Coordinators gave assessments and monitored student progress in 
math.  Midway through the year, coordinators created an intervention plan that allowed students at 4 of the secondary sites to receive additional support as part of their school day.  
Between 42 and 65 students at each school were supported through this intervention.  At Harbor, the RtI coordinator created and administered benchmark assessments to monitor 
students progress in the new Integrated Science classes for all 9th graders.

Curriculum coaches continued to support teachers in developing and implementing units for CCSS math, NGSS and ELD.  Coaches focused their work on developing 
understanding of the new standards and next year, we look forward to implementing coaching cycles at each site.  In elementary, the Walk to Read program is in its fourth year with 
significant gains to reading scores in 3rd grade as measured by the SRI.  RtI coordinators in elementary regularly look at data and monitor both student progress and the health of 
the program

In the 2017-18 LCAP, we plan to maintain these positions and develop stronger articulation with the school sites around the role of curriculum coaches based on annual feedback.

b.  Targeted support for EL, Low Income and Foster Youth
AVID field trips, stipends and training
Read 180 sections
Newcomer sections

247 of 569



Page 72 of 142

School community coordinator
Homework club
After school program
Credit Recovery
Summer School

b.  Increasing student engagement
Social workers
Social work interns
PIP aides
Full time counselors
       

248 of 569



Page 73 of 142

Goals, Actions, & Services
Strategic Planning Details and Accountability

Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed.
----------

New
  

Modified
  

Unchanged

----------

Goal 1 All Santa Cruz City Schools students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and career opportunities.        

----------
State and/or Local Priorities Addressed by this goal: STATE       1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

COE       9 10
LOCAL   District Goal #1

----------
Identified Need College and Career Readiness EAP Scores 2015-16 English Language Arts 22% college ready; Mathematics 14% 

college ready

Common Core aligned instruction in math, ELA/ELD, and NGSS professional development and coaching, including 
scaffolding for English Learners, low income, foster youth, and students with disabilities is not fully in place at 100% of 
district schools.

College and Career Ready
53% of all 12th-grade students meet A-G requirements 2014-15; 54% of all 12th-grade students meet A-G requirements 
2015-16.

35% of LI 12th-grade meet A-G requirements 2014-15; 39% of LI 12th-grade students meet A-G requirements 2015-16.

8% of EL 12th-grade meet A-G requirements 2014-15; 7% of EL 12th-grade students meet A-G requirements 2015-16

Cohort graduation rate for 2013-14 = 89.8%; Cohort graduation rate for 2015-16 = 92.5%

High School dropout rate for 2013-14 = 4.7%; High School dropout rate for 2014-15 = 4.2%

AP & Honors Course Enrollment 2016-17 - duplicated count
All Students                              2,294
Hispanic / Latino                       597
Low Income                              575
Students with Disabilities         46

34% of the class of 2015 were rated prepared on the new state dashboard College and Career Readiness Indicator.

----------

249 of 569



Page 74 of 142

EXPECTED ANNUAL MEASURABLE OUTCOMES

Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20

EAP Scores       ELA  22% College Ready
Math 14% College Ready

Increase college readiness by 
5% in ELA and Math

Increase college readiness by 
5% in ELA and Math

Increase college readiness b y 
5% in ELA and Math

A-G rates       2015-16 Graduates
All Students                              
54%
Hispanic / Latino                     
38%
African American                     
56%
English Learners                       
7%
RFEP                                         
56%
Low Income                              
39%
Students with Disabilities       
12%

Target 5% increase for each 
student sub group

Target 5% for each student sub 
group

Target 5% increase for each 
student sub group

Graduation Rate       2015-16 cohort

All Students                              
92.5%
Hispanic / Latino                     
83.4%
English Learners                    
73.3%
Low Income                             
89.1%
Students with Disabilities      
83.7%

Target  3% increase for each 
student sub group

Target 3% increase for each 
student sub group

Target 3% increase for each 
student sub group

Dropout Rate       2015-16 cohort

All Students                              
4.2%
Hispanic / Latino                     
6.4%

Reduce by 1% for each student 
sub group, reduce by 3% for 
ELs

Reduce by 1% for each student 
sub group, reduce by 3% for 
ELs

Reduce by 1% for each student 
sub group, reduce by 3% for 
ELs

250 of 569



Page 75 of 142

English Learners                    
15.2%
Low Income                             
6.3%
Students with Disabilities      
4.7%

AP and Honors Enrollment       2016-17 cohort - duplicated 
count
All Students                              
2,294
Hispanic / Latino                     
597
Low Income                             
575
Students with Disabilities       46

Increase subgroup participation 
by 5% 

Increase subgroup participation 
by 5%

Increase subgroup participation 
by 5%

College and Career Readiness 
Indicator - California Dashboard       

34% of the class of 2015 were 
rated prepared on the new state 
dashboard College and Career 
Readiness Indicator

Increase percent of students 
rated College and Career Ready 
by 5%

Increase percent of students 
rated College and Career Ready 
by 3%

Increase percent of students 
rated College and Career Ready 
by 3%

PLANNED ACTIONS / SERVICES
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s Actions/Services. Duplicate the table, including Budgeted Expenditures, as needed.

Action    1
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

251 of 569



Page 76 of 142

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Counselors assist in ensuring access post-secondary 
college and career opportunities (LCFF Supplemental, 
LCFF Base, Title 1)

Provide 4 year planning workshops for all 9th grade 
students

Continue to implement Common Core Standards, 
following the Curriculum Master Plan

Facilitate strategies for improving A-G completion rates 
including transcript audits supported by the Riverside 
Counseling Collaborative

Refine our articulation efforts with our partner school 
districts – Live Oak, Soquel and the county’s four small 
districts

Build common assessments and adopt MAPS to monitor 
student progress on the standards

Collaboratively determine math placement tools with 
partner districts

       

Counselors assist in ensuring access post-secondary 
college and career opportunities (LCFF Supplemental, 
LCFF Base, Title 1)

Provide 4 year planning workshops for all 9th grade 
students

Continue to implement Common Core Standards, 
following the Curriculum Master Plan

Facilitate strategies for improving A-G completion rates 
including transcript audits supported by the Riverside 
Counseling Collaborative

Refine our articulation efforts with our partner school 
districts – Live Oak, Soquel and the county’s four small 
districts

Use common assessments and MAPS to monitor student 
progress on the standards

Collaboratively determine math placement tools with 
partner districts

Counselors assist in ensuring access post-secondary 
college and career opportunities (LCFF Supplemental, 
LCFF Base, Title 1)

Provide 4 year planning workshops for all 9th grade 
students

Continue to implement Common Core Standards, 
following the Curriculum Master Plan

Facilitate strategies for improving A-G completion rates 
including transcript audits supported by the Riverside 
Counseling Collaborative

Refine our articulation efforts with our partner school 
districts – Live Oak, Soquel and the county’s four small 
districts

Use common assessments and MAPS to monitor student 
progress on the standards

Collaboratively determine math placement tools with 
partner districts

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Amount       141,997 Amount 144,237 Amount 146,513

       141,997Source       Supplemental Source Supplemental Source Supplemental

       141,997Budget 
Reference       

1200 CERT PUPIL SUPP Budget 
Reference

1200 CERT PUPIL SUPP Budget 
Reference

1200 CERT PUPIL SUPP

252 of 569



Page 77 of 142

2.25 FTE Total = .50 FTE Counselor @ 
BV, DL, GA, WL & .25 Monarch

2.25 FTE Total = .50 FTE Counselor @ 
BV, DL, GA, WL & .25 Monarch

2.25 FTE Total = .50 FTE Counselor @ 
BV, DL, GA, WL & .25 Monarch

Amount       141,997 Amount 144,237 Amount 146,513

       141,997Source       Base Source Base Source Base

       141,997Budget 
Reference       

1200 CERT PUPIL SUPP
2.25 FTE Total = .50 FTE Counselor @ 
BV, DL, GA, WL & .25 Monarch

Budget 
Reference

1200 CERT PUPIL SUPP
2.25 FTE Total = .50 FTE Counselor @ 
BV, DL, GA, WL & .25 Monarch

Budget 
Reference

1200 CERT PUPIL SUPP
2.25 FTE Total = .50 FTE Counselor @ 
BV, DL, GA, WL & .25 Monarch

Amount       52,338 Amount 53,646 Amount 54,988

       52,338Source       Supplemental Source Supplemental Source Supplemental

       52,338Budget 
Reference       

3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
2.25 FTE Total = .50 FTE Counselor @ 
BV, DL, GA, WL & .25 Monarch

Budget 
Reference

3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
2.25 FTE Total = .50 FTE Counselor @ 
BV, DL, GA, WL & .25 Monarch

Budget 
Reference

3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
2.25 FTE Total = .50 FTE Counselor @ 
BV, DL, GA, WL & .25 Monarch

Amount       52,338 Amount 53,646 Amount 54,988

       52,338Source       Base Source Base Source Base

       52,338Budget 
Reference       

3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
2.25 FTE Total = .50 FTE Counselor @ 
BV, DL, GA, WL & .25 Monarch

Budget 
Reference

3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
2.25 FTE Total = .50 FTE Counselor @ 
BV, DL, GA, WL & .25 Monarch

Budget 
Reference

3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
2.25 FTE Total = .50 FTE Counselor @ 
BV, DL, GA, WL & .25 Monarch

Amount       52,437 Amount 53,224 Amount 54,022

       52,437Source       Supplemental Source Supplemental Source Supplemental

       52,437Budget 
Reference       

1200 CERT PUPIL SUPP
.65 FTE Total = .25 Counselor @ MHMS 
& .20 @ SCHS & SQHS

Budget 
Reference

1200 CERT PUPIL SUPP
.65 FTE Total = .25 Counselor @ MHMS 
& .20 @ SCHS & SQHS

Budget 
Reference

1200 CERT PUPIL SUPP
.65 FTE Total = .25 Counselor @ MHMS 
& .20 @ SCHS & SQHS

Amount       52,437 Amount 53,224 Amount 54,022

       52,437Source       Base Source Base Source Base

       52,437Budget 
Reference       

1200 CERT PUPIL SUPP
.65 FTE Total = .25 Counselor @ MHMS 
& .20 @ SCHS & SQHS

Budget 
Reference

1200 CERT PUPIL SUPP
.65 FTE Total = .25 Counselor @ MHMS 
& .20 @ SCHS & SQHS

Budget 
Reference

1200 CERT PUPIL SUPP
.65 FTE Total = .25 Counselor @ MHMS 
& .20 @ SCHS & SQHS

Amount       20,091 Amount 20,593 Amount 21,108

       20,091Source       Supplemental Source Supplemental Source Supplemental

       20,091Budget 
Reference       

3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
.65 FTE Total = .25 Counselor @ MHMS 
& .20 @ SCHS & SQHS

Budget 
Reference

3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
.65 FTE Total = .25 Counselor @ MHMS 
& .20 @ SCHS & SQHS

Budget 
Reference

3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
.65 FTE Total = .25 Counselor @ MHMS 
& .20 @ SCHS & SQHS

253 of 569



Page 78 of 142

Amount       20,091 Amount 20,593 Amount 21,108

       20,091Source       Base Source Base Source Base

       20,091Budget 
Reference       

3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
.65 FTE Total = .25 Counselor @ MHMS 
& .20 @ SCHS & SQHS

Budget 
Reference

3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
.65 FTE Total = .25 Counselor @ MHMS 
& .20 @ SCHS & SQHS

Budget 
Reference

3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
.65 FTE Total = .25 Counselor @ MHMS 
& .20 @ SCHS & SQHS

Amount       90,000 Amount 90,000 Amount 90,000

       90,000Source       Base Source Base Source Base

       90,000Budget 
Reference       

4300 MATERIALS & SUPPLIES
MAPS ASSESSMENT

Budget 
Reference

4300 MATERIALS & SUPPLIES
MAPS ASSESSMENTS

Budget 
Reference

4300 MATERIALS & SUPPLIES
MAPS ASSESSMENTS

Action    2
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

254 of 569



Page 79 of 142

Continue to work with the County Office to ensure a 
smooth transition of ROP staff to Santa Cruz City 
Schools

Implement  new Computer Science pathways, support 
increased enrollment in pathway options
       

Continue to work with the County Office to ensure a 
smooth transition of ROP staff to Santa Cruz City 
Schools

Support increased enrollment and completion of career 
pathway options

Continue to work with the County Office to ensure a 
smooth transition of ROP staff to Santa Cruz City 
Schools

Support increased enrollment and completion of career 
pathway options

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Amount       672,351 Amount 682,436 Amount 692,673

       672,351Source       Base Source Base Source Base

       672,351Budget 
Reference       

1100 CERT TEACHERS' SALARIES-
REG.
CTEIG/ROP - Parcel Tax - Measure O  
(3.585 FTE HRHS, 1.515 FTE SCHS, 
3.00 FTE SQHS, .60 FTE Costanoa)

Budget 
Reference

1100 CERT TEACHERS' SALARIES-
REG.
CTEIG/ROP - Parcel Tax - Measure O  
(3.585 FTE HRHS, 1.515 FTE SCHS, 
3.00 FTE SQHS, .60 FTE Costanoa)

Budget 
Reference

1100 CERT TEACHERS' SALARIES-
REG.
CTEIG/ROP - Parcel Tax - Measure O  
(3.585 FTE HRHS, 1.515 FTE SCHS, 
3.00 FTE SQHS, .60 FTE Costanoa)

Amount       180,918 Amount 185,441 Amount 190,077

       180,918Source       Base Source Base Source Base

       180,918Budget 
Reference       

3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
CTEIG/ROP - Parcel Tax - Measure O  
(3.585 FTE HRHS, 1.515 FTE SCHS, 
3.00 FTE SQHS, .60 FTE Costanoa)

Budget 
Reference

3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
CTEIG/ROP - Parcel Tax - Measure O  
(3.585 FTE HRHS, 1.515 FTE SCHS, 
3.00 FTE SQHS, .60 FTE Costanoa)

Budget 
Reference

3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
CTEIG/ROP - Parcel Tax - Measure O  
(3.585 FTE HRHS, 1.515 FTE SCHS, 
3.00 FTE SQHS, .60 FTE Costanoa)

Amount       94,386 Amount 95,802 Amount 97,239

       94,386Source       Base Source Base Source Base

       94,386Budget 
Reference       

1200 CERT PUPIL SUPP
CTEIG/ROP - Parcel Tax - Measure O  
(.30 FTE HRHS, .30 FTE SCHS, .20 FTE 
SQHS, .20 FTE Costanoa)

Budget 
Reference

1200 CERT PUPIL SUPP
CTEIG/ROP - Parcel Tax - Measure O  
(.30 FTE HRHS, .30 FTE SCHS, .20 FTE 
SQHS, .20 FTE Costanoa)

Budget 
Reference

1200 CERT PUPIL SUPP
CTEIG/ROP - Parcel Tax - Measure O  
(.30 FTE HRHS, .30 FTE SCHS, .20 FTE 
SQHS, .20 FTE Costanoa)

Amount       40,654 Amount 41,670 Amount 42,712

       40,654Source       Base Source Base Source Base

       40,654Budget 
Reference       

3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
CTEIG/ROP - Parcel Tax - Measure O  
(.30 FTE HRHS, .30 FTE SCHS, .20 FTE 
SQHS, .20 FTE Costanoa)

Budget 
Reference

3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
CTEIG/ROP - Parcel Tax - Measure O  
(.30 FTE HRHS, .30 FTE SCHS, .20 FTE 
SQHS, .20 FTE Costanoa)

Budget 
Reference

3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
CTEIG/ROP - Parcel Tax - Measure O  
(.30 FTE HRHS, .30 FTE SCHS, .20 FTE 
SQHS, .20 FTE Costanoa)

Amount       369,105 Amount 369,105 Amount 270,000
255 of 569



Page 80 of 142

       369,105Source       Other Source Other Source Other

       369,105Budget 
Reference       

4300 MATERIALS & SUPPLIES
For Computer Science Pathway

Budget 
Reference

4300 MATERIALS & SUPPLIES
For Computer Science Pathway

Budget 
Reference

4300 MATERIALS & SUPPLIES
For Computer Science Pathway

256 of 569



Page 81 of 142

Goals, Actions, & Services
Strategic Planning Details and Accountability

Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed.
----------

New
  

Modified
  

Unchanged

----------

Goal 2 SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all 
students.       

----------
State and/or Local Priorities Addressed by this goal: STATE       1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

COE       9 10
LOCAL   District Goal #2

----------
Identified Need There were 178 suspensions in 2015-16 school year and 144 suspensions during the 2016-17 school year.

There were 19 expulsions in 2015-16 and 32 expulsions in the 2016 - 17 school year.

Elementary chronic absenteeism rate is 12.5% for 2015-16.

Middle School chronic absenteeism rate is 11% in 2015-16.

High School chronic absenteeism rate is 12% in 2015-16.

----------
EXPECTED ANNUAL MEASURABLE OUTCOMES

Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20

Suspensions rates

Expulsion rates

Attendance rates
       

In 2016-17:
144 suspensions
32 expulsions

2015 -16:
9.5% Elementary chronic 
attendance rate
10.5% Middle School chronic 
absence rate
16.5% chronic High School 
absence rate

Reduce Suspensions by 3%
Reduce Expulsions by 5%
Reduce chronic absentee rate 
by 2% at each grade span

Reduce Suspensions by 3%
Reduce Expulsions by 3%
Reduce chronic absentee rate 
by 2% at each grade span

Reduce Suspensions by 3%
Reduce Expulsions by 3%
Reduce chronic absentee rate 
by 2% at each grade span

257 of 569



Page 82 of 142

PLANNED ACTIONS / SERVICES
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s Actions/Services. Duplicate the table, including Budgeted Expenditures, as needed.

Action    1
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Counselors (See Goal #1)
Youth Services Interns to provide social emotional 
counseling and supports
Collaboration with County Office of Education on Foster 
Youth Services

       

Positive Behavior Intervention and Support Coach
Counselors (See Goal #1)
Youth Services Interns to provide social emotional 
counseling and supports
Collaboration with County Office of Education on Foster 
Youth Services

Positive Behavior Intervention and Support Coach
Counselors (See Goal #1)
Youth Services Interns to provide social emotional 
counseling and supports
Collaboration with County Office of Education on Foster 
Youth Services

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES

258 of 569



Page 83 of 142

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Amount       24,000 Amount 24,000 Amount 24,000

       24,000Source       Supplemental Source Supplemental Source Supplemental

       24,000Budget 
Reference       

5800 OTHER SVCS & OPER 
EXPENDITURES
SCCCS Youth Services (8K Elem & 14K 
Secondary)

Budget 
Reference

5800 OTHER SVCS & OPER 
EXPENDITURES
SCCCS Youth Services (8K Elem & 14K 
Secondary)

Budget 
Reference

5800 OTHER SVCS & OPER 
EXPENDITURES
SCCCS Youth Services (8K Elem & 14K 
Secondary)

Amount       10,000 Amount 10,000 Amount 10,000

       10,000Source       Supplemental Source Supplemental Source Supplemental

       10,000Budget 
Reference       

5800 OTHER SVCS & OPER 
EXPENDITURES
Foster Youth Services (3,300 E & 6,700 
S)

Budget 
Reference

5800 OTHER SVCS & OPER 
EXPENDITURES
Foster Youth Services (3,300 E & 6,700 
S)

Budget 
Reference

5800 OTHER SVCS & OPER 
EXPENDITURES
Foster Youth Services (3,300 E & 6,700 
S)

Amount       1,000 Amount 1,000 Amount 1,000

       1,000Source       Supplemental Source Supplemental Source Supplemental

       1,000Budget 
Reference       

5200 MILEAGE, TRAVEL & 
CONFERENCES
Secondary

Budget 
Reference

5200 MILEAGE, TRAVEL & 
CONFERENCES
Secondary

Budget 
Reference

5200 MILEAGE, TRAVEL & 
CONFERENCES
Secondary

Amount       2,500 Amount 2,500 Amount 2,500

       2,500Source       Supplemental Source Supplemental Source Supplemental

       2,500Budget 
Reference       

4300 MATERIALS & SUPPLIES
500 E & 2,000 S

Budget 
Reference

4300 MATERIALS & SUPPLIES
500 E & 2,000 S

Budget 
Reference

4300 MATERIALS & SUPPLIES
500 E & 2,000 S

Action    2
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: K-3

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        

259 of 569



Page 84 of 142

Students to be Served
English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Primary Intervention Program for each intervention and 
social emotional support       

Primary Intervention Program for each intervention and 
social emotional support

Primary Intervention Program for each intervention and 
social emotional support

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Amount       53,986 Amount 55,066 Amount 56,167

       53,986Source       Supplemental Source Supplemental Source Supplemental

       53,986Budget 
Reference       

2200 CLASS PUPIL SUPPORT 
SALARIES
1.5 FTE PIP Aides = 4 @ .3750 
Elementary

Budget 
Reference

2200 CLASS PUPIL SUPPORT 
SALARIES
1.5 FTE PIP Aides = 4 @ .3750 
Elementary

Budget 
Reference

2200 CLASS PUPIL SUPPORT 
SALARIES
1.5 FTE PIP Aides = 4 @ .3750 
Elementary

Amount       5,142 Amount 5,271 Amount 5,402

       5,142Source       Supplemental Source Supplemental Source Supplemental

       5,142Budget 
Reference       

3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
1.5 FTE PIP Aides = 4 @ .3750 
Elementary

Budget 
Reference

3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
1.5 FTE PIP Aides = 4 @ .3750 
Elementary

Budget 
Reference

3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
1.5 FTE PIP Aides = 4 @ .3750 
Elementary

Action    3
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

260 of 569



Page 85 of 142

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Social Workers to remove obstacles to school success       Social Workers to remove obstacles to school success Social Workers to remove obstacles to school success

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Amount       149,145 Amount 151,382 Amount 153,653

       149,145Source       Supplemental Source Supplemental Source Supplemental

       149,145Budget 
Reference       

1200 CERT PUPIL SUPP
2.0 Social Workers - Secondary

Budget 
Reference

1200 CERT PUPIL SUPP
2.0 Social Workers - Secondary

Budget 
Reference

1200 CERT PUPIL SUPP
2.0 Social Workers - Secondary

Amount       53,227 Amount 54,558 Amount 55,922

       53,227Source       Supplemental Source Supplemental and Concentration Source Supplemental

       53,227Budget 
Reference       

3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
2.0 Social Workers - Secondary

Budget 
Reference

3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
2.0 Social Workers - Secondary

Budget 
Reference

3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
2.0 Social Workers - Secondary

Action    4
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

261 of 569



Page 86 of 142

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: TK-5

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Positive Behavior Intervention and Support Coach        Positive Behavior Intervention and Support Coach Positive Behavior Intervention and Support Coach 

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Amount       24,595 Amount 24,964 Amount 25,338

       24,595Source       Supplemental Source Supplemental Source Supplemental

       24,595Budget 
Reference       

1900 OTHER CERT SALARIES-
REGULAR
.4 FTE PBIS Coach Elementary

Budget 
Reference

1900 OTHER CERT SALARIES-
REGULAR
.4 FTE PBIS Coach Elementary

Budget 
Reference

1900 OTHER CERT SALARIES-
REGULAR
.4 FTE PBIS Coach Elementary

Amount       4,367 Amount 4,476 Amount 4,588

       4,367Source       Supplemental Source Supplemental Source Supplemental

       4,367Budget 
Reference       

3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
.4 FTE PBIS Coach Elementary

Budget 
Reference

3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
.4 FTE PBIS Coach Elementary

Budget 
Reference

3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
.4 FTE PBIS Coach Elementary

262 of 569



Page 87 of 142

Goals, Actions, & Services
Strategic Planning Details and Accountability

Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed.
----------

New
  

Modified
  

Unchanged

----------

Goal 3 We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic groups within the SCCS student community       

----------
State and/or Local Priorities Addressed by this goal: STATE       1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

COE       9 10
LOCAL   District Goal #3

----------
Identified Need The data is clear. Our Low Income (LI), English Language Learners (ELs), Foster Youth, and Students With Disabilities 

(SWD) are the students in our system who continue to need the most support. English Language Learners, Low Income 
Students and Students with disabilities are the student groups for which performance levels were below the “all student” 
performance in both English Language Arts and Mathematics as measured by the CAASPP.

2016 CAASPP Results Met or Exceeded Standards

5th Grade ELA
ALL           64%
ELs           40%
LI               38%
SWD         30%

5th Grade Math
ALL           48%
ELs            28%
LI               18%
SWD         26%

8th Grade ELA
ALL            65%
ELs            41%
LI               46%
SWD         24%

8th Grade Math
ALL           51%
ELs           35%
LI               32%
SWD         20%

263 of 569



Page 88 of 142

11th Grade ELA
ALL          46%
ELs          41%
LI              39%
SWD        22%

11th Grade Math
ALL         44%
ELs          6%
LI            24%
SWD        8%

The percent of elementary ELs making one year’s growth in English = 58%  in 2016-17 (AMAO #1).

The percent of secondary ELs making one year’s growth in English = 60% in 2016-17 (AMAO #1).

22% of our Ever ELs who have been in our schools for more than 6 years are still ELs

9th Grade Integrated Course 1 (Algebra 1) pass rate for 2015-16 is 76%

----------
EXPECTED ANNUAL MEASURABLE OUTCOMES

Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20

SBAC/CAASPP met or exceeds 
standards in ELA and Math

9th Grade Integrated Course 1 
Pass Rate

Percent of Ever ELs who have 
been in our schools for more 
than 6 years who are still ELs
       

SBAC/CAASPP Met standards:

The percentage of EL, LI, and 
SWD students who scored Met 
or Exceeds Standard in ELA and 
Math in 5th, 8th and 11th grade 
are listed below:

2016 CAASPP Results Met or 
Exceeded Standards

5th Grade ELA
ALL           64%
ELs           40%
LI               38%
SWD         30%

5th Grade Math
ALL           48%

The percentage of students in 
targeted sub groups scoring met 
or exceeds standards on the 
SBAC/CAASPP will increase by 
5%

The rate of 9th-graders passing 
Algebra 1 with a C- or better on 
the first try will increase by 3% 
from 79% to 81%.

We will reduce the percent of 
Ever ELs who have been in our 
schools for more than 6 years 
who are still ELs by 5%.

The percentage of students in 
targeted sub groups scoring met 
or exceeds standards on the 
SBAC/CAASPP will increase by 
3%

The rate of 9th-graders passing 
Algebra 1 with a C- or better on 
the first try will increase by 3% 
from 81% to 84%.

We will reduce the percent of 
Ever ELs who have been in our 
schools for more than 6 years 
who are still ELs by 3%.

The percentage of students in 
targeted sub groups scoring met 
or exceeds standards on the 
SBAC/CAASPP will increase by 
3%

The rate of 9th-graders passing 
Algebra 1 with a C- or better on 
the first try will increase by 3% 
from 84% to 87%.

We will reduce the percent of 
Ever ELs who have been in our 
schools for more than 6 years 
who are still ELs by 3%.

264 of 569



Page 89 of 142

ELs            28%
LI               18%
SWD         26%

8th Grade ELA
ALL            65%
ELs            41%
LI               46%
SWD         24%

8th Grade Math
ALL           51%
ELs           35%
LI               32%
SWD         20%

11th Grade ELA
ALL          46%
ELs          41%
LI              39%
SWD        22%

11th Grade Math
ALL         44%
ELs          6%
LI            24%
SWD        8%

The rate of 9th-graders passing 
Algebra 1 with a C- or better on 
the first try will increase by 3% 
from 76% to 79%.

22% of our Ever ELs who have 
been in our schools for more 
than 6 years are still ELs

PLANNED ACTIONS / SERVICES
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s Actions/Services. Duplicate the table, including Budgeted Expenditures, as needed.

Action    1
265 of 569



Page 90 of 142

For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

The overall implementation of the actions and services to 
achieve the articulated goals include:

*Elementary English Learner Instructional Coach
*RTI Coordinators Elementary - Walk to Read
*Instruction Techs and Learning Assistants for Walk to 
Read and EL Support
* EL Task Force Implementation and Progress Monitoring 
of EL Master Plan

Elementary Site discretionary funds address various 
goals supporting targeted services and materials for 
unduplicated students as identified by individual sites and 
approved by both site councils and the Governing Board.
       

The overall implementation of the actions and services to 
achieve the articulated goals include:

*Elementary English Learner Instructional Coach
*RTI Coordinators Elementary - Walk to Read
*Instruction Techs and Learning Assistants for Walk to 
Read and EL Support
* EL Task Force Implementation and Progress Monitoring 
of EL Master Plan

Elementary Site discretionary funds address various 
goals supporting targeted services and materials for 
unduplicated students as identified by individual sites and 
approved by both site councils and the Governing Board.

The overall implementation of the actions and services to 
achieve the articulated goals include:

*Elementary English Learner Instructional Coach
*RTI Coordinators Elementary - Walk to Read
*Instruction Techs and Learning Assistants for Walk to 
Read and EL Support
* EL Task Force Implementation and Progress Monitoring 
of EL Master Plan

Elementary Site discretionary funds address various 
goals supporting targeted services and materials for 
unduplicated students as identified by individual sites and 
approved by both site councils and the Governing Board.

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

266 of 569



Page 91 of 142

Amount       339,012 Amount 344,097 Amount 349,259

       339,012Source       Supplemental Source Supplemental Source Supplemental

       339,012Budget 
Reference       

1100 CERT TEACHERS' SALARIES-
REG.
4.00 FTE Walk to Read @ BV,DL,GA, 
WL

Budget 
Reference

1100 CERT TEACHERS' SALARIES-
REG.
4.00 FTE Walk to Read @ BV,DL,GA, WL  

Budget 
Reference

1100 CERT TEACHERS' SALARIES-
REG.
4.00 FTE Walk to Read @ BV,DL,GA, 
WL

Amount       108,183 Amount 110,888 Amount 113,660

       108,183Source       Supplemental Source Supplemental Source Supplemental

       108,183Budget 
Reference       

3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
4.00 FTE Walk to Read @ BV,DL,GA, 
WL

Budget 
Reference

3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
4.00 FTE Walk to Read @ BV,DL,GA, WL

Budget 
Reference

3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
4.00 FTE Walk to Read @ BV,DL,GA, 
WL

Amount       55,777 Amount 56,614 Amount 57,463

       55,777Source       Supplemental Source Supplemental Source Supplemental

       55,777Budget 
Reference       

1900 OTHER CERT SALARIES-
REGULAR
.6101 FTE - English Learner Instr 
Resource Coach - Elementary

Budget 
Reference

1900 OTHER CERT SALARIES-
REGULAR
.6101 FTE - English Learner Instr 
Resource Coach - Elementary

Budget 
Reference

1900 OTHER CERT SALARIES-
REGULAR
.6101 FTE - English Learner Instr 
Resource Coach - Elementary

Amount       14,035 Amount 14,386 Amount 14,746

       14,035Source       Supplemental Source Supplemental Source Supplemental

       14,035Budget 
Reference       

3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
.6101 FTE - English Learner Instr 
Resource Coach - Elementary

Budget 
Reference

3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
.6101 FTE - English Learner Instr 
Resource Coach - Elementary

Budget 
Reference

3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
.6101 FTE - English Learner Instr 
Resource Coach - Elementary

Amount       35,726 Amount 36,262 Amount 36,806

       35,726Source       Title I Source Title I Source Title I

       35,726Budget 
Reference       

1900 OTHER CERT SALARIES-
REGULAR
.3899 FTE - English Learner Instr 
Resource Coach - Elementary

Budget 
Reference

1900 OTHER CERT SALARIES-
REGULAR
.3899 FTE - English Learner Instr 
Resource Coach - Elementary

Budget 
Reference

1900 OTHER CERT SALARIES-
REGULAR
.3899 FTE - English Learner Instr 
Resource Coach - Elementary

Amount       10,475 Amount 10,737 Amount 11,005

       10,475Source       Title I Source Title I Source Title I

       10,475Budget 
Reference       

3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
.3899 FTE - English Learner Instr 
Resource Coach - Elementary

Budget 
Reference

3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
.3899 FTE - English Learner Instr 
Resource Coach - Elementary

Budget 
Reference

3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
.3899 FTE - English Learner Instr 
Resource Coach - Elementary

267 of 569



Page 92 of 142

Amount       182,310 Amount 185,956 Amount 189,675

       182,310Source       Supplemental Source Supplemental Source Supplemental

       182,310Budget 
Reference       

2000 >CLASS PERSONNEL SALARIES
6.3375 FTE - Learning Assistants & Instr 
Techs Intervention @ all Elementary 
Sites

Budget 
Reference

2000 >CLASS PERSONNEL SALARIES
6.3375 FTE - Learning Assistants & Instr 
Techs Intervention @ all Elementary Sites

Budget 
Reference

2000 >CLASS PERSONNEL SALARIES
6.3375 FTE - Learning Assistants & Instr 
Techs Intervention @ all Elementary 
Sites

Amount       30,566 Amount 31,330 Amount 32,113

       30,566Source       Supplemental Source Supplemental Source Supplemental

       30,566Budget 
Reference       

3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
6.3375 FTE - Learning Assistants & Instr 
Techs Intervention @ all Elementary 
Sites

Budget 
Reference

3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
6.3375 FTE - Learning Assistants & Instr 
Techs Intervention @ all Elementary Sites

Budget 
Reference

3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
6.3375 FTE - Learning Assistants & Instr 
Techs Intervention @ all Elementary 
Sites

Amount       95,884 Amount 95,884 Amount 95,884

       95,884Source       Supplemental Source Supplemental Source Supplemental

       95,884Budget 
Reference       

4300 MATERIALS & SUPPLIES
All Elementary Sties - Site Discretionary 

Budget 
Reference

4300 MATERIALS & SUPPLIES
All Elementary Sties - Site Discretionary 

Budget 
Reference

4300 MATERIALS & SUPPLIES
All Elementary Sties - Site Discretionary 

Action    2
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] Struggling Learners - Title I Students

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: TK - 5

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

268 of 569



Page 93 of 142

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Elementary Summer School Interventions       Elementary Summer School Interventions Elementary Summer School Interventions

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Amount       5,000 Amount 5,000 Amount 5,000

       5,000Source       Supplemental Source Supplemental Source Supplemental

       5,000Budget 
Reference       

1330 CERT SUPRVSR ADMIN - EWA
Elementary Summer School Principal

Budget 
Reference

1330 CERT SUPRVSR ADMIN - EWA
Elementary Summer School Principal

Budget 
Reference

1330 CERT SUPRVSR ADMIN - EWA
Elementary Summer School Principal

Amount       11,000 Amount 11,000 Amount 11,000

       11,000Source       Supplemental Source Supplemental Source Supplemental

       11,000Budget 
Reference       

1130 TEACHER SALARIES - EWA
Elementary Summer School Teachers

Budget 
Reference

1130 TEACHER SALARIES - EWA
Elementary Summer School Teachers

Budget 
Reference

1130 TEACHER SALARIES - EWA
Elementary Summer School Teachers

Amount       6,400 Amount 6,400 Amount 6,400

       6,400Source       Supplemental Source Supplemental Source Supplemental

       6,400Budget 
Reference       

2000 >CLASS PERSONNEL SALARIES
Elementary Summer School - Instr Aides 
& Clerical Support

Budget 
Reference

2000 >CLASS PERSONNEL SALARIES
Elementary Summer School - Instr Aides 
& Clerical Support

Budget 
Reference

2000 >CLASS PERSONNEL SALARIES
Elementary Summer School - Instr Aides 
& Clerical Support

Amount       6,600 Amount 6,600 Amount 6,600

       6,600Source       Supplemental Source Supplemental Source Supplemental

       6,600Budget 
Reference       

3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
All Elementary Benefits for Certificated & 
Classified

Budget 
Reference

3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
All Elementary Benefits for Certificated & 
Classified

Budget 
Reference

3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
All Elementary Benefits for Certificated & 
Classified

Amount       1,000 Amount 1,000 Amount 1,000

       1,000Source       Supplemental Source Supplemental Source Supplemental

       1,000

269 of 569



Page 94 of 142

Budget 
Reference       

4300 MATERIALS & SUPPLIES
Elementary Summer School Supplies

Budget 
Reference

4300 MATERIALS & SUPPLIES
Elementary Summer School Supplies

Budget 
Reference

4300 MATERIALS & SUPPLIES
Elementary Summer School Supplies

Action    3
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: Middle 

and High School

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Secondary RtI Coordinators
Soquel High Counseling for Attendance Intervention
Bilingual Math Tutors
Math Coaches
Advance via Individual Determination for first generation 
college bound and traditionally underrepresented 
students (Stipends;,Sections, Tutors; and Field Trips)
       

Secondary RtI Coordinators
Soquel High Counseling for Attendance Intervention
Bilingual Math Tutors
Math Coaches
Advance via Individual Determination for first generation 
college bound and traditionally underrepresented 
students (Stipends;,Sections, Tutors; and Field Trips)

Secondary RtI Coordinators
Soquel High Counseling for Attendance Intervention
Bilingual Math Tutors
Math Coaches
Advance via Individual Determination for first generation 
college bound and traditionally underrepresented 
students (Stipends;,Sections, Tutors; and Field Trips)

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Amount       421,720 Amount 428,046 Amount 434,466

       421,720 270 of 569



Page 95 of 142

Source       Supplemental Source Supplemental Source Supplemental

       421,720Budget 
Reference       

1100 CERT TEACHERS' SALARIES-
REG.
5.00 FTE - RTI Coordinators BRMS, 
MHMS, HRHS, SCHS, SQHS - 
Secondary

Budget 
Reference

1100 CERT TEACHERS' SALARIES-
REG.
5.00 FTE - RTI Coordinators BRMS, 
MHMS, HRHS, SCHS, SQHS - 
Secondary

Budget 
Reference

1100 CERT TEACHERS' SALARIES-
REG.
5.00 FTE - RTI Coordinators BRMS, 
MHMS, HRHS, SCHS, SQHS - 
Secondary

Amount       121,500 Amount 124,538 Amount 127,651

       121,500Source       Supplemental Source Supplemental Source Supplemental

       121,500Budget 
Reference       

3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
5.00 FTE - RTI Coordinators BRMS, 
MHMS, HRHS, SCHS, SQHS - 
Secondary

Budget 
Reference

3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
5.00 FTE - RTI Coordinators BRMS, 
MHMS, HRHS, SCHS, SQHS - 
Secondary

Budget 
Reference

3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
5.00 FTE - RTI Coordinators BRMS, 
MHMS, HRHS, SCHS, SQHS - 
Secondary

Amount       14,695 Amount 14,915 Amount 15,139

       14,695Source       Supplemental Source Supplemental Source Supplemental

       14,695Budget 
Reference       

1900 OTHER CERT SALARIES-
REGULAR
.20 FTE - Math Coach - Secondary

Budget 
Reference

1900 OTHER CERT SALARIES-
REGULAR
.20 FTE - Math Coach -- Secondary

Budget 
Reference

1900 OTHER CERT SALARIES-
REGULAR
.20 FTE - Math Coach -  - Secondary

Amount       12,891 Amount 13,084 Amount 13,281

       12,891Source       Supplemental Source Supplemental Source Supplemental

       12,891Budget 
Reference       

1230 CERT PUPIL SUPP-EWA
Counseling & Attendance - SQHS - 
Secondary

Budget 
Reference

1230 CERT PUPIL SUPP-EWA
Counseling & Attendance - SQHS - 
Secondary

Budget 
Reference

1230 CERT PUPIL SUPP-EWA
Counseling & Attendance - SQHS - 
Secondary

Amount       60,354 Amount 61,259 Amount 62,178

       60,354Source       Supplemental Source Supplemental Source Supplemental

       60,354Budget 
Reference       

1130 TEACHER SALARIES - EWA
Bilingual Math Tutors & Homework Club 
@ HRHS, SCHS, SQHS, Costanoa - 
Secondary

Budget 
Reference

1130 TEACHER SALARIES - EWA
Bilingual Math Tutors & Homework Club 
@ HRHS, SCHS, SQHS, Costanoa - 
Secondary

Budget 
Reference

1130 TEACHER SALARIES - EWA
Bilingual Math Tutors & Homework Club 
@ HRHS, SCHS, SQHS, Costanoa - 
Secondary

Amount       16,974 Amount 17,398 Amount 17,833

       16,974Source       Supplemental Source Supplemental Source Supplemental

       16,974Budget 
Reference       

3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
.20 FTE - Math Coach - Ark, Counseling 
& Attndance -

Budget 
Reference

3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
.20 FTE - Math Coach - Ark, Counseling & 
Attndance -

Budget 
Reference

3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
.20 FTE - Math Coach - Ark, Counseling 
& Attndance -

271 of 569



Page 96 of 142

SQHS, & Bilingual Math Tutors & 
Homework Club @ HRHS, SCHS, 
SQHS, Costanoa - Secondary

SQHS, & Bilingual Math Tutors & 
Homework Club @ HRHS, SCHS, SQHS, 
Costanoa - Secondary

SQHS, & Bilingual Math Tutors & 
Homework Club @ HRHS, SCHS, SQHS, 
Costanoa - Secondary

Amount       2,156 Amount 2,188 Amount 2,221

       2,156Source       Supplemental Source Supplemental Source Supplemental

       2,156Budget 
Reference       

1130 TEACHER SALARIES - EWA
Avid - Stipends & EWA's

Budget 
Reference

1130 TEACHER SALARIES - EWA
Avid - Stipends & EWA's

Budget 
Reference

1130 TEACHER SALARIES - EWA
Avid - Stipends & EWA's

Amount       383 Amount 393 Amount 402

       383Source       Supplemental Source Supplemental Source Supplemental

       383Budget 
Reference       

3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
Avid - Stipends & EWA's

Budget 
Reference

3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
Avid - Stipends & EWA's

Budget 
Reference

3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
Avid - Stipends & EWA's

Amount       40,000 Amount 40,000 Amount 40,000

       40,000Source       Supplemental Source Supplemental Source Supplemental

       40,000Budget 
Reference       

5800 OTHER SVCS & OPER 
EXPENDITURES
UCSC - AVID Tutors for BRMS, MHMS, 
HRHS, SCHS, SQHS

Budget 
Reference

5800 OTHER SVCS & OPER 
EXPENDITURES
UCSC - AVID Tutors for BRMS, MHMS, 
HRHS, SCHS, SQHS

Budget 
Reference

5800 OTHER SVCS & OPER 
EXPENDITURES
UCSC - AVID Tutors for BRMS, MHMS, 
HRHS, SCHS, SQHS

Amount       10,000 Amount 10,000 Amount 10,000

       10,000Source       Supplemental Source Supplemental Source Supplemental

       10,000Budget 
Reference       

5800 OTHER SVCS & OPER 
EXPENDITURES
AVID Field Trips for BRMS, MHMS, 
HRHS, SCHS, SQHS

Budget 
Reference

5800 OTHER SVCS & OPER 
EXPENDITURES
AVID Field Trips for BRMS, MHMS, 
HRHS, SCHS, SQHS

Budget 
Reference

5800 OTHER SVCS & OPER 
EXPENDITURES
AVID Field Trips for BRMS, MHMS, 
HRHS, SCHS, SQHS

Action    4
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] Struggling Students

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

272 of 569



Page 97 of 142

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: Middle 

and High School

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Read 180 & Reading Intervention Sections Middle and 
High School
Math Plus Intervention Sections
Credit Recovery Program Staffing and Materials
Middle School After School Intervention Staffing
Secondary site discretionary funds address various goals 
supporting targeted services and materials for 
unduplicated students as identified by individual sites and 
approved by both site councils and the Governing Board.
       

Read 180 & Reading Intervention Sections Middle and 
High School
Math Plus Intervention Sections
Credit Recovery Program Staffing and Materials
Middle School After School Intervention Staffing
Secondary site discretionary funds address various goals 
supporting targeted services and materials for 
unduplicated students as identified by individual sites and 
approved by both site councils and the Governing Board.

Read 180 & Reading Intervention Sections Middle and 
High School
Math Plus Intervention Sections
Credit Recovery Program Staffing and Materials
Middle School After School Intervention Staffing
Secondary site discretionary funds address various goals 
supporting targeted services and materials for 
unduplicated students as identified by individual sites and 
approved by both site councils and the Governing Board.

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Amount       122,058 Amount 123,889 Amount 127,747

       122,058Source       Supplemental Source Supplemental Source Supplemental

       122,058Budget 
Reference       

1100 CERT TEACHERS' SALARIES-
REG.
1.533 FTE - Read 180 , Reading 
Intervention & Math Plus @ BRMS, 
MHMS, HRHS, SCHS, SQHS

Budget 
Reference

1100 CERT TEACHERS' SALARIES-
REG.
1.533 FTE - Read 180 , Reading 
Intervention & Math Plus @ BRMS, 
MHMS, HRHS, SCHS, SQHS

Budget 
Reference

1100 CERT TEACHERS' SALARIES-
REG.
1.533 FTE - Read 180 , Reading 
Intervention & Math Plus @ BRMS, 
MHMS, HRHS, SCHS, SQHS

Amount       149,445 Amount 151,697 Amount 153,972

       149,445Source       Supplemental Source Supplemental Source Supplemental

       149,445

273 of 569



Page 98 of 142

Budget 
Reference       

1100 CERT TEACHERS' SALARIES-
REG.
2.11 FTE - Newcomers, ELD's, AVID & 
Music @ BRMS, MHMS, HRHS, SCHS

Budget 
Reference

1100 CERT TEACHERS' SALARIES-
REG.
2.11 FTE - Newcomers, ELD's, AVID & 
Music @ BRMS, MHMS, HRHS, SCHS

Budget 
Reference

1100 CERT TEACHERS' SALARIES-
REG.
2.11 FTE - Newcomers, ELD's, AVID & 
Music @ BRMS, MHMS, HRHS, SCHS

Amount       54,660 Amount 55,480 Amount 56,312

       54,660Source       Supplemental Source Supplemental Source Supplemental

       54,660Budget 
Reference       

1100 CERT TEACHERS' SALARIES-
REG.
.60 FTE Cyber High & Credit Recovery

Budget 
Reference

1100 CERT TEACHERS' SALARIES-
REG.
.60 FTE Cyber High & Credit Recovery

Budget 
Reference

1100 CERT TEACHERS' SALARIES-
REG.
.60 FTE Cyber High & Credit Recovery

Amount       93,820 Amount 96,166 Amount 98,570

       93,820Source       Supplemental Source Supplemental Source Supplemental

       93,820Budget 
Reference       

3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
1.533 FTE - Read 180 , Reading 
Intervention & Math Plus @ BRMS, 
MHMS, HRHS, SCHS, SQHS
2.11 FTE - Newcomers, ELD's, AVID & 
Music @ BRMS, MHMS, HRHS, SCHS
.60 FTE Cyber High & Credit Recovery

Budget 
Reference

3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
1.533 FTE - Read 180 , Reading 
Intervention & Math Plus @ BRMS, 
MHMS, HRHS, SCHS, SQHS
2.11 FTE - Newcomers, ELD's, AVID & 
Music @ BRMS, MHMS, HRHS, SCHS
.60 FTE Cyber High & Credit Recovery

Budget 
Reference

3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
1.533 FTE - Read 180 , Reading 
Intervention & Math Plus @ BRMS, 
MHMS, HRHS, SCHS, SQHS
2.11 FTE - Newcomers, ELD's, AVID & 
Music @ BRMS, MHMS, HRHS, SCHS
.60 FTE Cyber High & Credit Recovery

Amount       15,170 Amount 15,170 Amount 15,170

       15,170Source       Supplemental Source Supplemental Source Supplemental

       15,170Budget 
Reference       

4200 BOOKS OTHER THAN 
TEXTBOOKS
Credit Recovery Contract Cyber High

Budget 
Reference

4200 BOOKS OTHER THAN 
TEXTBOOKS
Credit Recovery Contract Cyber High

Budget 
Reference

4200 BOOKS OTHER THAN 
TEXTBOOKS
Credit Recovery Contract Cyber High

Amount       288,622 Amount 288,622 Amount 288,622

       288,622Source       Supplemental Source Supplemental Source Supplemental

       288,622Budget 
Reference       

4300 MATERIALS & SUPPLIES
Site Discretionary @ Middle, High, 
Costanoa, Ark & AFE - Secondary

Budget 
Reference

4300 MATERIALS & SUPPLIES
Site Discretionary @ Middle, High, 
Costanoa, Ark & AFE - Secondary

Budget 
Reference

4300 MATERIALS & SUPPLIES
Site Discretionary @ Middle, High, 
Costanoa, Ark & AFE - Secondary

Amount       37,850 Amount 38,607 Amount 39,379

       37,850Source       Supplemental Source Supplemental Source Supplemental

       37,850Budget 
Reference       

2200 CLASS PUPIL SUPPORT 
SALARIES
.90 FTE Total = .45 FTE each - After 
School Coordinator @ BRMS & MHMS

Budget 
Reference

2200 CLASS PUPIL SUPPORT 
SALARIES
.45 FTE each - After School Coordinator 
@ BRMS & MHMS

Budget 
Reference

2200 CLASS PUPIL SUPPORT 
SALARIES
.45 FTE each - After School Coordinator 
@ BRMS & MHMS

274 of 569



Page 99 of 142

Amount       29,876 Amount 30,474 Amount 31,083

       29,876Source       Supplemental Source Supplemental Source Supplemental

       29,876Budget 
Reference       

2000 >CLASS PERSONNEL SALARIES
.9375 Total - Instructional Techs @ 
BRMS & MHMS

Budget 
Reference

2000 >CLASS PERSONNEL SALARIES
.9375 Total - Instructional Techs @ 
BRMS & MHMS

Budget 
Reference

2000 >CLASS PERSONNEL SALARIES
.9375 Total - Instructional Techs @ 
BRMS & MHMS

Amount       20,445 Amount 30,474 Amount 31,083

       20,445Source       Supplemental Source Supplemental Source Supplemental

       20,445Budget 
Reference       

3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
.90 FTE Total = .45 FTE each - After 
School Coordinator @ BRMS & 
MHMS.9375
Total - Instructional Techs @ BRMS & 
MHMS

Budget 
Reference

3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
.90 FTE Total = .45 FTE each - After 
School Coordinator @ BRMS & 
MHMS.9375
Total - Instructional Techs @ BRMS & 
MHMS

Budget 
Reference

3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
.90 FTE Total = .45 FTE each - After 
School Coordinator @ BRMS & 
MHMS.9375
Total - Instructional Techs @ BRMS & 
MHMS

Action    5
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] Struggling Learners

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 6-12

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 6-12

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

275 of 569



Page 100 of 142

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Middle and High School Summer School Interventions
Secondary English Learner Instructional Resource 
Teacher
Newcomer Sections and Supports
       

Middle and High School Summer School Interventions
Secondary English Learner Instructional Resource 
Teacher
Newcomer Sections and Supports

Middle and High School Summer School Interventions
Secondary English Learner Instructional Resource 
Teacher
Newcomer Sections and Supports

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Amount       30,000 Amount 30,000 Amount 30,000

       30,000Source       Supplemental Source Supplemental Source Supplemental

       30,000Budget 
Reference       

1130 TEACHER SALARIES - EWA
Summer School Teachers for Middle & 
High Schools

Budget 
Reference

1130 TEACHER SALARIES - EWA
Summer School Teachers for Middle & 
High Schools

Budget 
Reference

1130 TEACHER SALARIES - EWA
Summer School Teachers for Middle & 
High Schools

Amount       13,000 Amount 13,000 Amount 13,000

       13,000Source       Title I Source Title I Source Title I

       13,000Budget 
Reference       

1330 CERT SUPRVSR ADMIN - EWA
Summer School Principals for Middle & 
High Schools

Budget 
Reference

1330 CERT SUPRVSR ADMIN - EWA
Summer School Principals for Middle & 
High Schools

Budget 
Reference

1330 CERT SUPRVSR ADMIN - EWA
Summer School Principals for Middle & 
High Schools

Amount       16,500 Amount 16,500 Amount 16,500

       16,500Source       Supplemental Source Title I Source Title I

       16,500Budget 
Reference       

2000 >CLASS PERSONNEL SALARIES
Summer School for Middle & High 
Schools - LA,  Instr Techs, Clerical 
Support & Custodial Services EWA's

Budget 
Reference

2000 >CLASS PERSONNEL SALARIES
Summer School for Middle & High 
Schools - LA,  Instr Techs, Clerical 
Support & Custodial Services EWA's

Budget 
Reference

2000 >CLASS PERSONNEL SALARIES
Summer School for Middle & High 
Schools - LA,  Instr Techs, Clerical 
Support & Custodial Services EWA's

Amount       11,775 Amount 11,775 Amount 11,775

       11,775Source       Title I Source Title I Source Title I

       11,775Budget 
Reference       

3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
Summer School Benefits for all 
Certificated & Classified for Middle & 
High Schools

Budget 
Reference

3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
Summer School Benefits for all 
Certificated & Classified for Middle & High 
Schools

Budget 
Reference

3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
Summer School Benefits for all 
Certificated & Classified for Middle & High 
Schools

Amount       4,500 Amount 4,500 Amount 4,500

       4,500Source       Title I Source Title I Source Title I

276 of 569



Page 101 of 142

       4,500Budget 
Reference       

4300 MATERIALS & SUPPLIES
Summer School Supplies for Middle & 
High Schools

Budget 
Reference

4300 MATERIALS & SUPPLIES
Summer School Supplies for Middle & 
High Schools

Budget 
Reference

4300 MATERIALS & SUPPLIES
Summer School Supplies for Middle & 
High Schools

Amount       4,225 Amount 4,225 Amount 4,225

       4,225Source       Title I Source Title I Source Title I

       4,225Budget 
Reference       

1130 TEACHER SALARIES - EWA
Summer School Teachers for Middle & 
High Schools

Budget 
Reference

1130 TEACHER SALARIES - EWA
Summer School Teachers for Middle & 
High Schools

Budget 
Reference

1130 TEACHER SALARIES - EWA
Summer School Teachers for Middle & 
High Schools

Amount       87,339 Amount 88,649 Amount 89,979

       87,339Source       Title I Source Title I Source Title I

       87,339Budget 
Reference       

1900 OTHER CERT SALARIES-
REGULAR
1.00 FTE - English Learner Instr 
Resource - Secondary

Budget 
Reference

1900 OTHER CERT SALARIES-
REGULAR
1.00 FTE - English Learner Instr 
Resource - Secondary

Budget 
Reference

1900 OTHER CERT SALARIES-
REGULAR
1.00 FTE - English Learner Instr 
Resource - Secondary

Amount       22,304 Amount 22,862 Amount 23,434

       22,304Source       Title I Source Title I Source Title I

       22,304Budget 
Reference       

3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
1.00 FTE - English Learner Instr 
Resource - Secondary

Budget 
Reference

3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
1.00 FTE - English Learner Instr 
Resource - Secondary

Budget 
Reference

3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
1.00 FTE - English Learner Instr 
Resource - Secondary

Amount       26,235 Amount 26,629 Amount 27,028

       26,235Source       Title I Source Title I Source Title I

       26,235Budget 
Reference       

1100 CERT TEACHERS' SALARIES-
REG.
.40 FTE - Newcomer @ BRMS

Budget 
Reference

1100 CERT TEACHERS' SALARIES-
REG.
.40 FTE - Newcomer @ BRMS

Budget 
Reference

1100 CERT TEACHERS' SALARIES-
REG.
.40 FTE - Newcomer @ BRMS

Amount       5,456 Amount 5,592 Amount 5,732

       5,456Source       Title I Source Title I Source Title I

       5,456Budget 
Reference       

3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
.40 FTE - Newcomer @ BRMS

Budget 
Reference

3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
.40 FTE - Newcomer @ BRMS

Budget 
Reference

3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
.40 FTE - Newcomer @ BRMS

Action    6
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

277 of 569



Page 102 of 142

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Gault, Branciforte Middle School, Harbor 

High School
Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Newcomer Program Classes and Supports       Newcomer Classes and Supports Newcomer Classes and Supports

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Amount       9,300 Amount 9,486 Amount 9,676

       9,300Source       Title I Source Title I Source Title I

       9,300Budget 
Reference       

2200 CLASS PUPIL SUPPORT 
SALARIES
.4375 FTE - Learning Assistant for 
Newcomer @ BRMS

Budget 
Reference

2200 CLASS PUPIL SUPPORT 
SALARIES
.4375 FTE - Learning Assistant for 
Newcomer @ BRMS

Budget 
Reference

2200 CLASS PUPIL SUPPORT 
SALARIES
.4375 FTE - Learning Assistant for 
Newcomer @ BRMS

Amount       886 Amount 908 Amount 931

       886Source       Title I Source Title I Source Title I

       886Budget 
Reference       

3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
.4375 FTE - Learning Assistant for 
Newcomer @ BRMS

Budget 
Reference

3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
.4375 FTE - Learning Assistant for 
Newcomer @ BRMS

Budget 
Reference

3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
.4375 FTE - Learning Assistant for 
Newcomer @ BRMS

278 of 569



Page 103 of 142

Amount       62,211 Amount 63,144 Amount 64,091

       62,211Source       Title I Source Title I Source Title I

       62,211Budget 
Reference       

1100 CERT TEACHERS' SALARIES-
REG.
.80 FTE - (Newcomer ELD, Tutorial, Sea 
Science, Math ELD) @ HRHS

Budget 
Reference

1100 CERT TEACHERS' SALARIES-
REG.
.80 FTE - (Newcomer ELD, Tutorial, Sea 
Science, Math ELD) @ HRHS

Budget 
Reference

1100 CERT TEACHERS' SALARIES-
REG.
.80 FTE - (Newcomer ELD, Tutorial, Sea 
Science, Math ELD) @ HRHS

Amount       19,852 Amount 20,348 Amount 20,857

       19,852Source       Title I Source Title I Source Title I

       19,852Budget 
Reference       

3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
.80 FTE - (Newcomer ELD, Tutorial, Sea 
Science, Math ELD) @ HRHS

Budget 
Reference

3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
.80 FTE - (Newcomer ELD, Tutorial, Sea 
Science, Math ELD) @ HRHS

Budget 
Reference

3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
.80 FTE - (Newcomer ELD, Tutorial, Sea 
Science, Math ELD) @ HRHS

Amount       35,681 Amount 36,216 Amount 36,759

       35,681Source       Title I Source Title I Source Title I

       35,681Budget 
Reference       

1900 OTHER CERT SALARIES-
REGULAR
.44 FTE - Newcomer @ Gault (Also 
funded from 4201 & 4203 to = 1.00 FTE)

Budget 
Reference

1900 OTHER CERT SALARIES-
REGULAR
.44 FTE - Newcomer @ Gault (Also 
funded from 4201 & 4203 to = 1.00 FTE)

Budget 
Reference

1900 OTHER CERT SALARIES-
REGULAR
.44 FTE - Newcomer @ Gault (Also 
funded from 4201 & 4203 to = 1.00 FTE)

Amount       9,305 Amount 9,538 Amount 9,776

       9,305Source       Title I Source Title I Source Title I

       9,305Budget 
Reference       

3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
.44 FTE - Newcomer @ Gault (Also 
funded from 4201 & 4203 to = 1.00 FTE)

Budget 
Reference

3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
.44 FTE - Newcomer @ Gault (Also 
funded from 4201 & 4203 to = 1.00 FTE)

Budget 
Reference

3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
.44 FTE - Newcomer @ Gault (Also 
funded from 4201 & 4203 to = 1.00 FTE)

Amount       40,894 Amount 41,507 Amount 42,130

       40,894Source       Title III Source Title III Source Title III

       40,894Budget 
Reference       

1900 OTHER CERT SALARIES-
REGULAR
Rs 4203 LEP - .51 FTE - Newcomer @ 
Gault (Also funded from 4201 & 3010 to 
= 1.00 FTE)

Budget 
Reference

1900 OTHER CERT SALARIES-
REGULAR
Rs 4203 LEP - .51 FTE - Newcomer @ 
Gault (Also funded from 4201 & 3010 to = 
1.00 FTE)

Budget 
Reference

1900 OTHER CERT SALARIES-
REGULAR
Rs 4203 LEP - .51 FTE - Newcomer @ 
Gault (Also funded from 4201 & 3010 to = 
1.00 FTE)

Amount       10,703 Amount 10,971 Amount 11,245

       10,703Source       Title III Source Title III Source Title III

       10,703Budget 
Reference       

3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS Budget 
Reference

3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS Budget 
Reference

3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

279 of 569



Page 104 of 142

Rs 4203 LEP - .51 FTE - Newcomer @ 
Gault (Also funded from 4201 & 3010 to 
= 1.00 FTE)

Rs 4203 LEP - .51 FTE - Newcomer @ 
Gault (Also funded from 4201 & 3010 to = 
1.00 FTE)

Rs 4203 LEP - .51 FTE - Newcomer @ 
Gault (Also funded from 4201 & 3010 to = 
1.00 FTE)

Amount       4,009 Amount 4,069 Amount 4,130

       4,009Source       Title III Source Title III Source Title III

       4,009Budget 
Reference       

1900 OTHER CERT SALARIES-
REGULAR
Rs 4201 IMM - .0500 FTE - Newcomer 
@ Gault (Also funded from 4203 & 3010 
to = 1.00 FTE)

Budget 
Reference

1900 OTHER CERT SALARIES-
REGULAR
Rs 4201 IMM - .0500 FTE - Newcomer @ 
Gault (Also funded from 4203 & 3010 to = 
1.00 FTE)

Budget 
Reference

1900 OTHER CERT SALARIES-
REGULAR
Rs 4201 IMM - .0500 FTE - Newcomer @ 
Gault (Also funded from 4203 & 3010 to = 
1.00 FTE)

Amount       1,050 Amount 1,076 Amount 1,103

       1,050Source       Title III Source Title III Source Title III

       1,050Budget 
Reference       

3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
Rs 4201 IMM - .0500 FTE - Newcomer 
@ Gault (Also funded from 4203 & 3010 
to = 1.00 FTE)

Budget 
Reference

3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
Rs 4201 IMM - .0500 FTE - Newcomer @ 
Gault (Also funded from 4203 & 3010 to = 
1.00 FTE)

Budget 
Reference

3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
Rs 4201 IMM - .0500 FTE - Newcomer @ 
Gault (Also funded from 4203 & 3010 to = 
1.00 FTE)

280 of 569



Page 105 of 142

Goals, Actions, & Services
Strategic Planning Details and Accountability

Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed.
----------

New
  

Modified
  

Unchanged

----------

Goal 4 We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting effective teaching.       

----------
State and/or Local Priorities Addressed by this goal: STATE       1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

COE       9 10
LOCAL   Goal #4

----------
Identified Need Teachers need professional development to support their implementation of the Common Core State Standards and 

NGSS.  Further teachers need support with tech integration standards as outlined in the common core.   With new 
adoptions and curriculum pilots, teachers need time for professional development and collaboration to implement the 
new curriculum.  On this year's working conditions survey, 56% of teachers reported that they had sufficient training to 
fully utilize instructional technology. 71% of teachers report that professional development deepens their content 
knowledge.    63.5% of teachers report that professional development is differentiated to meet the individual needs of 
teachers.
In addition, teachers need support with scaffolding instruction for English Learners, struggling learners and students with 
special needs, as evidenced by both CAASPP and local measures. 86.2% of teacher report that professional 
development enhances teachers' ability to implement instructional strategies that meet diverse student learning needs.

----------
EXPECTED ANNUAL MEASURABLE OUTCOMES

Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20

Teacher Working Conditions 
Survey

MAP Assessments (These new 
assessments will be baseline in 
2017-18)

Develop a Coaching Survey 
(baseline data January 2018)

56% of teachers reported that 
they had sufficient training to 
fully utilize instructional 
technology.

71% of teachers report that 
professional development 
deepens their content 
knowledge

86.2% of teachers report that 
professional development 
enhances teachers' ability to 

Measures from working 
conditions survey will increase 
by the following percentages:

+ 5% technology

+ 3% PD enhances teachers 
ability to implement instructional 
strategies that meet diverse 
student learning needs.

+5% PD differentiated to meet 
individual teacher needs

Measures from working 
conditions survey will increase 
by the following percentages:

+ 5% technology

+ 3% PD enhances teachers 
ability to implement instructional 
strategies that meet diverse 
student learning needs.

+5% PD differentiated to meet 
individual teacher needs

Measures from working 
conditions survey will increase 
by the following percentages:

+ 5% technology

+ 3% PD enhances teachers 
ability to implement instructional 
strategies that meet diverse 
student learning needs.

+3% PD differentiated to meet 
individual teacher needs

281 of 569



Page 106 of 142

       implement instructional 
strategies that meet diverse 
student learning needs.

63.5% of teachers report that 
professional development is 
differentiated to meet the 
individual needs of teachers.

86.9% of teachers report that 
provided supports (i.e. 
instructional coaching, 
professional learning 
communities, etc.) translate to 
improvements in instructional 
practices by teachers.

MAP Assessment data will be 
available in the fall of 2017.

Coaching Survey data will be 
available in Jan. 2018.

+3% Provided supports translate 
to improvements instructional 
practices by teachers

MAP Targets TBD in fall 2017

Coaching Survey targets 
determined in spring 2018

+3% Provided supports translate 
to improvements instructional 
practices by teachers

MAP Targets TBD in fall 2017

Coaching Survey targets 
determined in spring 2018

+3% Provided supports translate 
to improvements instructional 
practices by teachers

MAP Targets TBD in fall 2017

Coaching Survey targets 
determined in spring 2018

PLANNED ACTIONS / SERVICES
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s Actions/Services. Duplicate the table, including Budgeted Expenditures, as needed.

Action    1
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

282 of 569



Page 107 of 142

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Provide coaching to teachers:
*Educational Techology Coach
*Math Coaches
*Next Generation of Science Standards (NGSS) Coach
*Common Core State Standards (CCSS) Coach
* English Learner Instructional Resource Teachers to 
coach teachers on implementing CA ELD standards and 
scaffolding instruction in core content areas. (See Goal 
#3)

Continue to support and refine roles of Santa Cruz 
Instructional leaders (SCIL) (Teacher leaders who 
support site Professional Development) (Title II & Title I)

Continue to support our Teacher Leader PLC and work to 
support future school leaders through on-going trainings

Determine metrics for evaluating impact of instructional 
coaches and develop a coaching effectiveness survey to 
collect baseline data in coaching impact.

       

Provide coaching to teachers:
*Educational Techology Coach
*Math Coaches
*Next Generation of Science Standards (NGSS) Coach
*Common Core State Standards (CCSS) Coach
* English Learner Instructional Resource Teachers to 
coach teachers on implementing CA ELD standards and 
scaffolding instruction in core content areas. (See Goal 
#3)

Continue to support and refine roles of Santa Cruz 
Instructional leaders (SCIL) (Teacher leaders who 
support site Professional Development) (Title II & Title I)

Continue to support our Teacher Leader PLC and work to 
support future school leaders through on-going trainings

Utilize metrics for evaluating impact of instructional 
coaches and develop a coaching effectiveness survey to 
collect baseline data in coaching impact.

Provide coaching to teachers:
*Educational Techology Coach
*Math Coaches
*Next Generation of Science Standards (NGSS) Coach
*Common Core State Standards (CCSS) Coach
* English Learner Instructional Resource Teachers to 
coach teachers on implementing CA ELD standards and 
scaffolding instruction in core content areas. (See Goal 
#3)

Continue to support and refine roles of Santa Cruz 
Instructional leaders (SCIL) (Teacher leaders who 
support site Professional Development) (Title II & Title I)

Continue to support our Teacher Leader PLC and work to 
support future school leaders through on-going trainings

Utilize metrics for evaluating impact of instructional 
coaches and develop a coaching effectiveness survey to 
collect baseline data in coaching impact.

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Amount       94,643 Amount 96,063 Amount 97,504

       94,643Source       Supplemental Source Supplemental Source Supplemental

       94,643Budget 
Reference       

1900 OTHER CERT SALARIES-
REGULAR
1.00 FTE - Ed Tech Coach (.50 E & .50 
S)

Budget 
Reference

1900 OTHER CERT SALARIES-
REGULAR
1.00 FTE - Ed Tech Coach (.50 E & .50 S)

Budget 
Reference

1900 OTHER CERT SALARIES-
REGULAR
1.00 FTE - Ed Tech Coach (.50 E & .50 
S)

283 of 569



Page 108 of 142

Amount       23,576 Amount 24,165 Amount 24,770

       23,576Source       Supplemental Source Supplemental Source Supplemental

       23,576Budget 
Reference       

3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
1.00 FTE - Ed Tech Coach (.50 E & .50 
S)

Budget 
Reference

3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
1.00 FTE - Ed Tech Coach (.50 E & .50 S)

Budget 
Reference

3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
1.00 FTE - Ed Tech Coach (.50 E & .50 
S)

Amount       142,044 Amount 144,177 Amount 146,340

       142,044Source       Supplemental Source Supplemental Source Supplemental

       142,044Budget 
Reference       

1900 OTHER CERT SALARIES-
REGULAR
2.00 FTE - Math Coaches (1.00 E & 1.00 
S)

Budget 
Reference

1900 OTHER CERT SALARIES-
REGULAR
2.00 FTE - Math Coaches (1.00 E & 1.00 
S)

Budget 
Reference

1900 OTHER CERT SALARIES-
REGULAR
2.00 FTE - Math Coaches (1.00 E & 1.00 
S)

Amount       48,220 Amount 49,426 Amount 50,661

       48,220Source       Supplemental Source Supplemental Source Supplemental

       48,220Budget 
Reference       

3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
2.00 FTE - Math Coaches (1.00 E & 1.00 
S)

Budget 
Reference

3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
2.00 FTE - Math Coaches (1.00 E & 1.00 
S)

Budget 
Reference

3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
2.00 FTE - Math Coaches (1.00 E & 1.00 
S)

Amount       86,805 Amount 88,107 Amount 89,429

       86,805Source       Supplemental Source Supplemental Source Supplemental

       86,805Budget 
Reference       

1900 OTHER CERT SALARIES-
REGULAR
1.00 FTE - NGSS Science Coach

Budget 
Reference

1900 OTHER CERT SALARIES-
REGULAR
1.00 FTE - NGSS Science Coach

Budget 
Reference

1900 OTHER CERT SALARIES-
REGULAR
1.00 FTE - NGSS Science Coach

Amount       21,749 Amount 22,293 Amount 22,850

       21,749Source       Supplemental Source Supplemental Source Supplemental

       21,749Budget 
Reference       

3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
1.00 FTE - NGSS Science Coach

Budget 
Reference

3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
1.00 FTE - NGSS Science Coach

Budget 
Reference

3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
1.00 FTE - NGSS Science Coach

Amount       34,797 Amount 35,319 Amount 35,849

       34,797Source       Supplemental Source Supplemental Source Supplemental

       34,797Budget 
Reference       

1900 OTHER CERT SALARIES-
REGULAR
.40 FTE - CCSS Coaches (.20 BRMS & 
.20 MHMS)

Budget 
Reference

1900 OTHER CERT SALARIES-
REGULAR
.40 FTE - CCSS Coaches (.20 BRMS & 
.20 MHMS)

Budget 
Reference

1900 OTHER CERT SALARIES-
REGULAR
.40 FTE - CCSS Coaches (.20 BRMS & 
.20 MHMS)

Amount       9,605 Amount 9,845 Amount 10,091

       9,605 284 of 569



Page 109 of 142

Source       Supplemental Source Supplemental Source Supplemental

       9,605Budget 
Reference       

3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
.40 FTE - CCSS Coaches (.20 BRMS & 
.20 MHMS)

Budget 
Reference

3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
.40 FTE - CCSS Coaches (.20 BRMS & 
.20 MHMS)

Budget 
Reference

3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
.40 FTE - CCSS Coaches (.20 BRMS & 
.20 MHMS)

Amount       21,000 Amount 21,000 Amount 21,000

       21,000Source       Title I Source Title I Source Title I

       21,000Budget 
Reference       

1160 TEACHER SALARIES-STIPEND
SCIL Stipends - Secondary

Budget 
Reference

1160 TEACHER SALARIES-STIPEND
SCIL Stipends - Secondary

Budget 
Reference

1160 TEACHER SALARIES-STIPEND
SCIL Stipends - Secondary

Amount       3,728 Amount 3,728 Amount 3,728

       3,728Source       Title I Source Title I Source Title I

       3,728Budget 
Reference       

3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
SCIL Stipends - Secondary

Budget 
Reference

3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
SCIL Stipends - Secondary

Budget 
Reference

3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
SCIL Stipends - Secondary

Action    2
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

285 of 569



Page 110 of 142

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Provide Professional Development for Integrated ELD
Provide support for new teachers to clear their credential 
and for interns to earn their preliminary credential (Title 2)
Continue to support and refine roles of Santa Cruz 
Instructional leaders (SCIL) (Teacher leaders who 
support site Professional Development) (Title II & Title I)
       

Provide Professional Development for Integrated ELD
Provide support for new teachers to clear their credential 
and for interns to earn their preliminary credential (Title 2)
Continue to support and refine roles of Santa Cruz 
Instructional leaders (SCIL) (Teacher leaders who 
support site Professional Development) (Title II & Title I)

Provide Professional Development for Integrated ELD
Provide support for new teachers to clear their credential 
and for interns to earn their preliminary credential (Title 2)
Continue to support and refine roles of Santa Cruz 
Instructional leaders (SCIL) (Teacher leaders who 
support site Professional Development) (Title II & Title I)

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Amount       12,740 Amount 12,740 Amount 12,740

       12,740Source       Title I Source Title I Source Title I

       12,740Budget 
Reference       

1140 TEACHER SALARIES-
SUBSTITUTES
Subs for Integrated ELD - Secondary

Budget 
Reference

1140 TEACHER SALARIES-
SUBSTITUTES
Subs for Integrated ELD - Secondary

Budget 
Reference

1140 TEACHER SALARIES-
SUBSTITUTES
Subs for Integrated ELD - Secondary

Amount       2,262 Amount 2,262 Amount 2,262

       2,262Source       Title I Source Title I Source Title I

       2,262Budget 
Reference       

3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
Subs for Integrated ELD - Secondary

Budget 
Reference

3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
Subs for Integrated ELD - Secondary

Budget 
Reference

3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
Subs for Integrated ELD - Secondary

Amount       133,742 Amount 133,742 Amount 133,742

       133,742Source       Title II Source Title II Source Title II

       133,742Budget 
Reference       

5800 OTHER SVCS & OPER 
EXPENDITURES
SC/SVNTP Induction Program (28,502 E 
105,240 S)

Budget 
Reference

5800 OTHER SVCS & OPER 
EXPENDITURES
SC/SVNTP Induction Program (28,502 E 
105,240 S)

Budget 
Reference

5800 OTHER SVCS & OPER 
EXPENDITURES
SC/SVNTP Induction Program (28,502 E 
105,240 S)

Amount       69,022 Amount 69,022 Amount 69,022

       69,022Source       Title II Source Title II Source Title II

       69,022Budget 
Reference       

1160 TEACHER SALARIES-STIPEND
SCIL Stipends (42,307 E & 26,715 S)

Budget 
Reference

1160 TEACHER SALARIES-STIPEND
SCIL Stipends (42,307 E & 26,715 S)

Budget 
Reference

1160 TEACHER SALARIES-STIPEND
SCIL Stipends (42,307 E & 26,715 S)

Amount       10,976 Amount 10,976 Amount 10,976

       10,976Source       Title II Source Title II Source Title II

       10,976
286 of 569



Page 111 of 142

Budget 
Reference       

3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
SCIL Stipends (6,728 E & 4,248 S)

Budget 
Reference

3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
SCIL Stipends (6,728 E & 4,248 S)

Budget 
Reference

3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
SCIL Stipends (6,728 E & 4,248 S)

287 of 569



Page 112 of 142

Goals, Actions, & Services
Strategic Planning Details and Accountability

Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed.
----------

New
  

Modified
  

Unchanged

----------

Goal 5 SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management       

----------
State and/or Local Priorities Addressed by this goal: STATE       1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

COE       9 10
LOCAL   District Goal #5

----------
Identified Need As a District , we need support personnel in the central office to ensure our budgets are effectively managed. Further,  

we need to focus on building and implementing efficient plans utilizing our supplemental and categorical resources.  
(The LCAP, Single Site Plans for Student Achievement; Curriculum and Instruction Plan; and The English Language 
Learners  Master Plan).  And, we need to develop clear measures to monitor the impact of our key LCAP initiatives.

Further, we need to have well maintained, well managed buildings.  Currently 11 of 13 of our  buildings scored 
exemplary on the FIT report for the 16-17 school year.

----------
EXPECTED ANNUAL MEASURABLE OUTCOMES

Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20

All district plans and budgets will 
be aligned with the six district 
goals.

Data dashboards will be 
developed to monitor impact of 
key LCAP initiatives - RtI & 
Instructional Coaching

FIT Report

       

District plans are aligned with 
district goals.  The alignment 
could be more explicit.

There are no currently no data 
dashboards for RtI or 
Instructional Coaching

The FIT report 11 of 13 buildings 
scored exemplary for the 16-17 
school year.

100% of district and school sites 
plans will be aligned with district 
goals.

Data dashboards will be in place

13 of 13 Exemplary Schools as 
determined by the FIT report,

100% of district and school sites 
plans will be aligned with district 
goals.

Data dashboards will be in place

13 of 13 Exemplary Schools as 
determined by the FIT report,

100% of district and school sites 
plans will be aligned with district 
goals.

Data dashboards will be in place

13 of 13 Exemplary Schools as 
determined by the FIT report,

PLANNED ACTIONS / SERVICES
288 of 569



Page 113 of 142

Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s Actions/Services. Duplicate the table, including Budgeted Expenditures, as needed.

Action    1
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

*Site Program Coordinator Helps Monitor Supplemental 
Budgets and Expenditures

*Administrative Secretary Helps Monitor Supplemental 
Budgets and Expenditures

* Support sites and departments with plans and budget 
development to ensure alignment with district goals

* Develop data dashboards to monitor impact of key 
LCAP initiatives -  RtI and Instructional Coaching

* Provide sites and departments support with  budget 
monitoring

*Site Program Coordinator Helps Monitor Supplemental 
Budgets and Expenditures

*Administrative Secretary Helps Monitor Supplemental 
Budgets and Expenditures

* Support sites and departments with plans and budget 
development to ensure alignment with district goals

* Implement data dashboards to monitor impact of key 
LCAP initiatives -  RtI and Instructional Coaching

* Provide sites and departments support with  budget 
monitoring

*Site Program Coordinator Helps Monitor Supplemental 
Budgets and Expenditures

*Administrative Secretary Helps Monitor Supplemental 
Budgets and Expenditures

* Support sites and departments with plans and budget 
development to ensure alignment with district goals

* Implement data dashboards to monitor impact of key 
LCAP initiatives -  RtI and Instructional Coaching

* Provide sites and departments support with  budget 
monitoring

289 of 569



Page 114 of 142

* Implement the Facilities Master Plan to improve school 
facilities

       

* Implement the Facilities Master Plan to improve school 
facilities

* Implement the Facilities Master Plan to improve school 
facilities

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Amount       15,448 Amount 15,757 Amount 16,072

       15,448Source       Supplemental Source Supplemental Source Supplemental

       15,448Budget 
Reference       

2400 CLASS CLERICAL SALARIES-
REG
.4100 FTE - (.21 FTE Site Program 
Coord & .20 FTE Admin Secretary - 
Elementary)

Budget 
Reference

2400 CLASS CLERICAL SALARIES-REG
.4100 FTE - (.21 FTE Site Program Coord 
& .20 FTE Admin Secretary - Elementary)

Budget 
Reference

2400 CLASS CLERICAL SALARIES-
REG
.4100 FTE - (.21 FTE Site Program Coord 
& .20 FTE Admin Secretary - Elementary)

Amount       8,563 Amount 8,777 Amount 8,997

       8,563Source       Supplemental Source Supplemental Source Supplemental

       8,563Budget 
Reference       

3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
.4100 FTE - (.21 FTE Site Program 
Coord & .20 FTE Admin Secretary - 
Elementary)

Budget 
Reference

3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
.4100 FTE - (.21 FTE Site Program Coord 
& .20 FTE Admin Secretary - Elementary)

Budget 
Reference

3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
.4100 FTE - (.21 FTE Site Program Coord 
& .20 FTE Admin Secretary - Elementary)

Amount       39,391 Amount 39,982 Amount 40,582

       39,391Source       Supplemental Source Supplemental Source Supplemental

       39,391Budget 
Reference       

2400 CLASS CLERICAL SALARIES-
REG
.94 FTE - (.14 FTE Site Program Coord 
& .80 FTE Admin Secretary - Secondary)

Budget 
Reference

2400 CLASS CLERICAL SALARIES-REG
.94 FTE - (.14 FTE Site Program Coord & 
.80 FTE Admin Secretary - Secondary)

Budget 
Reference

2400 CLASS CLERICAL SALARIES-
REG
.94 FTE - (.14 FTE Site Program Coord & 
.80 FTE Admin Secretary - Secondary)

Amount       21,698 Amount 22,240 Amount 22,796

       21,698Source       Supplemental Source Supplemental Source Supplemental

       21,698Budget 
Reference       

3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
.94 FTE - (.14 FTE Site Program Coord 
& .80 FTE Admin Secretary - Secondary)

Budget 
Reference

3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
.94 FTE - (.14 FTE Site Program Coord & 
.80 FTE Admin Secretary - Secondary)

Budget 
Reference

3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
.94 FTE - (.14 FTE Site Program Coord & 
.80 FTE Admin Secretary - Secondary)

Action    2
290 of 569



Page 115 of 142

OR
ACTIONS/SERVICES

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
Budget 
Reference       

Budget 
Reference .

Budget 
Reference

Action    3
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Amount        Amount  Amount

Budget 
Reference       

Budget 
Reference  

Budget 
Reference

291 of 569



Page 116 of 142

Action    4
OR

ACTIONS/SERVICES

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
Amount        Amount  Amount

292 of 569



Page 117 of 142

Goals, Actions, & Services
Strategic Planning Details and Accountability

Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed.
----------

New
  

Modified
  

Unchanged

----------

Goal 6 SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnerships with its diverse community.       

----------
State and/or Local Priorities Addressed by this goal: STATE       1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

COE       9 10
LOCAL   District Goals #6

----------
Identified Need In SCCS, parents and our broader community are essential partners in ensuring that we are able to provide an excellent 

education for all students.  

----------
EXPECTED ANNUAL MEASURABLE OUTCOMES

Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20

Increase participation in annual 
parent survey.

Parent participation in District 
committees (parent survey)

Parent participation in site 
committees (parent survey)

Parent participation in Parent 
Education offerings (parent 
survey)

Parents reporting that when they 
contact the school they receive 
courteous attention  (parent 
survey)

Parents reporting that they 
receive sufficient information 
regarding their child’s program, 

889 parents participated in the 
parent survey

13% of parents responding to 
district survey report that they 
have participated in district 
committees

42% of parents responding to 
district survey report that they 
participate in site  committees

41% of parents responding to 
district survey report that they 
have participated in parent 
education offerings

89% of parents responding to 
district survey report that when 
they contact the school they 
"always or regularly" receive 
courteous attention

We will increase parent 
participation in the survey by 
3%.

We will increase parent positive 
responses to survey questions 
by 5%

We will continue to produce and 
send the State of our Schools 
mailing.

We will increase parent 
participation in the survey by 
3%.

We will increase parent positive 
responses to survey questions 
by 5%

We will continue to produce and 
send the State of our Schools 
mailing.

We will increase parent 
participation in the survey by 
3%.

We will increase parent positive 
responses to survey questions 
by 5%

We will continue to produce and 
send the State of our Schools 
mailing.

293 of 569



Page 118 of 142

progress and needs (parent 
survey)

?? Two questions for this year's 
survey -- (baseline data will be 
available in fall 2017)

Provide an annual State of our 
Schools mailer for the broader 
SCCS community.

       

76% of parents responding to 
the district survey report that 
they "always or regularly" 
receive sufficient information 
regarding their child's program, 
process and needs

For the past two years, each 
October the State of our Schools 
Mailer has been produced

PLANNED ACTIONS / SERVICES
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s Actions/Services. Duplicate the table, including Budgeted Expenditures, as needed.

Action    1
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

294 of 569



Page 119 of 142

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

*District Advisory Committee Meetings

*School Community Coordinators support access to 
school for monolingual Spanish speaking families.  They 
also provide outreach and support to all families.

* Parents and community members participate in school 
and district level committees (School Site Councils, 
ELAC, DELAC, District Advisory Council; Parent Teacher 
Organizations, Home and School Clubs, /Wellness 
Committee, Green Schools, Tech Task Force and more) 
throughout the year.

* Parent, staff and student surveys are conducted 
annually to solicit community input on LCAP, budget and 
program priorities.

* Parent education opportunities are provided at both the 
site and district level -- One example is the annual Latino 
Role Models Conference sponsored in concert with 
Senderos.  This inspiring event, conducted all in Spanish, 
provides parent education on college admissions, A-G 
completion, financial aide, and more.

       

*District Advisory Committee Meetings

*School Community Coordinators support access to 
school for monolingual Spanish speaking families.  They 
also provide outreach and support to all families.

* Parents and community members participate in school 
and district level committees (School Site Councils, 
ELAC, DELAC, District Advisory Council; Parent Teacher 
Organizations, Home and School Clubs, /Wellness 
Committee, Green Schools, Tech Task Force and more) 
throughout the year.

* Parent, staff and student surveys are conducted 
annually to solicit community input on LCAP, budget and 
program priorities.

* Parent education opportunities are provided at both the 
site and district level -- One example is the annual Latino 
Role Models Conference sponsored in concert with 
Senderos.  This inspiring event, conducted all in Spanish, 
provides parent education on college admissions, A-G 
completion, financial aide, and more.

*District Advisory Committee Meetings

*School Community Coordinators support access to 
school for monolingual Spanish speaking families.  They 
also provide outreach and support to all families.

* Parents and community members participate in school 
and district level committees (School Site Councils, 
ELAC, DELAC, District Advisory Council; Parent Teacher 
Organizations, Home and School Clubs, /Wellness 
Committee, Green Schools, Tech Task Force and more) 
throughout the year.

* Parent, staff and student surveys are conducted 
annually to solicit community input on LCAP, budget and 
program priorities.

* Parent education opportunities are provided at both the 
site and district level -- One example is the annual Latino 
Role Models Conference sponsored in concert with 
Senderos.  This inspiring event, conducted all in Spanish, 
provides parent education on college admissions, A-G 
completion, financial aide, and more.

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Amount       103,111 Amount 105,173 Amount 107,277

       103,111Source       Supplemental Source Supplemental Source Supplemental

       103,111Budget 
Reference       

2200 CLASS PUPIL SUPPORT 
SALARIES
2.7125 FTE - School Community 
Coordinators (.75 FTE @ BV, DL, GA & 
.4625 Monarch)

Budget 
Reference

2200 CLASS PUPIL SUPPORT 
SALARIES
2.7125 FTE - School Community 
Coordinators (.75 FTE @ BV, DL, GA & 
.4625 Monarch)

Budget 
Reference

2200 CLASS PUPIL SUPPORT 
SALARIES
2.7125 FTE - School Community 
Coordinators (.75 FTE @ BV, DL, GA & 
.4625 Monarch)

Amount       76,661 Amount 78,578 Amount 80,542

       76,661Source       Supplemental Source Supplemental Source Supplemental

       76,661Budget 
Reference       

3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS Budget 
Reference

3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS Budget 
Reference

3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

295 of 569



Page 120 of 142

2.7125 FTE - School Community 
Coordinators (.75 FTE @ BV, DL, GA & 
.4625 Monarch)

2.7125 FTE - School Community 
Coordinators (.75 FTE @ BV, DL, GA & 
.4625 Monarch)

2.7125 FTE - School Community 
Coordinators (.75 FTE @ BV, DL, GA & 
.4625 Monarch)

Amount       107,621 Amount 109,235 Amount 110,874

       107,621Source       Supplemental Source Supplemental Source Supplemental

       107,621Budget 
Reference       

2200 CLASS PUPIL SUPPORT 
SALARIES
3.00 FTE - School Community 
Coordinators (.50 @ BRMS, MHMS - 
1.00 @ HRHS & Small Schools)

Budget 
Reference

2200 CLASS PUPIL SUPPORT 
SALARIES
3.00 FTE - School Community 
Coordinators (.50 @ BRMS, MHMS - 1.00 
@ HRHS & Small Schools)

Budget 
Reference

2200 CLASS PUPIL SUPPORT 
SALARIES
3.00 FTE - School Community 
Coordinators (.50 @ BRMS, MHMS - 
1.00 @ HRHS & Small Schools)

Amount       84,256 Amount 86,362 Amount 88,521

       84,256Source       Supplemental Source Supplemental Source Supplemental

       84,256Budget 
Reference       

3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
3.00 FTE - School Community 
Coordinators (.50 @ BRMS, MHMS - 
1.00 @ HRHS & Small Schools)

Budget 
Reference

3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
3.00 FTE - School Community 
Coordinators (.50 @ BRMS, MHMS - 1.00 
@ HRHS & Small Schools)

Budget 
Reference

3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
3.00 FTE - School Community 
Coordinators (.50 @ BRMS, MHMS - 
1.00 @ HRHS & Small Schools)

Amount       3,770 Amount 3,770 Amount 3,770

       3,770Source       Supplemental Source Supplemental Source Supplemental

       3,770Budget 
Reference       

4395 FOOD FOR WORKSHOPS
DAC Meetings (1,495 E & 2,275 S)

Budget 
Reference

4395 FOOD FOR WORKSHOPS
DAC Meetings (1,495 E & 2,275 S)

Budget 
Reference

4395 FOOD FOR WORKSHOPS
DAC Meetings (1,495 E & 2,275 S)

Amount       12,694 Amount 12,694 Amount 12,694

       12,694Source       Title I Source Title I Source Title I

       12,694Budget 
Reference       

4300 MATERIALS & SUPPLIES
1% Parent Involvement - Translations & 
Babysitting (3,309 E & 9,985 S)

Budget 
Reference

1900 OTHER CERT SALARIES-
REGULAR
1% Parent Involvement - Translations & 
Babysitting (3,309 E & 9,985 S)

Budget 
Reference

1900 OTHER CERT SALARIES-
REGULAR
1% Parent Involvement - Translations & 
Babysitting (3,309 E & 9,985 S)

Amount       5,000 Amount 5,000 Amount 5,000

       5,000Source       Title I Source Title I Source Title I

       5,000Budget 
Reference       

5800 OTHER SVCS & OPER 
EXPENDITURES
Latino Role Model Conference

Budget 
Reference

5800 OTHER SVCS & OPER 
EXPENDITURES
Latino Role Model Conference

Budget 
Reference

5800 OTHER SVCS & OPER 
EXPENDITURES
Latino Role Model Conference

296 of 569



Page 121 of 142

Demonstration of Increased or Improved Services for Unduplicated Pupils
LCAP Year 2017–18 2018–19 2019–20

----------
Estimated Supplemental and Concentration Grant Funds: $4,052,654 Percentage to Increase or Improve Services: 7.93%
----------
Describe how services provided for unduplicated pupils are increased or improved by at least the percentage identified above, either qualitatively or 
quantitatively, as compared to services provided for all students in the LCAP year. 

Identify each action/service being funded and provided on a schoolwide or LEA-wide basis. Include the required descriptions supporting each schoolwide or LEA-
wide use of funds (see instructions).
----------
$1,581,937 Elementary
$2,470,717 Secondary
$4,052,654 Total SCCS

Based upon FCMAT’s Local Control Funding Formula Calculator, SCCS estimates that in the 2017-18 LCAP year it will receive $1,581,937 in Supplemental 
funding and $0 in Concentration funding for the elementary district, and $2,470,717 in Supplemental funding and $0 in Concentration funding for the secondary 
district, for a grand total of $4,052,654 in Supplemental and Concentration Grant funding.  The percentage by which services for unduplicated pupils (English 
Learners, Foster Youth, & Low-income Students) must be increased or improved over services for all students is 8.59% for the elementary district and 7.27% for 
the secondary district, or 7.93% for the entire K-12th district.

The term “unduplicated pupils” masks the reality that many students belong to more than one category.  English Learners, Low Income students and Foster 
Youth are served through the base program with targeted support both during the day and outside of the day.  Teachers on special assignment for content area 
instruction are trained in best strategies for students who are learning English as a second language or who are school dependent. For these reasons, many 
programs are designed to improve services for students that struggle, regardless of the reasons for their difficulties or the demographic categories they may or 
may not belong to.  An example of this is the site discretionary funding that will enable schools to control the ways in which they can best meet the needs of their 
students.  All of these programs are above and beyond the core educational program provided to all students in the district.

Unduplicated Pupils
The percentage by which services for all unduplicated pupils (English Learners, Foster Youth, & Low-income Students) must be increased or improved over 
services for all students is 8.59% for the elementary district and 7.27% for the secondary district, or 7.93% for the entire K-12 district.  The increase and/or 
improved services to each of the three targeted populations is enumerated below.

Supporting the Foster Ed Initiative, even assuming there were additional dollars granted for them specifically (as opposed to FY automatically being included in 
the LI count), represents the single greatest proportional investment for a sub-population. This is justified because of the significant achievement gap 
demonstrated between students in foster care and all of other students, including subpopulations such as those in special education, low-income or English 
language learners. Therefore the proportionality, both in terms of quantitative expenditures and qualitative time and effort, will be greater than their small 
enrollment number (N=39 or .6%).  Collaborating with other LEAs in SC County in the Foster Ed initiative led by the COE, and implementing the MOU is a service 

297 of 569



Page 122 of 142

dedicated entirely to foster youth.  Further, our school Counselors, Social Workers and our School Community Coordinators all provide specific services for our 
Foster Youth as members of the Foster Youth Support Team.

English Learners -
At 14% (N=974) of enrollment, English Learners represent a significant minority of SCCS students.  In terms of the achievement gap, their demonstrated need is 
much greater than their numbers.  In addition to the challenge of learning a second language while learning the rigorous content curriculum, ELs may also 
confront cultural differences that can impede success.  English Learners in SCCS are usually also low-income students, and as such often struggle with 
economic barriers.  Targeted services for our English Learners include two English Learner Instructional Resource Teachers; School Community Coordinators to 
provide access to the school through translation and other family supports; Site Program Coordinators who facilitate language testing and support compliance 
with state and federal mandates, Additional Instructional Technicians, a Bilingual Social Worker, 1.4 total newcomer sections at both middle schools and Harbor 
High to support language acquisition and access to core content; Bilingual Math Tutors, and site based programs directed at EL supports.  There are also 
additional services provided via a new Newcomer teacher at the elementary level, expanding our Newcomer programs to TK-12.  We are also adding additional 
counseling services specifically for ELs through a grant from the City of Santa Cruz.

Low-Income Students -
A large minority (N=2,620 or 38.5%) of SCCS students qualifies for free/reduced meals.  These students, on average, achieve well below their peers who are not 
challenged by poverty, necessitating an investment in programs that address their needs.  The following are programs and services that principally address the 
needs of our unduplicated pupils, particularly LI students:  RtI Coordinators, RtI Instructional Technicians, RtI Learning Assistants, AVID, Reading and Math 
Intervention sections, Summer School, Homework Clubs, Middle School After School Intervention Programs, PIP, Social Workers, PBIS Coach, Counseling 
Interns, Elementary Counselors; the credit recovery program,  and site-based programs are designed to address the types of challenges that LI's frequently 
encounter in an academic setting.  As mentioned above, LI students frequently also belong to other subgroups.  All FY and migrant students are automatically 
part of the LI subgroup.  There is also a large overlap with the EL and immigrant subgroups.  Additional resources have been added at the school sites for Site 
Councils to allocate towards targeting the success of struggling students.

The 2016-17 LCAP allocation was $3,735,226 ($1,479,556) for elementary and ($2,255,670) for secondary), while the 2017-18 LCAP allocation is $4,052,654 
($1,581,937 for elementary and $2,470,717 for secondary), for an overall increase of $317,428). The ongoing costs of all personnel in the LCAP has increased 
due to step and column movement, a 5.4% increase in health and welfare costs and increased STRS 1.85% and PERS 1.643% costs for the District.  In addition, 
we have added the following programs and services:
1) New MOU with the County Office for the Foster Youth Collaborative
2) Additional math coaches (increased from .6 secondary and .4 elementary to 1.0 elementary and 1.0 secondary)  -- This is the academic area that both parents 
and students have indicated there is need for significant support.
3) Additional Services for Newcomer Students TK-12, including additional newcomer sections in secondary and a 1.0 elementary newcomer teacher (Title I), 
additional counseling services to address the specific needs of newcomer and refugee students
4) Expanded Response to Intervention program services, using new screening tools to identify student needs and monitor students' academic progress
5)  Initial steps to implement our Curriculum Master Plan and English Learner Master Plan, our road maps to ensure student achievement.

All of these services in the coming LCAP year constitute a proportional increase in services for the targeted populations.

-------
-------

298 of 569



Page 123 of 142

299 of 569



Revised Local Control and Accountability Plan and Annual Update Template 
Instructions

Addendum
The Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) and Annual Update Template documents and 
communicates local educational agencies’ (LEAs) actions and expenditures to support student outcomes and 
overall performance. For school districts and county offices of education, the LCAP is a three-year plan which 
is reviewed and updated in the second and third years of the plan.  Charter schools may complete the LCAP to 
align with the term of the charter school’s budget, typically one year, which is submitted to the school’s 
authorizer. The LCAP and Annual Update Template must be completed by all LEAs each year.

For school districts, the LCAP must describe, for the school district and each school within the district, goals 
and specific actions to achieve those goals for all students and each student group identified by the Local 
Control Funding Formula (LCFF) (ethnic, socioeconomically disadvantaged, English learners, foster youth, 
pupils with disabilities, and homeless youth), for each of the state priorities and any locally identified priorities.

For county offices of education, the LCAP must describe, for each county office of education-operated school 
and program, goals and specific actions to achieve those goals for all students and each LCFF student group 
funded through the county office of education (students attending juvenile court schools, on probation or 
parole, or expelled under certain conditions) for each of the state priorities and any locally identified priorities. 
School districts and county offices of education may additionally coordinate and describe in their LCAPs 
services funded by a school district that are provided to students attending county-operated schools and 
programs, including special education programs. 

If a county superintendent of schools has jurisdiction over a single school district, the county board of 
education and the governing board of the school district may adopt and file for review and approval a single 
LCAP consistent with the requirements in Education Code (EC) sections 52060, 52062, 52066, 52068, and 
52070.  The LCAP must clearly articulate to which entity’s budget (school district or county superintendent of 
schools) all budgeted and actual expenditures are aligned. 

Charter schools must describe goals and specific actions to achieve those goals for all students and each 
LCFF subgroup of students including students with disabilities and homeless youth, for each of the state 
priorities that apply for the grade levels served or the nature of the program operated by the charter school, 
and any locally identified priorities. For charter schools, the inclusion and description of goals for state priorities 
in the LCAP may be modified to meet the grade levels served and the nature of the programs provided, 
including modifications to reflect only the statutory requirements explicitly applicable to charter schools in the 
Education Code. Changes in LCAP goals and actions/services for charter schools that result from the annual 
update process do not necessarily constitute a material revision to the school’s charter petition.

300 of 569



For questions related to specific sections of the template, please see instructions below:

Instructions: Linked Table of Contents

Plan Summary
Annual Update
Stakeholder Engagement
Goals, Actions, and Services
Planned Actions/Services
Demonstration of Increased or Improved Services for Unduplicated Students

For additional questions or technical assistance related to completion of the LCAP template, please contact the 
local county office of education, or the CDE’s Local Agency Systems Support Office at: 916-319-0809 or by 
email at: lcff@cde.ca.gov.

Plan Summary
The LCAP is intended to reflect an LEA’s annual goals, actions, services and expenditures within a fixed three-
year planning cycle. LEAs must include a plan summary for the LCAP each year. 
When developing the LCAP, mark the appropriate LCAP year, and address the prompts provided in these 
sections.  When developing the LCAP in year 2 or year 3, mark the appropriate LCAP year and replace the 
previous summary information with information relevant to the current year LCAP.
In this section, briefly address the prompts provided. These prompts are not limits.  LEAs may include 
information regarding local program(s), community demographics, and the overall vision of the LEA.  LEAs 
may also attach documents (e.g., the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics data reports) if desired and/or include charts 
illustrating goals, planned outcomes, actual outcomes, or related planned and actual expenditures.
An LEA may use an alternative format for the plan summary as long as it includes the information specified in 
each prompt and the budget summary table.
The reference to LCFF Evaluation Rubrics means the evaluation rubrics adopted by the State Board of 
Education under EC Section 52064.5.  

Budget Summary
The LEA must complete the LCAP Budget Summary table as follows:

 Total LEA General Fund Budget Expenditures for the LCAP Year: This amount is the LEA’s 
total budgeted General Fund expenditures for the LCAP year. The LCAP year means the fiscal year 
for which an LCAP is adopted or updated by July 1. The General Fund is the main operating fund of 
the LEA and accounts for all activities not accounted for in another fund. All activities are reported in 
the General Fund unless there is a compelling reason to account for an activity in another fund. For 
further information please refer to the California School Accounting Manual 
(http://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/ac/sa/). (Note: For some charter schools that follow governmental fund 
accounting, this amount is the total budgeted expenditures in the Charter Schools Special Revenue 
Fund. For charter schools that follow the not-for-profit accounting model, this amount is total 
budgeted expenses, such as those budgeted in the Charter Schools Enterprise Fund.)

 Total Funds Budgeted for Planned Actions/Services to Meet the Goals in the LCAP for the 
LCAP Year: This amount is the total of the budgeted expenditures associated with the 
actions/services included for the LCAP year from all sources of funds, as reflected in the LCAP.  To 
the extent actions/services and/or expenditures are listed in the LCAP under more than one goal, 
the expenditures should be counted only once.

 Description of any use(s) of the General Fund Budget Expenditures specified above for the 
LCAP year not included in the LCAP: Briefly describe expenditures included in total General 
Fund Expenditures that are not included in the total funds budgeted for planned actions/services for 

301 of 569

http://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/ac/sa/


the LCAP year. (Note: The total funds budgeted for planned actions/services may include funds 
other than general fund expenditures.)

 Total Projected LCFF Revenues for LCAP Year: This amount is the total amount of LCFF funding 
the LEA estimates it will receive pursuant to EC sections 42238.02 (for school districts and charter 
schools) and 2574 (for county offices of education), as implemented by EC sections 42238.03 and 
2575 for the LCAP year respectively.  

Annual Update
The planned goals, expected outcomes, actions/services, and budgeted expenditures must be copied verbatim 
from the previous year’s* approved LCAP. Minor typographical errors may be corrected.  

* For example, for LCAP year 2017/18 of the 2017/18 – 2019/20 LCAP, review the goals in the 2016/17 
LCAP. Moving forward, review the goals from the most recent LCAP year. For example, LCAP year 
2020/21 will review goals from the 2019/20 LCAP year, which is the last year of the 2017/18 – 2019/20 
LCAP. 
Annual Measurable Outcomes

For each goal in the prior year, identify and review the actual measurable outcomes as compared to 
the expected annual measurable outcomes identified in the prior year for the goal. 

Actions/Services
Identify the planned Actions/Services and the budgeted expenditures to implement these actions 
toward achieving the described goal. Identify the actual actions/services implemented to meet the 
described goal and the estimated actual annual expenditures to implement the actions/services. As 
applicable, identify any changes to the students or student groups served, or to the planned location of 
the actions/services provided.

Analysis
Using actual annual measurable outcome data, including data from the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, 
analyze whether the planned actions/services were effective in achieving the goal. Respond to the 
prompts as instructed.

 Describe the overall implementation of the actions/services to achieve the articulated goal. 
Include a discussion of relevant challenges and successes experienced with the implementation 
process. 

 Describe the overall effectiveness of the actions/services to achieve the articulated goal as 
measured by the LEA.

 Explain material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures. 
Minor variances in expenditures or a dollar-for-dollar accounting is not required.

 Describe any changes made to this goal, expected outcomes, metrics, or actions and services to 
achieve this goal as a result of this analysis and analysis of the data provided in the LCFF 
Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable.  Identify where those changes can be found in the LCAP.

Stakeholder Engagement
Meaningful engagement of parents, students, and other stakeholders, including those representing the student 
groups identified by LCFF, is critical to the development of the LCAP and the budget process. Education Code 
identifies the minimum consultation requirements for school districts and county offices of education as 
consulting with teachers, principals, administrators, other school personnel, local bargaining units of the school 
district, parents, and pupils in developing the LCAP. Education Code requires charter schools to consult with 
teachers, principals, administrators, other school personnel, parents, and pupils in developing the LCAP. In 
addition, Education Code Section 48985 specifies the requirements for the translation of notices, reports, 
statements, or records sent to a parent or guardian.

302 of 569



The LCAP should be shared with, and LEAs should request input from, school site-level advisory groups, as 
applicable (e.g., school site councils, English Learner Advisory Councils, student advisory groups, etc.), to 
facilitate alignment between school-site and district-level goals and actions. An LEA may incorporate or 
reference actions described in other plans that are being undertaken to meet specific goals.  

Instructions: The stakeholder engagement process is an ongoing, annual process. The requirements for 
this section are the same for each year of a three-year LCAP. When developing the LCAP, mark the 
appropriate LCAP year, and describe the stakeholder engagement process used to develop the LCAP 
and Annual Update.  When developing the LCAP in year 2 or year 3, mark the appropriate LCAP year 
and replace the previous stakeholder narrative(s) and describe the stakeholder engagement process 
used to develop the current year LCAP and Annual Update.

School districts and county offices of education: Describe the process used to consult with the 
Parent Advisory Committee, the English Learner Parent Advisory Committee, parents, students, 
school personnel, the LEA’s local bargaining units, and the community to inform the development 
of the LCAP and the annual review and analysis for the indicated LCAP year.
Charter schools: Describe the process used to consult with teachers, principals, administrators, 
other school personnel, parents, and students to inform the development of the LCAP and the 
annual review and analysis for the indicated LCAP year. 

Describe how the consultation process impacted the development of the LCAP and annual update for the 
indicated LCAP year, including the goals, actions, services, and expenditures.

Goals, Actions, and Services
LEAs must include a description of the annual goals, for all students and each LCFF identified group of 
students, to be achieved for each state priority as applicable to type of LEA. An LEA may also include 
additional local priorities. This section shall also include a description of the specific planned actions an LEA 
will take to meet the identified goals, and a description of the expenditures required to implement the specific 
actions.

School districts and county offices of education: The LCAP is a three-year plan, which is reviewed 
and updated annually, as required.  
Charter schools: The number of years addressed in the LCAP may align with the term of the charter 
schools budget, typically one year, which is submitted to the school’s authorizer. If year 2 and/or year 3 
is not applicable, charter schools must specify as such.  

New, Modified, Unchanged
As part of the LCAP development process, which includes the annual update and stakeholder 
engagement, indicate if the goal, identified need, related state and/or local priorities, and/or expected 
annual measurable outcomes for the current LCAP year or future LCAP years are modified or 
unchanged from the previous year’s LCAP; or, specify if the goal is new.

Goal
State the goal. LEAs may number the goals using the “Goal #” box for ease of reference. A goal is a 
broad statement that describes the desired result to which all actions/services are directed. A goal 
answers the question: What is the LEA seeking to achieve?  

Related State and/or Local Priorities
Identify the state and/or local priorities addressed by the goal by placing a check mark next to the 
applicable priority or priorities. The LCAP must include goals that address each of the state priorities, 
as applicable to the type of LEA, and any additional local priorities; however, one goal may address 
multiple priorities. (Link to State Priorities)

Identified Need

303 of 569



Describe the needs that led to establishing the goal.  The identified needs may be based on 
quantitative or qualitative information, including, but not limited to, results of the annual update process 
or performance data from the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable.

Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes
For each LCAP year, identify the metric(s) or indicator(s) that the LEA will use to track progress toward 
the expected outcomes. LEAs may identify metrics for specific student groups. Include in the baseline 
column the most recent data associated with this metric or indicator available at the time of adoption of 
the LCAP for the first year of the three-year plan. The most recent data associated with a metric or 
indicator includes data as reported in the annual update of the LCAP year immediately preceding the 
three-year plan, as applicable. The baseline data shall remain unchanged throughout the three-year 
LCAP. In the subsequent year columns, identify the progress to be made in each year of the three-year 
cycle of the LCAP.  Consider how expected outcomes in any given year are related to the expected 
outcomes for subsequent years.
The metrics may be quantitative or qualitative, but at minimum an LEA must use the applicable required 
metrics for the related state priorities, in each LCAP year as applicable to the type of LEA.  For the 
student engagement priority metrics, as applicable, LEAs must calculate the rates as described in the 
LCAP Template Appendix, sections (a) through (d).

Planned Actions/Services

For each action/service, the LEA must complete either the section “For Actions/Services not 
contributing to meeting Increased or Improved Services Requirement” or the section “For 
Actions/Services Contributing to Meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement.”  The LEA 
shall not complete both sections for a single action.

For Actions/Services Not Contributing to Meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement
Students to be Served
The “Students to be Served” box is to be completed for all actions/services except for those which are 
included by the LEA as contributing to meeting the requirement to increase or improve services for 
unduplicated students. Indicate in this box which students will benefit from the actions/services by 
checking “All”, “Students with Disabilities”, or “Specific Student Group(s)”. If “Specific Student Group(s)” 
is checked, identify the specific student group(s) as appropriate.
Location(s)
Identify the location where the action/services will be provided. If the services are provided to all 
schools within the LEA, the LEA must indicate “All Schools”. If the services are provided to specific 
schools within the LEA or specific grade spans only, the LEA must mark “Specific Schools” or “Specific 
Grade Spans”. Identify the individual school or a subset of schools or grade spans (e.g., all high 
schools or grades K-5), as appropriate.

Charter schools operating more than one site, authorized within the same charter petition, may 
choose to distinguish between sites by selecting “Specific Schools” and identify the site(s) where 
the actions/services will be provided. For charter schools operating only one site, “All Schools” and 
“Specific Schools” may be synonymous and, therefore, either would be appropriate. Charter 
schools may use either term provided they are used in a consistent manner through the LCAP.

For Actions/Services Contributing to Meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:
Students to be Served
For any action/service contributing to the LEA’s overall demonstration that it has increased or improved 
services for unduplicated students above what is provided to all students (see Demonstration of 
Increased or Improved Services for Unduplicated Students section, below), the LEA must identify the 
unduplicated student group(s) being served.  

Scope of Service
304 of 569



For each action/service contributing to meeting the increased or improved services requirement, 
identify scope of service by indicating “LEA-wide”, “Schoolwide”, or “Limited to Unduplicated 
Student Group(s)”. The LEA must select one of the following three options:

 If the action/service is being funded and provided to upgrade the entire educational program of 
the LEA, place a check mark next to “LEA-wide.”

 If the action/service is being funded and provided to upgrade the entire educational program of 
a particular school or schools, place a check mark next to “schoolwide”. 

 If the action/service being funded and provided is limited to the unduplicated students identified 
in “Students to be Served”, place a check mark next to “Limited to Student Groups”. 

For charter schools and single-school school districts, “LEA-wide” and “Schoolwide” may be 
synonymous and, therefore, either would be appropriate. For charter schools operating multiple 
schools (determined by a unique CDS code) under a single charter, use “LEA-wide” to refer to all 
schools under the charter and use “Schoolwide” to refer to a single school authorized within the 
same charter petition. Charter schools operating a single school may use “LEA-wide” or 
“Schoolwide” provided these terms are used in a consistent manner through the LCAP.

Location(s)
Identify the location where the action/services will be provided. If the services are provided to all 
schools within the LEA, the LEA must indicate “All Schools”. If the services are provided to specific 
schools within the LEA or specific grade spans only, the LEA must mark “Specific Schools” or “Specific 
Grade Spans”. Identify the individual school or a subset of schools or grade spans (e.g., all high 
schools or grades K-5), as appropriate.

Charter schools operating more than one site, authorized within the same charter petition, may 
choose to distinguish between sites by selecting “Specific Schools” and identify the site(s) where 
the actions/services will be provided. For charter schools operating only one site, “All Schools” and 
“Specific Schools” may be synonymous and, therefore, either would be appropriate. Charter 
schools may use either term provided they are used in a consistent manner through the LCAP.

Actions/Services
For each LCAP year, identify the actions to be performed and services provided to meet the described 
goal.  Actions and services that are implemented to achieve the identified goal may be grouped 
together.  LEAs may number the action/service using the “Action #” box for ease of reference.

New/Modified/Unchanged: 
 Check “New” if the action/service is being added in any of the three years of the LCAP to 

meet the articulated goal. 

 Check “Modified” if the action/service was included to meet an articulated goal and has 
been changed or modified in any way from the prior year description.

 Check “Unchanged” if the action/service was included to meet an articulated goal and has 
not been changed or modified in any way from the prior year description.  

o If a planned action/service is anticipated to remain unchanged for the duration of the 
plan, an LEA may check “Unchanged” and leave the subsequent year columns 
blank rather than having to copy/paste the action/service into the subsequent year 
columns. Budgeted expenditures may be treated in the same way as applicable.

Note: The goal from the prior year may or may not be included in the current three-year LCAP. For 
example, when developing year 1 of the LCAP, the goals articulated in year 3 of the preceding 
three-year LCAP will be from the prior year.

Charter schools may complete the LCAP to align with the term of the charter school’s budget that is 
submitted to the school’s authorizer. Accordingly, a charter school submitting a one-year budget to its 
authorizer may choose not to complete the year 2 and year 3 portions of the Goals, Actions, and 

305 of 569



Services section of the template.  If year 2 and/or year 3 is not applicable, charter schools must specify 
as such.
Budgeted Expenditures
For each action/service, list and describe budgeted expenditures for each school year to implement 
these actions, including where those expenditures can be found in the LEA’s budget. The LEA must 
reference all fund sources for each proposed expenditure. Expenditures must be classified using the 
California School Accounting Manual as required by Education Code sections 52061, 52067, and 
47606.5. 
Expenditures that are included more than once in an LCAP must be indicated as a duplicated 
expenditure and include a reference to the goal and action/service where the expenditure first appears 
in the LCAP.
If a county superintendent of schools has jurisdiction over a single school district, and chooses to 
complete a single LCAP, the LCAP must clearly articulate to which entity’s budget (school district or 
county superintendent of schools) all budgeted expenditures are aligned.

Demonstration of Increased or Improved Services for Unduplicated Students
This section must be completed for each LCAP year. When developing the LCAP in year 2 or year 3, copy the 
Demonstration of Increased or Improved Services for Unduplicated Students table and mark the appropriate 
LCAP year. Using the copy of the table, complete the table as required for the current year LCAP. Retain all 
prior year tables for this section for each of the three years within the LCAP.

Estimated Supplemental and Concentration Grant Funds
Identify the amount of funds in the LCAP year calculated on the basis of the number and concentration 
of low income, foster youth, and English learner students as determined pursuant to 5 CCR 
15496(a)(5). 
Percentage to Increase or Improve Services
Identify the percentage by which services for unduplicated pupils must be increased or improved as 
compared to the services provided to all students in the LCAP year as calculated pursuant to 5 CCR 
15496(a)(7).

Consistent with the requirements of 5 CCR 15496, describe how services provided for unduplicated pupils are 
increased or improved by at least the percentage calculated as compared to services provided for all students 
in the LCAP year.  To improve services means to grow services in quality and to increase services means to 
grow services in quantity.  This description must address how the action(s)/service(s) limited for one or more 
unduplicated student group(s), and any schoolwide or districtwide action(s)/service(s) supported by the 
appropriate description, taken together, result in the required proportional increase or improvement in services 
for unduplicated pupils.

If the overall increased or improved services include any actions/services being funded and provided on a 
schoolwide or districtwide basis, identify each action/service and include the required descriptions supporting 
each action/service as follows. 

For those services being provided on an LEA-wide basis:

 For school districts with an unduplicated pupil percentage of 55% or more, and for charter schools and 
county offices of education: Describe how these services are principally directed to and effective in 
meeting its goals for unduplicated pupils in the state and any local priorities.

 For school districts with an unduplicated pupil percentage of less than 55%: Describe how these services 
are principally directed to and effective in meeting its goals for unduplicated pupils in the state and any 
local priorities. Also describe how the services are the most effective use of the funds to meet these 
goals for its unduplicated pupils. Provide the basis for this determination, including any alternatives 
considered, supporting research, experience or educational theory.

306 of 569



For school districts only, identify in the description those services being funded and provided on a schoolwide 
basis, and include the required description supporting the use of the funds on a schoolwide basis:

 For schools with 40% or more enrollment of unduplicated pupils: Describe how these services are 
principally directed to and effective in meeting its goals for its unduplicated pupils in the state and any 
local priorities.

 For school districts expending funds on a schoolwide basis at a school with less than 40% enrollment of 
unduplicated pupils: Describe how these services are principally directed to and how the services are 
the most effective use of the funds to meet its goals for English learners, low income students and 
foster youth, in the state and any local priorities.

State Priorities
Priority 1: Basic Services addresses the degree to which:

A. Teachers in the LEA are appropriately assigned and fully credentialed in the subject area and for the 
pupils they are teaching;

B. Pupils in the school district have sufficient access to the standards-aligned instructional materials; and
C. School facilities are maintained in good repair.

Priority 2: Implementation of State Standards addresses:
A. The implementation of state board adopted academic content and performance standards for all 

students, which are: 
a. English Language Arts – Common Core State Standards for English Language Arts
b. Mathematics – Common Core State Standards for Mathematics
c. English Language Development
d. Career Technical Education
e. Health Education Content Standards
f. History-Social Science
g. Model School Library Standards
h. Physical Education Model Content Standards
i. Next Generation Science Standards
j. Visual and Performing Arts
k. World Language; and

B. How the programs and services will enable English learners to access the CCSS and the ELD 
standards for purposes of gaining academic content knowledge and English language proficiency.

Priority 3: Parental Involvement addresses:
A. The efforts the school district makes to seek parent input in making decisions for the school district and 

each individual school site;
B. How the school district will promote parental participation in programs for unduplicated pupils; and 
C. How the school district will promote parental participation in programs for individuals with exceptional 

needs.
Priority 4: Pupil Achievement as measured by all of the following, as applicable:

A. Statewide assessments;
B. The Academic Performance Index;
C. The percentage of pupils who have successfully completed courses that satisfy UC or CSU entrance 

requirements, or programs of study that align with state board approved career technical educational 
standards and framework;

D. The percentage of English learner pupils who make progress toward English proficiency as measured 
by the CELDT;

E. The English learner reclassification rate;
F. The percentage of pupils who have passed an advanced placement examination with a score of 3 or 

higher; and
G. The percentage of pupils who participate in, and demonstrate college preparedness pursuant to, the 

Early Assessment Program, or any subsequent assessment of college preparedness.
Priority 5: Pupil Engagement as measured by all of the following, as applicable:

A. School attendance rates;
B. Chronic absenteeism rates;

307 of 569



C. Middle school dropout rates;
D. High school dropout rates; and
E. High school graduation rates;

Priority 6: School Climate as measured by all of the following, as applicable:
A. Pupil suspension rates;
B. Pupil expulsion rates; and
C. Other local measures, including surveys of pupils, parents, and teachers on the sense of safety and 

school connectedness.
Priority 7: Course Access addresses the extent to which pupils have access to and are enrolled in:

A. S broad course of study including courses described under Sections 51210 and 51220(a)-(i), as 
applicable;

B. Programs and services developed and provided to unduplicated pupils; and
C. Programs and services developed and provided to individuals with exceptional needs.

Priority 8: Pupil Outcomes addresses pupil outcomes, if available, for courses described under Sections 
51210 and 51220(a)-(i), as applicable. 
Priority 9: Coordination of Instruction of Expelled Pupils (COE Only) addresses how the county 
superintendent of schools will coordinate instruction of expelled pupils
Priority 10. Coordination of Services for Foster Youth (COE Only) addresses how the county 
superintendent of schools will coordinate services for foster children, including:

A. Working with the county child welfare agency to minimize changes in school placement 
B. Providing education-related information to the county child welfare agency to assist in the delivery of 

services to foster children, including educational status and progress information that is required to be 
included in court reports;

C. Responding to requests from the juvenile court for information and working with the juvenile court to 
ensure the delivery and coordination of necessary educational services; and

D. Establishing a mechanism for the efficient expeditious transfer of health and education records and the 
health and education passport.

Local Priorities address:
A. Local priority goals; and
B. Methods for measuring progress toward local goals.

308 of 569



APPENDIX A: PRIORITIES 5 AND 6 RATE CALCULATION INSTRUCTIONS

For the purposes of completing the LCAP in reference to the state priorities under Education Code sections 
52060 and 52066, as applicable to type of LEA, the following shall apply:

(a) “Chronic absenteeism rate” shall be calculated as follows:

(1) The number of pupils with a primary, secondary, or short-term enrollment during the academic year 
(July 1 – June 30) who are chronically absent where “chronic absentee” means a pupil who is 
absent 10 percent or more of the schooldays in the school year when the total number of days a 
pupil is absent is divided by the total number of days the pupil is enrolled and school was actually 
taught in the total number of days the pupil is enrolled and school was actually taught in the regular 
day schools of the district, exclusive of Saturdays and Sundays.

(2) The unduplicated count of pupils with a primary, secondary, or short-term enrollment during the 
academic year (July 1 – June 30).

(3) Divide (1) by (2).

(b) “Middle School dropout rate” shall be calculated as set forth in California Code of Regulations, title 5, 
Section 1039.1.

 
(c) “High school dropout rate” shall be calculated as follows: 

(1) The number of cohort members who dropout by the end of year 4 in the cohort where “cohort” is 
defined as the number of first-time grade 9 pupils in year 1 (starting cohort) plus pupils who transfer 
in, minus pupils who transfer out, emigrate, or die during school years 1, 2, 3, and 4.

(2) The total number of cohort members.

(3) Divide (1) by (2).

(d) “High school graduation rate” shall be calculated as follows:

(1) The number of cohort members who earned a regular high school diploma [or earned an adult 
education high school diploma or passed the California High School Proficiency Exam] by the end 
of year 4 in the cohort where “cohort” is defined as the number of first-time grade 9 pupils in year 1 
(starting cohort) plus pupils who transfer in, minus pupils who transfer out, emigrate, or die during 
school years 1, 2, 3, and 4.

(2) The total number of cohort members.

(3) Divide (1) by (2).

(e) “Suspension rate” shall be calculated as follows:

(1) The unduplicated count of pupils involved in one or more incidents for which the pupil was 
suspended during the academic year (July 1 – June 30).

(2) The unduplicated count of pupils with a primary, secondary, or short-term enrollment during the 
academic year (July 1 – June 30).

(3) Divide (1) by (2).

309 of 569



(f) “Expulsion rate” shall be calculated as follows:

(1) The unduplicated count of pupils involved in one or more incidents for which the pupil was expelled 
during the academic year (July 1 – June 30).

(2) The unduplicated count of pupils with a primary, secondary, or short-term enrollment during the 
academic year (July 1 – June 30).

(3) Divide (1) by (2).

NOTE: Authority cited: Sections 42238.07 and 52064, Education Code. Reference: Sections 2574, 

2575, 42238.01, 42238.02, 42238.03, 42238.07, 47605, 47605.6, 47606.5, 48926, 52052, 52060, 

52061, 52062, 52063, 52064, 52066, 52067, 52068, 52069, 52070, 52070.5, and 64001,; 20 U.S.C. 

Sections 6312 and 6314.

310 of 569



APPENDIX B: GUIDING QUESTIONS
Guiding Questions: Annual Review and Analysis

1) How have the actions/services addressed the needs of all pupils and did the provisions of those 
services result in the desired outcomes?

2) How have the actions/services addressed the needs of all subgroups of pupils identified pursuant to 
Education Code Section 52052, including, but not limited to, English learners, low-income pupils, and 
foster youth; and did the provision of those actions/services result in the desired outcomes? 

3) How have the actions/services addressed the identified needs and goals of specific school sites and 
were these actions/services effective in achieving the desired outcomes?

4) What information (e.g., quantitative and qualitative data/metrics) was examined to review progress 
toward goals in the annual update?

5) What progress has been achieved toward the goal and expected measurable outcome(s)? How 
effective were the actions and services in making progress toward the goal? What changes to goals, 
actions, services, and expenditures are being made in the LCAP as a result of the review of progress 
and assessment of the effectiveness of the actions and services? 

6) What differences are there between budgeted expenditures and estimated actual annual expenditures? 
What were the reasons for any differences?

Guiding Questions: Stakeholder Engagement

1) How have applicable stakeholders (e.g., parents and pupils, including parents of unduplicated pupils 
and unduplicated pupils identified in Education Code Section 42238.01; community members; local 
bargaining units; LEA personnel; county child welfare agencies; county office of education foster youth 
services programs, court-appointed special advocates, and other foster youth stakeholders; community 
organizations representing English learners; and others as appropriate) been engaged and involved in 
developing, reviewing, and supporting implementation of the LCAP? 

2) How have stakeholders been included in the LEA’s process in a timely manner to allow for engagement 
in the development of the LCAP?

3) What information (e.g., quantitative and qualitative data/metrics) was made available to stakeholders 
related to the state priorities and used by the LEA to inform the LCAP goal setting process? How was 
the information made available?

4) What changes, if any, were made in the LCAP prior to adoption as a result of written comments or other 
feedback received by the LEA through any of the LEA’s engagement processes?

5) What specific actions were taken to meet statutory requirements for stakeholder engagement pursuant 
to Education Code sections 52062, 52068, or 47606.5, as applicable, including engagement with 
representatives of parents and guardians of pupils identified in Education Code Section 42238.01?

6) What specific actions were taken to consult with pupils to meet the requirements 5 CCR 15495(a)?
7) How has stakeholder involvement been continued and supported?  How has the involvement of these 

stakeholders supported improved outcomes for pupils, including unduplicated pupils, related to the 
state priorities?

311 of 569



Guiding Questions: Goals, Actions, and Services

1) What are the LEA’s goal(s) to address state priorities related to “Conditions of Learning”: Basic 
Services (Priority 1), the Implementation of State Standards (Priority 2), and Course Access (Priority 
7)?

2) What are the LEA’s goal(s) to address state priorities related to “Pupil Outcomes”: Pupil Achievement 
(Priority 4), Pupil Outcomes (Priority 8), Coordination of Instruction of Expelled Pupils (Priority 9 – COE 
Only), and Coordination of Services for Foster Youth (Priority 10 – COE Only)? 

3) What are the LEA’s goal(s) to address state priorities related to parent and pupil “Engagement”: 
Parental Involvement (Priority 3), Pupil Engagement (Priority 5), and School Climate (Priority 6)?

4) What are the LEA’s goal(s) to address any locally-identified priorities? 
5) How have the unique needs of individual school sites been evaluated to inform the development of 

meaningful district and/or individual school site goals (e.g., input from site level advisory groups, staff, 
parents, community, pupils; review of school level plans; in-depth school level data analysis, etc.)? 

6) What are the unique goals for unduplicated pupils as defined in Education Code sections 42238.01 and 
bgroups as defined in section 52052 that are different from the LEA’s goals for all pupils?

7) What are the specific expected measurable outcomes associated with each of the goals annually and 
over the term of the LCAP?

8) What information (e.g., quantitative and qualitative data/metrics) was considered/reviewed to develop 
goals to address each state or local priority?

9) What information was considered/reviewed for individual school sites?
10) What information was considered/reviewed for subgroups identified in Education Code Section 52052?
11) What actions/services will be provided to all pupils, to subgroups of pupils identified pursuant to 

Education Code Section 52052, to specific school sites, to English learners, to low-income pupils, 
and/or to foster youth to achieve goals identified in the LCAP?

12) How do these actions/services link to identified goals and expected measurable outcomes? 
13) What expenditures support changes to actions/services as a result of the goal identified?  Where can 

these expenditures be found in the LEA’s budget?

Prepared by the California Department of Education, October 2016

312 of 569



LCAP Expenditure Summary

Total Expenditures by Funding Source

Funding Source
2016-17

Annual Update
Budgeted

2016-17
Annual Update

Actual
2017-18 2018-19 2019-20

2017-18
through
2019-20

Total
All Funding Sources 7,892,930.00 7,521,721.66 6,332,036.00 6,431,053.00 6,425,213.00 19,188,302.00
Base 2,590,805.00 2,293,490.00 1,345,172.00 1,367,049.00 1,389,332.00 4,101,553.00
California Partnership Academies 0.00 228,741.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Carl D. Perkins Career and Technical Education 152,386.00 106,196.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Other 119,149.00 59,185.00 369,105.00 369,105.00 270,000.00 1,008,210.00
Supplemental 4,517,520.00 4,197,361.66 3,931,669.00 3,931,183.00 4,050,035.00 11,912,887.00
Supplemental and Concentration 0.00 0.00 0.00 54,558.00 0.00 54,558.00
Title I 333,070.00 490,362.00 415,694.00 437,795.00 443,498.00 1,296,987.00
Title II 160,000.00 139,967.00 213,740.00 213,740.00 213,740.00 641,220.00
Title III 20,000.00 6,419.00 56,656.00 57,623.00 58,608.00 172,887.00

* Totals based on expenditure amounts in goal and annual update sections.

313 of 569



Total Expenditures by Object Type

Object Type
2016-17

Annual Update
Budgeted

2016-17
Annual Update

Actual
2017-18 2018-19 2019-20

2017-18
through
2019-20

Total
All Expenditure Types 7,892,930.00 7,521,721.67 6,332,036.00 6,431,053.00 6,425,213.00 19,188,302.00
0000: Unrestricted 271,000.00 282,228.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0001-0999: Unrestricted: Locally Defined 271,000.00 228,741.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries 1,200,829.00 1,112,901.06 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
1100 CERT TEACHERS' SALARIES-REG. 1,252,720.00 1,317,057.00 1,847,692.00 1,875,418.00 1,905,548.00 5,628,658.00
1130 TEACHER SALARIES - EWA 0.00 0.00 107,735.00 108,672.00 109,624.00 326,031.00
1140 TEACHER SALARIES-SUBSTITUTES 0.00 0.00 12,740.00 12,740.00 12,740.00 38,220.00
1160 TEACHER SALARIES-STIPEND 0.00 0.00 90,022.00 90,022.00 90,022.00 270,066.00
1200 CERT PUPIL SUPP 0.00 0.00 632,399.00 642,106.00 651,962.00 1,926,467.00
1230 CERT PUPIL SUPP-EWA 0.00 0.00 12,891.00 13,084.00 13,281.00 39,256.00
1330 CERT SUPRVSR ADMIN - EWA 0.00 0.00 18,000.00 18,000.00 18,000.00 54,000.00
1900 OTHER CERT SALARIES-REGULAR 8,154.00 7,966.00 657,005.00 679,556.00 689,560.00 2,026,121.00
2000 >CLASS PERSONNEL SALARIES 225,578.00 210,970.00 235,086.00 239,330.00 243,658.00 718,074.00
2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries 283,450.00 283,397.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
2200 CLASS PUPIL SUPPORT SALARIES 141,000.00 146,448.00 311,868.00 317,567.00 323,373.00 952,808.00
2400 CLASS CLERICAL SALARIES-REG 0.00 0.00 54,839.00 55,739.00 56,654.00 167,232.00
2900 OTHER CLASS SALARIES-REGULAR  O 50,358.00 36,505.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 399,239.00 366,818.00 1,244,772.00 1,284,526.00 1,315,603.00 3,844,901.00
3000-3999: Employee Benefits 597,633.00 533,600.61 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
4000-4999: Books And Supplies 309,469.00 205,518.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
4200 BOOKS OTHER THAN TEXTBOOKS 63,890.00 51,061.00 15,170.00 15,170.00 15,170.00 45,510.00
4300 MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 537,196.00 491,574.00 864,305.00 851,611.00 752,506.00 2,468,422.00
4395 FOOD FOR WORKSHOPS 0.00 0.00 3,770.00 3,770.00 3,770.00 11,310.00
5200 MILEAGE, TRAVEL & CONFERENCES 12,000.00 6,012.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 3,000.00
5800 OTHER SVCS & OPER EXPENDITURES 155,570.00 98,593.00 222,742.00 222,742.00 222,742.00 668,226.00
5800: Professional/Consulting Services And 
Operating Expenditures

180,574.00 256,642.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

7000-7439: Other Outgo 1,933,270.00 1,885,690.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

* Totals based on expenditure amounts in goal and annual update sections.

314 of 569



Total Expenditures by Object Type and Funding Source

Object Type Funding Source
2016-17
Annual 
Update

Budgeted

2016-17
Annual 
Update
Actual

2017-18 2018-19 2019-20
2017-18
through
2019-20

Total
All Expenditure Types All Funding Sources 7,892,930.00 7,521,721.67 6,332,036.00 6,431,053.00 6,425,213.00 19,188,302.00
0000: Unrestricted Base 271,000.00 282,228.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0001-0999: Unrestricted: 
Locally Defined

Base 271,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0001-0999: Unrestricted: 
Locally Defined

California Partnership 
Academies

0.00 228,741.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries

Base 88,765.00 100,986.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries

Carl D. Perkins Career and 
Technical Education

9,645.00 1,693.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries

Other 106,022.00 33,594.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries

Supplemental 838,091.00 857,042.06 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries

Title I 148,306.00 114,967.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries

Title III 10,000.00 4,619.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

1100 CERT TEACHERS' 
SALARIES-REG.

Base 0.00 0.00 672,351.00 682,436.00 692,673.00 2,047,460.00

1100 CERT TEACHERS' 
SALARIES-REG.

Carl D. Perkins Career and 
Technical Education

9,645.00 1,693.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

1100 CERT TEACHERS' 
SALARIES-REG.

Supplemental 1,216,098.00 1,097,729.00 1,086,895.00 1,103,209.00 1,121,756.00 3,311,860.00

1100 CERT TEACHERS' 
SALARIES-REG.

Title I 26,977.00 217,635.00 88,446.00 89,773.00 91,119.00 269,338.00

1130 TEACHER SALARIES - 
EWA

Supplemental 0.00 0.00 103,510.00 104,447.00 105,399.00 313,356.00

1130 TEACHER SALARIES - 
EWA

Title I 0.00 0.00 4,225.00 4,225.00 4,225.00 12,675.00

1140 TEACHER SALARIES-
SUBSTITUTES

Title I 0.00 0.00 12,740.00 12,740.00 12,740.00 38,220.00

1160 TEACHER SALARIES-
STIPEND

Title I 0.00 0.00 21,000.00 21,000.00 21,000.00 63,000.00

315 of 569



Total Expenditures by Object Type and Funding Source

Object Type Funding Source
2016-17
Annual 
Update

Budgeted

2016-17
Annual 
Update
Actual

2017-18 2018-19 2019-20
2017-18
through
2019-20

Total
1160 TEACHER SALARIES-
STIPEND

Title II 0.00 0.00 69,022.00 69,022.00 69,022.00 207,066.00

1200 CERT PUPIL SUPP Base 0.00 0.00 288,820.00 293,263.00 297,774.00 879,857.00
1200 CERT PUPIL SUPP Supplemental 0.00 0.00 343,579.00 348,843.00 354,188.00 1,046,610.00
1230 CERT PUPIL SUPP-
EWA

Supplemental 0.00 0.00 12,891.00 13,084.00 13,281.00 39,256.00

1330 CERT SUPRVSR 
ADMIN - EWA

Supplemental 0.00 0.00 5,000.00 5,000.00 5,000.00 15,000.00

1330 CERT SUPRVSR 
ADMIN - EWA

Title I 0.00 0.00 13,000.00 13,000.00 13,000.00 39,000.00

1900 OTHER CERT 
SALARIES-REGULAR

Supplemental 0.00 0.00 453,356.00 460,159.00 467,062.00 1,380,577.00

1900 OTHER CERT 
SALARIES-REGULAR

Title I 8,154.00 7,966.00 158,746.00 173,821.00 176,238.00 508,805.00

1900 OTHER CERT 
SALARIES-REGULAR

Title III 0.00 0.00 44,903.00 45,576.00 46,260.00 136,739.00

2000 >CLASS PERSONNEL 
SALARIES

Other 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

2000 >CLASS PERSONNEL 
SALARIES

Supplemental 225,578.00 210,970.00 235,086.00 222,830.00 227,158.00 685,074.00

2000 >CLASS PERSONNEL 
SALARIES

Title I 0.00 0.00 0.00 16,500.00 16,500.00 33,000.00

2000-2999: Classified 
Personnel Salaries

Supplemental 232,596.00 218,167.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

2000-2999: Classified 
Personnel Salaries

Title I 50,854.00 65,230.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

2200 CLASS PUPIL 
SUPPORT SALARIES

Supplemental 141,000.00 146,448.00 302,568.00 308,081.00 313,697.00 924,346.00

2200 CLASS PUPIL 
SUPPORT SALARIES

Title I 0.00 0.00 9,300.00 9,486.00 9,676.00 28,462.00

2400 CLASS CLERICAL 
SALARIES-REG

Supplemental 0.00 0.00 54,839.00 55,739.00 56,654.00 167,232.00

2900 OTHER CLASS 
SALARIES-REGULAR  O

Supplemental 50,358.00 36,505.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS Base 0.00 0.00 294,001.00 301,350.00 308,885.00 904,236.00

316 of 569



Total Expenditures by Object Type and Funding Source

Object Type Funding Source
2016-17
Annual 
Update

Budgeted

2016-17
Annual 
Update
Actual

2017-18 2018-19 2019-20
2017-18
through
2019-20

Total
3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS Carl D. Perkins Career and 

Technical Education
2,658.00 344.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS Supplemental 362,910.00 334,140.00 841,999.00 817,845.00 893,894.00 2,553,738.00
3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS Supplemental and 

Concentration
0.00 0.00 0.00 54,558.00 0.00 54,558.00

3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS Title I 33,671.00 32,334.00 86,043.00 87,750.00 89,500.00 263,293.00
3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS Title II 0.00 0.00 10,976.00 10,976.00 10,976.00 32,928.00
3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS Title III 0.00 0.00 11,753.00 12,047.00 12,348.00 36,148.00
3000-3999: Employee 
Benefits

Base 26,770.00 24,586.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

3000-3999: Employee 
Benefits

Carl D. Perkins Career and 
Technical Education

2,658.00 344.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

3000-3999: Employee 
Benefits

Other 13,127.00 10,447.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

3000-3999: Employee 
Benefits

Supplemental 501,470.00 447,883.61 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

3000-3999: Employee 
Benefits

Title I 53,608.00 50,340.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

4000-4999: Books And 
Supplies

Carl D. Perkins Career and 
Technical Education

63,890.00 51,061.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

4000-4999: Books And 
Supplies

Supplemental 234,079.00 152,567.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

4000-4999: Books And 
Supplies

Title I 11,500.00 1,890.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

* Totals based on expenditure amounts in goal and annual update sections.

317 of 569



Total Expenditures by Goal

Goal 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20
2017-18
through
2019-20

Total
Goal 1 1,981,140.00 2,007,854.00 1,935,963.00 5,924,957.00

Goal 2 327,962.00 333,217.00 338,570.00 999,749.00

Goal 3 2,829,812.00 2,879,549.00 2,922,591.00 8,631,952.00

Goal 4 714,909.00 722,865.00 730,964.00 2,168,738.00

Goal 5 85,100.00 86,756.00 88,447.00 260,303.00

Goal 6 393,113.00 400,812.00 408,678.00 1,202,603.00

Goal 7 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Goal 8 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Goal 9 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Goal 10 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

* Totals based on expenditure amounts in goal and annual update sections.

318 of 569



31
9 

of
 5

69



32
0 

of
 5

69



32
1 

of
 5

69



32
2 

of
 5

69



AGENDA ITEM:  8.3. 5 
2017-18 Adopted Budget cover 

 SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Adoption of the 2017-18 Budget and Certifications  
 
MEETING DATE: June 28, 2017 
 
FROM:   Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:    Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the adoption of the proposed 2017-18 Budget. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Santa Cruz City Schools is on a single budget adoption cycle.  This means the Board adopts a 
budget by June 30th.  The preliminary budget being presented to the Governing Board is based on 
current law.  It is fully anticipated that the Governor will reach a compromise with the Legislature 
by the June deadline, which may require adjustments to our revenue projections.  Once the details 
of the budget are released, the District will revise its budget and provide the Board with a fiscal 
impact on its regularly scheduled meeting of August 23, 2017. 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics. 
 

1. All SCCS students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and 
career opportunities.  
 

2. SCCS students will be motivated learners who leave our system as well rounded citizens 
with a broad spectrum of interests and abilities 
 

3. We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic 
groups within the SCCS student community.  
 

4. We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting 
effective teaching.  

 
5. SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 

 
6. SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnerships with its diverse community. 

 
Highlights of Revenue & Expenditure Assumptions 
 
General Fund (01) 
 
Revenues 
The General Fund is used to account for the general operating revenues and expenses of the 
District.  

 Elementary District is Basic Aid. It should be $2,687,838 above LCFF Revenue.  The State 
applies an on-going “Fair Share” reduction of $1.5 million in 2017-18, narrowing the 

323 of 569



AGENDA ITEM:  8.3. 5 
2017-18 Adopted Budget cover 

differential to $1,187,838. 
 Elementary property taxes are projected to increase by 2.0%.   
 2017-18 Secondary LCFF Revenue income is based on P2 ADA of 4,100 
 Measure I projected income is $1,289,510 
 Measure J projected income is $1,341,021  
 Measure P projected income is $1,642,556 
 Measure O projected income is $2,448,584  
 Contributions to Restricted Maintenance & Special Ed are $15.0 million 

 
Expenditures 
Negotiations with employee bargaining units are on-going, and this budget accounted for the 
following adjustments impacting total compensation: 
 

 Projected step and column increases of 1.5% for certificated  
 Projected step costs at 2.0% for classified 
 Includes $476,595 transfer to the Cafeteria Fund. 

  

The 2017-18 Budget reflects an unrestricted deficit of ($870,684) or about 1.12% of total 
expenditures and transfers out, with an estimated ending fund balance of $8,554,268.  This 
includes a 3% Reserve for Economic Uncertainty, which is required by law.  
 
General Fund Three-Year Projection 
The three-year budget projection is shown on the General Fund summary page with the 
current year, the budget year, and two future years.  The 3-year projection assumptions are 
in the budget document, and are based on the current law. 

 
The most significant assumptions are: 

  LCFF GAP Funding Percentages 
 

2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 
43.97% 34.42% 35.88% 

 
   Continues the on-going 8.92% Fair Share reduction 
   Elementary District is projected to remain in Basic Aid status 
   The Revenue for Measures I, J, O and P as stated on previous page  
   Health and welfare benefit cost increases for certificated employees is projected 

5.7% for 2017-18 and 6% for 2018-19 and 2019-20. 
   

 The General Fund operating surplus/deficit and unassigned reserve is summarized as follows: 
 

2017-18 2018-19 2019-20
Unassigned Operating Surplus/(Deficit)        (870,684)        (2,035,126)       (2,995,788)

Unrestricted Reserve      8,554,268          6,519,142         3,523,354 
% Unrestricted Reserve 11.00% 8.22% 4.35%  

 
Summary 
The current operating budget and multiyear projections are fully aligned to the Local Control 
Funding Formula, as this budget was prepared utilizing State Budget Assumptions, not an actual 
Budget Act. It is anticipated that when the 2017-18 budget is adopted by the Governor, there will 

324 of 569



AGENDA ITEM:  8.3. 5 
2017-18 Adopted Budget cover 

be changes to the revenue for our district.  We will have 45 days to make adjustments to the State 
on any material changes within our budget.  Under the Local Control Funding Formula, it is 
expected that SCCS will incrementally move toward 2007-08 funding levels by 2020-21.  The 
Governing Board will receive an update on the fiscal impact of the State’s Enacted Budget, as 
information becomes available (trailer bills), and on its next regularly scheduled meeting of August 
23, 2017. 
 
Cafeteria Fund (13) 
The Cafeteria Fund (CF) is used to account for all revenues and expenses associated with the 
preparation and serving of breakfasts and lunches to students in the District, during the regular 
school year and during summer school. 
 
The 2017-18 Cafeteria Fund budget includes a transfer of $476,595 from the General Fund.  
Total expenditures are projected to be approximately $2.1 million.  The estimated ending 
balance for 2017-18 is zero. 
 
Deferred Maintenance Fund (14) 
The Deferred Maintenance Fund (DMF) is used to account for revenues and expenses 
associated with the State Deferred Maintenance program.  There currently is no State match to 
Deferred Maintenance as the State has built it into LCFF.  We will continue to transfer 
$387,716 for any maintenance projects. 
 
Special Reserve Fund Post Employment Benefits (20) 
This is a relatively new fund, first established in 2007-08, to set up a reserve to fund the 
District’s GASB 45 Other Post Employment Benefits liability.  The District is now on a “pay-as-
you-go” basis, and is no longer attempting to fund the OPEB obligation.   
 
Building Fund (21) 
The revenue to this fund comes from proceeds from the sale of bonds and property tax "pass 
through" from the City of Santa Cruz and County of Santa Cruz Redevelopment agencies.  
 
In 2017-18, the Building Fund has an available beginning balance of approximately 
$88,763,295. 
 
Capital Facilities Fund (25) 
This fund is used to account for Developer Fee revenue and expenditures from these funds.  These 
funds are used to acquire, install or relocate, and equip portable classrooms.  Developer Fee 
revenue is projected at $194,630. 

 
Foundation Trust Funds (72-93) 
This fund incorporates over 35 different student scholarship accounts for different schools.  
The District holds these funds in trust for the schools. 

325 of 569



32
6 

of
 5

69



32
7 

of
 5

69



32
8 

of
 5

69



32
9 

of
 5

69



33
0 

of
 5

69



33
1 

of
 5

69



33
2 

of
 5

69



33
3 

of
 5

69



33
4 

of
 5

69



33
5 

of
 5

69



33
6 

of
 5

69



33
7 

of
 5

69



33
8 

of
 5

69



33
9 

of
 5

69



34
0 

of
 5

69



34
1 

of
 5

69



34
2 

of
 5

69



34
3 

of
 5

69



34
4 

of
 5

69



34
5 

of
 5

69



34
6 

of
 5

69



34
7 

of
 5

69



34
8 

of
 5

69



34
9 

of
 5

69



35
0 

of
 5

69



35
1 

of
 5

69



35
2 

of
 5

69



35
3 

of
 5

69



35
4 

of
 5

69



35
5 

of
 5

69



35
6 

of
 5

69



35
7 

of
 5

69



35
8 

of
 5

69



35
9 

of
 5

69



36
0 

of
 5

69



36
1 

of
 5

69



36
2 

of
 5

69



36
3 

of
 5

69



36
4 

of
 5

69



36
5 

of
 5

69



36
6 

of
 5

69



36
7 

of
 5

69



36
8 

of
 5

69



36
9 

of
 5

69



37
0 

of
 5

69



37
1 

of
 5

69



37
2 

of
 5

69



37
3 

of
 5

69



37
4 

of
 5

69



37
5 

of
 5

69



37
6 

of
 5

69



37
7 

of
 5

69



37
8 

of
 5

69



37
9 

of
 5

69



38
0 

of
 5

69



38
1 

of
 5

69



38
2 

of
 5

69



38
3 

of
 5

69



38
4 

of
 5

69



38
5 

of
 5

69



38
6 

of
 5

69



38
7 

of
 5

69



38
8 

of
 5

69



38
9 

of
 5

69



39
0 

of
 5

69



39
1 

of
 5

69



39
2 

of
 5

69



39
3 

of
 5

69



39
4 

of
 5

69



39
5 

of
 5

69



39
6 

of
 5

69



39
7 

of
 5

69



39
8 

of
 5

69



39
9 

of
 5

69



40
0 

of
 5

69



40
1 

of
 5

69



40
2 

of
 5

69



40
3 

of
 5

69



40
4 

of
 5

69



40
5 

of
 5

69



40
6 

of
 5

69



40
7 

of
 5

69



40
8 

of
 5

69



40
9 

of
 5

69



41
0 

of
 5

69



41
1 

of
 5

69



41
2 

of
 5

69



41
3 

of
 5

69



41
4 

of
 5

69



41
5 

of
 5

69



41
6 

of
 5

69



41
7 

of
 5

69



41
8 

of
 5

69



41
9 

of
 5

69



42
0 

of
 5

69



42
1 

of
 5

69



42
2 

of
 5

69



42
3 

of
 5

69



42
4 

of
 5

69



42
5 

of
 5

69



42
6 

of
 5

69



42
7 

of
 5

69



42
8 

of
 5

69



42
9 

of
 5

69



43
0 

of
 5

69



43
1 

of
 5

69



43
2 

of
 5

69



43
3 

of
 5

69



43
4 

of
 5

69



43
5 

of
 5

69



43
6 

of
 5

69



43
7 

of
 5

69



43
8 

of
 5

69



43
9 

of
 5

69



44
0 

of
 5

69



44
1 

of
 5

69



44
2 

of
 5

69



44
3 

of
 5

69



44
4 

of
 5

69



44
5 

of
 5

69



44
6 

of
 5

69



44
7 

of
 5

69



44
8 

of
 5

69



44
9 

of
 5

69



45
0 

of
 5

69



45
1 

of
 5

69



45
2 

of
 5

69



45
3 

of
 5

69



45
4 

of
 5

69



45
5 

of
 5

69



45
6 

of
 5

69



45
7 

of
 5

69



45
8 

of
 5

69



45
9 

of
 5

69



46
0 

of
 5

69



46
1 

of
 5

69



46
2 

of
 5

69



46
3 

of
 5

69



46
4 

of
 5

69



46
5 

of
 5

69



46
6 

of
 5

69



46
7 

of
 5

69



46
8 

of
 5

69



46
9 

of
 5

69



47
0 

of
 5

69



47
1 

of
 5

69



47
2 

of
 5

69



47
3 

of
 5

69



47
4 

of
 5

69



47
5 

of
 5

69



47
6 

of
 5

69



47
7 

of
 5

69



47
8 

of
 5

69



47
9 

of
 5

69



48
0 

of
 5

69



48
1 

of
 5

69



48
2 

of
 5

69



48
3 

of
 5

69



48
4 

of
 5

69



48
5 

of
 5

69



48
6 

of
 5

69



48
7 

of
 5

69



48
8 

of
 5

69



48
9 

of
 5

69



49
0 

of
 5

69



49
1 

of
 5

69



49
2 

of
 5

69



49
3 

of
 5

69



49
4 

of
 5

69



49
5 

of
 5

69



49
6 

of
 5

69



49
7 

of
 5

69



49
8 

of
 5

69



49
9 

of
 5

69



50
0 

of
 5

69



50
1 

of
 5

69



50
2 

of
 5

69



50
3 

of
 5

69



50
4 

of
 5

69



50
5 

of
 5

69



50
6 

of
 5

69



50
7 

of
 5

69



50
8 

of
 5

69



50
9 

of
 5

69



51
0 

of
 5

69



51
1 

of
 5

69



51
2 

of
 5

69



51
3 

of
 5

69



51
4 

of
 5

69



51
5 

of
 5

69



51
6 

of
 5

69



51
7 

of
 5

69



51
8 

of
 5

69



51
9 

of
 5

69



52
0 

of
 5

69



52
1 

of
 5

69



52
2 

of
 5

69



52
3 

of
 5

69



52
4 

of
 5

69



52
5 

of
 5

69



52
6 

of
 5

69



52
7 

of
 5

69



52
8 

of
 5

69



52
9 

of
 5

69



53
0 

of
 5

69



53
1 

of
 5

69



53
2 

of
 5

69



53
3 

of
 5

69



53
4 

of
 5

69



53
5 

of
 5

69



53
6 

of
 5

69



53
7 

of
 5

69



53
8 

of
 5

69



53
9 

of
 5

69



54
0 

of
 5

69



54
1 

of
 5

69



54
2 

of
 5

69



54
3 

of
 5

69



54
4 

of
 5

69



54
5 

of
 5

69



54
6 

of
 5

69



54
7 

of
 5

69



54
8 

of
 5

69



54
9 

of
 5

69



55
0 

of
 5

69



55
1 

of
 5

69



55
2 

of
 5

69



55
3 

of
 5

69



55
4 

of
 5

69



55
5 

of
 5

69



55
6 

of
 5

69



55
7 

of
 5

69



55
8 

of
 5

69



55
9 

of
 5

69



56
0 

of
 5

69



56
1 

of
 5

69



56
2 

of
 5

69



56
3 

of
 5

69



56
4 

of
 5

69



56
5 

of
 5

69



56
6 

of
 5

69



56
7 

of
 5

69



56
8 

of
 5

69



56
9 

of
 5

69


	Agenda 6-28-17 Final
	Minutes 6-14-17 Reviewed
	Cover - Item 8.1.1 - Certificated Personnel Actions
	Attachment - Item 8.1.1 - Certificated Personnel Actions.doc
	Cover - Item 8.1.2 - Classified Personnel Actions
	Attachment - Item 8.1.2 - Classified Personnel Actions
	Purchase Orders Over $2500 cover
	Purchase Orders over $2500 list
	PO/REQ
	American Modular Proposal Adult Ed Portable
	Food Services bids
	OnPoint quote demo classrooms furniture
	warrants cover
	Vendor Warrants List
	Budget Transfers cover
	Budget Transfers Report May 2017
	surplus cover
	SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS
	AGENDA ITEM:  Disposition of Surplus Property
	FROM:    Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services
	THROUGH:     Kris Munro, Superintendent
	RECOMMENDATION:
	BACKGROUND:
	Surplus adult school misc
	SITE: ADULT SCHOOL
	Surplus B40m computers
	SITE: BRANCIFORTE MIDDLE SCHOOL
	Surplus B40SS computers
	SITE: BRANCIFORTE SMALL SCHOOLS
	Surplus BV computers
	SITE: BAY VIEW ELEMENTARY
	Surplus BV computers P2
	SITE: BAY VIEW ELEMENTARY (PAGE 2)
	Surplus Food Sv Van 39 ovens
	SITE: FOOD SERVICES DEPT.
	Surplus Gault computers
	SITE: GAULT ELEMENTARY SCHOOL
	Surplus HH computers
	SITE: HARBOR HIGH SCHOOL
	Surplus HH computers p2
	SITE: HARBOR HIGH SCHOOL (PAGE 2)
	Surplus Special Ed computers
	SITE: DISTRICT OFFICE – SPECIAL EDUCATION
	Surplus SCHS computers
	SITE: SANTA CRUZ HIGH SCHOOL
	Surplus SCHS computers P.2
	Surplus SCHS computers P.3
	Surplus SHS computers
	SITE: SOQUEL HIGH SCHOOL
	contracts cover
	SHS SRO Annual Contract Renewal 2017-18
	Balance 4 Kids - NPA contract cover
	Balance $ Kids NPA Contract
	Easter Seals NPA contract cover
	Easter Seals NPA contract
	Rachael Haven Agrmt cover
	Rachael Haven Agreement
	Belli Architects Agrmt Amndmt  B40M Sp Ed portable
	Bridges to Kinder License Agrmt cover
	Bridges to Kinder License Agrmt at Westlake
	Applied Materials & Engr M&O Water intrusion analysis
	CSA Jerene Lacey
	Palace PIggyback Contract cover
	Palace PIggyback Contract
	CPR Contract - Harbor poolhouse mold remediation
	Change Order 1 DLV Shade Project cover
	Change Order #1 DLV shade project
	Cvr BP 1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures
	BP 1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures
	Facility Services Update Grounds Dept cover
	Facilities.Grounds2
	Bond Update Pools HH Field cover
	Harbor Athletic Fields
	Belli Architects agrmt amndmt pools HH SHS cover
	Cvr LCAP 6.28.17.Rev2.KM.
	LCAP 2017-20 final 6.28.17
	LCAP2
	2017-18 Adopted Budget cover
	2017-18 Adopted Budget SACS Report
	2017-18 Adoped Budget Book



